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INFORMATION CONCERNING DEFINITIONS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

In this annual report, references to the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our” refer to Quanta
Capital Holdings Ltd. and its subsidiaries and branch, which include or will include, Quanta
Reinsurance Ltd., Quanta U.S. Holdings Inc., Quanta Reinsurance U.S. Ltd., Quanta Indemnity
Company, Quanta Specialty Lines Insurance Company, Quanta Insurance Ireland Ltd.,
Environmental Strategies Consulting LLC, or ESC, Quanta Technical Services LLC and our
branch in the United Kingdom, unless the context suggests otherwise. We refer to Quanta
Reinsurance Ltd., Quanta Reinsurance U.S. Ltd., Quanta Insurance Ireland Ltd. and our branch
in the United Kingdom as Quanta Bermuda, Quanta U.S. Re, Quanta Ireland and Quanta U.K.,
respectively. References to Quanta Holdings refer solely to Quanta Capital Holdings Ltd.

We purchased National Farmers Union Standard Insurance Company, or NFU Standard,
which we renamed Quanta Indemnity Company, from National Farmers Union Property and
Casualty Company, or NFU, on December 19, 2003, to underwrite specialty insurance and
reinsurance in the United States on an admitted basis. We refer to this acquisition as the NFU
Standard acquisition.

For your convenience, we have provided a Glossary, beginning on page G-1, of selected
insurance, reinsurance and investment terms. In this annual report, amounts are expressed in
U.S. dollars and the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America, except as otherwise indicated.

We have filed for registration in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office for the mark
“Quanta.” All other brand names or trade names appearing in this annual report are the
property of their respective holders.



BUSINESS

While we intend to operate our business as described in this annual report, we are a new
company with a limited operating history. Our experience and changes in market conditions,
the occurrence of catastrophic losses and other factors outside our control may require us to
alter our methods of conducting our business, such as the nature, amount, and types of risks
we assume and the terms and limits of the products we write or intend to write.

Overview

We are a new Bermuda holding company formed to provide specialty insurance,
reinsurance and consulting products and services on a global basis through our subsidiaires.
We were incorporated in May 2003 and began conducting our business in September 2003.
We focus on writing coverage for specialized classes of risk through a team of experienced,
technically qualified underwriters. These specialty lines insurance and reinsurance products
differ significantly from products written in the standard market. In the standard market
insurance rates and forms are highly regulated, products and coverages are largely uniform
and have relatively predictable exposures and companies tend to compete for customers on
the basis of price and service. In contrast, the specialty insurance and reinsurance market
provide coverage for risks that are often unusual or difficult to place and do not fit the
underwriting criteria of standard commercial products carriers. As a result, our insurance and
reinsurance products require extensive technical underwriting skills and risk assessment
resources and, in many cases, engineering expertise, in order to be profitably underwritten.
We also provide risk assessment and consulting services to our clients.

Historically, insurers and reinsurers have experienced significant fluctuations in operating
results due to competition, frequency of occurrence or severity of catastrophic events (such as
earthquakes, hurricanes, floods, fires and other natural or man-made disasters), levels of
underwriting capacity, as defined by availability of capital, and other factors. While we expect
our returns to be impacted by the cyclical nature of the insurance and reinsurance industry, we
believe that disciplined pricing and technical risk assessment through prudent risk selection in
these lines will result in superior returns on equity for our shareholders during different
business cycles compared to insurers and reinsurers in other lines of business. We also
believe that products and policies within specialty insurance and reinsurance lines that require
technical underwriting and risk assessment expertise experience less competitive pricing
pressure and volatility because of barriers to entering these markets, which exist principally
due to the difficulty of acquiring experienced and specialized personnel with these skills: Our
objective is to target insurance and reinsurance products and areas where we believe we can
derive a competitive advantage from our technical underwriting skills and that'meet our risk
and long-term profitability criteria. We proactively manage our allocation of capital and
resources among our insurance and reinsurance business units and among product lines
within those business units. Our business units and product lines inciude or will include:

Insurance Reinsurance Cohsultiné
« Professional Liability , + Casualty + Investigation,
« Marine, Technical Risk and » Property Remediation and
Aviation * Marine, Technical Risk Engineering Services
« Environmental Liability and Aviation « Assessment Services
» Structured Insurance » Structured Reinsurance + Other Technical Services
» Fidelity and Crime ‘ ‘ + Information Management

+ Surety : ‘ Services
» Technical Risk Property :

Strategy and Competitive Strengths

We believe that the insurance industry has experienced a significant loss of capital to
support insurance business due to underpricing of policies in prior years, recognition of
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reserve deficiencies resulting from historical liability exposures, an adverse investment
environment, fewer viable competitors and credit downgrades of many of the remaining
insurers. We believe we can capitalize on the opportunities created by this continuing
dislocation in the insurance marketplace. Our strategy is to operate a new.insurance company,
unburdened by liabilities resulting from historical operation, with a solid capital base, strong
management and an experienced team of specialty line underwriters. We are developing
advanced risk assessment and loss control capabilities, applying those capabilities in the more
technically demanding lines of insurance and deploying capital to what we believe will be the
most attractive business lines at the most opportune times.

We are committed to building a diversified product portfolio and a cost-effective
underwriting platform that will allow us to react quickly to changing market dynamics. Qur
competitive strengths and the key elements of this strategy are:

« Experienced Management and Extensive Specialized Underwriting Capabilities. We
have assembled a core group of underwriting officers, underwriters and other
professionals to write insurance and reinsurance policies. Our senior management team
includes Tobey J. Russ and Michael J. Murphy, each of whom has more than 20 years of
experience in the insurance, reinsurance or risk consulting industries. Messrs. Russ and
Murphy have assembled teams of experienced professionals with specialized knowledge
of their respective market segments to manage each of our product l‘in'es where we
currently write business. Each team is led by an experienced underwriting officer with
demonstrated performance in his/her specialty line. We support these underwriting
officers with experienced underwriters who are also specialists in their respective
product lines. While we must still employ additional professionals in order to
successfully operate and grow our businesses, we believe that the extensive depth and
knowledge of our senior management team and underwriting officers will provide us
with the ability to successfully select, price and manage complex risks.

« Portfolio of Profitable Specialty Products with Strong Margins through Different
Business Cycles. We offer products and policies within specialty insurance and
reinsurance lines that require technical proficiency to underwrite, such as marine,
technical risk and aviation, professional liability, environmental liability, fidelity and
crime, and surety. We believe that specialty lines tend to have some of the highest
barriers to entry in the insurance industry. While we expect our returns to be impacted
by the cyclical nature of the industry, we believe that specialty lines have the potential
to offer high risk-adjusted returns on capital through different business cycles compared

. to insurers and reinsurers in other lines of business. Because we participate in multiple
lines of business, we expect to develop a diversified book of business and maintain our
flexibility to timely allocate our capital and resources to product lines that we believe
will offer high risk-adjusted returns on capital through different business cycles.

» Technical Risk Assessment and Loss Control Capabilities. We use our technical
underwriting capabilities to help us assess risk, attempt to control potential losses and
to price the risks we intend to insure and reinsure. We use ESC to provide diversified
risk management services to assist customers in environmental remediation, regutatory
analyses, technical support for environmental claims, merger and acquisition due
diligence, environmental audits and risk assessments and engineering and information
management services. ESC provides risk evaluation services to our underwriters in the
environmental liability segment. We intend to hire additional professionals and use
Quanta Technical Services to provide similar services for our other specialty lines so that
we may use them as the platform for developing those capabilities in our other product
lines. We believe that this will increase our ability to price risks in a manner that will
produce superior underwriting results.

» Innovative and Customer-Focused Underwriting and Structured Insurance Products. We
believe that the traditional insurance market does not take full advantage of

2



opportunities to profit on individually tailored insurance transactions that combine
capital markets and insurance techniques. The structured insurance market, which is
often referred to as the alternative risk transfer or convergence market, focuses on
clients whose risk transfer needs may not be efficiently met through traditional
insurance products. We have established a structured insurance and reinsurance team
that works closely with each of our product line teams to develop alternative risk
products that meet our clients’ needs. Our management team has extensive experience
in developing customized structured products.

« Disciplined Capital Management and Allocation. We intend to flexibly increase and
decrease the amount of capital we allocate among product lines within our insurance,
reinsurance and structured products business units in response to our changing
business needs and with the objective of maximizing our risk-adjusted return on capital.
We allocate capital to product lines based on the characteristics, nature of underlying
risks and net retention for each line, as well as its prospects for premium growth and
profitability, which will be reviewed at least annually. We have implemented a plan that
ties our underwriting officers’ compensation to the long-term returns on allocated
capital of their respective product lines in order to incentivize them to achieve optimal
returns on allocated capital and create accountability within each product line. We have
also purchased reinsurance, retrocessional protection and other forms of protection to
more efficiently manage the allocation of our capital and intend to continue to purchase
these forms of protection when we deem it appropriate.

» Bermuda-Based Operations. Our Bermuda-based insurance operations allow us to
access clients who seek Bermuda-based capacity to meet their insurance and
reinsurance needs, as well as provide us access to Bermuda’s well-developed network of
insurance and reinsurance brokers. We believe we benefit from our access to Bermuda's
pool of experienced professionals with significant insurance expertise and its responsive
regulatory environment that allows for the development and sale of innovative
insurance and reinsurance products.

« Strong Market Relationships. We market our products principally through independent
brokers and agents. Our senior management team and underwriting officers have
industry relationships with major industry brokers. While many of the brokers that we
use or intend to use have had longer-term relationships with our competitors than with
us, we believe our industry relationships are allowing us to establish our presence in the
global insurance and reinsurance markets.

» New Insurance Company without Historical Underwriting Liabilities. Because we only
recently started writing insurance polices, we are unencumbered by historical liabilities
currently affecting competitors, including claims relating to asbestos, environmental
remediation, mold and the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001. We believe that our
lack of historical liabilities will distinguish us from many of our competitors and help us
attract clients who are seeking long-term financial stability from their insurers and
reinsurers.

Organization

Quanta Holdings is a Bermuda holding company formed on May 23, 2003. We conduct our
operations principally through the following subsidiaries domiciled in Bermuda, Ireland and
the United States and a branch in the United Kingdom:

» Quanta Reinsurance Ltd., or Quanta Bermuda, is a newly formed Bermuda insurance
company that underwrites Bermuda sourced insurance and reinsurance business in
Bermuda;

+ Quanta Reinsurance U.S. Ltd., or Quanta U.S. Re, is a newly formed Bermuda insurance
company and underwrites U.S. sourced insurance and reinsurance business from
Bermuda;




» Quanta Indemnity underwrltes insurance and’ remsurance from the United States on an
admitted basis;

- Quanta Specialty Lines underwrites U.S. sourced specialty insurance business on an
excess and surplus lines basis and U.S. reinsurance on a non-admitted basis;

» -Quanta Insurance lreland Ltd., or Quanta lreland, once authorized, will underwrite E.U.
sourced insurance and reinsurance business in [reland;

+ Quanta U.K. will be Quanta Ireland’s branch in the United Kingdom. We expect that
Quanta U.K. will underwrite E.U. sourced insurance and reinsurance business in the
United Kingdom and introduce E.U. sourced insurance and reinsurance business to
Quanta Ireland;

'+ Quanta Technical Services will provide risk assessment and. evaluation services to clients
on a fee basis and to our underwriters in specnalty insurance areas (other than
environmental liability); and

« ESC provides full-service environmental engiheering, remediation, risk management and
consulting services on a fee basis, as well as risk evaluatlon serwces to our underwriters
in our environmental liability product line.

The following chart summarizes our corporate orgamzatlon showing only Quanta Holdings
and our principal subsidiaries after giving effect to the establishment of Quanta U.K. as a
branch. We may change our corporate organlzatlon from time to.time as we expand our
business. ‘ -

Quanta Capital
Holdings Ltd.
(Bermuda)
Quanta . Quanta
Insurance Reinsurance
Ireland Ltd. Ltd.
(Ireland) ’ (Bermuda)
I
* Quanta U.S.
Holdings Inc.
Quanta Ireland
U.K. Branch
Do (Delaware)
**{Uriited Kingdom) /I\
Quanta ’ Quanta ‘Quanta
Reinsurance R Indemnity Specialty Lines
- U.S. Lid. Company Insirance
: Company
(Bermuda) - {Colorado) {Indiana)
’ Quanta
_ Technical
Services LLC
(Delaware)
Environmental
Strategies
Consulting
LLC
(Virginiz)




Our senior management has assembled a core group of underwriting officers,
underwriters and other professionals to write insurance and reinsurance. We use our Bermuda
operations primarily to write U.S. and insurance and reinsurance business from Bermuda on a
non-admitted basis. We also underwrite insurance and reinsurance in the United States on an
admitted basis through Quanta Indemnity, which is a U.S. licensed insurer with licenses in
approximately 41 states and was acquired by us on December 19, 2003. Further, we write
insurance from the United States on an excess and surplus lines basis and U.S. reinsurance on
a non-admitted basis through Quanta Specialty Lines, which we acquired on October 28, 2003.
Quanta Specialty Lines is licensed in the State of Indiana and we intend to operate it as an
excess and surplus lines and non-admitted insurer in all other states.

We have formed Quanta Ireland, and we have submitted an application to IFSRA to
authorize Quanta Ireland to conduct non-life insurance business. We expect that the
authorization process will be completed during the third quarter of 2004. Because Quanta
Ireland is not currently authorized to conduct insurance business, we have begun writing
European insurance and reinsurance business from the United States, and we will write
European insurance and reinsurance business from Bermuda. We intend to use Quanta Ireland
to underwrite E.U. sourced insurance and reinsurance business from Ireland. Once Quanta
Ireland has been authorized, we intend to apply to IFRSA to establish Quanta U.K. as our
branch in the United Kingdom. The application process will require the approval of the United
Kingdom Regulatory Authority, which we expect to obtain within two months following the
authorization of Quanta Ireland. We expect that Quanta U.K. will underwrite E.U. sourced
insurance and reinsurance business in the United Kingdom and introduce E.U. sourced
insurance and reinsurance business to Quanta ireland. We cannot assure you we will be able
to obtain the required authorizations for Quanta Ireland and Quanta U.K. Before Quanta
Ireland is authorized and Quanta U.K. is established, Quanta Bermuda intends to insure or
reinsure U.K.-sourced risks or risks for U.K. policyholders, but any such insurance or
reinsurance will be effected directly between Quanta Bermuda and the insured or reinsured
and will not involve any U.K. person acting on behalf of Quanta Bermuda in effecting or
carrying out such insurance or reinsurance contracts.

Our Business Units

We operate three business units consisting of insurance, reinsurance and consulting
services.

Insurance

We offer specialty insurance lines that provide tailored solutions to our clients in order to
respond to distinctive risk characteristics. We write business primarily in those lines where we
believe we have specialized underwriting expertise. Our commitment to specialized
underwriting requires experienced underwriters, market knowledge, risk assessment and loss
control resources, analytic capabilities, a flexible underwriting platform, geographic reach and
financial markets experience. We have hired underwriting officers with significant business
experience in their respective segments to lead our product lines where we currently write
business. We support our underwriting officers with advanced analytic tools, risk assessment
capabilities, structured product resources and disciplined capital management and technology.

While we have already hired a number of managers and employees, to reach our financial
and operational goals, we must hire additional underwriters and other professionals with
experience and expertise in exposure identification, risk assessment and underwriting
particular types of risks or industries. In product lines for which we will provide coverage of
the insured’s premises or physical site analysis (such as environmental and certain marine,
technical risk and aviation coverages), many of our underwriters have engineering
backgrounds or experience in disciplines such as hydrology, geology, and civil, mechanical
and materials engineering. In product lines for which we provide coverage that involves the
analysis of business practices and financial documents {such as surety, directors’ and officers’
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liability, professional liability and certain structured insurance coverages), many of our
professionals have accounting, actuarial, econometric or banking backgrounds. We are
developing in-house legal and claims staff specifically dedicated to the underwriting process
who will help create policy forms, endorsements, and terms and conditions that reflect each
transaction’s underwriting and pricing assumptions.

Kevin J. McHugh served as Interim President of U.S. Insurance from September 2003 until
his resignation on March 31, 2004. We are presently conducting a search for a permanent
President of U.S. Insurance to replace Mr. McHugh.

Our insurance business un'_it focuses on the following product lines:

Professional Liability. Under our professional liability product line, we currently offer
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, errors and omissions insurance, employment
practices liability and fiduciary liability insurance. We write both excess and primary insurance.
Excess layers of coverage means that there is at least one layer of insurance coverage beneath
our coverage that is provided by another insurer or insurers. We are targeting selected U.S.
industries or U.S. domiciled multinational companies for our directors’ and officers’ liability,
employment practices liability and fiduciary liability insurance, We focus on offering error and
omissions insurance policies to technology firms, financial institutions, architects, engineers,
insurance agents, lawyers, consultants and accountants and other miscellaneous professional
errors and omissions insurance products At a later date, we mtend to target medical
malpractice.

Our professional liability product line is managed by John Van Decker. Mr. Van Decker has
over 19 years of experience in the insurance industry. Prior to-joining our company, Mr. Van
Decker held various management positions at CNA Financial Corporation (“CNA”), most
recently as Senior Vice President of CNA Pro, a business unit of CNA.

Marine; Technical Risk and Aviation. - Our marine, technical risk and aviation product line
provides ocean marine, inland marine, technical risk and general aviation coverages that
require highly specialized technical underwriting and claims expertise. This business is
produced principally through agents and brokers who specialize in these lines of business. Our
ocean marine policies consist of ocean cargo, hull, yacht, marine liabilities and offshore
energy lines of business. We are also targeting what we believe are historically the more
profitable sectors of the inland marine market including transit, storage and processing,
property in care, custody and control, broadcast and entertainment and agriculture products.
The coverages we include within the technical risk product line are contractors all risk,
machinery breakdown, contractors equipment, structural defect and system warranties. We are
also focusing on the general aviation insurance market because we believe that this market
has been less suscept|b|e to the pricing volatility expenenced m the commermal aviation and
space msurance Imes

Our marlne techmcal risk and aviation product Ime is managed by Delrdre H. Littlefield.
Ms. Littlefield has over 30 years of underwriting experience in these lines of business. Prior to
joining our company, Ms. Littlefield served at Swiss Reinsurance America Corporation, most
recently as Senior Vice President and a member of the Swiss Re Division North America
Management Board, where she was responsible for North American and Latin American
special lines business, including ocean marine, inland marine, aviation, environmental,
engineered risk and-agriculture. Prior-to that Ms. Littlefield managed the worldwide marine
operations of the Chubb Group of Insurance Companies. ‘

Environmental Liability. Our environmental business line provides specialty insurance
products that address exposures arising from pollution incidents. We currently offer the
following three types of policies under this business line:

» Our environmental site protection policy helps protect against remediation costs and
third-party claims for bodily injury, property damage and remediation costs, resulting
from pre-existing or new pollution incidents at property owned or operated by an
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insured. Through separate supplemental coverage sections, this policy may also help
protect an insured against third-party claims arising from pollution.incidents at
non-owned disposal sites and during transportation, and can protect the insured against
expenses it incurs as a result of the interruption of its business operations due to a
pollution incident. We believe using these separate policy sections will provide our
clients greater flexibility to tailor coverage to meet their specific needs.

= Our remediation cost cap policy helps protect the insured against remediation costs with
respect to a scheduled remediation project that exceed the insured’s retention (which is
the amount or portion of risk that an insurer retains for its own account), such as those
due to unknown pollutants, known pollutants in quantities greater than expected or
changes made by the-regulatory authonty to the cleanup standard or to the scope of
work.

- Our contractors environmental protection policy helps protect contractors and their
clients against third-party claims for bodily injury, property damage and remediation
costs due to p0||ut|on incidents arising from the contractor’s covered operations.

We insure risks. prmcnpally within the United States. We expect that our cllents will include
manufacturers and other fixed site operators, commercial contractors, real estate ‘
redevelopment firms, merger and acquisition participants and financia! institutions. We target
clients facing complex risks that will allow.us'to draw on our multidisciplinary expertise and to
establish ourselves as the insurer of choice for clients requiring a sophisticated approach to -
their environmental liabilities. We also target short-term, renewable middle market business.

Our environmental liability product line is ménaged by John K. Welter. Mr. Welter has over
16 years of experience in the environmental insurance industry, most recently as the Chief -
Underwriting Officer of the Environmental Solutions division of Chubb Financial Solutions, Inc.
(IICFSII)

Structured Insurance. Structured insurance involves coverage and policy forms tailored
to meet an individual client’s strategic and financial objectives that are not efficiently met by
traditional insurance products, such as structured property and casualty insurance, structured
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, deferred executive compensation insurance and
finite risk insurance, which are palicies under which our aggregate. risk and return are
generally capped at a finite amount. These objectives include, among others, the desire to
reduce volatility within the insurance pricing cycle, to adjust the exposure in specific
geographic areas or lines of business, to finance increased self-insured retentions and to
minimize existing and potential liabilities from events, such as a merger or acquisition. : ,
Structured insurance coverage also addresses capacity shortfalls in the»trad_iti"onal insurance
market, such as environmental liability. We offer non-traditional or finite coverage for all of our
product lines. Users of structured insurance coverage include corporations, insurers and other
financial institutions and municipalities. Because of the constantly changing industry and
regulatory framework, as well as the changing market demands facing insurance companies,.
the approaches utilized in structured insurance programs are constantly evolving. The contract
forms that we use in our structured insurance business will primarily be insurance policies,
financial contracts and derivative contracts.

Within our structured insurance product line, we also write casualty insurance. In most
instances, our casualty coverages are in support of structured insurance or structured
reinsurance programs, or blended with protection and coverage provided by -other
underwriting groups within our insurance and reinsurance operations. Our casualty product:
line includes coverage for general liability, and we expect to also write umbrella insurance
including such specialty programs as clash coverage and:excess of aggregate coverage. We
focus on coverages requiring hlghly technical and stat|stlca| or ‘actuarial underwriting of
specific or individual risks.

Our structured insurance product line is’ managed by -James M. Olivo. Mr.. Olivo has 17
years of experience in the financial services industry. Prior to joining our company, Mr. Olivo
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served as a Senior Vice President of CFS, where he was responsible for financial insurance
and financial life insurance businesses of The Chubb Corporation (“Chubb”). Before CFS, Mr.
Olivo was a principal of Swiss Re New Markets and co-head of its Financial Solutions Division.
Prior to Mr. Olivo’'s insurance career, he worked in the capital markets as head of North
American derivatives trading for Fuji Capital Markets Corp., as a senior derivatives trader for
Security Pacific National Bank and as a derivatives trader for Chemical Bank, where he began
his career in 1986.

Douglas W. Oliver is a Managing Director of our structured insurance product line and will
assist Mr. Olivo in the management of the product line. Prior to joining our company, Mr.
Oliver served as vice president of CFS, where he was responsible for designing and
underwriting structured insurance products for property, casualty and other specialty
insurance lines of business. Prior to CFS, Mr. Oliver spent six years with the American
International Group and held a number of senior positions with both the AIG Risk
Management and AIG Risk Finance divisions, including vice president of underwriting and
chief actuary. Prior to joining American International Group, Inc. (“AlG”), Mr. Oliver was the
divisional chief actuary for the large account unit of the Contlnental Insurance Company
responsible for all pricing and reserving functions. :

Fidelity and Crime. Our fidelity and crime line-includes financial institution blanket bonds,
commercial crime, kidnap and ransom, and computer crime insurance for financial and
non-financial corporations. Our current financial clients include commercial banks, capital
market and financial services firms, and we intend to offer insurance companies such
coverage in the future. The remainder of our coverages are written for Fortune 1000 and
middle-market companies. We write primarily U.S. domiciled risks.

Our fidelity and crime product line is managed by William C. Jennings. Mr. Jennings has
32 years of experience in the insurance industry. Before joining Quanta Holdings, Mr, Jennings
managed the fidelity bond department of CNA for ten years, serving as.an Executive Vice
President, led the fidelity underwriting division of the Department of Financial Institutions of
“Chubb for seven years and held various other positions at Marsh and Chubb.

Surety. Our surety product line focuses on providing surety bonds for spécific
contractual, compliance or financial obligations to meet regulatory, statutory or legal
requirements. In particular, this product line provides bonding for self-insured workers’-
compensation, land reclamation, the closure of landfills and their maintenance after closure,
court appeals and various forms of performanceé and compliance guarantee exposures. We
seek clients with a strong financial condition, specialized exposure management practices and
loss prevention procedures. We determine our maximum exposure based on the client’s credit
quality, the type of surety bonds provided and the amount of collateral provided by the client.
The United States Treasury Department maintains a list of surety companies that it has
authorized to write surety bonds required by the U.S. government. Each authorized surety is
granted an underwriting limitation. In addition, many non-federal surety bonds are required to
be issued by a surety with -an adequate underwriting limitation. Until we file an application
with the Treasury Department requesting an underwriting limitation; we plan to enter.into an -
agreement with an insurer possessing an underwriting limitation that allows this insurer to
write policies for us and to reinsure all or part.of the risk to one of our subsidiaries. We cannot
assure you that we will find an appropriate licensed insurer to enter into such an agreement or
that we will be able to obtain approval for inclusion on the list of authorized surety companies
maintained by the Treasury Department. Even if we are able to enter into an agreement with a
Treasury listed surety insurer, brokers and purchasers of surety products may prefer to use
companies included on the Treasury Department.list. Therefore, we expect that our
opportunities to write surety business will continue to be limited until we qualify for, and the
Treasury Department assigns us, an adequate underwriting limitation.

Our surety product line is managed by Brian'J. Steele. Prior to joining us, Mr. Steele spent
17 years at Travelers and Aetna Inc. in a variety of underwriting roles in the field and home

8




office. Mr. Steele has extensive surety underwriting and credit risk management experience,
most recently as Senior Vice President of Commercial Surety at Travelers Property Casualty
Corp. {"Travelers"} where he was.responsible for a significant portfolioc of U.S. and
international surety clients.

Technical Risk Property. 'We intend to write technical risk property insurance, utilizing an
experienced underwriting team with various engineering disciplines. We expect that these
underwriters will come from enigineering and insurance underwriting engineering backgrounds
and have extensive training and expertise'in insurance and reinsurance underwriting, contract
wordings and product development. This expeértise will also include market knowledge, client
contacts and industry VISIbI|Ity We believe this'highly technical approach to property
rnsurance will help to dlfferentlate us from our competltors in thls product line.

We plan to write varrous technrcal Imes of property msurance business in the construction,
power, chemical, industrial and commercial business sectors. We expect that participation will
primarily be on an excess of loss basis. We will insure principally buildings, structures,
equipment, contents’ and business mterruptlon risks. Initially, we expect that our target
customers wull pnmarrly mclude uU. S corporatrons W|th domestlc and international exposures.

We mtend to carefully monitor and control,our.aggregate exposure regardrng
conflagration, business interruption and natufat.catastrophe. With respect to natural
catastrophe exposures, we will use licensed tatastrophe modeling software and technical
expertise to analyze and control our accumulatrons

" Our 'technicalrisk property product Ilne has not yet begun to write insurance. This product
line is managed by Deirdre H. Littlefield, who also manages our marine, technical risk and
aviation insurance and reinsurance product lines. Francis P. Tricamo, Sr. will assist Ms.
Littlefield in the'management of the technical risk property product line. Mr. Tricamo has 26
years of experience in the insurance and reinsurance industry, most recently as Managing
Director of Swiss Reinsurance America Corporation’s Engineered Risk department.

Reinsurance . o

Remsurance can be written either. through treaty or facultative reinsurance arrangements.
Treaty reinsurance contracts are arrangements that. provide for automatic reinsuring of a type
or category of risk underwritten by the ceding company. In facultative reinsurance, the ceding
company cedes, and the reinsurer assumes, all or part of a specific risk or risks. Facultative
reinsurance provides protection to-ceding:companies-for losses relating to individual insurance
contracts issued to individual insureds. We write our reinsurance business on a treaty basis.
However, we offer’ a Irmrted amount of facultatrve remsurance for property, casualty and
marine, techmcal rlsk and avratlon exposures

Our treaty reinsurance contracts are written on either a quota share basis, also known as
proportional or pro rata, or on an‘excess of loss basis. Under quota share reinsurance, we
share the premiums as well'as the losses and expenses in an agreed proportion with the
cedent. Under excess of loss reinstrance,; we generally receive a specified premium for the
risk assumed and indemnify the cedent ‘against all.or a specified portion of losses and
expenses in excess of a specified dollar or percentage amount. In both types of contracts, we
may provrde a cedlng commissioh to the client..:

When we. wrrte treaty relnsurance contracts we do not separately evaluate each of the
individual nsks assumed under the contracts, and we are largely dependent on the individual
underwrmng decisions made by the remsured Accordlngly, we intend to carefully review and
analyze the cedents risk management and underwrltmg pricing, reserving and claims handling
practices as. weII as the financial condltron of the cedent i in deciding whether to provide treaty
reinsurance and in appropriately pricing the treaty. :
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We write the majority of our facultative reinsurance business-only on an excess of loss
basis. The underwriting process for facultative reinsurance of property and casualty exposures
is similar to that followed by the underwriters for those products of our insurance business
unit. .

Our Bermuda-based reinsurance operations are managed by David-R. Whiting and J. Scott
Bradley. Mr. Whiting has 25 years of experience in the insurance and reinsurance industry.
Prior to joining our company, Mr. Whiting was most recently employed by the Bermuda office
of the Swiss Reinsurance Company for the past 10 years where he held the positions of
member of senior management and Managing Director.in its Financial Services Business

- Group. Dr. Bradley has 23 years of experience in the insurance industry. Prior to joining our
company, Dr. Bradley was a Managing Director of the Financial Services-Business Group of
Swiss Reinsurance Company and also served as Director and Senior Officer of a number of
Swiss Re Group companies where he was responsible for all aspects of: productlon design,
underwriting and pricing of alternative risk transfer products

Our U.S.-based reinsurance operatuons are managed by Frederick J. Pagnani Jr. Mr.
Pagnani is the President and Chief Executive Officer of our reinsurance busmess unit. Mr.
Pagnani has been actively underwriting business for 18 years most recently as a Managing
Director of Swiss Reinsurance Company. Mr. Pagnani began his career with General
Reinsurance before moving to the newly formed Zurich Reinsurance Centre in 1994, where’ he
rose to become the head of Professional Services Treaty Division North America.

Michael D. Beck and Christopher J. Grasso also assist in the management of our
reinsurance business unit. Mr. Beck isthe Senior Vice President and Chief QOperating Officer for
our reinsurance business unit. Mr. Beck has 16 years of experience in the reinsurance industry
including professional liability treaty underwriting experience at PartnerRe US Ltd. and Zurich
Reinsurance Centre. Mr. Grasso is the Senior Vice President and Chief Actuary for our-
reinsurance business unit. He has seven years of reinsurance actuarial experience, most
recently serving as head pricing actuary for professional liability at Converium Holding AG.

We generally focus our reinsurance business on medium-sized insurance and reinsurance
companies with capital and surplus of between $100 million and $1 billion. This targeted
segment is subject to change due to market dynamics and our underwriters’ assessment of
the relative merits of the varying market segments. We also manage our portfolio and spread
risk across different exposures and geographlcal territories in order to mcrease our
diversification.

Our reinsurance operations focus on specialty products within the followmg lines:

Casualty. We cover third party liability exposures from ceding clients on a treaty basus
We concentrate principally on directors’ and officers’ liability, professional liability, and
commercial umbrella and excess liability. We write this business almost entirely-on an excess
of loss basis, although we will also consider pro rata structures. The casualty reinsurance
treaties we write include per risk excess of loss, clash and workers’ compensation catastrophe.
Per risk excess of loss reinsurance provides coverage for losses suffered by ceding companies
under their individual policies. A loss under clash reinsurance arises from a combination of
claims resulting from more than one underlying-insurance policy caused by-a single event or
occurrence. Under our workers’ compensation catastrophe reinsurance line, we write
reinsurance that responds to losses arising from multiple deaths or injuries from a single
occurrence. These treaties specify the maximum amount of coverage for any one claim and
have attachment points that are multiples of these per claim amounts. Events such as
earthquakes and terrorist acts that result in property catastrophe claims can potentially lead to
multiple injuries and deaths. Consequently, we plan to closely monitor the-interaction between
our workers’ compensation catastrophe exposures and our various property exposures to
ensure that we properly account for and control aggregate accumulations. We consider this
aggregation risk when determining the pricing on any potential contract.
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Our casualty reinsurance product line is managed by J.P. Kennedy, Jr. Mr. Kennedy has
been actively underwriting business for eight years and has 13 years of experience in the
insurance industry, most recently as Vice President in the Specialty Treaty Underwriting
Department of Odyssey America Reinsurance Corporation.

Property. Under our property reinsurance product line, we focus our underwriting
activities primarily on risk excess, quota share and catastrophe contracts. Under property risk
excess and quota share reinsurance contracts, we reinsure the property risks of ceding clients
on a treaty basis primarily covering commercial exposures under a collection of insurance
policies issued by ceding companies. These policies typically provide coverage for buildings,
structures, equipment, contents and business interruption risk. Typical causes of loss in this
segment include fire, explosion, collapse, riot and vandalism. We may also reinsure
agribusiness from time to time. Property catastrophe reinsurance protects ceding companies
from catastrophic events on a treaty basis. The principal exposures involve hurricane,
typhoon, earthquake, flood, tornado, hail and fire. We provide coverage on an occurrence
basis for a layer of l[osses above an agreed aggregate of individual losses suffered by the
ceding company from a covered event. As with our technical risk property insurance product
line, because losses arise from a combination of individual policies, we monitor and control
our cumulative aggregate exposure at both the individual treaty level and across all contracts
we issue. We use licensed catastrophe-modeling systems to analyze our exposure to natural
perils and to track these and other perils on a policy by policy basis and monitor and control
our aggregate exposure both for our insurance and reinsurance business on a cumulative
basis. Additionally, under limited conditions, we offer coverage that assumes the net retained
terrorism risk of select cedents. This portfolio is subject to stringent underwriting guidelines.

~Kean D. Driscoll managés our property reinsurance product line. Mr. Driscoll has eight
years of reinsurance experience, most recently serving as Vice President in the Property Treaty
Department of Converium Holding AG. ' '

Marine, Technical Risk and Aviation. We provide treaty reinsurance for ocean marine,
inland marine, technical risk and. general and commercial aviation. We obtain this business
principally through major industry reinsurance intermediaries with units specializing in these
lines. Our client target list includes insurance and reinsurance companies of all sizes who have
dedicated experienced underwriters and claims professionals in these lines. We write this
business on both a proportional and excess of loss reinsurance basis.

Our marine, technical risk and aviation reinsurance unit is managed by Deirdre H.
Littlefield. '

Mr. Joseph Belardinelli assists Ms. Littlefield by managing our ocean marine, inland
marine and aviation product lines. Mr. Belardinelli has over 15 years of experience in the
marine insurance .and reinsurance industry, most recently serving as Marine Treaty Manager
for Swiss Reinsurance America Corporation.

The technical risk prbduct line is managed by Francis P. Tricamo, Sr.

Structured Reinsurance, .Generally, structured reinsurance is tailored to meet an
individual cedent’s strategic and financial objectives where its risk management needs may not
be met efficiently through traditional reinsurance products. In general, structured reinsurance
products contractually limit the risks assumed by the reinsurer. These contracts often include a
fixed premium for the transfer of a portion of.the risk combined with a variable or adjustable
premium for the financing by the client of the remaining risks, -often covering multiple years
and multiple business segments. Contracts are usually structured to encourage cedents to
minimize losses by including significant profit sharing by the reinsurer with the cedent. Thus,
the ultimate cost of a structured product often depends on the individual cedent’s own
performance. The risks underlying structured reinsurance transactions can include risks from
any of our business lines, as well as credit risk, life insurance-related risks, accident and
health, and others.
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Structured reinsurance products are often written on a multi-year basis and are designed
to reduce the volatility in the results of an individual company over a period of time greater
than one year (typically three or more). Due to the importance of investment income from
these products, both parties direct considerable attention to cash flow modeling and review
the impact of the anticipated loss payment pattern on the parties. As a result of the lengthy
underwriting process, the market is characterized by a relatively small number of large
transactions. The contract forms which we use in our structured reinsurance business are
primarily reinsurance policies, financial contracts and derivative contracts,

Our structured reinsurance product line is managed by James M. Olivo who is assisted by
Douglas W. Oliver. . . v

Consulting Services

We currently provide environmental consulting services through ESC. We also plan to use
Quanta Technical Services to expand the scope of our c‘onsulting services to provide risk
assessment and evaluation services in other specialty insurance and claims areas. ESC serves
manufacturers and service providers primarily in the electronics, manufacturing, waste
disposal and energy sectors. ESC also serves real estate firms, insurance companies, buy-out
firms, law firms, and the clients of these firms and companies. lts customers are primarily
private sector busmesses in the Umted States. ESC prov1des the followmg consulting services:

Investigation,. Remed:at:on and Engineering Serv:ces ESC's engineering services include
investigation, remediation and engineering activities in the following areas: Comprehensive
Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), superfund sites, Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) actions, voluntary cleanups, engineering design, field
management of remediation, operation and maintenance of remedial systems, underground
tank management, merger and acquisition follow-up, asbestos/lead paint management and

facility decommissioning and demolition.

Assessment Services. ESC's environmental assessment services include regulatory
analyses, technical support for environmental claims, merger and acquisition due diligence,
environmental audits and risk assessments and engineering and information management
services, risk management, merger and acquisition support, environment, health and safety
audits, liability identification, Phase | and Phase Il site assessments, management systems and
health and ecological risk assessments.

Other Technical Services. ESC also provides other services to customers in the
environmental area, including litigation support, technical support for insurance claims,
regulatory compliance plans, regulatory permits, training, technical reviews, policy and
procedure manuals, estimates of remediation costs for dnsclosure purposes and property
redevelopment services. : SN

Information Management Services. ESC’s information management services group
develops technology-based solutions for the control and management of environmental and
facility information. This group creates customized software applications that manage data
using database and geographic information system software. The applications are web-based,
providing clients with facility management capabilities over the Internet.

Most of our insurance and reinsurance business lines will require substantial specialized
technical engineering, loss control and claims management skills. To support our engineering
needs, our consulting line will perform construction, occupancy, protection and exposure
reviews, including materials, mechanical and civil engineering inspections for property
coverage and coverage of similar physical damage at the client’s location that we intend to
insure or reinsure. Our consulting line will also value and manage the potential economic
losses associated with typical property risks by using operational, critical process, logistical
and resource engineering studies. Further, it will provide loss control reviews and specific risk
management recommendations for facilities in order to reduce claim frequency and severity,
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including developing reports that use catastrophe-modeling software. Quanta Technical
Services and ESC serve as the platform for establishing our technical talent and providing risk
evaluation services. ESC is initially providing these services to our underwriters for our
environmental liability insurance line. Once we hire additional professionals, we plan to use
Quanta Technical Services to expand the scope of our consulting services and to support our
underwriting of professional liability, directors’ and officers’ liability, fidelity and crime, surety
and specific casualty classes of business. We will also offer those services on a fee basis. We
believe that ESC’s and Quanta Technical Services’ technical participation in our underwriting
process will:

* help ensure that risks are cohsistently identified and quantified;

« enhance our ability to understand and evaluate the muitiple risks of complex
transactions; and

» help our clients manage transactions and minimize their costs arising from insufficient
technical oversight.

in addition to these consulting services, we provide liability assumption programs through
Quanta Technical Services and its subsidiaries under which these subsidiaries:assume
specified liabilities (which may, at times, include taking title to property) associated with
environmental conditions in properties and agree to provide consulting and to perform the
required remediation services. We may insure or guaranty the liabilities assumed by our
subsidiaries under these programs. For example, in December 2003, one of our subsidiaries
agreed to provide risk assessment and environmental remediation services and assume an
environmental liability for a closed rayon plant in Axis, Alabama. In connection with this
transaction, we provided a remediation cost cap policy to the plant owner and specified
financial structuring services. '

ESC is managed by Jan Chizzonite who Jomed ESC in 1989 and served as President for the
last b years. Quanta Technical Services is managed by Lynne M. Miller. Ms. Miller has over 25
years of experience in the environmental industry, including 14 years as Presndent of ESC and
the last 3 years as Chief Executive Officer of ESC.

Ceded Reinsurance

We cede a portion of our written premiums through quota share and excess of loss treaty
and facultative reinsurance contracts, as well as other agreements, which provide substantially
similar financial protections. We use ceded reinsurance to lower our net exposure to our
planned net limit and risk of individual loss, to control our aggregate exposures to a pamcular
risk or class of risks and to reduce our overall rlsk of loss.

We also purchase retrocessuonal protection, which is reinsurance of a reinsurer’s business.
Reinsurance companies cede risks under retrocessional agreements to other. reinsurers, known
as retrocessionaires, for reasons similar to those that cause primary insurers to purchase
reinsurance. The amount of ceded reinsurance and retrocessional protection that we purchase
varies based on business segment market conditions, pricing terms and credit risk, as well as
other factors. ' o

For business exposed to catastrophic losses, we seek to limit our aggregate exposure by
insured or reinsured, by industry, by peril, by type of contract and by geographic zone. We
intend to monitor and limit our exposure through a combination of aggregate limits,
underwriting guidelines and reinsurance. We will also periodically reevaluate the probable
maximum loss for these exposures by using third party software and modeling techniques
and we seek to limit the probable maximum loss to a pre- -determined percentage of our total
shareholders’ equity.

Ceded reinsurance and retrocessional protection do not relieve us of our obligations to
our insureds or reinsurerds. We must pay these obligations without the benefit of reinsurance
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to the extent our reinsurers or retocessionaiares do not pay us. We will evaluate and monitor
the financial condition of our reinsurers and monitor concentrations of credit risk. We seek to
purchase reinsurance from entities rated “A-" or better by Standard & Poor’s Corporation
(“S&P”) or A.M. Best Company, inc. (“A.M. Best”), and we intend to regularly monitor its
collectibility, making balance sheet provisions for amounts we consider potentially
uncollectible and requesting collateral where necessary. We intend to apply the same financial
analysis and approval processes to the selection of reinsurance and other financial protection
counterparties as we do to the underwriting of our surety, professional liability and similar
lines of business. Because we only recently commenced operations, we may experience
difficulties in obtaining or renewing reinsurance and retrocessional protection. Therefore, we
may have difficulty obtaining or renewing adequate levels of reinsurance or retrocessional
protection at cost-effective rates in the future.

Relationships with Brokers

We produce substantially all of our business through insurance and reinsurance brokers
worldwide who receive a brokerage commission usually equal to a percentage of gross
premiums. Brokerage commissions are generally negotiated on a policy by policy, a program
(including many related policies) or on a treaty basis. From time to time we also enter into
agreements with brokers, which may include provisions relating to the payment of production
or marketing fees in addition to the brokerage commissions we pay to the brokers. Our
management and underwriting officers have industry relationships with a large number of
insurance and reinsurance brokers and with many ceding companies. While many of the
brokers that we use or intend to use have had longer-term relationships with our competitors
than with us, we believe our relationships are allowing us to establish our presence in the
global insurance and reinsurance markets. In addition to our relationships with brokers, we
may also use non-traditional sources for marketing our environmental liability and structured
products business segments, such as law firms, consulting firms, investment banks, and
merger and acquisition firms. Our failure to develop or maintain relationships with brokers
from whom we expect to receive our business could have a material adverse effect on us.

Claims Management

We are establishing several dedicated insurance management claims teams in our
business units and we also plan to outsource the review of highly technical or unusually
complicated claims where warranted. Our claims teams include claims professionals, actuarial
experts and attorneys. These teams will seek to investigate, evaluate and settle claims as
efficiently as possible. We will implement claims handling guidelines and claims reporting and
control procedures and will monitor our claims in accordance with these guidelines.

We intend to review all significant insurance claims during claims meetings. Generally, we
will involve members of the claims staff in the underwriting process. We plan for a senior
executive reporting to the chief operating officer to oversee the claims function. In addition,
for all reported claims, we expect that an initial review of the validity of the claim will be
conducted by the underwriter and underwriting officer responsible for the account in

‘coordination with the claims team assigned to the business unit. Once we establish the

validity of the given claim, we will transfer responsibility for management of the claim to our
claims professionals. We will base the authority for payment and establishing reserves on the
level and experience of our claims personnel.

We intend to establish procedures to record reported insurance claims, regardless of size,
in our claims system upon receipt of notice of the claim. To assist with the reporting of
significant claims, we also intend to develop an information database for large claims. We
intend to use this database primarily to quickly report significant events and potential losses,
regardless of whether we have exposure. Where it is likely that we have exposure, we expect
to use this system to provide direct notification of our exposure to all our underwriters and
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senior management:-We also expect to use the database as an electronic workflow
management toof for larger cases that may involve adjustment and coverage issues or
fitigation.

As any potential insurance claim develops, the claims teams will draw on internal and
external resources to settie the claim. We are also establishing networks of external legal and
claims experts to augment our own in-house teams. From time to time, we may also enter into
agreements with third party claims management and settlement firms to outsource certain
claims administration functions relating to specific claims or business segments.

With respect to reinsurance contracts, most claims are managed by the claims department
of the ceding company or primary insurer. As individual claims become larger and more
complex, we may seek, at our discretion and expense, to take over or participate in the
administration of specific claims. In addition to managing reported claims and conferring with
underlying carriers and ceding companies, our claims professionals will conduct periodic
audits of specific claims and the overall claims procedures of our clients. Through these
audits, we will seek to evaluate their claims- -handling practices, including the organization of
their claims departments, their fact-finding and investigation techniques, their loss notification
procedures, the adequacy of their reserves, their negotiation and settlement practices and their
adherence to claims-handling guidelines. In addition, prior to accepting certain reinsurance
risks, our underwriters may request that our claims professionals conduct pre-underwriting
claims audits of prospective ceding or primary writing companies.

The claims professionals in our business units will also work with ESC and. Quanta
Technical Services to offer our administration, management and settiement advice and
services on a fee for service basis to their clients.

Reserves

We are requured to estabhsh reserves for losses and loss expenses under applicable
insurance laws and regulatlons and U.S. GAAP. These reserves are balance sheet liabilities
representing estimates of future amounts required to pay losses and loss expenses for insured
and/or reinsured claims that have occurred at or before the balance sheet date, whether
already known to us or not yet reported. Our policy is to establish these losses and loss
reserves prudently after considering all information known to us as of the date'they are
recorded.

Loss reserves fall into two categories: case reserves for reported losses and loss expenses
associated with a specific reported insured claim and reserves for incurred but not reported, or
IBNR, losses and Ioss expenses. We have establlshed these two categories of loss reserves as
follows:

« Case reserves — Followmg our analysis of a notice of claim received from an insured,
broker or cedmg company, we establish a case reserve for the estimated amount of its
ultimate settlement and its estimated loss expenses. We establish case reserves based
upon the amount of claims reported and may subsequently supplement or reduce the
reserves as our claims department deems ‘necessary.

- IBNR reserves — We also estimate and establish reserves for loss amounts incurred but
not yet reported, including expected development of reported claims. These IBNR
reserves include estimated loss expenses: We calculate IBNR reserves by using
generally accepted actuarial techniques. We rely on the most recent information
available, including pricing information, industry information and our historical losses
and expenses. We will revise these reserves for losses and loss expenses as additional
information becomes available and as claims are reported and paid.

Loss reserves represent our best estimate, at a given point in time, of the ultimate
settlement and administration cost associated with incurred claims. Our ultimate liability may
exceed or be less than these estimates. The process of estimating loss reserves requires
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significant judgment due to a number of variables. Internal and external events, such as
fluctuations in inflation, judicial trends, legislative changes and changes in claims handling
procedures, will affect these variables. We will not be able to directly quantify many of these
items, particularly on a prospective basis. There may also be significant lags between the
occurrence of the insured event and the time it is actually reported to us.

Several aspects of our insurance and reinsurance operations will further complicate the
actuarial reserving techniques for loss reserves as compared to other insurance and
reinsurance operations. Among these aspects are the expected differences in our policy forms
from more traditional forms, the lack of complete historical data for losses and our expectation
that losses in excess of our attachment levels will be characterized by low frequency and high
severity claims. All of these factors tend to limit thé amount of relevant loss experience that
we can use to gauge the’ emergence, severlty and payout characteristics of our Ioss reserves.

" We use statistical and actuanal methods to estimate our ultimate expected losses and loss
expenses. Several years may pass between the time an insured or reinsured reports a loss to
us and the time we settle our liability. During this period, we will learn additional facts and
trends related to the loss. As we learn these additional facts and trends, we will adjust case
reserves and inctirred but not reported reserves as necessary. These adjustments will
sometimes require us to increase our overall reserves and at other times will require us to
reallocate incurred but not reported reserves to specific case reserves. ‘

We base reserves for losses and loss expenses in part upon our estimates of losses.
Initially, it may be difficult for us to estimate losses based upon our own historical claim
experiences because of our lack of operating history. Therefore, we utilize commercially
available models to evaluate future trends and estimate our ultimate claims costs.

U.S. GAAP does not permit us to establish loss reserves until the occurrence of an actual
loss event. Once such an event occurs, we establish reserves based upon estimates of total
losses as a result of the event and our estimate of the portion of the loss we have insured or
rennsured As a result, we set aside only loss reserves applicable to losses incurred up to the
reporting date, with no allowance for the provision of a contingency reserve to account for
expected future losses. We will estumate and recognize losses arising from future events at the
time the loss is incurred.

To assist us in establishing appropriate reserves for losses and loss expense, we analyze a
significant amount of insurance industry information with respect to the pricing environment
and loss settlement patterns. In combination with our individual prlcmg analyses, we use this
industry information to guide our loss and loss expense estlmates We will regularly review
these estimates, and we will reflect adjustments, if any, in earnings in the periods in which
they are determined. From time to time we engage independent external actuarial specuahsts
to review specuflc reserving methods and results.

While we believe that we will be ablé to make a reasonable estimate of our ultimate
losses, we may not be able to predict our ultimate claims experience as reliably as other
companies that have had insurance and reinsurance operations for a substantial period of
time, and we cannot assure you that our losses and loss expenses will not exceed our total
reserves. . :

Risk Mahagement

We delegated underwriting authority to the leaders of our business units, each of whom is
highly experienced in his or her particular line of business. We have issued detailed letters of
underwriting authority to each of our underwriters and will review these letters annually.
These letters contain underwriting eligibility criteria and quantifiable limits depending on the
product line. They also address acceptable terms and conditions. We attached our profitability
guidelines to each letter as an exhibit and stated these profitability guidelines in terms of
return on allocated capital by product line. We have implemented a plan to compensate our
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underwriting officers based on the long-term returns on allocated capital of their respective
business lines and intend to.regularly review and revise our profitability guidelines to. reflect
changes in market conditions, interest rates, capital structure and market-expected returns.

We believe we employ a disciplined approach to underwriting and risk management that
relies heavily upon the collective underwriting expertise of our management and staff. We
believe this expertise is guided by the following underwriting. principles:

» Our own independent pricing or risk review of insurance and facultative risks;

+ Acceptance of only those risks that we believe WI” earn a level of proflt commensurate
with the risk they present; and

« Limitation of the business we accept to only that business that is consistent with our
corporate risk objectives. S

Before we review any treaty proposal, we consider the appropriateness of reinsuring the
client, by evaluating the quality of its management and its risk management strategy. In
addition, we require each treaty to include significant information on the nature of the perils to
be included and detailed aggregate information as to the location or focations of the risks
covered. We request information on the client’s loss history for the perils bemg insured or
reinsured, together with relevant underwriting considerations. If a treaty meets the precedmg
underwriting criteria, we evaluate the proposal in terms of its risk/reward profile to. assess the
adequacy of the proposed pricing and its potential impact on our overall return on capital as
well as our corporate risk objectives.

We are developing enterprise risk management processes to analyze market, event, credit
and operational risks. We utilize a risk-adjusted return on capital approach to manage and
allocate capital to different lines of business. We base this approach on risk management
methodologies for catastrophe, market, credit, operational risk and asset/liability management
from actuarial science and capital markets. This approach not only guides our risk-based
pricing by setting target combined ratios for each line or product to achieve our targeted
return of capital, but also helps build a diversified book of specialized insurance products,
taking into account the effect of correlation, which is the degree to which events or financial
results tend to correspond to each other.

We have integrated our in-house actuarial staff into our underwriting and decision making
process. We use outside consuitants as necessary to develop the appropriate analysis for
pricing. We perform actuarial and risk analysis using commercial data and models licensed
from the Insurance Services Offices, the Reinsurance Association of Amenca A.M. Best,
Bloomberg and various professmnal service firms.

To momtor the catastrophe and corre|at|on risk of our busmess we subscribe to and
utilize natural catastrophe- modeling tools. We are taking an active role in the évaluation of
these commercial catastrophe pricing modeis and will look to supplement the_se models if
necessary. We use. modeling not just to underwrite individual risks, but also.to optimize the
total return and risk of our underwriting portfolio.

In addition to technical and analytical practices, our underwriters use a variety of means,
including specific contract terms, to manage our exposure to loss. We include aggregate policy
limits in the contracts of most of the business we write. Additionally, our underwriters use
contract exclusions and terms and conditions, as appropriate, to further eliminate part»cular
risk exposures that our underwriting team deems to be significant. -

We are also in the process of establishing an internal audit function to review our
underwriting processes. The head of the internal audnt function will report to the audit
committee.

Investments

Our board of directors established our investment policies and created guidelines for
hiring external investment managers. Management will.implement our investment strategy
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with the assistance of the external managers. Our investment guidelines specify minimum
criteria on the overall credit quality, liquidity and risk-return characteristics of our investment
portfolio and include limitations on the size of particular holdings, as well as restrictions on
investments in different asset classes. The board of directors will monitor our overall
investment returns and review compliance with our investment guidelines.

Our investment strategy seeks to preserve principal and maintain liquidity while trying to
maximize total return through a high quality, diversified portfolio. Investment decision making
is guided mainly by the nature and timing of our expected liability payouts, management’s
forecast of our cash flows and the possibility that we will have unexpected cash demands, for
example, to satisfy claims due to catastrophic losses. Our investment portfolio currently
consists mainly of highly rated and liquid fixed income securities. However, to the extent our
insurance liabilities are correlated with an asset class outside our minimum criteria, our
investment guidelines will allow a deviation from those minimum criteria provided such
deviations reduce overall risk.

Our investment guidelines require compliance with applicable local regulations and laws.
Without board approval, we will not purchase financial futures, forwards, options, swaps and
other denvatwes except for instruments that are purchased as part of our business, for
purposes of hedglng capital market risks (mcludmg those within our structured product
transactions), or as replication transactions, which are defined as a set of derivative, insurance
and/or securities transactions that when combined produce the equwalent economic results of
an investment meeting our investment gmdelmes. While we expect that the majority of our
investment holdings will be denominated in U.S. dollars, we may make investments in other
currency denominations depending upon the currencies in which loss reserves are maintained,
or as may be required by regulation or law.

Competition -

Insurance and Reinsurance

The insurance and reinsurance industry is highly competitive. We compete on an
international and regional basis with major U.S., Bermuda, European and other international
insurers and reinsurers and certain underwriting syndicates. Many of these competitors have
more, and in some cases substantially more, capital and greater marketing and management
resources than we expect to have, and may offer a broader range of products and more .
competitive pricing than we expect to, or will be able to, offer. Because we have a limited
operating history, many of our competitors also have greater name and brand recognition
than we have. In particular, we compete: with insurers and reinsurers that provide property and
casualty-based lines of insurance and reinsurance, such as ACE Limited, AIG, CNA, Chubb, XL
Capital Ltd., Arch Capital Group Ltd., Swiss Reinsurance Company, Berkshire Hathaway Inc.,
Munich Re Group, Travelers and The 'St. Paul Companies. In addition, there are other new
Bermuda insurers‘and reinsurers with whom we compete, such as Endurance Specialty
Holdings Ltd., Axis Capital Holdings Limited, Allied World Assurance Company, Ltd., Platinum
Underwriters Holdings, Ltd. and Montpelier Re Holdings Ltd. Furthermore, newly formed and
existing insurance industry companies have recently raised capital to meet perceived demand
in the current environment and address underwriting limit issues. We may not be aware of
other companies that may be planning to enter into the same market segments in which we
expect to compete or raise new capital. Competition varies depending on the type of business
being insured or reinsured. In the specialty market, competition tends to focus more on
availability, service and other value-based considerations than on price.

Competition in the types of business that we underwrite is based on many factors,
including:

+ management’s experience in the line.of insurance or reinsurance to-be written;

« strength of client or broker relationships;
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« premiums charged and other terms and conditions offered;

» services provided, products offered and scope of business, both by size and geographic
location; ' : - :

» financial ratings assigned by independent rating agencies; and
+ reputation and quality of claims service.

Increased competition could result in fewer applications for coverage, lower premium
rates and less favorable policy terms, which could adversely impact our growth and
profitability. In addition, capital markets participants have recently created alternative products
that are intended to compete with reinsurance products. We are unable to predict the extentto
which new, proposed or potential initiatives may affect the demand for our products or the
risks that may be available for us to consider underwriting.

Consulting Services

The environmental consulting industry is also highly competitive. There are numerous
professional engineering and consulting firms and other organizations that provide many of
the services offered by us. These competitors range from small local firms to large national
firms. The larger, well-established companies have substantially greater financial, management
and marketing resources than we do. The smaller competitors tend to be highly specialized
technical companies. We believe that the most important competitive factors in this industry
include reputation, performance, price, geographic location and availability of technically
skilled personnel.

Ratings

Ratings by independent agencies are an important factor in establishing the competitive
position of insurance and reinsurance companies and are important to our ability to market
and sell our products. Rating organizations continually review the financial positions of
insurers. S&P maintains a letter scale rating system ranging from “AAA" (Extremely Strong) to
“R” (under regulatory supervision). A.M. Best maintains a letter scale rating system ranging
from “A++" (Superior) to “F” {(in fiquidation). The objective of S&P and A.M. Best’s ratings
systems is to provide an opinion of an insurer’s or reinsurer’s financial strength and ability to
meet ongoing obligations to its policyholders. These ratings reflect our ability to pay
policyholder claims and are not applicable to-the securities offered in this annual report, nor
are they a recommendation to’'buy, sell or hold our shares. These ratings are subject to
periodic review by, and may be revised or revoked at the sole discretion of, S&P and A.M.
Best.

Numerous insurers and reinsurers have been downgraded since Septerﬁber 11, 2001, and
numerous ratings agencies have kept the reinsurance industry on negative outlook after many
reinsurers posted disappointing 2002 and semi-annual 2003 results. We have received a rating
of “A-" (excellent) from A.M. Best, which is the fourth highest of fifteen rating levels and
indicates A.M. Best's opinion of our financial strength and ability to meet ongoing obligations
to our future policyholders. We cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain this rating.
A significant ratings downgrade would result in a substantial loss of business and business
opportunities as insureds and ceding companies purchase insurance from companies with
higher claims-paying and financial strength ratings instead of from us.

Employees

We currently employ approximately 244 full-time employees. Approximately 129
employees work in our insurance and reinsurance business segment and primarily include
underwriting officers, underwriters, actuaries, attorneys and administrative personnel.
Approximately 115 work in our consulting business segment. Of these employees,
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approximately 90 are professional staff with degrees in engineering, geological sciences,
toxicology, chemistry, public health, biology, environmental science, and/or environmental
management. Their backgrounds are in industry, consulting, and federal and state regulatory
agencies. We expect that we will continue to hire additional employees as we expand our
business.

We have entered into employment agreements with Messrs. Russ and Murphy through
September 2008. The term of Mr, Russ’ employment agreement continues until September 3,
2008 and will be automatically renewed for additional one-year terms unless notice of
termination of Mr. Russ’ employment is provided by us or Mr. Russ at least 90 days prior to
the end of the term. The term of Mr. Murphy’s employment agreement continues until
September 3, 2008 and will be automatically renewed for additional one-year terms unless
notice of termination of Mr. Murphy’s'employment is provided by us or Mr. Murphy at least 90
days prior to the end of the term. Further, we have an arrangement with David R. Whiting,
who manages our Bermuda-based reinsurance operations, for employment through
September 2005. While we also have arrangements with Mr. Brittain and Mr. Wang and other
key employees for payment of salaries, bonuses and other compensation, none of these
employees presently have non-competition agreements with us or agreements requiring us to
employ them over a fixed term. Therefore, these other executive officers and key employees
may voluntarily terminate their employment with us at any time and are not restricted from
seeking employment with our competitors or others who may seek their expertise. We do not
currently maintain key man life insurance policies with respect to any of our employees other
than a $10 million policy on the life of Mr. Murphy, that we acquired in the ESC acquisition.

We believe that our relations with our employees are good. None of our employees are
subject to collective bargaining agreements. As part of our compensation to our employees,
we have adopted an Annual Variable Cash Compensation Plan that is available to our
employees generally, including our executive officers, that provides participating employees
with rewards in the form of additional compensation for contributions to the operating profits
and earning power of our business. :

Properties

We have executed a lease for office space in Bermuda that contains approximately 4,000
square feet. The initial term of the lease expires on August 31, 2004 with an option to extend
the term of the lease for an additional four years. The annual lease payments for this office is
approximately $140,000. We believe that these facilities are sufficient for our current purposes.
if we expand our operations in the future,.we may require additional office space, which we
believe will be available on commercially reasonable terms.

The headquarters of Quanta U.S. Holdings and our other U.S. subsidiaries is located in
New York, New York and contains approximately 57,000 square feet. The initial term of the
lease for these premises expires in October 2013 with an option to extend the lease term by
an additional 15 years. The annual lease payments for this office is approximately $2,441,000.
We believe that these offices are sufficient for our foreseeable needs.

We are temporarily using furnished office space in Dublin and London. The annual lease
payments for our Dublin and London office spaces total approximately $133,000 for both
offices. We intend to replace our Dublin and London facilities with other alternatives during
2004, which we believe will be available on commercially reasonable terms.

Our other offices are located in Reston, Virginia; Chicago, lllinois; Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania;
Denver, Colorado; San Jose, California; San Francisco, California; Hartford, Connecticut; Dallas,
Texas; Minneapolis, Minnesota; Alpharetta, Georgia; Cazenovia, New York; Boxborough,
Massachusetts; Somerset, New Jersey and Cary, North Carolina. These offices are leased for a
total of approximately $1,576,000 per year for all these offices. We believe that these facilities
are sufficient for our foreseeable needs. '
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Legal Proceedings

In September 2003, CNA filed actions against one of our executive officers, who has since
resigned, and an action against certain other of our' employees, all of whom had previously
worked for CNA. CNA's claims were based on alleged breaches by these employees of certain
restrictive agreements with CNA, including breach of confidentiality agreements, trade secret
misappropriation and breach of fiduciary duty. CNA also indicated that it believed it had
grounds to bring an action against us. To avoid the cost and distraction of litigation with CNA,
in December 2003 we agreed to settle CNA's asserted and threatened claims. As part of the
settlement, we paid CNA approximately $1.14 million in cash and we paid approximately
$698,000 in costs and expenses relating to the actual and threatened litigation and the
settlement thereof. Subject to certain exceptions, we have also agreed until the third quarter of
2005 not to replace CNA upon the renewal of the errors and omission, directors and officer,
and fidelity and crime business being insured by CNA in September 2003. Additionally, we
agreed to some restrictions on our ability'to hire or solicit certain CNA employees until the
third quarter of 2005. We believe that these restrictions have not and will not have a material
impact on our business.

We are not a party to any pending or threatened material litigation and are not currently
aware of any pending or threatened material litigation other than routine legal proceedings
that we believe are, in the aggregate, not material to our financial condition and results of
operations. In the normal course of business, we may become involved in various claims and
legal proceedings.

NFU Standard Acquisition

On December 19, 2003, we purchased all of the outstanding capital stock of NFU Standard
from NFU for $22.6 million, which is equal to the aggregate of $8.6 million pius an amount
equal to its statutory capital and surplus on the day before closing plus the difference between
the fair market value and book value of specified securities held by NFU Standard on the
closing date as determined under SAP. We have renamed NFU Standard as Quanta Indemnity.

in connection with the NFU Standard acquisition, NFU assumed from NFU Standard ali of
its underwriting contracts and associated liabilities. NFU has agreed to indemnify us for any
breach by it of any representation, warranty or agreement contained in the stock purchase
agreement, any failure of NFU to perform its obligations for the purchase or any claim or
liability arising out of the conduct or operation of NFU Standard incurred or related to any
period prior to the closing of the NFU Standard acquisition. NFU's obligations are guaranteed
by OneBeacon Insurance Company, the parent of NFU and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
White Mountains Insurance Group, Ltd.

The Private Offering

On September 3, 2003, we sold an aggregate of 55,000,000 common shares in a private
placement exempt from registration under the Securities Act, which we call the Private
Offering. The Private Offering includes shares sold by us directly to accredited investors and
shares sold by us to Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc., as initial purchaser. We were
advised by FBR that the shares it purchased were resold to qualified institutional buyers, as
defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”’)
and/or to non-U.S. Persons, as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act, initially at a
price of $10.00 per share. In connection with the Private Offering, we also entered into a
registration rights agreement for the benefit of the holders of the shares sold in the Private
Offering, the Founder Shares and the common shares underiying the Founder Warrants.

Our net proceeds of the Private Offering were approximately $505.6 million. We used
some of the net proceeds as follows: (1) approximately $18.9 million to purchase ESC
including $0.4 million of acquisition expenses, {2} approximately $0.25 million to purchase
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Quanta Specialty Lines in addition to paying approximately $25.8 million for Quanta Specialty
Lines’ statutory capital and surplus, (3) approximately $2.0 million to repay the principal and
interest due under a loan agreement with BEM Investments, LLC, or BEMI, (4) approximately
$5.9 million to pay the remaining expenses related to the Private Offering and (5)
approximately $22.6 million to purchase NFU Standard. Quanta Holdings allocated
substantially all of the remaining $436.0 million among its other subsidiaries based on our
assessment of the level of capital that is prudent to ‘support our expected levels of business,
applicable regulatory requirements and discussions with insurance regulatory authorities and’
rating agencies. Quanta Holdings retained only that amount that was necessary to pay for |ts
corporate expenses. Our subsidiaries are using and we expect that they will continue to use
the remaining net proceeds for general corparate purposes, including working capital, and for
potential strategic investments or acquisitions. Currently, we do not have any -acquisitions or .
investments pending. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capltal Resources.”

-
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INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

The property and casualty insurance and remsurance industry has historically been
cyclical. When excess underwriting capacity exists, increased competition generally results in
lower pricing and less favorable policy terms and conditions for insurers and reinsurers. As
underwriting capacity contracts, pricing and policy terms and conditions generally become
more favorable. In the past, underwriting capacity has been impacted by several factors,
including catastrophes, industry losses, recognition of reserve deficiencies, changes in the law
and regulatory requurements investment returns and the ratings and fmanmal strength of
competitors. v

We believe the insurance. and reinsurance industry is currently recovering from a
prolonged period, of excess underwriting capacity: A: decline in underwriting margins in the
late mid-1980s and:incidences of large natural catastrophes led to increases in rates and a
recovery in industry profitability in the mid-1990s. As a result of favorable loss levels and
strong investmeént returns beginning in 1995, the insurance and reinsurance industry
experienced increased competition and industry capacity, driving property and casualty
premium rates down. However, judicial interpretation expanding coverage beyond that
originally anticipated, significant catastrophic losses in 1999 and the subsequent contraction of
capacity in the market resulted in improvement in rates, terms and conditions beginning in
2000. Since 2000, we believe several other developments described below have led to an
improvement in rates and terms and conditions. :

Bermuda has become one of the world’s leading insurance and reinsurance markets.
Bermuda's position in these markets sohdlfled after the tragic events of September 11, 2001,
as approximately $16 billion of new capital was invested in insurance and reinsurance
companies in Bermuda through September 2003, representing approximately 53% of the $30
billion in new insurance and reinsurance capital raised globally, according to A.M. Best. A
significant portion of this capital was used to fund Bermuda-based start up insurance and
reinsurance companies.

There are a number of factors that make Bermuda an attractive location from which to
conduct insurance and reinsurance business, including:

+ a favorable regulatory and tax environment, which minimizes governmental regulation
of companies meeting certain solvency and liquidity requirements;

* recognition as a highly reputable business center that provides excellent professional
and other business services;

- a well-developed insurance industry with a well-developed network of brokers;
» political and economic stability; and

« ready access to the global insurance and reinsurance markets.
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MARKET PRICE OF OUR COMMON: SHARES

Our:common shares have béen listed on:the Nasdaq'National Market System under the
symbol “QNTA" since May ‘14, 2004. - The following table sets forth for the penod mdrcated
the hrgh and fow sale prrces for our common shares:

. ST \"'-;Con1n10n..Shares

: I R P N IR T ngh, o Low ..
2004 AT : e ) ERERRE I L HASY . LT
From May 14 through June 22, 2004 ...................... $10.880 $9:890

Uy

As of June 24, 2004, we had' 56,798,218 common-shares'issued and Gutstanding, which
were held by 1T holders of record. The 11:holders of record include Cede & Co., which holds y
shares on'behalf of The Deposrtory Trust: Company, whichi -rtself holds shares on behalf of in":
excess of 1, 500 beneflcml owners of our common shares R

A IR
hete e

e

. _ DIVIDEND POLICY

-Our board of drrectors currently does’not rntend to declare d|V|dends or make any other °
distributions. Our board of: drrectors plans to periodically réevaluate ouidividend policy. Any:
determinatior to"pay dividends' inthe fatare will be-at'the board’s discretion-and will’ depend
upon our results of operations, financial condition- and other factors deeméd relevarit by our
board of drrectors ‘As a holding company, we depend on future dividends and other permltted
payments. from our subsrdrarres 1o, pay drvrdend‘ o,ur shareholders Our subsrdlarles abrllty
to pay drvrdends,, as well as our ab ,ty to. pay d|V|dends is, and |s expected to be subject to '
regulatory, contractual ratrng agency and other constramts '

St
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INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the statements in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations,” “Industry,” *“Business,” “Regulation” and elsewhere in this annual
report, including those using words such as “believes,” “expects,” “intends,” “estimates,”
“projects,” “predicts,” “assumes,” “anticipates,” “plans,” and “seeks” and comparable terms,
are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are not statements of historical -
fact and reflect our views and assumptions as of the date of this annual report regarding
future events and operating performance. Because we have a limited operating history, many
statements relating to us and our business, including statements relating to our competitive
strengths and business strategies, are forward-looking statements.

“All forward-looking statements address matters that involve risks and uncertainties. There
are important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those
indicated in these statements. We believe that these factors include but are not limited to
those discussed under risk factars described in our filings with the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission {"SEC"), including the following:

+ our lack of operating history and our present inability to start engaging in certain
insurance and reinsurance business because we have not established and obtained
authorization of Quanta U.K.;

» the risk that we may not be able to implement our business strategy;

+ the ineffectiveness or obsolescence of our planned business strategy due to changes in
current or future market conditions;

« changes in regulation or tax laws applicable to us, our brokers or our customers;
+ changes in the availability, cost or quality of reinsurance;

= actual results, changes in market conditions, the occurrence of catastrophic losses and
other factors outside our control that may require us to alter our methods of conducting
our business, such as the nature, amount and types of risk we assume and the terms
and limits of the products we write or intend to write;

» our ability to hire, retain and integrate our management team and other personnel;

+ inability to consummate, or effectively integrate, any acquisition or realize the
associated anticipated benefits from an acquisition;

- changes in rating agency policies or practices;
+ changes in accounting policies or practices; and

+ changes in general economic conditions, including inflation, foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates and other factors.

This list of factors is not exhaustive and should be read with the other cautionary
statements that are included in this annual report.

If one or more of these or other risks or uncertainties materialize, or if our underlying
assumptions prove to be incorrect, actual results may vary materially from our projections.
Any forward-looking statements you read in this annual report reflect our ¢urrent views with
respect to future events and are subject to these and other risks, uncertainties and
assumptions relating to, among other things, our operations, results of operations, growth
strategy and liquidity. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable
to us or individuals acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by this
paragraph. You should specifically consider the factors identified in this annual report that
could cause actual results to differ from those discussed in the forward-looking statements
before making an investment decision. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or
review any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events
or otherwise.
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Market data and forecasts used in this anual report have been obtained from independent
industry sources as well as from research reports prepared for other purposes. We have not
independently verified the data obtained from these sources and we cannot assure you of the
accuracy or completeness of the data. Forecasts and .other forward-looking information
obtained from these sources are subject to the same qualifications and uncertainties
applicable to the other forward-looking statements in this annual report.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA

The following tables set forth our selected financial information for the periods ended and
as of the dates indicated. Quanta Holdings was incorporated on May 23, 2003 and we acquired
ESC on September 3, 2003. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method.
ESC is considered our predecessor for accounting purposes.

The selected income statement data presented below for the years ended December 31,
1998 and 1999 and the selected balance sheet data as of December 31, 1998, 1399 and 2000
have been derived from ESC’s audited financial statements. The selected income statement
data for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 and the selected balance sheet
data as of December 31, 2001 and 2002 have been derived from ESC’s audited financial
statements included elsewhere in this annual report. The selected income statement data for
the periods ended September 30, 2002 and September 3, 2003 and the selected balance sheet
data as of September 3, 2003 have been derived from ESC’s audited financial statements
included elsewhere in this annual report. The selected income statement data for the period
from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003 and the selected balance
sheet data as of December 31, 2003 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this annual report.

We caution you that the financial information and results presented in this annual report
are neither comparable to nor representative of the actual results that we expect to achieve in
future periods. Many factors will cause our actual results to differ materially from the financial
information and results presented for our predecessor and for the short period since we were
incorporated including, but not limited to, the following:

+ For the period to December 31, 2003, we focused on completing the acquisition and
integration of ESC, Quanta Specialty Lines and NFU Standard and implementing our
business strategy through the development and implementation of our operating
procedures, underwriting platforms and guidelines, other systems, infrastructure and
facilities and assembling our group of underwriting and other professionals required to
write insurance and reinsurance business. We began to write insurance and reinsurance
business during the fourth quarter of 2003.

+ The business of our predecessor principally relates to environmental engineering and
remediation risk management consuliting and is intended to be only a small portion of
our business in the future. It is not representative of or comparable with the principal
businesses of insurance and reinsurance in which we have started to engage.

+ Until its date of acquisition, ESC was an S corporation for income taxes purposes, and
as conseqguence, it had not incurred any income taxes. The results of operations of the
predecessor presented below include an estimate, on a pro forma basis, for taxes that
may have been incurred if it had been a C corporation for all predecessor periods
presented.

« Our income statement data for the period from May 23, 2003 to December 31, 2003
includes a 100% valuation allowance against our net deferred tax assets. In accordance
with the accounting standards under U.S. GAAP, as a start-up with limited operating
history, the recovery of deferred tax assets from future taxable income is currently
neither assured nor accurately determinable. Some or all of the amount of these net
deferred tax assets would be realized if and when our operations become profitable.

» Those factors discussed in risk factors described in our filings with the SEC.”

You should read the selected financial information set forth below in conjunction with the
financial statements and related notes and other information contained in this annual report,

including “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.”
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Selected Consolidated Financial and Operating Data

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share and per share amounts)
: Quanta Capital

Holdings
Predecessor ) Ltd.(3)
For the Period from
For the year ended December 31, For the nine period May 23,
- months ended ended 2003 to
September 30, September 3, December 31,
1998 - 1999 2000 2001 . 2002 2002 2003 .2003
Selected Income Statement Data
Revenues: ) .
Net premiums earned . .. $ -3 -3 — $ ~ % - $ - 3 —  § 1,940
Consulting revenues . . . . 30,699 32,452 29,218 . 28,448 28,628 20,857 20,350 11,680
Net investment income . . 76‘ 62 53 ' 33 23 . " 15 14 2,290
Net realized gains . . . . . . — — - — - = — 109
Otherincome . . ....... — — — o — — S - 126
Total revenues. . . . . .. 30,675 32,514 29,271 28,481 28,651 20,872 20,364 16,145
Expenses: ‘ ‘ ' I i
Net losses and loss .
expenses. .. ........ — — — —_ ‘ — L= — 1,191
Acquisition expenses. . . . o= — Co= e - = — 164
Direct consulting costs. . . 20,085 20,588 17,615 ' 17,576 17,193 12,424 12,992 ' 8,637
General and e .
administrative - ,
expenses and ) :
depreciation .. ...... 6,705 7,971 9,784 .. 8,793 8,765 . 6,482 5,971 44,630
Total expenses. . .. ... 26,790 28,559 27,399 .,26,369 25,958 18,905 18,963 54,622
Net income . . .......... $ 385 $ 3955 $ 1,872 $ 2112 $-. 2693 S 1967 $ 1,401
Net loss before taxes . . . . . i oo : o S (38,477)

Provision for income taxes . . : . —

Net loss after taxes . ..... R i e ‘ $  (38,477)

Weighted average common
shares and common
share equivalents
outstanding — basic and . . - .
diluted. . . ........... 1,000,000 1,093,250 1,093,250 1,093,250 1,083,250 1,093,250 1,093,250 31,369,001

Net income (loss) per share
— basic and diluted (2) . . $ 389 $ 362 % 171 § 193 § 246. $ 180 $ 1.28 § (1.23)

Predecessor Pro Forma Data

{unaudited):

Net income as shown . L . .
above............. $ 3,885 $ 3,955 3 1,872 $ 2,112 $ 2,593 $ 1,967 $ 1,401

Pro forma provision for ' ’ T ' ‘

‘income taxes (1) ... .. 1,511 1,638 P 728 . 822 1,048 765 545

Net income adjusted for
pro forma income
taxes. .. ... 2,347 2,417 1,144 1,290 1,645 1,202 856

Pro forma net income per
share — basic and . )
diluted{2) ........... 3 237 $ 221 § 1.05 $ 1.18 $ 151§ 1.10 $ 0.78
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Quanta Capital

Holdings

Predecessor Ltd.{3}

As of December 31, As of As of

September 3, December 31,
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2003
Selected Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents. . .. ........... $ 61 % 54 % 78 $ 74 & 73 $ 413 $ 47,251
Investments at fairvalue . . . ............. —-— — — — — — 467,036
Premiums receivable. . .. ..... ... ... .. — — — — — — 1'0,961
Goodwill and other intangible assets ... .. .. —_ — —_ — — - 21,3561
Totalassets ... ...... ... 11,399 11,602 10,176 10,160 10,131 11,249 - 573,761
Reserve for losses and loss expenses. . ... .. — — —_ —_ — — 4,454
Reserve for unearned premiums. . . ........ — — — — — — ' 20,044
Environmental liabilities assumed. . .. ... ... —_ — — —_ — — 7,018
Total liabilities . ...................... 4,742 4,033 3,731 4,003 3,681 5,199 86,278
Total shareholders’ equity . . ............. 6,657 7,669 6,445 6,157 6,450 6,051 487,483

{n

(2)

(3)

As an S corporation, ESC, our predecessor, was not subject to U.S. federal income taxes. At the time of its
acquisition, ESC became subject to U.S. income tax. Accordingly, the predecessor historical operating earnings _
have been adjusted, on a pro forma basis, 10 reflect taxes at a 38.9% rate including a 35% statutory rate for U, S.
federal income taxes and a 3.9% rate, based on a 6% statutory rate for Virginia state income taxes less the
related federal tax benefit.

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. All potentially dilutive securities including stock options and warrants are excluded from the
basic earnings per share computation. In calculating diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number
of shares outstanding for the period is increased to include all potentially dilutive securities using the treasury
stock method. Any common stock equivalent shares are excluded from the computation if their effect is
antidilutive. Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing income available to ordinary
shareholders by the applicable weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Includes the operations of ESC from September 3, 2003, the date of acquisition. We accounted for the
acquisition of ESC as a purchase. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations
should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and related
notes contained in this annual report on pages F-3 through F-31, as well as the audited
financial statements and related notes of ESC, our predecessor, also contained in this annual
report on pages F-33 through F-59. We caution you that our financial data is not indicative of
the actual results that we expect to achieve in future periods because we have just started to
write insurance and reinsurance contracts. In addition, the financial data of our predecessor
presented below and relating to its consulting business is neither comparable with nor
representative of the actual results that we expect to achieve in future periods as we develop
our core business lines relating to insurance and reinsurance. The consulting business of our
predecessor is only a small portion of our business and is not representative of the principal
business we are undertaking. In addition, some of the information contained in this discussion
and analysis includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Many
factors will cause our actual results to differ materially from those anticipated or implied by
these forward-looking statements including, but not limited to, those discussed in risk factors
in our filings with the SEC. You should read “Information Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements” beginning on page 25 for information about material risks and uncertainties that
affect our business. ' ’

Overview

¢« General

Quanta Holdings was incorporated on May 23, 2003 as a new Bermuda holding company
formed to provide specialty lines insurance, reinsurance, risk assessment and risk consulting
services on a global basis. Through our operating subsidiaries in Bermuda, Ireland and the
U.S. and our U.K. branch, we focus on writing coverage for specialized classes of risk through
a team of experienced and technically qualified underwriters. We are using our Bermuda
operations primarily to write U.S. insurance and reinsurance business from Bermuda on a
non-admitted basis. We are also writing insurance and reinsurance in the United States on an
admitted basis through Quanta Indemnity, which is a U.S. licensed insurer with licenses in
approximately 41 states. Further, we write insurance from the United States on an excess and
surplus lines basis and U.S. reinsurance on a non-admitted basis through Quanta Specialty
Lines. Because Quanta Ireland is not currently authorized to conduct insurance business, we
have begun writing European insurance and reinsurance business from the United States and
from Bermuda. Once Quanta Ireland has been authorized to conduct insurance business, we
intend to use Quanta Ireland to write our European insurance and reinsurance business from
Ireland. '

We commenced substantive operations on September 3, 2003 after we completed the sale
of 55,000,000 common shares in the Private Offering. The proceeds from the Private Offering,
net of placement fees and associated offering expenses, were approximately $505.6 million.
During the period from September 3, 2003 to December 31, 2003, we wrote a small number of
insurance and reinsurance contracts as we focused on completing the acquisition and
integration of ESC, Quanta Specialty Lines and NFU Standard and implementing our business
strategy. These efforts included developing and implementing our operating procedures,
underwriting platforms and guidelines, other systems, infrastructure and facilities, and
assembling our group of underwriting and other professionals required to commence
insurance and reinsurance business.

On September 3, 2003, we completed the acquisition of ESC, an engineering, remediation
risk management and consulting firm. Founded in 1986, ESC provides diversified
environmental risk management services to assist customers in environmental remediation,
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regulatory analyses, technical support for environmental claims, merger and acquisition due
diligence, environmental audits and risk assessments, and engineering and information
management services. ESC is our platform for establishing our technical talent in the area of
environmental insurance and other specialty insurance lines and provides risk evaluation
services to our underwriters and to third parties on a fee for services basis. ESC is our
predecessor company for accounting and financial reporting purposes.

On October 28, 2003, we acquired Quanta Specialty Lines through which we write U.S.
sourced specialty insurance on an excess and surplus lines basis and U.S. reinsurance on a
non-admitted basis. The purchase price for Quanta Specialty lines was $26.1 million in cash,
which was equal to the aggregate of $0.3 million plus $25.8 million for its statutory capital and
surplus. On December 19, 2003, we purchased all of the capital stock of NFU Standard, a U.S.
licensed insurer with licenses in approximately 41 states. The purchase price for NFU Standard
was $22.6 million in cash, which was equal to the aggregate of $8.6 million plus an amount
equal to its statutory capital and surplus on the day before closing plus the difference between
the fair market value and book value of specified securities held by NFU Standard on the
closing date. We have renamed NFU Standard as Quanta Indemnity, and we currently write
insurance business on an admitted basis through this entity. The terms of the NFU Standard
acquisition are described further in “Busmess—NFU Standard Acquisition.”

~ Segment Information
Our business is comprised of the following three segments:

» Insurance. Our insurance segment primarily offers clients specialty insurance lines,
which provide tailored solutions that respond to distinctive characteristics. In our
insurance segment, we write professional liability, marine, technical risk and aviation,
environmental liability, structured insurance, fidelity and crime, surety and technical risk
property. These solutions may be offered to clients on a traditional or structured basis,
or a combination of both. '

* Reinsurance. Our reinsurance segment primarily offers reinsurance products to
insurance and reinsurance clients that provide solutions on a treaty, facultative, quota
share, per risk excess, clash or aggregate excess of loss basis. In our reinsurance
segment, we write casualty, property, marine, technical risk and aviation and structured
reinsurance. These product lines may be wntten on a traditional or structured basis, or
a combination of both.

« Consulting. Our consulting .segment provides diversified environmental investigation,
remediation and engineering services, assessment services, .other technical and
information management services. We plan to expand the scope of our consulting
services to provide risk assessment and evaluation services in other specialty insurance
and claims areas. These consulting services are currently provided to clients primarily
in private sector businesses in the United States.

The determination of these segments was based .on our methodology for monitoring the
performance of our insurance and reinsurance operations, which we collectively refer to as our
underwriting segments, and our risk consulting and management operations, which we refer
10 as our consulting segment. We evaluate each segment based on its underwriting or
consulting resuits, as applicable, including items of revenue and expense that are associated
with, and directly related to, each segment. We do not manage our assets by segment and, as
a result, net investment income is not evaluated at the segment level. We have not developed
a methodology to aliocate non- -direct items of expense to our segments. Accordmgly, general
and administrative expenses, depreciation and amortization are not evaluated at the segment
level.

During the period from October 1, 2003 to December 31, 2003, we wrote a small number
of insurance and reinsurance contracts that generated net written premiums of $20.1 million,

31

o AL R S



of which approximately $1.9 million was recognized in our statement of operations as earned
premiums during the same period. Because we only began to writé insurance and reinsurance
business during the fourth quarter of 2003, we believe that our gross and net premiums
written and net premiums earned will increase as we continue to develop and implement our
business strategy and enter into more insurance and reinsurance contracts.

Revenues

We derive the majority of our revenues from two principal sources: premiums from
policies written by our underwriting segments -and investment income from our investment
portfolios. The amount of our insurance and reinsurance premiums written and earned
depends on the number and type of policies we write; as well as prevailing market prices. We
write a number of insurance and reinsurance contracts with unique terms and conditions and
expected profit. margins. As a result, the volume of premiums written may not be an indicator
of our ultimate expected profitability.

Our investment income depends on the average invested assets in our investment
portfolios and the yield that we earn on those invested assets. Our investment yield is a
function of market interest rates and the credit quality and maturity period of our invested
assets. Our investment portfolio consists principally of fixed income securities, short-term
liquidity funds, cash, and cash equivalents. In addition, we realize capital gains or losses on
sales of investments as a result of changing market conditions, including changes in market
interest rates and changes in the credit quality of our invested assets. Under U.S. GAAP, our
investments are carried at fair market value with unrealized gains and losses on the
investments included on our balance sheet in accumulated other comprehensive income as a
separate component of shareholders’ equity. The objective of our current investment strategy
is to preserve investment principal, maintain liquidity and to manage duration risk between
investment assets and insurance liabilities, while maximizing investment returns through a
diversified portfolio. Our investment returns are benchmarked against certain specified indices.
However, the volatility in claim payments and the interest rate environment can significantly
affect the returns we generate on our investment portfolios.

We also derive revenues from the activities of our consulting segment. Our consulting
segment operates in the environmental area and its revenues principally comprise fees from
consulting and risk management services provided under various short-term service contracts
and from revenues for services performed by subcontractors we engage on behalf of clients.
We also generate revenues from remediation fees, which are used to extinguish environmental
remediation obligations that we have assumed under contracts of remediation. The amount of
consulting and.remediation fees and subcontractor. revenues is a function of political and
economic conditions and the impact these conditions have on clients’ discretionary spending
on envuronmental projects.

—

Expenses

Our expenses primarily consist of loss and loss adjustment expenses, policy acquisition
expenses, direct consulting costs, environmental remediation costs and general and
administrative expenses.

Losses and loss adjustment expenses depend on the number and type of insurance and
reinsurance contracts we write and reflect our best estimate of ultimate losses and loss
expenses we expect to incur-on each contract written using various actuarial analyses. Actual
losses and loss adjustment expenses will depend on actual costs to settle insurance and
reinsurance claims. Our ability to accurately estimate ultimate loss and loss adjustment
expense at the time of pricing each insurance and reinsurance contract will be a critical factor
in determining our profitability.

Policy acquisition expenses consist principally of commissions, fees, brokerage and tax
expenses that are directly related to- obtaining and writing insurance and reinsurance

32

TR was Aalh



contracts. Typically, policy acquisition expenses are based on a certain percentage of the
premiums written on contracts of insurance and reinsurance. We expect that these expenses
will be a function of the number and type of insurance and reinsurance contracts written.

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel expenses, professional
fees and other operating overheads. From time to time we engage administrative service
providers and legal, accounting, tax and financial advisors. General and administrative
expenses are a function of the development of our business, including the growth in
personnel and the volume of insurance and reinsurance contracts written.

We also incur expenses directly related to and arising from our consulting and
environmental remediation activities. These direct costs primarily include expenses associated
with direct technical labor, subcontractors we engage on behalf of our consulting clients, and
other consulting or remediation contract related expenses. These costs are a function of, and
are proportional to, the level of consulting and remediation revenues earned from the
provision of consulting services and completion of remediation activities.

Market Place Conditions and Trends

In general, we believe that the market conditions in the insurance and reinsurance
marketplace were favorable during 2003. These market conditions included the ability to
charge higher premium rates than the market would bear in 2001 and 2002 and a continuing
demand for insurance and reinsurance products from our target market that cannot be fully
met by other insurers and reinsurers. While we believe that rate increases are beginning to
slow as compared to 2003 and we are beginning to see a weakening in premium pricing in
excess casualty lines, we believe favorable market conditions will generally continue in 2004.
We will also continue to seek opportunities to provide insurance and reinsurance in areas that
require both capacity and highly technical underwriting expertise.

Recent Developments

For the first quarter ended March 31, 2004, our net loss was $4.8 million, or $0.08 per
share. The net loss includes net realized gains on investments of $1.2 million, or $0.02 per
share. Qur gross premiums written, net premiums written and net premiums earned for the
first quarter of 2004 were $118.7 million, $112.5 million and $27.2 million, respectively. During
this same period, reinsurance represented $80.7 million of net premiums written and
insurance represented $31.8 million of net premiums written.

Quanta Holdih'gs' Results of Operations

The following is a discussion of Quanta Holdings’ consolidated results of operations for
the period from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003. The discussion
and analysis of Quanta Holdings’ results of operations include the results of ESC, our
predecessor, from September 3, 2003 to December 31, 2003. We commenced substantive
operations on September 3, 2003; therefore, any comparison to the prior periods of our
predecessor is not meaningful. During the period from our date of incorporation to December
31, 2003, we wrote a small number of insurance and reinsurance contracts.
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Period from May 23, 2003 {date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003
Results of operations for the period ended December 31, 2003 were as follows:

{in thousands)

Revenues
Gross premiums written . ................... $ 20,465 .
Net premiums written ............ ... . ... $ 20,060
Net premiums earned ........... e 1,940
Consultingrevenues. . ...........coeeeunn.. 11,680
Net investment income..................... 2,290
Net realized gains on sale of investments. - - 109
Otherincome .........coociiiiiiiiiiia .. 126
Total revenues ..........coovviiiiina... 16,145
Expenses ‘ .
Net losses and loss expenses . .............. 1,191
Acquisition expenses, net..... e 164
Direct consultingcosts ..................... 8,637
General and administrative expenses........ 44,196
Depreciation and amortization of mtanglbles 434
Total expenses ............................. 54,622

Income tBXES. . ovurnrrinnnnss ............... e
NetloSS .o it et e $(38,477)

Total revenues. Total revenues of $16.1 million were comprised of net premiums earned
of-$1.9 million, consulting revenues of $11.7 million and investment income of $2.4 million,
including net realized gains on sale: of investments of $0.1 million. Consulting revenues were
derived from the operations of ESC, which were included in our consolidated resulits of
operations from the date of acquisition, September 3, 2003.

Premiums. We commenced writing insurance and reinsurance business during the fourth
quarter of 2003 and wrote $20.5 million of gross written premium for the period ended
December 31, 2003. Of this premium, 63%, or $13.0 million, was written by our reinsurance
segment and 37%, or $7.5 million, was written by our insurance segment. We ceded a small
amount of our insurance risk, amounting to $0.4 million in premiums ceded. Net premiums
earned in the period were $1.9 million reflecting the short duration of the period between the
inception date of the contracts and December 31, 2003. We expect that our gross and net
premiums written and net premiums earned will increase in future perlods as we continue to
develop and implement our busmess strategy and enter into more msurance and reinsurance
contracts.

Consulting revenues. Consulting revenues comprised $4.4 million and $7.3 million
generated from direct Iabor and subcontractor related activities, respectlvely

Net investment /ncome and net realized gams Net investment mcome and net reallzed
gains totaled $2.4 million for the period. Net investment income was $2.3 million and was
derived primarily from interest earned on fixed maturity investments, and short term
investments, Subsequent to the Private Offering and our acquisition of ESC, our investments
in cash assets increased by over $487 million representing cash proceeds from the Private
Offering, net of placement fees and associated costs, of approximately $505.6 million less
$18.5 million used to purchase ESC. Qur average annualized effective yield (calculated by
dividing net investment income by the time weighted average amortized cost of invested
assets) for the period from September 3, 2003 (the date of the Private Offering) to December
31, 2003 was approximately 1.4%. Initially our invested assets were held entirely in cash,
liquidity funds and overnight cash deposits. In October 2003, we and our asset managers
established an investment program to invest in a broader array of assets such as fixed income
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securities, in accordance with our investment guidelines as approved by our board of
directors. As a result, we expect our annualized effective yields will increase in future periods
as we move the majority of our invested assets into longer term fixed income securities and
similar instruments.

As of December 31, 2003, the average maturity duration of our investment portfolio was
approximately 2.5 years with an average credit rating of approximately “AA".

Total expenses. Total expenses were $54.6 million for the period and were comprised of
net losses and loss expenses incurred of $1.2 million, net acquisition expenses of $0.2 million,
direct consulting costs of $8.6 million, general and administrative expenses of $44.2 million
and depreciation and amortization of $0.4 million.

Losses and Joss expenses. Net losses and loss expenses for the period ended December
31, 2003 were $1.2 million and were a function of our net premiums earned and expected
ultimate losses and loss expenses. ‘

Acquisition expenses. Net acquisition expenses for the period ended December 31, 2003
were $0.2 million and were a function of the number of insurance and reinsurance contracts
we entered into and the associated net premlums earned.

Direct consulting costs. Direct consultmg costs totaled $8.6 million and were comprised
of subcontractor and direct labor expenses at ESC. Direct consulting costs, as a percentage of
consulting revenues was 70% for the period and was consistent with direct consulting costs as
a percentage of consuiting revenues realized by ESC in prior periods.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses were $44.2
million for the period and were comprised of $35.6 million of personnel related expenses and
$8.6 million of other overhead and start-up related expenses. Included in general and
administrative expenses were $41.5 million related to our underwriting activities and $2.7
million of expenses related to our consulting activities. Personnel expenses, representing
salaries and other benefits grew steadily during the period reflecting the ramp-up in our
operations, including the growth in the number of our employees. Personnel expenses also
included $16.7 million of non-recurring, non-cash stock compensation expense which related
to common shares issued to our founding shareholders in connection with our initial
capitalization on May 23, 2003 and also to certain of our directors and officers in connection
with the Private Offering on September 3, 2003. These shares were issued at prices that were
below the Private Offering price and, in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25 "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” known as APB 25, we are required to
expense the difference between the issue price per share and the fair market value price per
share, with a corresponding credit to additional paid-in capital. The Private Offering price was
considered to be an apprOX|mat|on of the fair market price of the shares at the time of their
issuance.

General and administrative expenses also included approximately $0.6 million of
non-recurring start-up related expenses, whnch were prlmarlly reiated to legal and other
professional costs.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization for the period comprised

depreciation of fixed assets and the amortization of intangibles related to the acquisition of
ESC.

Net loss. Our net loss of $38.5 million for the period ended December 31, 2003 was due
to the start up nature of our business and our recent entry into insurance and reinsurance
marketplaces. We have not recorded any net deferred income tax benefits or assets relating to
tax operating losses generated by our U.S. subsidiaries since our results of operations include
a 100% valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets.
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Results by Operating Segments .

Underwriting

We principally provide insurance and reinsurance coverages for risks that are often
unusual or difficult to place, that do not fit the underwriting criteria of standard commercial
product carriers and that require extensive technical underwriting and assessment resources in
order to be profitably underwritten. Our underwriting objective is to deploy capital to what we
believe are the most attractive lines of business at the most opportune times in order to
generate superior returns on capital. We measure the performance of our underwriting
operations on the basis of net underwriting income. Net underwriting income is obtained from
the sum of net premiums earned less net losses and loss expenses, acquisitions costs and
allocated general and administrative expenses.

We have not developed a methodology to allocate indirect general and administrative
expenses between each of our underwriting segments, accordingly general and administrative
expenses are presented for our underwriting. segments in the aggregate.

During the period from September 3, 2003 to December 31, 2003, we wrote a small
number of insurance and reinsurance contracts as we focused on completing the acquisition
and integration of ESC, Quanta Specialty Lines and NFU Standard and implementing our
business strategy. These efforts included developing and implementing our operating
procedures, underwriting platforms and guidelines, other systems, infrastructure and facilities,
and assembling our group of underwriting and other professionals required to commence
insurance and reinsurance business.

The following table summarizes our net underwntmg results, by underwrmng segment
for the period ended December 31, 2003:

Insurance Reinsurance .Total underwriting
{$ in thousands)

Gross premiums written............. $7,469  $12,996 $ 20,465
Premiums ceded....... e (405) — (405)
Net premiums written ............... 7,064 12,996 20,060
Net premiums earned ............... 339 1,601 - 1,940
Losses and loss expense incurred.. .. 183 1,008 1,191
Acquisitioncosts............o it 24 140 . 164
General and administrative expenses. 2 24,814,
Net underwriting income............ $ 132 § 453 $(24,229)
Insurance

~ Our insurance segment includes the following product lines: professional liability, marine,
technical risk and aviation, environmental liability, structured insurance, fidelity and crime,
surety and technical risk property. For the period ended December 31, 2003 we did not write
any surety, marine, technical risk and aviation, structured msurance or technical risk property
insurance business. :
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Premiums. Gross written insurance premiums were $7.5 million for the period ended
December 31, 2003. The table below shows gross written premiums by line of business:

{in thousands)

Environmental liability...................... $3,816
Professional liability ........................ 2,729
Fidelity and crime ................. Ve _ 924
Total. .o e $7,469

Premiums ceded relate entirely to proportional facultative reinsurance purchased for
certain professional liability insurance policies written. Gross premiums written and ceded
premiums are earned over the period of insured risk. Consequently, only $0.3 million of net
premiums written were earned during the period reflecting the short period of time between
policy inception and our year end.. ' -

Losses and loss expenses. Net losses and loss expenses incurred of $0.2 million. reflect a
loss ratio {(calculated as losses and loss expenses incurred divided by net premium earned) of
54.0%. For the period ended December 31, 2003 we adopted an expected loss ratio
methodology to estimate our ultimate ‘cost of losses; this method miultiplied premiums earned
by an expected loss ratio that was derived, for each line of business, from pricing data,
industry data and from information provided by brokers and insureds. As of December 31,
2003, we had not received any notifications of reported losses.

Acquisition costs. Acquisition costs for the perlod were negligible, and primarily
represented brokerage expenses.

Reinsurance

Our reinsurance segment includes the following product lines: casuafty, property, marine,
technical risk and aviation and structured reinsurance. For the period ended December 31,
2003 we did not write any marine, technlcal risk and avnatlon or structured reinsurance
business.

Premiums. Gross written reinsurance prémiums were $13.0 million for the period ended
December 31, 2003. The table below shows gross written premiums by line of business:

(in'thousands)

Casualty ...... e eieieee. $7,463
Property ................. e o 5,533
Total...ooovvvevnt.. e e $12,996

Gross reinsurance premiums written primarily reflect a limited number of reinsurance
contracts that were written during the month of December, and are being earned over the
period of reinsured risks. Consequently, only $1.6 million of reinsurance premiums written
were earned during the period reflecting the short time penod between contract inception and
our year end.

Losses and loss expenses. Net losses and loss expenses incurred of $1.0 million reflect a
loss ratio of 63.0%. For the period ended December 31, 2003, we adopted an expected loss
ratio methodology to estimate our ultimate cost of reinsurance losses; this method multiplied
premiums earned by an expected loss ratio that was derived, for each underlying reinsurance
contract, from pricing data and information provided by brokers and ceding companies. As of
December 31, 2003, we had not received any notifications of reported losses on our
reinsurance lines of business.

Acquisition costs. Acquisition costs for the period were not significant, and primarily
represented brokerage and reinsurance commission expenses that were in line with market
rates.
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Consulting

The following table summarizes our net consuvltvi'ng results for the period ended December
31, 2003. These results were driven primarily by the operations of our predecessor, ESC.

‘(in thousands)

Consulting revenues. ................couuu.. $12,261
Otherincome ........oovvun... e ) 100
Direct consultingcosts ................... . 8,637
General and administrative expenses ...... . 2,657
Net consulting income.................. evee . $.1,067 067

Consulting revenues. Consulting revenues comprised $5 0 million and $7.3 million
related to a normal level of direct labor and subcontractor. related activities, respectively. Direct
labor revenues include $0.6 million of consultmg activities related to services provided to our
underwriting segments o

Direct consulting costs. Direct consulting costs toytaled $8.6 million and were comprised
of subcontractor and direct labor expenses, Direct consulting costs, as a percentage of
consulting revenues was 70% for the. period and was consistent with direct- consultmg costs as
a percentage of consulting revenues realized by ESC in prior periods.’

ESC’s Results of Operations

The following is a discussion and analysis of the consolidated results of operations of
ESC, our predecessor, for (1) the period beginning January 1, 2003 and ending September 3,
2003 (the date of the ESC acquisition) compared to the nine months ended September 30,
2002, (2) the consolidated results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to the year ended December 31, 2001 and (3) the consolldated results of operations
for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to the year ended December 31, 2000. The
discussion of ESC’s results of operations for the perlod from September 3, 2003 to December
31, 2003 is included in the discussion of Quanta Holdings’ Results of Operations above.

Period Ended September 3, 2003 Compared To Nine Months Ended September 30, 2002

Total revenue. Total revenue decreased $0.5 million, or 2%, to $20.3 million for period
ended September 3, 2003 compared to $20.8 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2002. The decrease in total revenues consists of a $2.0 million decrease in direct labor revenue
and a $1.5 million increase in subcontractor révenue. Approximately $1.0 million of the labor
revenue decrease was due to the fact that the reporting periods were not for the same amount
of time. A weak U.S. economy, the U.S. war with lrag and severe weather conditions during
2003 caused clients to'delay or postpone discretionary spending on environmental projects
that contributed to the remaining $1.0 million labor revenue decrease. Several large
remediation projects were underway in 2003, which accounted for the majority of the $1.5
million increase in subcontractor revenue ‘during this period. As a result of the increase in
subcontractor revenue during the period ended September 3, 2003, accounts receivable
increased by $0.9 million from $9.0 million.as of December 31, 2002 to $9.9 million as of
September 3, 2003.. Accounts receivable for the nine months ended September 30, 2002
decreased $1.8 million from $8.9 million as of December 31, 2001 to $7.1 miilion as of
September 30, 2002: The decrease was primarily due to fewer significant subcontractor
remediation projects underway during the nine months ended September 30, 2002.

Costs and éxpenses. Costs and expenses increased by $0.1 million, or 0.3%, to $19.0
million during the period ended September 3, 2003 compared to $18.9 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2002. The increase was the combined result of increases in
direct consulting costs offset by a decrease in selling, general and admlmstratlve and bonus
expenses.
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Direct consulting costs. Direct consuiting costs increased $0.6 million, or 5%, to $13.0
million for the period ended September 3, 2003 compared to $12.4 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2002. The increase in direct consulting costs was primarily attributable
to increased subcontractor expenses offset by reduced direct labor costs. The increase in
subcontractor costs is a result of an increase in the number and nature of remediation projects
during the period ended September 3, 2003. The decrease in direct labor costs is attributable
to the fact that reporting periods were not for the same amount of time and from delayed or
postponed consulting projects. Direct consulting costs, as a percentage of revenue was 64%
for the period ended September 3, 2003, as compared to 60% for the nine months ended
September 30, 2002. This increase in direct consulting costs as a percentage of revenues was
primarily due to the decreased direct labor revenues. Primarily as a result of the increase in
subcontractor costs related to the remediation projects discussed above, during the period
ended September 3, 2003, accounts payable increased by $0.5 million from $2.8 million as of
December 31, 2002 to $3.3 million as of September 3, 2003. Accounts payable for the nine
months ended September 30, 2002 decreased $1.4 million from $3.2 million as of December
31, 2001 to $1.8 million as of September 30, 2002.

Selling, general and administrative expenses.. Selling, general and administrative
expenses decreased by $0.3-million, or 5%, to $5.8 million during the period ended September
3, 2003 compared to $6.1 million for the nine months ended-September 30, 2002. The decrease
was primarily attributable to the fact that the reporting periods were not for the same amount
of time, offset by the costs associated with the acquisition of ESC. Bonus expense decreased
$0.2 million, or 54%, to 0.2 million for the period ended September 3, 2003 compared to $0.4
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2002. ESC’s bonus structure is based on
annual company and individual performance, and tied to the achievement of company-wide
objectives. The decrease in bonus expense is due to a lower operating income for the period
ended September 3, 2003, as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2002.

Interest income. All'interest income was earned on overnight cash investments for the
periods ended September 3, 2003 and September 30, 2002. Amounts earned remained
generally unchanged for the period ended September 3, 2003 compared to the nine months
ended September 30, 2002, as the decrease in interest income resulting from a decrease in
average market rates of interest was offset by interest earned from a higher average invested
cash balance.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared To Year Ended December 31, 2001

Total revenue. Total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2002 increased
approximately $0.2 million, or 0.7%, to $28.6 million, compared to $28.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001. The increase was attributable to a $0.2 million increase in
subcontractor revenue. The fiuctuation in subcontractor revenue from year to year is based on
the type, mix and status of major remediation projects that require significant subcontractor
services.

Costs and expenses. Costs and expenses decreased by $0.4 million, or 1.5%, to $26.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to $26.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001. This variance was attributed to decreases in direct costs and selling,
general and administrative expenses offset by an increase in bonus expense..

Direct consulting costs. Direct consulting costs for the year ended December 31, 2002
declined approximately $0.4 million, or 2.3%, to $17.2 million, compared to $17.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease in direct consulting costs was primarily the
result of a decrease in technical expenses, due to reduced staff in 2002 as compared to 2001.
The reduced staffing needs were a result of the transfer by a major client during the fourth
quarter of 2001, of a significant portion of its business to another consulting firm.

Direct consulting costs as a percentage of revenues decreased by 2% to 60% for the year
ended December 31, 2002, compared to 62% for the year ended December 31, 2001. The




improvement in direct costs as a percentage of revenues was attributable to an increase in
projects with higher margms pamcularly those involving litigation support and transactional
work.

Selling, general and administrative expenses.” Selling, general and administrative
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002 declined approximately $0.1 million, or 1.2%,
to $8.2 million compared to $8.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease
was attributable to actions taken to reduce operating costs in 2002, mcludmg renegotiating
more favorable office leases for four office locations, reduction in support staff and reduced
spending in overall support actlvmes

Bonus expense. Bonus expense for the year ended December 31, 2002:increased by $0.2
million, or 50%, to $0.6 million, compared to:$0.4 million for the year-ended December 31,
2001. ESC's bonus structure is based on annual company and individual performance and tied
to the achievement of certain company-wide objectives. The increase in the bonus expense is
a result of improved operating results for 2002.as compared to 2001.

Interest income. Interest earned on overmght investments decreased approximately
$10,800 or 32.2% to approximately $22,700 for-the year ended December 31, 2002, compared
to $33,500 for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease resulted from a decrease in -
overall money market interest rates. : :

Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared To Year Ended December 31, 2000

Total revenue,  Total revenue for the year ended December: 31 2001 dechned $0.8 million,
or 2.7%, to $28.4 million, compared to $23.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2000.. .
The decrease in revenue consists of a $0.5 million. decrease in subcontractor revenue and a
$0.3 million decrease in direct labor revenue. The fluctuation in subcontractor revenue from
year to year i based on the type; mix and status of major remediation projects that require
" significant subcontractor services.

Costs and expenses. Costs and expenses decreased by $1.0 miilion, or 3.6%, for the year
ended December 31, 2001, to $26.4 million, compared to $27.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2000. The decrease was attributable to a decrease in selling, general and
administrative and bonus éxpenses. :

Direct consulting costs. Direct consulting costs for the year ended December 31, 2001
remained basically unchanged at $17.6 million, compared to the year ended December 31,
2000. The year-to- year variance, however, is composed of a $0.5 million decrease in
subcontractor expense, offset by a $0.5 million increase in direct labor. The decrease in
subcontractor expenses is a result of the typical year-to-year fluctuation in the timing of
remediation fieldwork. The increase in direct labor during 2001, compared to 2000, was
attributable t6 an increase in d:rect techmcal expense resulting from overall increase in
technical staff and salary adjustments necessary to meet competitive market conditions.

Direct consulting costs as percentage of revenues increased by 2% to 62% for the year
ended December 31, 2001, compared to 60% for the year ended December 31, 2000. Direct
consulting costs as a percentage of revenues increased due to an increase in direct labor costs
and a reduction in projects with higher margins, such as those involving lmgatlon support and
transactional work.

Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and a’dmlmstranve
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2001 declined $0.8 million or 8.8% to $8.3 mllllon
compared to $9.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. The decrease was a
combined result of a decrease in legal and settiement costs of $1.1 million offset by a $0.3°
million increase in other expenses. During 2000, ESC settled a lawsunt rather than incur
additional legal expenses. The settlement costs and related legal fees amounted to $1.1
million, which accounted for the higher selling; general and administrative costs in 2000. The
$0.3 million increase in other expenses in 2001 consisted of a $0.1 million increase in rent and
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utilities expenses resulting from office expansions and a $0.2 million increase in bad debt
expense due to the Chapter 11 bankruptey filing of a significant client. Other selling, general
and administrative expenses remained relatively flat.

Bonus expense. Bonus expense for the year ended December 31, 2001 decreased $0.3
million, or 42.9%, to $0.4 million, compared to $0.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2000. Bonus is tied to the achievement of company-wide objectives. In 2001, certain
management objectives were not:met, resulting in a reduced bonus pool.

Interest income. Interest earned on overnight investments decreased approximately
$20,000, or 37.4%, to approximately $33,500 for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared
to $53,500 for the year ended December 31, 2000. The decrease was due to an overall decline
in money market lnterest rates P

quurdrty and Caprtal Resources

We are orgamzed as a Bermuda holdmg company, and as such have no direct operations
of our-own. Qur assets consist of investments.in our subsidiaries through which we conduct
a substantlally all- of our insurance, reinsurance and consulting operations. As of December 31,
2003; we had subsidiary. operations in Bermuda, the United States and representative offices
in lreland and the Unlted ngdom

As a holdmg company, we wrll have continuing fundmg needs for general corporate
expenses, the payment of principal and interest on future borrowings, if any, taxes, and the
payment of other obligations. Funds to meet these obligations will come primarily from
dividends, interest and .other statutorily permissible. payments from our operating subsidiaries.
The ability of our operating subsidiaries to make these payments will be fimited by the
applicable laws and regulations of the domiciles in which the subsidiaries operate. There will
be restrictions on the payment of dividends by our insurance subsidiaries to Quanta Holdings,
which are described in.more detail in “Regulation.”

Liquidity requirements

Our principal cash requirements are expected to be the acquisition of and investment in
other businesses and operatrng subsidiaries, expenses to develop and implement our business
strategy, capital expendltures, premiums retroceded, losses and loss adjustment expenses and
other policy hoider benefits, brokerage and commissions, the servicing of future borrowing
arrangements, taxes and other operating expenses. The potential for a large claim under one
of our insurance. or remsurance contracts means that we may need to make substantial and
unpredrctable payments wnthm relatively short perlods of time. While our board. of directors
currently does not intend to ‘declare dividends or rake any other distributions to the
shareholders of Quanta Holdmgs, our board plans to periodically reevaluate our dividend
policy. Our cash requrrements will also include the payment of any future dividends to our
shareholders if and when our board of directors determines to change our dividend policy.

We expect to hire additional empioyees. during 2004. As a result, we anticipate that our
cash requirements for the payment of annual salaries and benefits for these employees will
increase in future periods as compared to the period through December 31, 2003.

As of December 31, 2003, our capital expenditures have not been material and related
primarily to the purchase of information technology assets. During 2004, we expect capital
expenditures, prmcrpally relatlng to information systems, furniture and fixtures and leasehold
improvements to- mcrease significantly. ’

In addition to these liquidity requrrements under the purchase agreement with ESC, we
will be required to.pay ESC’s former shareholders an earn-out payment if ESC achieves
specified EBITDA targets. EBITDA generally is defined to mean earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization, calculated in accordance with GAAP. Under the earn-out
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arrangements, .if EBITDA for the two-year period ending December 31, 2005 is $7.5 million or
greater, we will be required to pay an earn-out payment of $5.0 million. If EBITDA is greater
than $7.0 million and less than $7.5 million, then we will be required to pay a pro rata portion
of the $5.0 million.

We operate a treasury function responsible for managing-our investments, banking
relationships, capital raising activities including equity and debt issues, our overall cash and
liquidity positions and the payment of dividends from subsidiaries. Our subsidiaries are
responsible for managing Iocal cash and ||qmd|ty posmons

In September 2003, CNA ﬁled actions. against one of our executlve ofﬁcers who has since
resigned, and an action against certain.other of our employees, all of whom had previously
worked for CNA. CNA also indicated that it believed it had grounds to bring an action against
us. To avoid the cost and distraction of litigation with CNA, we agreed to settle CNA's asserted
and threatened claims. As part of the settlement, we made a one-time payment to CNA of .
approximately $1.14 million in cash during the fourth quarter of 2003 In addition, we paid a
total of approxumately $698,000 in costs and expenses relating to the actual and thréatened
litigation and the settlement thereof. In addition, the settlement agreement contains certain
limited restrictions on our operatlons described under “Business — Legal Proceedings.” We
believe that these restrictions have not and will not hiave a matenal impact on our business.

The assessment, analysis and assumption of envnronmental liabilities, and the
management, remediation, and engineering of environmental conditions constitute a
significant portion of our consulting business. From time to time, we ‘may offer a liability’
assumption program under which a special-purpose entity assumes specified liabilities (at
times including taking title to property) associated with environmental conditions for which we
provide consulting services, which may be insured or guaranteed by us. These businesses
involve significant risks, including the possibility- that we-may have substantial liabilities to '
clients, third parties and governmental authorities. for property damage, personal injuries,
breach of contract or breach of warranty claims, fines and penalties and regulatory action that
could adversely affect our business. :

Sources of cash

Before the Prlvate Offering, our sole source of capital was a term loan agreement with
BEMI under which BEMI agreed to prowde term loans in pnncnpal ‘amounts of up to $10.0
million in the aggregate. The outstanding principal carried mterest at a rate of 9% per annum.
We borrowed $2.0 million under this facility to fund a portion of our initial start-up costs and
some of our expenses incurred in the Private Offenng A portion of the proceeds of the Private
Offering was used to repay the $2.0 million outstandlng principal balance and accrued interest
owing to BEMI under the term loan agreement BEMI's commitment to" prowde future
additional loans under the term loan agreement termmated at the closmg of the Private
Offering. Followung the Private Offerlng, our primary source of cash has been the proceeds
from the sale of our common shares in the Private’ Offermg, Wthh ralsed approximately
$505.6 million, net of offering related costs.

In addition to the Private Offering, we sold 291, 262 shares to ngel W. Morris on
December 22, 2003 in a privately negotiated transaction, Wthh ralsed approximately $3.0
million.

~ We expect our future sources of funds will consist of premiums written, reinsurance
recoveries, investment income and proceeds from sales and redemptlons of investment
assets, and, to a lesser extent, collections of receivables for consultmg services rendered to
third parties. We or one or more of our subsidiaries may also enter'into a révolving bank
credit facility with a syndicate of lenders, which.may be guaranteed by one or more of our
subsidiaries. We expect to use any revolving.credit facility for. general corporate purposes and
working capital requirements. We believe that any credit facility will require compliance with
financial covenants, such as a leverage ratio and consolidated tangible net worth. Any credit
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facility will likely also contain covenants that require us to maintain our insurance ratings and
restrict activities of our subsidiaries, such as the incurrence of additional indebtedness, liens
and dividends and other payments to Quanta Holdings. We currently have no commitment
from any lender with respect to a credit facility.

For the period commencing May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation} and ending December
31, 2003, our overall increase in cash and cash equivalents was $47.3 million which was
derived from $508.1 million of net cash proceeds raised from the Private Offering, offset by
$0.8 million of cash used in operations, $41.7 million of net cash used in the acquisition of
ESC, Quanta Specialty Lines and NFU Standard and $417.4 million invested in our
available-for-sale -investment portfolio.

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements or transactions with unconsolidated, special
purpose entities.

Adequacy of Capital

While insurance regulation differs by location, each jurisdiction requires that minimum
levels of capital be maintained in order to write new insurance business. Factors that affect
capital requirements generally include premium volume, the extent and nature of foss and loss
expense reserves, the type and form of insurance ‘and reinsurance business underwritten and
the availability of reinsurance protection from adequately rated retrocessionaires on terms that
are acceptable to us. ‘

In Bermuda and the United States, insurers and reinsurers are requnred to maintain certam
minimum levels of capital and risk-based capital, the calculation of which includes numerous
factors as specified by the respective insurance regulatory authorities and the related
insurance regulations. We will capitalize our insurance operations in excess of the minimum
regulatory requirements so that we may maintain adequate financial ratings. Generally, a
higher financial rating creates a higher demand for:insurance products. A higher financial
rating will enable us both to write more business and to be more selective in the business we
underwrite. Accordingly, allocation of capital sufficient to achieve business objectives is a
critical aspect of any insurance orgamzatlon particularly a start-up msurance operation such
as ours. See “Business — Ratings.”

We currently have sufficient capital and surplus to meet regulatory and ratmg agency
requirements at our current rating levels. Substantially all of our capital has been distributed
among our rated operating subsidiaries based on our assessment of the levels of capital that
we believe are prudent to support our expected levels of business, the applicable regulatory
requirements, and the recommendatlons of the insurance regulatory authorities and rating
agenc1es

We may need to raise. addltlonal funds to further expand our business strategy, enter new
business lines and manage our expected growth. The amount and timing of these capital
requirements will depend on many factors, including our ability to write new busmess
successfully and to establish premium rates and reserves at levels sufficient to. cover losses. At
this time, we are not able to quantify the amount of additional capital we will require in the
future or predict the timing of our future capital needs. As described above, we or one or more
of our subsidiaries may enter into a revolving credit facility with a syndicate of lenders. Any
future equity or debt financing, if available at all, may be on terms that are not favorable to us.
If we raise capital through equity financings, your interest in our company will be diluted, and
the securities we issue may have rights, preferences and privileges that are senior to those of
the shares that are currently issued and outstanding. If we cannot maintain or obtain adequate
capital to manage our business strategy and expected growth targets, our business, results of
operations and fmanc1a| condition may be adversely affected.

ESC generally is required to fund implementation of projects for its customers prior to
receipt of related fee revenues. Historically, ESC's positive cash flows generated from
operations and its avatlable credlt facmty has provnded adequate liquidity to- f‘und its
operations. »
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Posting of Security by Our Non-U.S. Operating Subsidiaries

Our Bermuda, United Kingdom, and Irish operating subsidiaries are not licensed,
accredited or otherwise approved as reinsurers anywhere in the United States. Many U.S.
jurisdictions do not permit insurance companies to take credit on their U.S. statutory financial
statements for reinsurance-to cover unpaid liabilities, such as loss and unearned premium
reserves, obtained from unlicensed or non-admitted insurers without-appropriate security
acceptable to U.S. insurance commissioners. Typically, this type of security will take the form
of a letter of credit issued by an acceptable bank, the establishment of a trust, funds withheld
or a combination of these elements.

As of March 31, 2004, we had $18.7 million of letters of credit outstanding under facility
agreements entered into with commercial banks. We are negotiating a secured bank letter of
credit facility with a syndicate of lenders. However, we cannot assure you that we will be able
to maintain existing or obtain additional credit facilities at terms acceptable to us. If we fail to
maintain adequate letter of credit facilities, and are unable to otherwise provide the necessary
security, U.S. insurance compames may be less willing to purchase our reinsurance products,
which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. We believe that any
letter of credit facility will require compliance with financial covenants, such as a leverage ratio
and consolidated tangible net worth. Any such facility will likely also contain covenants that
require us to maintain our insurance ratings and restrict activities of our subsidiaries, such as
the incurrence of addltlonal indebtedness, liens and dividends and other payments to Quanta
Holdings.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates -

Our significant accounting policies are described in the notes to our consolidated financial
statements and in the notes to ESC’'s consolidated financial statements.

Our consolidated financial statements and those of our predecessor contain certain
amounts that are inherently subjective in nature and require management to make certain
judgments and assumptions in the application of accounting policies used to determine those
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements. The use of different assumptions
could produce materially different estimates of the reported amounts. In addition, if factors
such as those described in risk factors described in our filings with the SEC cause actual
events to differ materially from management’s assumptions used in applying the relevant
accounting policy, there could be a material adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial condition and liquidity.

We believe that the following critical accounting policies affect significant estimates used
now or to be us‘e’d in the future in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Premiums Written, Ceded and Earhed

The method by which we record and recognize premiums written differs based upon the
nature of the underlying insurance or reinsurance contract.

Insurance premiums written are generally defined in the associated policies, are recorded
on the inception date of the policies and are earned over the terms of the policies in
proportion to the amount of insurance protection provided. Typically this results in the earning
of premium on a pro rata as to time basis over the term of the related insurance coverage.

Reinsurance premiums written are recorded based on the type of the associated
reinsurance contract. Typically, we write losses occurring and risks attaching contracts on a
single year basis. We may on occasion write multi-year reinsurance contracts. Losses
occurring reinsurance contracts cover losses that occur during the term of the reinsurance
contract. Risks attaching contracts cover claims that arise on underlymg insurance policies that
incept during the term of the reinsurance contract. Reinsurance premiums written are earned
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on a pro rata as to time basis over the term of the contract, typically 12 months for-losses
occurring contracts. Premiums earned on risks attaching contracts usually extend beyond the
original term of the reinsurance contract resultmg in recognition of premium earnings over an
extended period, typically 24 months.

Reinsurance premiums on multi-year losses occurring reinsurance contracts that are
payable in annual installments are recorded as. premiums written on an annual basis at
inception and on the contract anniversary dates if the reinsured has the ability to.cancel,
commute or change the coverage during the contract term or if the contract provides for
varying amounts of reinsurance coverage for each annual period for which there is a specmed
premium instailment.

Reinsurance premiums wrltten on certaln types of contracts, notably treaty quota share
contracts, may not be known definitively on the.inception date of the contract and therefore
include estimates of premiums written. These estimates are based on.data provided by the
ceding companies or brokers, our underwriters’ judgment and underlying economic
conditions. Our estimates of written premiums are re-evaluated over the term of the contract
period as underwriting information becomes available and as actual premiums are reported by
the ceding companies or brokers. For certain excess of loss reinsurance contracts-we record
the minimum premium, as defined in the contract, as our estimated premium written at
inception of the contract. Subsequent changes to our premium estimates are recorded as
adjustments to premiums written in the period in which they become known and could be
material. Adjustments may significantly impact net income in the period in which they are
determined, particularly when the subject contract is fully or substantially expired resulting in
the premium adjustment being fully or substantially earned.

Some of our contracts include retrospective rating provisions that adjust estlmated
premiums or acquisition expenses based upon experience and underwriting results. We
recognize estimated ultimate premiums and associated acquisition expenses, including
retrospectively rated adjustments, over the periods of the contracts in accordance with the
underlying contract terms. Such estimated premiums and acquisition expenses are-based on
current experience under the contracts. We also write certain structured insurance and
reinsurance contracts as risk management solutions that cannot otherwise be provided by
traditional contracts. Typically, we assume a measured.amount of risk in exchange for a
premium, a specified portion of which may be returnable to the insured based on the level of
loss experience or underwriting profitability. Experience rated adjustments that relate to the
return of underwriting profit or premium to the insured are accrued as experience refund
liabilities in the period in which the underwriting results are recorded and are based on the
current experience and terms of the contract. Retrospective rating adjustments are necessarily
based on underwriting results that include certain estimates relating to premiums and losses,
and are therefore subject to adjustment as underwriting experience develops and actual
underwriting results become known. :

In the normal course of business, we purchase reinsurance or retrocessnonal coverage in
order to increase our underwriting capacity and to limit our individual and aggregate
exposures to risks of losses arising from the contracts of insurance or reinsurance that we
underwrite. Reinsurance premiums ceded to reinsurers are recorded and recognized.in a
manner consistent with that of the original contracts or policies written and the terms of
reinsurance agreement.

Premiums written and ceded relating to the unexpired periods of coverage or policy terms
are recorded as unearned premium reserves and deferred reinsurance premiums, respectively.

We may write or purchase certain reinsurance contracts, which pursuant to Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 113, “Accounting and Reporting for Reinsurance
of Short-Duration and Long-Duration Contracts” issued by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB"} are deemed, for financial reporting'purposes, not to transfer insurance risk
either due to insufficient timing risk or insufficient underwriting risk. Where our contracts do
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not meet the criteria for reinsurance accounting under SFAS 113 we follow the deposit method
of accounting as prescribed in Statement of Position 98-7, “Deposit Accounting: Accounting for
Insurance and Reinsurance Contracts That Do Not Transfer Insurance Risk.” The deposit
method of accounting requires that the premium we receive or pay, less any explicitly defined
margin retained or paid by us, is accounted for as a deposit liability or deposit asset on the
consolidated balance sheet. Explicitly defined margins are recorded as premiums written or
ceded, as appropriate, and earned on a pro rata as to time basis over the contract period.
Contracts that transfer timing risk, but not underwriting risk, are accounted for using the
interest method whereby income or expense is recognized, and the deposit asset or liability is
adjusted, using a constant effective yield based on the anticipated timing and amounts of
reinsurance payments and the remaining life of the contract. When the estimates of timing or
amounts of payments change, the effective yield is recalculated and the deposit asset or
liability is adjusted to the amount that would have existed had the new effective vield been
applied since inception of the contract. The adjustment is recorded as interest expense or
interest income, as appropriate. For contracts that transfer only underwriting risk the initial
deposit asset or liability is amortized ratably over the contract coverage period as an
adjustment to losses and loss expenses. The deposit liability or asset is adjusted for any
losses incurred or recoverable based on the present value of the expected future cash flows
arising from the loss event with the adjustment being recorded in loss and loss expenses.

Acquisition Expenses and Ceding Commission Income

Acquisition costs are policy issuance related costs that vary with and are directly related to
the acquisition of new and renewal insurance and reinsurance business, and primarily consist
of commissions, third party brokerage and insurance premium taxes. Ceding commission
income consists of commissions we receive on insurance and reinsurance business that we
cede to our reinsurers. Typically acquisition costs and commission income are based on a
fixed percentage of the premium written or ceded. This percentage varies for each line or class
of business and each type of contract written. Acquisition expenses and commission income
are recorded and deferred at the time premium is written or ceded and are subsequently
amortized in earnings as the premiums to which they relate are earned or expensed.
Acquisition expenses are reflected in the consolidated statement of operations net of ceding
commission income from our reinsurers. Acquisition costs relating to unearned premiums are
deferred in the balance sheet as deferred acquisition costs. Commission income relating to
deferred reinsurance premiums ceded is carried in the consolidated balance sheet as a
deferred income liability.

Deferred acquisition costs are carried at their estimated realizable value and are limited to
the amount expected to be recovered from future earned premiums and anticipated
investment income. Any limitation is referred to as a premium deficiency. A premium
deficiency exists if the sum of our anticipated losses, loss expenses and unamortized
acquisition costs exceeds the recorded unearned premium reserve and anticipated net
investment income. A premium deficiency is recognized by charging any deferred acquisition
costs to acquisition expenses to the extent required to eliminate the deficiency. If the '
deficiency exceeds the deferred acquisition cost asset then a liability is accrued within loss and
loss expense reserves for the excess deficiency.

Reinsurance Recoverables

Reinsurance assets due from our reinsurers-under the terms of ceded reinsurance
contracts include unpaid loss recoveries, loss and loss expense reserves recoverable and
deferred reinsurance premiums. We are subject to credit risk with respect to our reinsurance
ceded because the ceding of risk does not.relieve us from our obligations to our insureds. We
must settle these obligations without the benefit of reinsurance protection to the extent our
reinsurers default. Failure of our reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in credit
losses. If the financial condition of any of our reinsurers deteriorates, resulting in their inability
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to make payments to us, we establish allowances for amounts considered potentially
uncollectible from such reinsurers. We evaluate the financial condition of our reinsurers and
monitor concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities, or
economic characteristics of our reinsurers to minimize our exposure to losses from reinsurer
insolvencies.

Deferred Tax V_aldation Allowance

We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to amounts that are
more likely than not to be realized from future anticipated taxable income. As of December 31,
2003, our net deferred tax assets were $6.1 million against which we provided a 100%
valuation allowance on the basis that, given our limited operation history, the realization of
deferred tax assets from our anticipated future taxable income is neither assured nor
accurately determinable. If we subsequently assess that the valuation allowance, or any
portion thereof, is no longer required an income tax benefit will be recorded in net income in
the period in which such assessment is.made.

Investments

We classify publicly traded and non-publicly traded fixed maturity, short-term investments
and equity securities as “available-for-sale” and, accordingly, they are recorded at estimated
fair value with the difference between cost or amortized cost and fair value, net of the effect of
taxes, included as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensuve income in the
consolidated balance sheet. Short-term investments include highly liguid debt instruments and
commercial paper that are generally due within 1 year of the date of issue and are held as part
of our investment portfolios that are managed by independent investment managers. The fair
value of publicly traded securities is based upon quoted market prices. The estimated fair
value of non-publicly traded securities is based on independent third party pricing sources.

In accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities,” we periodically review our investments to determine whether an impairment,
being a decline in fair value of a security below its amortized cost, is other than temporary. If
such a decline is classified as other than temporary, we would write down, to fair value, the
impaired security resulting in a new cost basis of the security and the amount of the
write-down would be charged to income as a realized loss. The new cost basis would not be
changed for subsequent recoveries in fair value. Some of the factors that we consider in
determining whether an impairment is other than temporaty include (1} the amount of the
impairment, (2) the period of time for which the fair value has been below the amortized cost,
{3) specific reasons or market.conditions which could affect the security, including the financial
condition of the issuer and relevant industry conditions or rating agency actions, and (4) our
ability and intent.to hold the security for sufficient time to. allow for possible recovery.

Investments are recorded on a trade date basis. Our net investment income is recognized
when earned and ‘consists primarily of interest, the accrual of discount or amortization of
premium on fixed maturity securities, dividends, and is net of investment management and
custody expenses. Gains and losses realized on the sale of investments are determined on the
first-in, first-out basis.

Reserve for Losses and Loss Expenses

As an insurance and reinsurance company we are required, under GAAP and applicable
insurance regulations, to establish reserves for losses and loss expenses for estimates of
future amounts to be paid in settlement of our ultimate liabilities for claims arising under the
terms of written insurance and reinsurance policies that have occurred at or before the
balance sheet date. Under GAAP, we are only permitted to establish loss and loss expense
reserves for actual losses that have occurred before the balance sheet date. We do not record
contingency reserves for expected future loss occurrences, nor do we discount our reserves
for losses and loss expenses to be paid in the future. -
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The estimation of future ultimate loss liabilities is the most significant judgment made by
management and is inherently subject to significant uncertainties. These uncertainties are
driven by many variables that are difficult to quantify. These uncertainties include, for
example, the period of time between the occurrence of an insured loss and actual settlement,
fluctuations in inflation, prevailing economic, social and judicial trends, legislative changes,
internal and third party claims handling procedures, and the lack of complete historical data
on which to base loss expectations. It may also be difficult for us to accurately estimate
ultimate losses based on our own historical claim experiences because of our limited
operating history.

The estimation of unpaid loss liabilities will be affected by the type or structure of the
policies we have written. In the case of our direct insurance business we often assume risks
for which claims experience will tend to be frequency driven. As a result, historical loss
development data may be available and traditiona! actuarial methods of loss estimation may
be used. Conversely, the available amount of relevant loss experience that we can use to
quantify the emergence, severity and payout characteristics of the loss liabilities is limited for
policies that are written with the expectation that potential losses will be characterized by
lower frequency but higher severity claims, such as our reinsurance contracts written.

The estimation of unpaid loss liabilities will also vary in subjectivity depending on the
lines or class of business involved. Short-tail business describes lines of busiress for which
losses become known and paid in"a relatively short period time after the loss actually occurs.
Typically, there will be less variability in the ultimate amount of losses from claims incurred in
the short-tail lines that we write such as property, marine, and aviation. Long-tail business
pertains to lines of business for which actual losses may not be known for some time or for’
which the actual amount of loss may take a significantly longer period of time to emerge or
develop. Our professional and environmental lines of business are generally considered longer
tail in nature. Because loss emergence and settlement periods can be many years in duration,
these lines of business will have more variability in the estimates of their Joss and loss
expense reserves.

Our loss and loss expense reserves fall into two categories: reserves for unpaid reported
losses and for losses incurred but not reported, or IBNR, claims. Reported claim reserves are
based initially on claim reports received from insureds, brokers or ceding companies, and may
be supplemented: by our claims professionals with estimates of additional ultimate settlement
costs. IBNR reserves are calculated using generally accepted statistical and actuarial
techniques. In applying these techniques, we rely on the most recent information available,
including pricing information, industry data and on our historical loss and loss expense
experience. Where our historical loss information is limited, we ‘increase our reliance on
individual pricing analyses and industry loss information to guide our estimates. We may also
utilize commercially available'computer models to evaluate future trends and to estimate
ultimate claim costs; From time to time we engage independent external actuarial specialists
to review our estimates of loss and loss expense reserves and our reserving methods. Even
though our reserving techniques are actuarially sound, there may still be significant
subsequent adjustments to loss and loss expense reserves due to the nature of our business
and the risks written.

At this time, since we have very limited loss development experience, the primary
reserving method we have adopted is an expected loss ratio methodology whereby we
multiply earned premiums by an-expected loss ratio to derive ultimate losses and deduct any
paid losses and.loss.expenses to arrive at estimated loss and loss expense reserves. This
method is commonly applied when there is insufficient loss development experience available.
These initial expected loss ratios are derived for each line of business, contract or group of
contracts, as appropriate, from pricing, loss and exposure information provided by brokers,
ceding companies and insureds and supplemented by available industry data. We believe that
these assumptions represent a realistic and appropriate basis for currently estimating our loss
and loss expense reserves. As we develop our own loss experience we will expand our
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reserving analyses to include other commonly used methods, such as the Bornhuetter-
Ferguson method, which is a generally accepted actuarial technique that produces expected
loss ratios that are implied for actual loss experience and developments.

We continually review our reserve estimate and reserving methodologies taking into
account all currently known information and updated assumptions related to unknown
information. Loss and loss expense reserves established in prior periods are adjusted as claim
experience develops and new information becomes available. Any adjustments to previously
established reserves, resulting from a change in estimate, may significantly impact current
period underwriting results and net income by reducing net income if previous period reserve
estimates prove to be deficient or improve net income if prior period reserves become
redundant. Losses and loss expense arising from future insured events will be estimated and
provided for at the time the losses are incurred and could be substantial.

Environmental Remediation Liabilities Assumed

In our consulting segment we assume environmental liabilities in exchange for
remediation fees and contracts to perform the required remediation in accordance with the
underlying remediation agreements. We estimate our initial and ongoing-ultimate liabilities for
such environmental remediation obligations using actual experience, past-experience with
similar remediation projects, technical engineering examinations of the contaminated sites and
state, local and federal guidelines. However, we cannot assure you that actual remediation
costs will not significantly differ from our estimated amounts. We continually review our
estimates for ultimate remediation costs taking into account all currently known information
and updated assumptions related to unknown information. Any adjustments to previously
established liabilities, resulting. from a change in our estimates, may significantly impact our
current period operating results. As of December 31, 2003, we had assumed one
environmental remediation project for which we recorded an estimated liability of $7.0 million.

When we receive consideration for the assumption of a remediation liability that is in
excess of our estimate of the related environmental remediation liability, we initially defer the
excess amount and record it in deferred income on the consolidated balance sheet. This
deferred remediation revenue is recognized in earnings over the anticipated remediation
period using the cost recovery or percentage-of-completion method that is based on the ratio
of remediation expenses actually incurred and paid to total anticipated remediation costs. As
of December 31, 2003, we had deferred approximately $0.8 million of remediation revenue that
was included in deferred income.

Consulting Revenues

Consultmg revenue is pnmanly derived from short term consulting arrangements with
customers. Generally, consulting revenue is earned in the period for which services are
performed. Included in consulting revenue is accrued but unbilled revenue that arises mainly
due to a time lag in billing cycle and special billing arrangements with customers.

From time to time, we retain subcontractors to perform certain services under contracts
with our consuiting customers. Consulting revenue is recognized on a gross basis when we
are the primary obligor in the arrangement and we bear the ultimate risks of providing such
subcontracted services. In assessing whether gross revenue reporting is appropriate, we
consider a number of factors such as whether we act as principal in the transaction, retain the
general risks of loss for collection, delivery, or returns, or whether we have control over
contract pricing and vendor selection. For the period ended September 3, 2003 and the years
ended 2002 and 2001, approximately $6.9 million, $7.0 million and $7.3 million of direct costs,
exclusive of mark-up, respectively, related to subcontractor arrangements. Our consulting
revenue would be significantly reduced if these arrangements were recorded on a net of direct
cost basis.
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Other accounts receivable

The majority of our other accounts receivable balances comprise amounts due under
consulting arrangements with customers. We establish bad debt allowances, or valuation
reserves, based on specific identification of likely losses of accounts with individual customers.
We periodically re-evaluate these valuation reserve estimates, if any, and adjust them as more
information about the ultimate collectibility of accounts receivable becomes available.
Circumstances that could-cause these valuation reserves to be revised include changes in our
clients’ financial standing such as liquidity and credit quality, and other factors that negatuvely
impact our clients’ ablhty to pay thelr obllgatlons as they become due.

Stock-based compensatlon

We currently account for stock compensation in accordance with APB 25, Compensatlon
expense for stock options and stock-based awards granted to employees is recognized using
the intrinsic value method to the extent that the fair value of the stock exceeds the exercise
price of option or similar award at the measurement date. The compensation expense, if any,
is recorded in our results of operations over the shorter of the vesting period of the award or
employee service period. Generally, we will issue stock options and stock-based awards to
employees with a strike price equal to the estimated fair value of the stock on the grant date of
the award such that .no compensation expense recognition is required, in accordance with APB
25, : \ :

SFAS 123, "'Accountmg for Stock:Based Compensatlon encourages companies to '
recognize, over the vesting perlod an expense for stock-based awards based on their fair
value, as opposed to their intrinsic value, on the grant date. Following the release of SFAS 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” which amends
SFAS 123 to provide alternative methods of a voluntary change to the fair value based method
of accounting described in SFAS 123, we are re-evaluating our accounting policy for stock
options and other stock-based awards.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in fair value of a financial instrument
due to changes in interest rates, creditworthiness, foreign exchange rates or other factors, We
will seek to mitigate that risk by a number of actions, as described below.

Foreign Currency Risk and Functional Currency

Our functional currency is the U.S. dollar. Although we have not experienced any
significant exposures to foreign currency risk, we expect that in the future our exposure to
market risk for'changes in foreign exchange rates will be concentrated in premiums receivable
and insurance reserves arising from known or probable losses that are denominated in foreign
currencies. We will attempt to manage our foreign currency risk by maintaining assets
denominated in the same currency or by entering into foreign currency forward contracts in an
effort to hedge against movements in the value of foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar. A
foreign currency forward contract results in an obligation to purchase or sell a specified
currency at future date and price specified at the time of the contract. Foreign currency
forward contracts will not eliminate fluctuations in the value of our assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies but rather allow us to establish a rate of exchange for a
future point in time. We do not expect to enter into such contracts with respect to a material
amount of our assets or liabilities. As of December 31, 2003, we had not entered into any
foreign currency forward contracts.

Our investment guidelines limit the amount of our investment portfolio that may be
denominated in foreign currencies to 20% (as measured by market value). Furthermore, our
guidelines limit the amount of foreign currency denominated investments that can be held
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without a corresponding hedge against the foreign currency exposure to 5% (as measured by
market value). As of December 31, 2003, our investment portfolio included $3.3 million, or
0.7% of net invested assets, of securities that were denominated in foreign currencies. These
securities were rated AAA and were purchased by our mvestment managers for the purpose
of improving overall portfolio y|eld

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates is concentrated in our investment
portfolio. Our investment portfolio primarily consists of fixed income securities. Accordingly,
our primary market risk exposure is to changes in interest rates. Fluctuations in interest rates
have a direct impact on the market valuation of fixed income securities. As interest rates rise,
the market value of our fixed-income portfolio falls, and the converse is also true. -

Our strategy.for managing interest rate risk includes maintaining a high quality investment
portfolio that is actively managed by our managers in accordance with our investment
guidelines in order to balance our exposure to interest rates while tailoring the .duration, yield,
currency and ligquidity characteristics to the anticipated cash outflow characteristics of claim
reserve liabilities. As of December 31, 2003, assuming parallel shifts in interest rates, the
impact of an immediate 100 basis point increase in market interest rates on our net invested
assets of approximately $480 million would have been an estimated decrease in market value
of approximately $11.4 million, or 2.4%, and the impact.on our invested assets of an
immediate 100 basis point decrease in market interest rates would have been an estimated
increase in market value of approximately $11.1 million, or 2.3%.

As of December 31, 2003, our investment portfolio included highly-rated mortgage-backed
securities with a market value of $89 million, or 18.6%, of net invested assets. As with other _ .
fixed income investments, the fair market value of these securities fluctuates depending on
market and other general economic conditions and the interest rate environment. Changes in
interest rates can also expose us to prepayment and extension risks on these investments. In
periods of declining interest rates, the frequency of mortgage prepayments generally increase
as mortgagees seek to refinance at a lower interest rate cost. Mortgage prepayments result in
the early repayment of the underlying principal of mortgage-backed securities requiring us to
reinvest the proceeds at the then current market rates. When interest rates increase, these
assets are exposed to extension risk, which occurs when holders of underlying mortgages
reduce the frequency on which they prepay the outstanding principal before the maturity date
and delay any refinancing of the outstanding principal.

Credlt Risk

We have exposure to credit risk primarily as a holder of flxed income securmes This risk
is defined as the default or the potential loss in market value resulting from adverse changes
in the borrower’s ability to repay the debt. Our risk management strategy and investment
policy is to invest in debt instruments of high credit quality issuers and to limit the amount of
credit exposure with respect to particular ratings categories and to any one issuer. We attempt
to limit our overall credit exposure by purchasing fixed income securities that are generally
rated investment grade by Moody’s Investors Sérvice, Inc. and/or S&P. Our investment
guidelines require that the average credit quality of our portfolio will typically be Aa3/AA- and
that no more than 5% of our investment portfolio’s market value shall be invested in securities
rated below BBB-/Baa3. We also limit our exposure to any single issuer to 5% or less of our
portfolio’s market value at the time of purchase, with the exception of U.S. government and
agency securities. As of December 31, 2003, the average credit quality of our investment
portfolio was AA, and all fixed income securities held were investment grade. in addition, we
held as part our investment portfolio $20.0 million in par value of variable rate insurance
linked securities issued by a single issuer which mature on January 1, 2007. We are subject to
loss of principal and interest in the event of the occurrence of certain predefined physical
events, As of December 31, 2003, the fair value of the security was $20.0 million and
represented approximately 4% of our net invested assets.
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Separately, we are also exposed to the credit risk of our insurance and reinsurance
brokers to whom we make claims payments for insureds and our reinsureds, as well as to the
credit risk of our reinsurers and retrocessionaires who assume business from us. To mitigate
the risk of nonpayment of amounts due under these arrangements, we have established
business and financial standards for reinsurer and broker approval, incorporating ratings by
major rating agencies and considering the financial condition of the counterparty and the
current market information.

Effects of Inflation

We do not believe that inflation has had material affect on our consolidated results of
operations. The effects of inflation could cause the severity of claims to increase in the future.
Our estimates for losses and loss expenses include assumptions, including those relating to
inflation, about future payments for settlement of claims and claims handling expenses. To the
extent inflation causes these costs to increase above our estimated reserves that are
established for these claims, we will be required to increase reserves for losses and loss
expenses with a corresponding reduction in our earnings in the period in which the deficiency
is identified. The actual effects of inflation on our resuits cannot be accurately determined- until
claims are ultimately settled.
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REGULATION

General

The business of insurance and reinsurance is regulated in most countries, although the
degree and type of regulation varies significantly from one jurisdiction to another. Reinsurers
are generally subject to less direct regulation than primary insurers. In Bermuda we operate
under relatively less intensive regulatory regimes. However, in the United States and United
Kingdom, licensed insurers and reinsurers, and in Ireland, licensed insurers, must comply with
more stringent financial supervision standards. Accordingly, Quanta lreland, once authorized,
will be subject to extensive financial regulation in Ireland, Quanta U.K., when established, will
be subject to extensive regulation under applicable statutes in Ireland and the United Kingdom
and Quanta Specialty Lines and Quanta Indemnity are subject to extensive financial regulation
under applicable statutes in the United States.

Bermuda Regulation
As a holding company, Quanta Holdings is not subject to Bermuda insurance regulations.

The Insurance Act, which regulates the insurance business of Quanta Bermuda and
Quanta U.S. Re, provides that no person may carry on any insurance business in or from
within Bermuda unless registered as an insurer under the Insurance Act by the Bermuda
Monetary Authority, or the BMA, which is responsible for the day-to-day supervision of
insurers. Under the Insurance Act, insurance business includes reinsurance business. The
BMA, in deciding whether to grant registration, has broad discretion to act as the BMA thinks
fit in the public interest. The BMA is required by the Insurance Act to determine whether the
applicant is a fit and proper body to be engaged in the insurance business and, in particular,
whether it has, or has available to it, adequate knowledge and expertise. The registration of an
applicant as an insurer is subject to its complying with the terms of its registration and such
other conditions as the BMA may impose from time to time. The BMA granted its approval for
the registration of Quanta Bermuda as a Class 4 insurer and Quanta U.S. Re as a Class 3
insurer.

An Insurance Advisory Committee appointed by the Bermuda Minister of Finance advises
the BMA on matters connected with the discharge of the BMA’s functions and sub-committees
thereof supervise and review the law and practice of insurance in Bermuda, inciuding reviews
of accounting and administrative procedures.

The Insurance Act imposes on Bermuda insurance companies solvency and liquidity
standards and auditing and reporting requirements and grants to the BMA powers to
supervise, investigate and intervene in the affairs of insurance companies. Certain significant
aspects of the Bermuda insurance regulatory framework are set forth below.

Classification of Insurers

The Insurance Act distinguishes between insurers carrying on long-term business and
insurers carrying on general business. There are four classifications of insurers carrying on
general business with Class 4 insurers subject to the strictest regulation. Quanta Bermuda is
registered as a Class 4 insurer and Quanta U.S. Re as a Class 3 insurer, which is subject to less
regulation than a Class 4 insurer. We do not intend, at this time, to obtain a license for Quanta
Bermuda or Quanta U.S. Re to carry on long-term business. Long-term business includes life
insurance and disability insurance with terms in excess of five years. General business broadly
includes all types of insurance that is not long-term business.

Cancellation of Insurer’s Registration

An insurer’s registration may be canceled by the BMA on certain grounds specified in the
Insurance Act, including failure of the insurer to comply with its obligations under the

53



i R e e A i« A AN R e A B

Insurance Act or if, in the opinion of the BMA, the insurer has not been carrying on business
in accordance with sound insurance principles.

Principal Representative

An insurer is required to maintain a principal office in Bermuda and to appoint and
maintain a principal representative in Bermuda. For the purpose of the Insurance Act, the
principal office of Quanta Bermuda and Quanta U.S. Re is at our principal executive offices in
Bermuda, and Quanta Bermuda’'s and Quanta U.S. Re’s principal representative is our
President and Chief Executive Officer. Without a reason acceptable to the BMA, an insurer may
not terminate the appointment of its principal representative, and the principal representative
may not cease to act as such, unless 30 days’ notice in writing to the BMA is given of the
intention to do so. It is the duty of the principal representative, within. 30 days of reaching the
view that there is a likelihood of the insurer for which the principal representative acts
becoming insolvent or that a reportable “event” has, to the principal representative’s
knowledge, occurred or is believed to have occurred, to make a report in writing to the BMA
setting out all the particulars of the case that are available to the principal representative.
Examples of such a reportable “event” include failure by the insurer to comply substantially
with a condition imposed upon the insurer by the BMA relating to a solvency margin or
liquidity or other ratio.

Independent Approved Auditor

Every registered insurer must appoint an independent auditor (the “approved auditor”)
who will annually audit and report on the statutory financial statements and the statutory
financial return of the insurer, both of which, in the case of Quanta Bermuda and Quanta U.S.
Re, will be required to be filed annually with the BMA. The approved auditor of Quanta
Bermuda and Quanta U.S. Re must be approved by the BMA and may be the same person or
firm which audits Quanta Bermuda’s and Quanta U.S. Re’'s financial statements and reports for
presentation to its shareholders. Quanta Bermuda’s and Quanta U.S. Re’s approved auditor is
currently PricewaterhouseCoopers.

Loss Reserve Specialist

As a registered Class 4 and Class 3 insurer, each of Quanta Bermuda and Quanta U.S. Re,
respectively will be required to submit an opinion of an approved loss reserve specialist with
its statutory financial return in respect of its loss and loss adjustment expense provisions. We
have appointed Ollie W. Sherman, as our quahfled casualty actuary approved by the BMA to
submit the required report. :

Statutory Financial Statements

An insurer must prepare annual statutory financial statements. The lnsurance Act
prescribes rules for the preparation and substance of such statutory financial statements
{which include, in statutory form, a balance sheet, an income statement, a statement of capital
and surplus and notes thereto). The insurer is required to give detailed information and
analyses regarding premiums, claims, reinsurance and investments. The statutory financial
statements are not prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and are distinct from the financial
statements prepared for presentation to the insurer’s shareholders under the Bermuda
Companies Act of 1981, as amended (the “Companies Act”}, which financial statements will be
prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Each of Quanta Bermuda and Quanta U.S. Re, as a
general business insurer, is required to submit the annual statutory financial statements as
part of the annual statutory financial return. The statutory financial statements and the
statutory financial return do not form part of the public records maintained by the BMA,

Annual Statutory Financial Return

Quanta Bermuda and Quanta U.S: Re are required to file with the BMA statutory financial
returns no later than four months after their financial year end (unless specifically extended).

54



The statutory financial return for an insurer includes, among other matters, a report of the
approved auditor on the statutory financial statements of such insurer, the solvency
certificates, the declaration of statutory ratios, the statutory financial statements, the opinion of
the loss reserve specialist and a schedule of reinsurance ceded. The solvency certificates must
be signed by the principal representative and at least two directors of the insurer who are
required to certify, among other matters, whether the minimum solvency margin has been met
and whether the insurer-complied with the conditions attached to its certificate of registration.
The approved auditor is required to state whether in his opinion it was reasonable for the
directors to so certify. Where an insurer’s accounts have been audited for any purpose other
than compliance with the Insurance Act, a statement to that effect must be filed Wlth the
statutory financial return. o

Minimum Solvency Margin and Restrictions on Dividends and Distributions

Under the Insurance Act, the value of the general business assets of a Class 4 insurer,
such as Quanta Bermuda must exceed the amount of its general business liabilities by an
amount greater than the prescribed minimum solvency margin. Quanta Bermuda is required,
with respect to its general business, to maintain a minimum solvency margln equal to the
greatest of:

(A) $100,000,000;

(B} 50% of net premiums written (being gross premiums written less any premiums
ceded by Quanta Bermuda, but Quanta Bermuda may not deduct more than 25% of
gross premiums when computing net premiums written); and

{C) 15% of loss and other insurance reserves.

Quanta Bermuda is prohibited from declaring or paying any dividends during any financial
year if it is in breach of its minimum solvency margin or minimum liquidity ratio or if the
declaration or payment of such dividends would cause it to fail to meet such margin or ratio.
In addition, if it has failed to-meet its minimum solvency margin or minimum liquidity ratio on
the last day of any financial year, Quanta Bermuda will be prohibited, without the approval of
the BMA, from declaring or paying any dividends during the next financial year. Quanta
Bermuda is also prohibited from declaring or paying in any financial year dividends of more
than 25% of its total statutory capital and surplus {as shown on its previous financial year's
statutory balance sheet) unless it files with the. BMA at least seven days before payment of
such dividends an affidavit stating that it will continue to meet the required margins.

Quanta Bermuda is prohibited, without the approval of the BMA, from reducing by 15% or
more its total statutory capital as set out in its previous year's financial statements, and any
application for such approval must include an affidavit stating that it will continue to meet the
required margins. In addition, at any time it fails to meet its solvency margin, Quanta Bermuda
will be required, within 30 days (45 days where total statutory capital and surplus falls to $75
million or less) after becoming aware of such failure or having reason to believe that such
failure has occurted, to file with the BMA a written report contalnlng certain information.

Under the Insurance Act, the value of the general business assets of a Class 3 insurer,
such as Quanta U.S. Re must exceed the amount of its general business liabilities by an
amount greater than the prescribed minimum solvency margin. Quanta U.S. Re is required,
with respect to its general busuness to mamtam a minimum solvency margm equal to the
greatest of

(A) $1 000, 000

(B) Net Premium Income (“NPI’’) Prescribed Amount

Up to $6,000,000 20% of NPI
Greater than $6,000,000 The aggregate of $1,200,000 and

15% of the amount by which NPI exceeds
$6,000,000 in that year.
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In general, net premium income equals gross premium income after deduction of any
premium ceded by the insurer for relnsurance or

(C) 15% of the aggregate of the insurer’s loss expense provrsnons and other general
business insurance reserves.

Quanta U.S. Re is prohibited from declarlng or -paying any dividends during any financial
year if it is in breach of its minimum solvency margin or minimum liquidity ratio or if the
declaration or payment of such dividends would cause it to fail to meet such margin or ratio.
In addition, if it has failed to meet its minimum solvency margin or minimum liquidity ratio on
the last day of any financial year, Quanta U.S. Re will be prohibited, without the approval of
the BMA, from declaring or paying any dividends during the next financial year. Quanta U.S.
Re is prohibited, without the approval of the BMA, from reducing by 15% or more its total
statutory capital as set out in its previous year’s financial statements, and any application for
such approval shall provide such information as the BMA may require. In addition, at any time
it fails to meet its solvency margin, Quanta U.S. Re will be required, within 30 days after
becoming aware of such failure or having reason to believe that such failure has occurred, to
file with the BMA a written report containing certain information. '

Additionally, under the Companies Act, neither Quanta Holdings nor Quanta Bermuda nor
Quanta U.S. Re may declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution from contributed
surplus; if there are reasonable grounds: for believing that it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or the'realizable value of its assets would be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

Minimum Liquidity Ratio

The Insurance Act provides a minimum liquidity ratio for geheral business insurers. An -
insurer engaged in general business is required to maintain the value of its relevant assets at
not less than 75% of the amount of its relevant liabilities. Relevant assets include cash and
time deposits, quoted investments, unquoted bonds and debentures, first liens on real estate,’
investment income due and accrued, accounts-and premiums receivable and reinsurance -
balances receivable. There are certain categories ‘of assets which, unless specifically permitted
by the BMA, do not automatically qualify as relevant assets, such-as unquoted equity
securities, investments in and advances to affiliates-and rea! estate and collateral loans. The
relevant liabilities are total general business insurance reserves and total other liabilities less
deferred income tax and sundry:liabilities (by.interpretation,.those.not specifically defined).

' Supervision' Investigation and Intervention

The BMA may appoint an inspector W|th extensive powers to mvestlgate the affairs of an
insurer if the BMA believes that an investigation is requwed in the interest of the insurer's
pohcyholders or. persons who may become policyholders. In order to.verify or supplement
information otherwise provided to the BMA, the BMA may direct an insurer to produce
documents or information relating to matters connected with the insurer’s busmess

If it appears to the BMA that there is a risk of the insurer becommg msolvent or that it is
in breach of the Insurance Act or any condmons imposed: upon its registration, the BMA may,
among other things, direct the i insurer (1) not to take on any new insurance business, (2) not to
vary any insurance contract if the effect would be to increase the insurer’s liabilities, (3) not to
make certain investments, {4) to realize certain investments, (5) to maintain in, or transfer to
the custody of, a specified bank, certain assets, {6) not to declare or pay any dividends or
other distributions or to restrict the making of such payments and/or (7) to limit its premium
income.

Disclosure of Information

In addition to powers under the Insurance Act to investigate the affairs of an insurer, the
BMA may require certain information from an insurer (or certain other persons) to be
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produced to it. Further, the BMA has been given powers to assist other regulatory authorities,
including foreign insurance regulatory authorities, with their investigations.involving insurance
and reinsurance companies in Bermuda but subject to restrictions. For example, the BMA
must be satisfied that the assistance being requested is in.connection with the discharge of
regulatory responsibilities of the foreign regulatory authority. Further, the BMA must consider
whether cooperation is in the public interest. The grounds for disclosure are limited and the
Insurance Act provides sanctions for breach of the statutory duty of confidentiality.

Certain other Considerations

Aithough Quanta Holdings is incorporated in Bermuda, it is classified as a non-resident of
Bermuda for exchange control purposes by the BMA. Pursuant to its non-resident status,
Quanta Holdings may engage in transactions in currencies other than Bermuda dollars and
there are no restrictions on its ability to transfer:funds (other than funds denominated in
Bermuda dollars) in and out of Bermuda or to pay d|V|dends to U S. resudents who are holders
of its common shares. .

Under Bermuda law, exempted compames are companles formed for the. purpose of

conductmg business outside Bermuda from a prmcupal place of business in Bermuda. As

“exempted” companles, Quanta Holdings, Quanta Bermuda and Quanta U.S. Re may not,
without the express authorization of the Bermuda legislature or: under a license or consent
granted by the Minister of Finance, participate in ‘certain ‘business transactions, including: (1)
the acquisition or holding of land in Bermuda {except'that held’ by way of lease or tenancy
agreement which is required for its business and held for a'term’ not exceedmg 50 years, or
which is used to provide accommodation or recreational facilities for its officers and
employees and held with the consent of the Bermuda Minister, of Finance, for a term not
exceeding 21 years); {2) the taking of mortgages on land i in'Bermuda.to secure an amount in
excess of $50,000; or (3) the carrying on of business of any kind for which it is not licensed in
Bermuda, except in certain limited circumstances such as domg business with another
exempted undertaking in furtherance of Quanta Holdings’ business; Quanta Bermuda's
business or Quanta U.S. Re's business (as'the case may be) carried on outside Bermuda.
Quanta Bermuda and Quanta U.S. Re both are licensed insurers in Bermuda, and it is expected
that they will be able to carry on activities from Bermuda that are related to and in support of
their insurance business in accordance with their licenses.

Share may be offered or sold in Bermuda only in compliance with the provisions of the
Investment Business Act of 2003 of Bermuda, which regulates the sale of securities in
Bermuda. In addition the BMA must approve all issuances and transfers of shares of a
Bermuda exempted company. The BMA has issued permission for the issue and free
transferability of the shares being offered by this annual report, as long as the shares are
issued, to and among pérsoh’s"Who aré non-residents of Bermuda for exchange control
purposes and such persons are "accredited.investors” within the meaning of Rule 501(a) of
Regulation D of the Securities Act. We also expect the BMA to grant permission to us for the
issue and transfer of up to 20% of our shares in issue from time to time to persons resident in
Bermuda for exchange control purposes without the approval of the BMA. In addition, we
intend to seek an exemption from the Part lll filing requirements under the Companies Act.
The BMA and the Registrar of Companies accept no responsibility for the financial soundness
of any proposal or for the correctness of any of the statements made or opinions expressed in
this annual report. : '

The Bermuda government actively encourages foreéign investment in “exempted” entities
like Quanta Holdings that are based in Bermuda, but which do not operate in competition with
tocal businesses. Quanta Holdings, Quanta Bermuda and Quanta U.S. Re are not currently
subject to taxes computed on profits.or income or.computed on any capital asset, gain or
appreciation, or any tax in the nature of estate duty .or inheritance tax or to any foreign
exchange controls in Bermuda; however, Quanta U.S. Re will be taxed as a U.S. corporation.
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Under Bermuda law, non-Bermudians (other than spouses of Bermudians) may not
engage in any gainful occupation in Bermuda without the specific permission of the
appropriate governmental authority. Such permission may be granted or extended upon
showing that, after proper public advertisement, no Bermudian, or spouse of a Bermudian or
individual holding a permanent resident certificate is available who meets the minimum
standards for the advertised position. None of our executive officers is a Bermudian,; and all
such officers will be working in Bermuda under work permits. The Bermuda government
recently announced a new policy that places a six-year term limit on individuals with work
permits, subject to certain exceptions for key employees. We expect to. employ primarily
non-Bermudians.

Irish Regulation

We have formed Quanta Ireland and we have submitted an application to the Irish
Financial Services Regulatory Authority, or IFSRA, to authorize Quanta Ireland to conduct
non-life insurance business. We expect that the authorization process will be completed during
the third quarter of 2004. We expect that the approval will be subject to a number of
conditions, including some or all of those hsted below.

Quanta lreland is mcorporated under the Iaws of lreland and has a reglstered office.in
Ireland. Once authorized, Quanta Ireland, as a non- dife i insurance company, will be subject to
the regulation and supervision of IFSRA. pursuant to IFSRA, the Irish Insurance Acts, 1909 to
2000 and the regulations relatmg to insurance business. and directions made under those
regulations (together, the "Insurance Acts. and Regulations”) and will be authorized to
undertake various classes of nan-life insurance business. . '

Quanta ireland will primarily be regulated under-thé Insurance Acts and Regulations. In
addition, Quanta Ireland will be subject to supervisory requirements |mposed by IFSRA. These
include the guidelines referred to in this section.

In addition to the obligations lmposed on Ouanta lreland by the Insurance Acts and
Regulations, IFSRA is likely to grant the authorization subject to certain conditions as is typical
for Irish authorized insurers. The following are the main conditions that may be imposed:

+ Quanta lreland must not exceed the projected premium levels set out in the business
plan submitted as part of its application for authorization without the consent of IFSRA.
Any consent will be subject to Quanta Ireland agreeing to any capitalization
requirements determined by IFSRA;

+ Quanta Ireland will not be permltted to reduce the level of its mmal capltal without the
consent of IFSRA '

. Quanta lreland may not make any dlwdend payments wnthout IFSRA’s pnor approval;

» no loans may be made by Quanta lreland wnthout prior notification to and approval of
IFSRA;

+ the management accounts {which are the revenue account, profit.and loss account,
balance sheet and statement of solvency) of Quanta Ireland must be submitted to IFSRA
on a quarterly basis for at least the initial three years of Quanta Ireland’s operation;

-+ Quanta Ireland must maintain a minimum solvency margin equal to 200% of the
solvency margin laid down by the Insurance Acts and Regulations {and a solvency ratio
(of free assets to net premium) of 50%) and

* Quanta lreland must adhere to !FSRA’s pohcy restricting the reinsurance busmess
written by a direct insurer. Under this policy, a direct insurer is prohibited from engaging
in reinsurance except to an extent that is not significant (to a maximum of 10% to 20%
of its overall business) and subject to certain conditions. In practice IFSRA expects a
direct writer to write reinsurance in very limited circumstances.
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Annual Returns

Quanta Ireland must file annual statutory insurance returns with IFSRA in the format
prescribed by the European Communities (Non-Life Insurance Accounts) Regulations, 1995.
Insurers are liable to pay annual supervision fees.

European Passport

Ireland is a member of the European Economic Area (the “EEA”). The EEA comprises each
of the countries of the European Union (EU) (being, as at May 2004, Austria, Belgium, Cyprus,
Czech Republic, Denmark, Estonia, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Hungary, lreland, Italy,
Latvia, Lithuania, Luxembourg, Malta, The Netherlands, Poland, Portugal, Slovakia, Slovenia,
Spain, Sweden and the United Kingdom) and lceland, Liechtenstein and Norway. The EEA was
established by a 1992 agreement the effect of which is to create an area of free movement of
goods and services (including insurance services) within EEA countries. A consequential effect
of the EEA agreement is that the rules on passporting of insurance services that apply
between EU member states (described below) are extended to lceland, Liechtenstein and
Norway.

Ireland has implemented the EU’s Thlrd Non-Life Insurance Directive (92/49/EEC) This
Directive introduced a single system for the authorization and financial supervision of non-life
insurers by their home member state. Under this system, Quanta Ireland {if it is authorized)
would be permitted to carry on the classes of insurance business for which it is authorized in
Ireland in any other EEA Member State by way of freedom to provide services provided that it
has notified IFSRA of its intention to do so and subject to complying with such conditions as
may be required by the jurisdiction in which the insurance activities are carried out for reasons
of the general good and such other conditions as are permitted under EU law and may be
required by the regulator of that jurisdiction with respect to the carrying on of insurance
business in that jurisdiction. After IFSRA authorizes Quanta Ireland, we expect that IFSRA will
notify the other Member States concerned and, once it has informed Quanta Ireland that it has
done so, Quanta Ireland will be entitled to conduct business by way of freedom to provide
services in these Member States. |

On the basis of the foregoing, if Quanta Ireland is authorized to carry on non-life insurance
business in lreland, Quanta Ireland also would be authorized to carry on non-life insurance
business in all other EEA member states under the freedom to provide services. We intend
that Quanta Ireland will not be licensed or admttted as an insurer m any jurisdiction other than
Ireland and the other EEA member states.

In addition to being entitled to conduct business under the freedom to provide services,
we intend that Quanta lreland, once authorized, will apply to IFSRA, which will notify the
United Kingdom Financial Services Authority, to establish a branch in the United Kingdom. We
intend that, once this application is approved, Quanta Ireland will write certain EU and EEA
sourced insurance business and source EU insurance and reinsurance business through this
branch. If Quanta Ireland’s application is approved and we establish a U.K. branch, IFSRA will
be responsible for supervision of that branch.

Qualifying Shareholdmg

The Insurance Acts and Regulations require that anyone acquiring or disposing of a
*qualifying holding” in an Irish authorized insurer or anyone who proposes to increase that
holding or to decrease it below specified levels must first notify IFSRA of their intention to do
so. Any Irish-authorized insurer that becomes aware of any acquisition or disposals of a
qualifying holding in that insurer or which result in a holding reaching or being reduced below
one of the “specified levels” is required to notify IFSRA.

iFSRA has three months from the date of submission of a notification within which to
oppose any such proposed acquisition if IFSRA is not satisfied as to the suitability of the
acquiror “in view of the necessity to ensure sound and prudent management of the i insurance
undertaking.”
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A "qualifying holding” means a direct or indirect holding in an insurer that represents 10%
or more of the capital or of the voting rights of the insurer or that makes it possible to exercise
a significant influence over the management of the insurer. The specified levels are 20%, 33%
and 50%, or such other level of ownership that resuits in the insurer becoming the acquiror’s
subsidiary.

Any person having a shareholding of 10% or more of our issued share capital would be
considered to have an indirect qualifying holding in Quanta lIreland (once authorized), whether
or not those shares confer 10% or more of our voting rights. Once Quanta Ireland is ,
authorized, IFSRA would need to pre-clear any change that results in the direct or indirect
acquisition of a qualifying holding in Quanta Ireland or a change that results in an increase in
a holding to one of the specified levels.

Quanta freland, once authorized, will be required, at such times as. may be specn‘led by
IFSRA, and at least once a year, to notify IFSRA of the names of shareholders possessing
qualifying holdings and the size of such holdings.

Transactions with Related Companies

Under the Insurance Acts and Regulations, prior to entering into any transaction of a
material nature with a related company or companies (including, in particular, the provision of
loans to and acceptance of loans from a related company or companies) Quanta Ireland, once
authorized, must submit to IFSRA a draft of any contract or agreement which is to be entered
into by Quanta Ireland in relation to the transaction. In addition to the above, there is a
requirement that Quanta Ireland, once authorized, notify IFSRA on-an annual basus of
- transactions with related companies in excess of 10,000 Euro.

Financial Requirements

Quanta Ireland, once authorized, will be required to maintain technical reserves calculated
in accordance with the Insurance Acts and Regulations. Assets representlng its technical
reserves are required to cover Quanta lreland’s underwriting liabilities.

Quanta Ireland, once authorized, will be obligated to prepare annual accounts {(comprising
balance sheet, profit and loss account and notes) in accordance with the provisions of the .
European Communities (Insurance Undertakings: Accounts) Regulations, 1996. Such accounts
must be filed with IFSRA and with the Registrar of Companles in Ireland.

Additionally, Ouanta Ireland, once authorized, will be requured to establish and maintain
an adequate solvency margin and a minimum guarantee.fund, both of which must be free
from all foreseeable liabilities and not available for other purposes such as use as reserves.
Currently, the solvency margin is calculated as the higher amount of a percentage of the
annual amount of premiums (premiums basis) or the average burden of claims for the last
three years {(or seven years if Quanta Ireland, once authorized, writes any credit, storm, hail or
frost insurance) {claims basis). If in any year, following its authorization, the solvency margin
calculated for Quanta lreland is lower than that for the previous year, the solvency margin will
be the previous year’s solvency margin multiplied by the ratio of technical reserves (net of
reinsurance) at the end of the last financial year to technical reserves (net of reinsurance) at
the beginning of the year. The ratio cannot be greater than one. As noted above with respect
to the conditions that we expect will attach to Quanta Ireland ‘s authorization, once obtained,
Quanta Ireland will be required to have a solvency margin significantly.in excess of the
prescribed minimum. IFSRA may revalue downward the assets eligible to constitute the
solvency margin in certain circumstances.

The minimum guarantee fund is equal to one third of the solvency margin requirement as
set out above, subject to a minimum. It is not an additional fund and is included in the
solvency margin. Where an insurer is part of an insurance group, the solvency margin must be
recalculated to eliminate any double counting of capital within the group. If Quanta Ireland
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writes any credit insurance it will be required to maintain a further reserve, known as an
equalization reserve, in respect of that business. Quanta Ireland will be obliged to have a
minimum paid up share capital of not less than 635,000 Euro which can form part of the
solvency margin.

Investment Restrictions

The Insurance Acts and Regulations limit the categories of assets that may be used to
represent technical reserves and the required solvency margin. They also impose asset
diversification, localization and currency matching rules and limit the use of derivatives in
relation to assets used to represent technical reserves.

The localization rules require that assets representing technical reserves in respect of EU
risks be localized in the EU. The documents of title must be held in the EU and the assets
themselves must comply with the tests for localization set out in the Insurance Acts and
Regulations. The currency matching rules require that a proportion of the assets representing
risks arising in any currency must be held in assets denominated or readily realizable in that
currency.

Restrictions on Non-insurance Activities

Under the Insurance Acts and Regulations, Quanta Ireland, once authorized, will be
required to limit its activities to the business of non-life insurance and operations arising
directly from that business.

Books and Records

Quanta Ireland, once authorized, will be required to maintain proper records of its
business at its registered office in Ireland.

IFSRA Guidelines

In addition to the Insurance Acts and Regulations, Quanta lreland, once authorized, will be
expected to comply with certain guidelines issued by IFSRA in July 2001. The following are
the most relevant guidelines:

» All insurers supervised by IFSRA are obliged to appoint a compliance officer, who must
carry out the duties and functions set forth in the guidelines. The compliance officer
may simultaneously hold other offices within the insurer.

« All directors of insurers supervised by IFSRA are required to certify to IFSRA on an
"~ annual basis that the insurer has complied with aII relevant legal and regulatory
requirements throughout the year.

» Every insurer must adopt an appropriate asset management policy having regard to its
liabilities profile.

» All insurers must formulate a clear and prudent policy on the use of derivatives for all
purposes and, furthermore, have controls in place to ensure that the policy is
implemented.

» All non-life insurers are required to provide an annual actuarial opinion as to the
adequacy of their reserves.

More recently, IFSRA issued proposed guidelines relating to the evaluation of the
reinsurance cover of primary insurers and the security of their reinsurers. If these guidelines
are adopted, Quanta Ireland, once authorized, will be required to comply with them. We
anticipate that further guidelines will be issued by IFSRA from time to time in the future.

Withdrawal of Authorization

An insurer supervised by IFSRA may have its authorization revoked by IFSRA, if IFSRA is
satisfied that the insurer:
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- has not used its authorization for the-last 12 months, has expressly renounced its
authorization or has ceased to carry on business covered by the authorization for more
than six months; '

* has been convicted of certain offences under the Insurance Acts and Regulations;

* no longer fulfils the conditions for authonzatlon required by the Insurance Acts and
Regulatlons :

« has been unable to take measures contained in a restoration plan or finance scheme
envisaged by the Insurance Acts and Regulations;

- fails seriously in its obligations under the Insurance Acts and Regulatlons

+ fails to comply with a requirement to produce certain documentatlon pursuant to an
investigation; or :

+ fails to-comply with a directioh from IFSRA as provided for in the Insurance Acts and
Regulations.

IFSRA may also suspend an authorization in certain circumstances. If IFSRA revokes the
authorization of an insurer, the right of that insurer to continue its activities in another EEA
member state, whether by way of freedom: of services or through a rnght of establishment of a
branch, will.immediately cease. :

Approval of Directors and Managers .

In addition to the restrictions set forth above, IFSRA must approve the appointment of any -

new directors or managers of Quanta Ireland, once authorized, including managers &f Quanta
U.K.

Supervision, Investigation and Intervention

The Insurance Acts and Regulatio'nsvconfer'dn IFSRA wide-rénging powers in relation to
the supervision and investigation of insurers, including the following:

+ IFSRA has power to require an insurer to submit returns and documents to it in such
form as may be prescribed by regulation and to require that they be attested by
directors and officers of the insurer. IFSRA may also require that they be attested by
independent professionals and that they be published. Additionally, IFSRA has a right to
disclose any such returns or documents to the supervisory authorities of other EU
Member: States;

+ IFSRA may require information.in relation to the insurer or any connected body;

« IFSRA has power to direct that an investigation of an insurer’s affairs be carried out in
order to be satisfied that the insurer is complying or has the ability to continue to
comply. with. its obligations under the Insurance ‘Acts and Regulations. If necessary
IFSRA may seek a High Court order prohibiting the free disposal of an insurer’s assets;

+ In certain circumstances, including where IFSRA believes that an insurer may be unable
to meet its liabilities or provide the required solvency margin, IFSRA may direct the
insurer to take measures including: closing to new business, limiting its premium
income, restricting its investments in certain assets, realizing assets, maintaining assets
in Ireland. and any further measures specified in the dll’ECtIOﬂ

« If IFSRA considers that policyholders’ rights are threatened, it can require the insurer
concerned to produce a financial recovery plan, covering the next three years and to
maintain a higher solvency margin; IFSRA is prohibited from issuing a certificate that
the insurer meets the required solvency margin while it believes that policyholders’
rights are threatened;
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+ If the solvency margin of the insurer falls below the minimum guarantee fund, IFSRA
must require the insurer to submit a short-term finance scheme; and

- IFSRA may confer wide ranging powers on “authorized officers” in relation to insurers
for the purpose of the Insurance Acts and Regulations. These powers include permitting
an authorized officer to search a premises and remove documents. An authorized officer
may also be empowered to compel persons to provide information and documentation
and to prepare a report on specified aspects of the business or activities of an insurer
and other prescribed persons.

Auditors to an insurer have a statutory duty to report to IFSRA in certain circumstances.

Certain breaches of the Insurance Acts and Regulations may constitute criminal offences
and render the persons found guilty of such offences liable to fines and/or imprisonment.

Certain other Irish Law Considerations

As a company that is incorporated, and that we expect will carry on business in lreland,
Quanta Ireland, is subject to the laws and regulations of Ireland. The Irish Companies Acts,
1963 to 2003 (the “Companies Acts”) and the common law include the following restrictions
that will apply to Quanta lreland: .

« lrish law requires the directors of a company to act in good faith for the benefit of the
company and for éxample, prohibits the-gratuitous use of corporate assets for the
benefit of directors and persons connected with them;

» lrish company law applies capital maintenance rules. In particular, Quanta lreland will be
restricted to declaring dividends only out of “profits available for distribution.” Profits
available for distribution are a company’s accumulated realized profits less its
accumulated realized losses. Such profits may not include profits previously utilized
either by distribution or capitalization and such losses do not include amounts
previously written-off in a reduction or reorganization of capital;

» Irish law restricts a company from entering into certain types of transactions with its
directors and officers by either completely prohibiting such transactions or permitting
them only subject to conditions;

+ lIrish Iaw restricts the giving of fmancnal assistance by a company in connection with the
purchase of its own shares or those of its holding company,

s All Irish-companies are obliged to file prescribed returns (including, in most cases,

" audited accounts) in the Companies Registration Office annually and on the happening
of certain events such as the creation of new shares, a change in directors or the
passing of certain shareholder resolutlons

* A private limited company cannot offer shares or debentures to the pubhc Quanta
Ireland is a private limited company;

- A statutory body known as the Office of the Director of Corporate Enforcement (the
“ODCE") has power to carry out investigations into the affairs of Irish companies in
circumstances prescribed in the Companies Acts. The. powers of the ODCE include the
prosecution (both civil and criminal) of persons for suspected breaches of the
Companies Acts; and

- Certain civil and criminal sanctions exist for breaches of the Companies Acts.
Quanta Ireland is also required to comply with laws such as Irish Data Protection law.
UK. Regulatlon ‘

Under U.K. Iaw a company may only engage in insurance and/or reinsurance business if it
is authorized to do so. We expect that Quanta Ireland, once authorized, will not be authorized
to carry on insurance and/or reinsurance business in the United Kingdom but will be permitted
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to do so through a U.K. branch office if it complies with the conditions briefly described under
the heading “— lreland — Quanta Ireland — European Passport.” We intend that this branch
will be a source of business for Quanta Ireland.

U.S. Regulation

We are developing our U.S. business through Quanta Indemnity, a U.S. licensed insurance
company that is licensed to write insurance and reinsurance in approximately 41 states, and
by writing insurance on an excess and surplus lines basis in several states in the United States
through Quanta Specialty Lines. All of the issued and outstanding stock of Quanta Specialty
Lines and Quanta Indemnity is owned by Quanta U.S. Holdings.

Holding Company Acts

State insurance holding company system statutes and related regulations provide a
regulatory apparatus that is designed to protect the financial condition of domestic insurers
operating within a holding company system. All insurance holding company statutes require
disclosure and, in some instances, prior approval of material transactions between the
domestic insurer and an affiliate. These transactions typically include sales, purchases,
exchanges, loans and extensions. of credit, reinsurance agreements, service agreements,
guarantees and investments between an insurance company and its affiliates, involving in the
aggregate specified percentages of an insurance company’s admitted assets or policyholders

surplus, or dividends that exceed specified percentages of an insurance company’s surplus or
income. "

The state insurance holding company system statutes may discourage potential
acquisition proposals, such as other U.S. insurers whom we may wish to acquire, and may
delay, deter or prevent a change of controi of Quanta Holdings, Quanta U.S. Holdings, Quanta
Indemnity or Quanta Specialty Lines including through transactions, and in particular
unsolicited transactions, that we or our shareholders might consider to be desirable.

~ Before a person can acquire control of a domestic insurer or reinsurer, prior written
approval must be obtained from the insurance commissioner of the state where the domestic
insurer is domiciled. Prior to granting approval of an application to acquire control of a
domestic insurer, the state instrance commissioner where the insurer is domiciled will
consider such factors as the financial strength of the applicant, the integrity and management
of the applicant’s board of directors and executive officers, the acquiror’s plans for the future
operations of the domestic insurer and any anti-competitive results that may .arise from the
closing of the acquisition of control. Generally, state statutes provide that “control” over a
domestic insurer is presumed to exist if any person, directly or indirectly, owns, controls,
holds with the power to vote, or holds proxies representing, ten percent or more of the voting
securities of the domestic insurer. Because 'a person acquiring ten percent or more of the
common shares of Quanta Holdings’ shares would indirectly acquire the same percentage of
Quanta Specialty Lines’ and Quanta Indemnity’'s common stock, the U.S. insurance change of
control laws will likely apply to:such a transaction.

Typically, the holding company statutes will also require each of our U.S. subsidiaries
periodically to file information with state insurance regulatory authorities, including
information concerning capital structure, ownership, financial condition and general business
operations,

Regulation of Dividends and other Payments from Insurance Subsidiaries

The ability of a U.S. insurer to pay dividends or make other distributions is subject to
insurance regulatory limitations of the insurance company’s state of domicile. Generally, these
laws require prior regulatory approval before an insurer may pay a dividend or make a
distribution above a specified level. In -many U.S. jurisdictions, including the State of Indiana
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where Quanta Specialty Lines is domiciled and the State of Colorado where Quanta Indemnity
is domiciled, this level currently is set at the greater of {1) 10%. of the insurer’s statutory
surplus as of the end of the last preceding calendar year or {2) levels of the insurer’s net
income for the prior calendar year. In addition, the laws of many U.S. jurisdictions require an
insurer to report for informational purposes to the insurance commissioner of its state of
domicile all declarations and proposed payments of dividends and other distributions to
securityholders. ‘

The dividend limitations imposed by the state laws are based on statutory financial
results, determined by using statutory accounting practices which differ in certain respects
from accounting principles used in financial statements prepared in conformity with U.S.
GAARP. The significant differences relate to treatment of deferred acquisition costs, deferred
income taxes, required investment reserves, reserve calculation assumptions and surplus
notes. In connection with the acquisition of a U.S. insurer, insurance regulators in the United
States often impose, as a condition to the approval of the acquisition, additional restrictions
on the ability of the U.S. insurer to pay dividends or make other distributions. These
restrictions generally prohibit the U.S. insurer from paying dividends or making other
distributions for a number of years without prior enhanced regulatory approval.

Insurance Regulatory Information System Ratios

The Insurance Regulatory Information System {“IRIS") of the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners {(“NAIC) was developed by a committee of state insurance
regulators and is intended primarily to assist state insurance departments in executing their
statutory mandates to oversee the financial condition of insurance:companies operating in
their respective states. IRIS identifies 11 industry ratios and specifies “usual values' for each
ratio. Departure from the usual values of the ratios can lead to-inquiries from individual state
insurance commissioners regarding different aspects of an insurer’s business. Insurers that
report four or more unusual values are generally targeted for regulatory‘r‘eview.

Accreditation

o The NAIC has instituted its Financial Regulatory Accreditation Standards Program

| {“FRASP") in response to federal initiatives to regulate the business of insurance. FRASP
provides a set of standards designed to establish effective state regulation of the financial
condition of insurance companies. Under FRASP, a state must adopt certain laws and
regulations, institute required regulatory practices and procedures, and have adequate
personnel to enforce these laws and regulations in order to become an “accredited” state.
Accredited states are not able to accept certam financial examination reports of insurers
prepared solely by the regulatory agency in an unaccredlted state.

Risk-Based Capital Requireménts

In order to enhance the regulation of insurer solvency, the NAIC adopted _inl December
1993 a formula and model law to implement risk-based capital requirements for property and
casualty insurance companies. These risk-based capita! requirements are designed to assess
capital adequacy and to raise the level of protection that statutory surplus provides for
policyholder obligations. The risk-based capital model for property and casualty insurance
companies measures three major areas of risk facing property and casualty insurers:

- underwriting, which encompasses the risk of adverse loss developments and madequate
pricing;

+ declines in asset values arising from credit risk; and

+ declines in asset values arising from investment risks.
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Insurers-having less statutory surplus than required by the risk-based capital calculation
will be subject.to varying degrees of regulatory action, depending on the level of capital
inadequacy. Equity’investments in common stock typically are valued at 85%: of their market
value under the risk-based capital guidelines.

Under the approved formula, an insurer’s statutory surplus is compared to its risk- based
capital requirement. If this ratio is above a minimum threshold, no company or regulatory
action is necessary. Below this threshold are four distinct action levels at which a-regulator can
intervene with increasing-degrees-of authority over an insurer as the ratio of surplus to
risk-based capital requirement decreases. The four action levels include:

* insurer is requnred to submlt a plan for correctlve action,
* insurer is subject to exammatron analysrs and specrflc correctnve actlon
K regulators may place lnsurer under regulatory control and

. regulators are reqmred to place insurer under regulatory control

Guaranty Funds and Assrgned Rlsk PIans

Most states requrre all admitted insurance companies to partucrpate in their respective
guaranty funds that cover various claims against insolvent insurers. Solvent insurers licensed
in these states are required to cover the losses paid on behalf.of insolvent insurers by the
guaranty funds and are- generally subject to annual assessments.in the state by its guaranty
fund to cover these losses. Some states also require llcensed insurance companies to
participate in. assigned. risk plans which provide coverage for automobile insurance and other
lines for insureds whrch for various reasons, cannot otherwise obtain insurance in the open '
market. This partrcrpatlon may take the form of reinsuring a portion of a pool of policies or the
direct issuance of policies.to-insureds. The calculation of an insurer’s. pamcupatlon in these
plans is usually based.on the amount of premium for that type of coverage that was written by
the insurer on a voluntary basis in a prior year. Participation in assigned risk pools tends to
produce losses which result in assessments to insurers writing the same lines on a voluntary
basis.

Credit for Remsurance

anensed remsurers in the United States are subject to insurance regulatlon and
supervision that is similar to the regulatlon of llcensed primary insurers. ‘However, the terms
and condmons of relnsurance agreements generally are not subject to regulatlon by any
governmental authorlty with respect to rates or pollcy terms This contrasts with primary
insurance policies and agreements, ‘the, rates and terms of. WhICh generally are regulated by
state insurance regulators. As a practical matter however, the rates charged by primary
insurers do have an effect on the rates that can be charged by remsurers

A prlmary insurer ordmarlly will enter into a reinsurance agreement only if it can obtam
credit for the reinsurance ceded on its statutory fmancral statements In general, credlt for ,
remsurance is allowed in the followmg crrcumstances

- if the reinsurer is licensed in the state in which the primary insurer is- domucned or, in
some instances, in certain:states in which the primary insurer is licensed;

« if the reinsurer is an “accredited” or otherwise approved reinsurer in the state in which
the primary insurer is domiciled or, in some instances, in certain states in which the
primary insurer is licensed; '

+ in some instances, if the reinsurer (a) is domiiciled in'a state that is deemed to have
substantially similar credit for reinsurance standards as the state in whlch the pnmary
insurer is domrcnled and (b) meets financial requirements; or
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+ if none of the above apply, to the extent that the reinsurance obligations of the reinsurer
are secured appropriately, typically through the posting of a letter of credit for the
benefit of the primary insurer or the deposit of assets into a trust fund established for
the benefit of the primary insurer.

As a result of the requirements relating to the provision of credit for reinsurance, Quanta
Bermuda and Quanta U.S. Re, are, and Quanta Ireland and Quanta U.K., once authorized, will
be, indirectly subject to some regulatory requirements imposed by jurisdictions in which
ceding companies are licensed. Because we anticipate that neither Quanta Bermuda, Quanta
U.S. Re, Quanta Ireland nor Quanta U.K. will be licensed, accredited or otherwise approved by
or domiciled in any state in the United States, primary insurers may only be willing to cede
business to Quanta Bermuda, Quanta U.S. Re, Quanta Ireland or Quanta U.K., if we provide
adequate security to allow the primary insurer to take credit on its balance sheet for the
reinsurance it purchases. We will oniy be able to provide adequate security, typically through
the posting of a letter of credit or deposit of assets into a trust fund for the benefit of the
primary insurer, if we have in place a letter of credit facility or are otherwise able to provide
necessary security. While we.intend for us or one or more of-our operating subsidiaries to
enter into a secured facility with a syndicate of lenders that provides for, among other things,
the issuance of letters of credit, we do not yet have a letter of credit facility or any
commitment from a lender to provide that facility. We cannot assure you that we will be able
to obtain a credit facility on terms acceptable to. us. If we fail to obtain an adequate letter of
credit facility,-and are unable to otherwise provide the necessary security, insurance
companies may be less willing to purchase our reinsurance products than if we had a letter of
credit facility. If this is the case, there may be a material adverse effect on our results of
operations.

Statutory Accountmg Principles

Statutory accounting prmmples or SAP, is a baS|s of accounting developed to assist
insurance regulators in monitoring and regulating the solvency of insurance.companies. It is
primarily concerned with measuring an insurer’s surplus to policyholders. Accordingly,
statutory accounting focuses on valuing assets and liabilities of insurers at financial reporting
dates in accordance with appropriate insurance law and regulatory provisions applicable in
each insurer’'s domiciliary state. -

U.S. GAAP is concerned with a company’s solvency, but it is also concerned with other
financial measurements, such as income and cash flows. Accordingly, U.S. GAAP gives more
consideration to appropriate matching of revenue and expenses and. accounting for -
management’s stewardship of assets than does SAP. As a direct result, different assets and
liabilities and different amounts of assets and liabilities will be reflected in fmanmal statements
prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP as opposed to SAP.

Statutory accounting practices established by the NAIC and adopted, in part by State
Insurance Departments, will determine, among other things, the amount of statutory surplus
and statutory net income of our U.S. insurance subsidiaries, which will affect, in part, the
amount of funds they have available to pay dividends to us. :

Operations of Quanta BermUda Quanta U. S Re, Quanta Ireland and Quanta U K.

Quanta Bermuda and Quanta U.S. Re are not, and Quanta Ireland and Quanta U. K., once:
authorized, will not be, admitted to do business in the United States. The insurance laws of
each state of the United States and of many other countries regulate or prohibit the sale of
insurance-and reinsurance within their jurisdictions by non-domestic insurers and reinsurers
that are not admitted to do business within such jurisdictions. We do not intend to allow
Quanta Bermuda, Quanta U.S. Re, Quanta Ireland and Quanta U.K. to maintain an office or
solicit, advertise, settle claims or conduct other insurance activities in any jurisdiction without
a license, unless they can do so subject to an exemption from the licensing requirement or as
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an approved or accredited surplus lines insurer. We intend to operate Quanta ireland, once
authorized, Quanta U.K., once established, and Quanta Bermuda and Quanta U.S. Re in
compliance with the U.S. state and federal laws; however, it is possible that a U.S. regulatory
agency may raise inquiries or challenges to these subsidiaries’ insurance and reinsurance
activities in the future.

Federal Regulation

Although state regulation is the dominant form of regulation for insurance and
reinsurance business, the federal government has shown increasing concern over the
adequacy of the state regulation. It is not possible to predict the future impact of any potential
federal regulations or other possible laws or regulations on our U.S. subsidiaries’ capital and
operations, and the enactment of such laws or the adoption of such regulations could
materially adversely affect our business. ‘

The Gramm Leach Bailey Act ("GLBA") which made fundamental changes in the
regulation of the financial services industry in the United States was enacted on November 12,
1999. The GLBA permits the transformation of the already converging banking, insurance and
securities industries by permitting mergers that combine commercial banks, insurers and
securities firms under one holding company, a “financial holding company.” Bank holding
companies and other entities that qualify and elect to be treated as financial holding
companies may engage in activities, and acquire companies engaged in activities, that are
“financial” in nature or “incidental” or “complementary” to such financial activities. Such
financial activities include acting as principal, agent or broker in the underwriting and sale of
life, property, casualty and other forms of insurance and annuities.

Until the passage of the GLBA, the Glass-Steagall Act of 1933 had iimited the ability of
banks to engage in securities-related businesses, and the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956,
as amended had restricted banks from being affiliated with insurers. With the passage of the
GLBA, among other things, bank holding companies may acquire insurers, and insurance
holding companies may acquire banks. The ability of banks to affiliate with insurers may affect
our U.S. subsidiaries’ product lines by substantially increasing the number, size and financial
strength of potential competitors.

in response to the tightening of supply in some insurance markets resulting from, among
other things, the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001, the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of
2002, or TRIA, was enacted to ensure the availability of insurance coverage for terrorist acts in
the United States. TRIA generally requires U.S. insurers, including Quanta Indemnity and’
Quanta Specialty Lines, to make coverage for certified acts of terrorism available to their
commercial property and casualty policyholders, at the same limits and terms as are available
for other coverages. Exclusions or sub-limited coverage for certified acts of terrorism may be
established but solely at the discretion of the insured. TRIA also establishes a $100 billion
federal assistance program through the end of 2005 to help the commercial property and
casualty insurance industry cover claims related to certified acts of terrorism.

A certified act of terrorism is defined by TRIA as an act of terrorism, resulting in aggregate
losses greater than $5 million, that is violent or dangerous to human life, property or
infrastructure, resulting in damage within the United States or its territories and possessions,
or outside the United States in the case of a U.S. flagged vessel, air carrier or mission,
committed by an individual or individuals acting on behalf of any foreign person or foreign
interest in an effort to coerce the U.S. civilian population or influence the policy of or affect the
U.S. government’s conduct by coercion. We are currently unable to predict the extent to which
TRIA may affect the demand for the products of our insurance company affiliates, or the risks
that may be available for them to consider underwriting. The extent to which coverage for acts
of terrorism will be offered by the insurance and reinsurance markets in the future is
uncertain.
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Legislative and Regulatory Proposals

From time to time, various regulatory and legislative changes have been proposed in the
insurance and reinsurance industry. These proposals have included the possible introduction
of federal regulation in addition to, or in lieu of, the current system of state regulation of
insurers. Federa! legislation is also being discussed that would require all states to adopt
uniform standards relating to the regulation of products, licensing, rates and market conduct.
We are unable to predict whether any of these or other proposed laws and regulations will be
adopted, the form in which any such laws and regulations would be adopted, or the effect, if
any, these developments would have on our operations and financial condition.
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MANAGEMENT

The followmg table sets forth certain information regarding our executive officers and
directors.

Name ) . - Age Title :
Tobey J.Russ ............co0it 46  Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
. . ‘ Executive Officer _ ‘
Michael J. Murphy...... P .. 53 Deputy Chairman of the Board and Chief -
‘ S _Operating Officer
Nigel W. Morris .................. 45 Director '
W. Russell Ramsey ............. 44  Director
James J. Ritchie ................. - 49 . Director
Wallace L. Timmeny ...... e 66 Director
John S. Brittain, Jr. ............... 45  Chief Financial Officer

GaryG.-Wang ................... 40  Chief Risk Officer

Tobey J. Russ — Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Russ was
appointed as our Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer in 2003, Mr.
Russ has 23 years of experience in the property and casualty insurance industry. From 2000 to
June 27, 2003, Mr. Russ served as president and chief executive officer and a director of CFS.
Prior to joining CFS, he served from 1995 to 2000 in various capacities at AlG, including senior
vice president — international risk management responsible for international commercial
property and casualty and specialty lines underwriting and as president, AlG risk finance, a
structured insurance division of AlG Domestic Insurance Group. Before joining AlG, Mr. Russ
spent 14 years in various line and management positions at Arkwright Mutual Insurance
Company including four years as President, Arkwright Risk Solutions

Michael J. Murphy — Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Murphy was
appointed as our Deputy Chairman of the Board and Chief Operating Officer in 2003. From
January 2001 to June 27, 2003, Mr. Murphy sérved as executive vice president of CFS where
he was responsible for Chubb’s environmental solutions business. Mr. Murphy was also the
chairman of the board of directors and co-founder of ESC. He has over 25 years of experience
in risk analysis and has played an active role in the development of environmental policy and
technical risk assessment procedures for the environmental insurance industry. Prior to
co-founding ESC, he ‘was the chief operating officer of Risk Science International, a corporate
division of Frank B. Hall & Co. Mr. Murphy was formerly appointed to the World Health
Organization’s Expert Advisory Consultation of Environmental Risk Management and testified
on waste policy issues before the House of Lords Conference to assist in establishing U.K.
waste policy.

Nigel W. Morris — Director. Mr. Morris is the President of Ffestiniog Company LLC. Until
April 2004, he was the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Capital One Financial
Corporation (“Capital One”) which he co-founded in 1995. From 1995 until May 2003, Mr.
Morris was the President and Chief Operating Officer of Capital One. Mr. Morris has been
named, among other honors, “Entrepreneur of the Year” in July 1999 by the London School of
Business and has served the State of Virginia at the request o6f Virginia Governor Mark Warner
as Vice Chairman of Virginia’s Commission on Efficiency and Effectiveness in 2002, as a
member of the Governor's-Counsel-on Virginia’s Future in 2003. He is c¢urrently a member of
the governing body of the London School of Business and serves on the board of directors of
The Economist. '

W. Russell Ramsey — Director. In May 2001, Mr. Ramsey founded the BEM Capital
Management group of companies. He currently serves as chairman and chief executive officer
of BEM Capital Management LLC, the parent limited liability company of the group. Mr.
Ramsey is a co-founder of Friedman, Billings, Ramsey Group, Inc., a national investment bank
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and the parent of the initial purchaser in the Private Offering. Mr. Ramsey has been a director
of Friedman, Billings, Ramsey Group, Inc. since its inception in 1988. Further, Mr. Ramsey
served as president and secretary of Friedman, Billings, Ramsey Group, Inc. from 1989 to 1999
and served as its president and co-chief executive offucer from 1899 to December 2001. Mr.
Ramsey currently also serves on the board of directors of George Washington University and
on the advisory council of National Geographic Society.

James J. Ritchie — Director. Mr. Ritchie has over 26 years of experience in the insurance
and financial services industries, particularly in the U.S. and international insurance and
reinsurance industries. From February 2001 until May 2003, he served as managing director
and chief financial officer of White Mountains Insurance Group, Ltd.’s OneBeacon Insurance
Company and served as a group chief financial officer for White Mountains Insurance Group,
Ltd. From December 2000 until February 2001, Mr. Ritchie was a consultant for White
Mountains Insurance Group, Ltd. From 1986 until 2000, Mr. Ritchie held various positions with -
CIGNA Corporation including chief financial officer of the company’s international division and
head of its internal audit division. Prior to Mr. Ritchie’s insurance career, from 1977 until 1986,
he served in the audit group at Price Waterhouse, including as a senior audit manager."Mr.
Ritchie is also a member of the board of directors and chairman of the audit committee of -
Ceres Group, Inc., a public company and is a certlfled public accountant and participates in
various industry groups, including Financial Executives Internatlonal the Natlonal ASSOCIatlon
of Corporate Directors, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the lnstltute
of Internat Auditors.

Wallace L. Timmeny — Director. Mr. Timmeny is a partner.in the Washington, D.C. office
of Dechert LLP, a law firm, which he joined in 1996. Mr. Timmeny is a past chairman of the
Executive Council of the Securities Law Committee of the Federal Bar Association. Mr.
Timmeny has served as an adjunct professor at American University School of Law, George
Mason University School of Law and Georgetown University School of Law. From 1965 to
1979, Mr. Timmeny was an attorney with the SEC and- ultimately the deputy director of the
Division of Enforcement of the SEC. Mr. Timmeny also serves as a director of Friedman,
Billings, Ramsey Group, Inc., a position he has-held since December-29, 1997.

John 8. Brittain, Jr. — Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Brittain was appointed our Chief
Financial Officer on January 12, 2004. From March 2002 until September 2003, Mr. Brittain
served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of American Management
Systems, inc. Prior to AMS, he was with Nextel Communications, Inc. where he acted as Chief
Financial Officer dunng 2000 and 2001 and served as Vice President and Treasurer from 1999
to 2002. From 1994 through 1998, he served as Senior Vice President and Treasurer of
Sotheby's Holdings, Inc. Mr. Brittain commenced his career |n banking as a corporate officer of
JPMorgan Chase.

Gary G. Wang — Chief Risk Officer. Mr. Wang was appointed our Chief Risk Officer in
September 2003. Prior to joining us, Mr. Wang served as senior vice president.and director of
research at CFS since December 2002. He has nine years of experience in the financial services
industry, including service as head of Asia Risk Finance of Barclays Capital Asia from February
1998 to May 2000, senior derivatives trader of Barclays Capital New York from May 1996 to
February 1998 and senior quantitative analyst at Wells Fargo Bank from January 1994 to May
1996. He is a co-founder of China Network International, a telecom services company in China.
He also serves as a director of China Broadband Net Ltd., Capital Financial Co. Ltd. and Red
Lion Capital Management Ltd., all of which are privately held companies.
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Executive Compensation and Incentive Program

The following table sets forth certam compensaﬂon |nformat|on for our Chief Executive;
Officer and four additional highly compensated executive offlcers (the ”Named Executive
Officers”) for the year ended December 31, 2003:

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Long-Term -

- _Compensation_
~Annual Compensation Awards
. ‘ . » ' Securities
. ‘Fiscal Salary Bonus " Underlying"
Name and Principal Position Lo - Year(1) . {8) ($) OptlonsISARs(#)
Tobey J. RUSS ..o voeeeeiiiiiieiinen e 2003 250,000 250,000 649, 830
Chairman of the Board, President and L '

Chief Executive Officer o e . . o
Michael J. Murphy ......... ... ... - 2003 200,000 200,000 . 565,070
Deputy Chairman of the Board and o s o ’ -

Chief Operating Officer S
KevinJ.McHugh........................ 2003 212,244 — 25,000(3)
Interim President of U.S. Insurance(2): o ' ‘
Gary G.Wang............. Cevveiee.... 2003 116,667  320,833(4) 20,000 -

Chief Risk Officer

(1) No compensation was paid to the Named Executnve Offrcers pnor to the’ ciosmg of the anate Offering on
September 3, 2003.

(2) Kevin J. McHugh was appointed Interim Presndent of U.S. Insurance on September 12, 2003 and $erved until his
resignation on March 31, 2004. We are presently conducting a search for a permanent President of U.S. Insurance
to replace Mr. McHugh

(3) These options were not vested at the time of Mr. McHugh s resngnatlon on March 31, 2004 and, as a result have
been forfeited.

(4) Includes a sngn on bonus of $58,333 pa|d to Mr Wang at ‘the commencement of h|s employment in September
- 2003. -
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Option Grants

The following table sets forth certain information concerning individual grants of stock
options -made durmg the last completed fiscal year to each of the Named Executlve Officers:

OPTION/SAR GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR

Potential Realizable
Value at Assumed

* Individual Grants Annual Rates of

) ‘ Percent of . ) : Stoc!( P_rice
Number of Total ) o Appreciation for
Securities Options/SARs c Option Term
Underlying Granted to  Exercise of
Option/SARs Employees.in : Base Price’ Expiration -~ = 5% 10%
Name Granted (#) Fiscal Year {$/sh) . Date i) ($)
Tobey J. Russ....... SR 649,830 24.1% 10.00 09/03/2013 4,086,746 10,356,617

Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief
Executive Officer

Michael J. Murphy......... 565070  21.0%  10.00 09/03/2013 3,553,695 9,005,761
Deputy Chairman of the R ‘ , R
Board and Chief
Operating Officer

Kevin J. McHugh.......... 25,000(2) . .0.01%, . . 10.00 09/03/2013 157,224 398,436
Interim President of U.S. : :
Insurance(1) — _ _

Gary G.Wang ............ 20,000 0.01% - 10.00 09/03/2013 125,779 318,748

Chief Risk Officer

(1) Kevin J. McHugh was appointed Interim President of U.S. Insurancé on September 12, 2003 and served until his
resignation on March 31, 2004.

(2} These options were not vested at the time of Mr. McHugh s resignation on March 31, 2004 and, as a result, have
been forfeited.

Board of Directors

Pursuant to our bye-laws, the.number of dlrectors on our board is currently frxed at seven.
Six directors are presently. servnng on our board three of whom are independent as that term
is defined by The Nasdaq Natronal Market, ‘Inc. We mtend to apponnt the remaining director
who will be mdependent to fill the vacancy All of our drrectors were appomted in 2003 and
serve for a term of one year and stand for electlon at our annual shareholders meeting.

Board Committees

Our board of d|rectors has estabhshed three commlttees entlrely comprised of
independent directors. .

-

Audit Committee

Our board of directors has established an audit committee. The audit committee assists
our board of directors and our management to ensure that we consistently act with integrity
and accuracy in financial reporting. The audit committee’s responsibilities include:

» selecting and reviewing our independent auditors and their services;.

» reviewing and discussing with appropriate - members-of our management our audited
financial statements, related accounting and auditing principles, practices and
disclosures;
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» reviewing. and discussing our quarterly financial statements prlor to the flhng of those
quarterly financial statements; : -

» establishing procedures for-the receipt of, and response to, any complaints received by
us regarding -accounting, internal accounting controls or audmng matters, including
anonymous submissions by employees; :

« reviewing the accounting principles and auditing practices and procedures to be used
for our financial statements and reviewing the results-of those audits; and

» monitoring the adequacy of our operating and internal controls as reported by
management and the mdependent or-internal audltors

James J. Ritchie is the chairman of our audlt commlttee and the other members of our
audit committee are Nigel W. Morris and Wallace™L. Tmmeny '

Compensatlon Committee

Our board of directors has estabhshed a compensatlon commlttee The compensatlon
committee’s responsrbllmes mclude

. establrshmg and revuewmg the overall corporate policies, goals and ob;ectlves for the
' compensation of our ¢chief executive officer and other executive officers,’ |ncIud|ng a
review of the relationship of executive compensation to corporate performance and
relative shareholder return, compensation at comparable companies, past years
compensation to our executives; and other relevant factors;

« evaluating the performance of our chief executive officer and other executive officers in
light of the corporate goals and objectives and, based on that evaluation, determining
the compensation of the chief executive officer and .other executives officers, including
individual elements of salary, bonus, supplemental retirement, incentive and equity
compensation, in hght of the corporate goals and the performance evaluatlon and

- making recommendations to our board of directors regarding the salaries, benefits and
other compensation of our non-employee directors, commlttee chairpersons, and
committee members.

" Nigel W. Morris is the chairman of our compensatlon committee, and the other members
are James J. Ritchie and Wallace L. Timmeny.

Governance and Nommatmg Commrttee

Our board of dlrectors has’ establlshed a governance and nommatmg committee. The
governance and nomrnatmg committee is respons:ble for assisting the board of directors by
identifying the individuals qualnfred to serve on our board of dlrectors and to recommend to
the board the nominees for election by shareholders at each annual meetmg of shareholders
to recommend to the board, director nominees for each committée of the board, to develop,
recommend to the board, and assess corporate governance policies for the company, and to
lead the board in its annual review of the board'’s performance The governance and
nominating committee’s responsibilities include: , :

- assessing, developing and communicating wnth the board concernlng the approprlate '
criteria for nominating and appointing directors;

- actively seeking mdmduals quallfled to become board members for recommendatlon to -
the board; : . . :

+ if and when requested by the board |dent|fy|ng and recommendlng to the board the
appomtees to be selected by the board for service on the-committees of the’ board

» having sole authority to retain and terminate-any search firm-used to |dent|fy director
candidates and having soIe authonty to approve the search firm's fees and other.
retention terms; :
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+ developing, assessing and recommending to the board of corporate governance
policies, including our code of business conduct,

- reviewing, on behalf of the board, of the charter of each committee of the board and
making recommendations to the relevant committees with respect to these charters and
to the board in connection with the board's action relating to these charters;

* receiving comments from all directors and report its assessment of the board’s
performance:annually to the board to be discussed with the full. board following the end
of each fiscal year;

* reviewing and assessing the management succession plan for the chief executrve officer
position and other members of executive management and the annual rev1ew of its
assessment of those plans W|th the board

 reviewing written communications from shareholders concerning our annual general
meeting and governance process and making recommendatlons to the board with .-
respect to these communications;

. reviewing requests from directors and executive officers for waivers from our code of
conduct, making recommendations to-the board concerning those requests or granting
such requests on behalf of the board, |f appropnate, and rewewmg any reqmred

‘ _disclosures relatmg to those waivers;

. monltorlng and revrewmg with management our strategles and

+ overseeing of the director orientation program to famlharlze new dlrectors wrth our
business, governance practices and industry trends.

Wallace L. Timmeny is the chairman of our corporate governance and nominating
committee, and the other members are Nigel W. Morris and James J. Ritchie. =

Non-Employee Director Compensation: , : |

We reimburse all non-empioyee directors for expenses incurred to attend meetings of our
board of directors or committees, and we pay each non-employee director a $1,500 fee for
each board and committee meeting attended. In addition, we pay each non-employee director
annual cash compensation of $30,000 unless these directors elect to receive shares.as
provided by our 2003 long term incentive plan described below. We also pay the chairperson
of our audit committee annual cash compensation of $15,000 and all, other.committee
chairpersons annual cash, compensation of $10,000. Each non-employee ; director. received
options to purchase 25,000 shares with an.exercise price of $10.00 per. share upon the closing
of the Private Offering. The terms and conditions of.these stock optrons are governed by the
2003 Iong term mcentive plan descrlbed below. :

Employment Agreements

The following information summarizes the employment agreements for Tobey J. Russ, our
chairman, president and chief executive officer, Michael J." Murphy, our deputy chairman and
chief operating officer, John S. Brittain, Jr., our chief fmancral officer, and Gary G. Wang, our
chief risk officer. : -

Tobey J. Russ. Under Mr. Russ’ employment agreement, Mr. Russ has agreed to continue
to serve as our president and chief executive officer. The term of Mr. Russ’employment
agreement continues until September 3, 2008 and will be automatically renewed for additional
one-year terms unless notice 6f termination of Mr. Russ’ emiployment is provided by us or Mr.
Russ at least 90 days prior to the end of the term. Mr. Russ receives an annual base:salary of
$750,000 and is eligible to receive an annual incentive bonus of 100% of his base salary based
upon the achievement of specified targetsto be determined by the compensation committee
of our board of directors. Mr. Russ was also granted stock options to purchase 649,830 shares
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as an inducement to accept this position and as a performance incentive. In any year during
the term of his employment agreement, Mr. Russ will be entitled to receive not less than the
largest award of restricted shares and stock options granted to any continuing member of
management provided that Mr. Russ will not be entitled to receive any grants of restricted
shares until December 31, 2005.

If the employment agreement is terminated by Mr. Russ for good reason, as defined in the
employment agreement, or by us not for cause, as defined in the agreement, we will pay Mr.
Russ the prorated portion of his bonus for the year in which he is terminated, an amount
equal to two times the sum of his base salary and the target bonus and his options and
restricted stock will vest on the date of such termination. In the event that payments made to
Mr. Russ are subject to the excise tax imposed under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue
Code, Mr. Russ is entitled to receive a gross-up payment equal to the sum of the excise tax
and any income and excise tax on the gross-up payment, plus any additional taxes thereon. If
the agreement is terminated for cause or due to Mr. Russ’ resignation or termination of his
employment other than for good reason, he shall be entitled to.receive his base salary through
the date of his termination. Mr. Russ is also subject to non-competition and non-solicitation
provisions for a period of one year after termination of the employment agreement subject to
certain exceptions, as well as ongoing confidentiality and non-disparagement requirements.

Cause, good reason and change of control are defined as follows:

+ Cause includes theft or embezzlement, conviction of any felony or any misdemeanor
involving moral turpitude, willful or prolonged absence from work (other than due to
disability or physical or mental illness), willful failure or refusal to perform his duties
and responsibilities, continued and habitual use of alcohol, use of illegal drugs, material
breach of any of the provisions contained in the employment agreement, in most
instances unless corrected within 30 days after his being:given written notice.

» Good reason includes material diminution of Mr. Russ’ duties or responsibilities, his not
being elected or reelected to the board of directors or the requirement that he report to
anyone other than our board of directors, the occurrence of a change of control, any
material breach.by us of the agreement, any reduction of Mr. Russ’ base salary or our
giving of written notice of our intention not to extend the agreement in accordance with
its term.

+ A change of control occurs:

« if any person (within the meaning of the Exchange Act, other than a permitted
person (as defined in the agreement), is or becomes the “beneficial owner” (as
defined in'Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of voting
'securities (as-defined in the agreement) representing 40% or more of the total
voting power of all the then outstanding voting securities; or

« the individuals who, as of the date of the employment agreement, constitute our
board of directors together with those who become directors subsequent to such
date and whose recommendation, election or nomination for election to our board
of directors was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then still
in office who either were directors as of such date or whose recommendation,
election or nomination for election was previously so approved, cease for any
reason to constitute a majority of the members of the Board; or

» the consummation of a merger, consolidation, recapitalization, liquidation, sale or
disposition by us of all or substantially all of our assets, or our reorganization, other
than any such transaction which would (x) result in at least 60% of the total voting
power represented by:the voting securities of the surviving entity or, in the case of
an asset sale, the successor entity; outstanding immediately after such transaction
being beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by .our shareholders immediately
preceding the transaction and (y) not otherwise be deemed a change in control
under the agreement; or ‘
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» the board of directors adopts a resolution to the effect that, for purposes of the
employment agreement, a change in control has occurred.

For purposes of the definition of change of control, “permitted persons” means Quanta
Holdings, any related party; or any group (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act)
composed of any or all of the foregoing; “related party” means one or our majority-owned
subsidiaries; a trustee or other fiduciary holding securities under our employee benefit plan or
one of our majority-owned subsidiaries; or a corporation owned directly or indirectly by our
shareholders in substantially the same proportion as their ownership of voting securities.
“Voting security” means any of our securities carrying the right to vote generally in the
election of directors.

Michael J. Murphy. Under Mr. Murphy’s employment agreement, Mr. Murphy has agreed
to continue to serve as chief operating officer and deputy chairman of our board of directors.
The term of Mr. Murphy’s employment agreement continues until September 3, 2008 and will
be automatically renewed for additional one-year terms unless notice of termination of Mr.
Murphy's employment is provided by us or Mr. Murphy at least 90 days prior to the end of the
term. Mr. Murphy receives an annual base salary of $600,000 and is eligible to receive an
annual incentive bonus of 100% of his base salary based upon the achievement of specified
targets to be determined by the compensation committee of our board of directors. Mr.
Murphy was also granted stock options to purchase 565,070 shares as an inducement to
accept this position and as a performance incentive. Mr. Murphy will not be entitled to receive
any.grants of restricted shares until December 31, 2005.

If the employment agreement is terminated by Mr. Murphy for good reason, as defined in
the employment agreement, or by us not for cause, as defined in the agreement, we will pay
Mr. Murphy the prorated portion of his bonus for the year in which he is terminated, an
amount equal to two times the sum of his base salary and the target bonus and his options
and restricted stock will vest on the date of such termination. In the event that payments made
to Mr. Murphy are subject to the excise tax imposed under Section 4999 of the Internal
Revenue Code, Mr. Murphy is entitled to receive - a gross-up payment equal to the sum of the
excise tax and any income and excise tax on the gross-up payment, plus any additional taxes
thereon. If the agreement is terminated for cause or due to Mr. Murphy’s resignation or
leaving of his employment other than for good reason, he shall be entitled to receive his base
salary through the date of his termination. Mr. Murphy is also subject to non-competition and
non-solicitation provisions for a period of one year after termination of the employment
agreement subject to certain exceptions, as well as ongoing confidentiality and
non-disparagement requirements. Cause, good reason and change of control are defined as
described above.

John S. Brittain, Jr. Under Mr. Brittain’s employment agreement, Mr. Brittain has agreed
to serve as our-chief financial officer. Mr. Brittain receives an annual base salary of $375,000
and is eligible to receive an annual incentive bonus of up to 100% of his base salary. Under
the-terms of his agreement, Mr. Brittain also received a sign-on bonus of $50,000, and has
been granted stock options to purchase 100,000 shares.

If Mr. Brittain’s agreement is terminated by us within the flrst twenty four months of his
employment for reasons other than cause, we must pay Mr. Brittain the greater of six months’
severance or severance equal to the number of months remaining between his termination of
employment date and the second anniversary of the day he began employment with us. Our
agreement with Mr. Brittain does not require us to employ him over a fixed term. Additionally,
Mr. Brittain presently does not have a non-competition or non-solicitation agreement with us.
Therefore, he may voluntarily terminate his employment with us. at any time and is not
restricted from seeking employment with our competitors or others who may seek his
expertise.

Gary G. Wang. Under Mr. Wang’'s employment agreement,. Mr Wang has agreed to serve
as our chief risk officer. Mr. Wang receives an annual base salary of $350,000 and is eligible to
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receive an annual incentive bonus at a target level of 50% of his base salary with the amount
awarded being subject to our profitability and his performance. In accordance with the terms
of his agreement, Mr. Wang was granted stock options to purchase 20,000 shares on
September 3, 2003. Our agreement with Mr. Wang does not require us to employ him over a
fixed term. Additionally, Mr. Wang presently does not have a non- competrtron or
non-solicitation agreement with us. Therefore, he may voluntarily terminate his employment
with us at any time and is not restrlcted from seekmg employment with our competitors or
others who may seek his expertise.

2003 Long Term Incentive Plan

Our shareholders and our board approved our 2003 long term incentive plan in July 2003.
The plan is intended to advance our interests and those of our shareholders by providing a
means to attract, retain and motivate employees and directors upon whose judgment,
initiative and efforts and our continued success, growth and development is dependent. The
compensation committee of our board of directors will administer the plan and make all -
decisions with respect to the plan. The compensation committée will be composed solely of .
independent directors. The persons ‘eligible to receive awards under the plan include our
directors, officers, employees and consultants and those of our affiliated entities.

The 2003 plan provides for the grant to eligible employees, directors and consultants of
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted shares, restricted share units, performance
awards, dividend equivalents and other share-based awards. The 2003 Plan also provides otr
directors with the opportunity to receive their annual retainer fee for board of director service
in shares. .

The compensation committee will select the recipients of awards granted under the plan
and will determine the dates, amounts, exercise prices, vesting periods and other relevant |
terms of the awards. The maximum number of shares reserved for issuance under the plan
will be 5,850,000, but the maximum number of shares with respect to which options and stock
appreciation rights may be granted during a calendar year to any eligible employee will be’
700,000 shares and with respect to performance awards, restricted shares and restricted share
units intended to qualify as performance-based compensation within the meaning of Section
162(m)(4){C) of the Internal Revenue Code will be the equivalent of 250,000 shares during a
calendar year to any eligible employee.

We have granted the following options.to purchase shares:

+ options granted to Messrs. Russ, Murphy, and Brittain in an aggregate amount equal to
1,314,900; and

» options to purchase approximately 1,563,500 shares granted to directors and other
employees. : .

The compensation-.committee will determine the pricing of awards granted under the plan
as of the date the award is granted. The compensation committee will determine the vesting
schedule of awards granted under the plan. Recipients of awards may exercise awards at any
time after they vest and before they expire, except that no awards may be exercised after ten
years from the date of grant. Awards are generally not transferable by the recipient during the
recipient’s life. Awards granted under the plan will be evidenced by either an agreement that is
signed by us and the recipient or a confirming memorandum issued by us to the recipient
setting forth the terms and conditions of the awards. Award recipients and beneficiaries of
award recipients have no right, title or interest in or to any shares subject to any award or to
any rights as a shareholder, unless and until shares are actually issued to the recipient.

The plan will not affect any other-incentive compensation plan we adopt and will not'
preclude us from establishing any other incentive compensation plans for our directors,
officers, employees or consultants.

The plan will terminate after ten years from the date of its initial adoption by our board of
directors.
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Annual Variable Cash Compensation Plan

We have adopted an Annual Variable Cash Compensation Plan that is available to our
employees generally, including our executive officers, that we believe will allow us to attract
and retain employees by providing them with cash rewards in the form of additional
compensation for their contributions to the operating profits and earning power of our
business. For most employees, rewards paid under this plan will be highly dependent on
perforrnance measured at an individual and business unit level. In general, rewards will be
funded by a sharing of profit in excess of a minimum return on capital to shareholders. Profit
will be measured in terms of the estimated net present value of after-tax profit from business
written in each year. Reward-will be paid out in four annual installments and deferred balances
will be subject to adjustments to the extent that the initial estimate of policy year profit
deviates from actual returns and will earn interest. Employees who voluntarily end their
employment or are involuntarily terminated will forfeit unpaid reward under the plan. In the
event of a change of control, each employee will be paid his or her allocable share of the
award pool unless the successor company determines to continue the plan through the end of
our fiscal year. In the event an employee’s employment terminates within 12 moenths following
a change of control:-other than for cause, the employee will be fully vested in .all incentive
awards allocated but unpaid as of his or her termination date and will.be paid 100% of the net
present value of his or her-account within 90 days of his or her termination. A change of
control for purposes of the plan is defined generally as (1) the purchase by any person or
group of persons of 40% or more of the combined voting power of the outstanding voting
stock of our company, (2) approval by our board of directors of a reorganization, merger,
consolidation, liquidation or dissolution, in each case, with respect to which persons who were
shareholders of our company immediately prior to such reorganization, merger, consolidation,
liquidation or dissolutions do not, immediately thereafter, own more than 51% of the
combined voting power of the outstanding voting stock of our company, liquidation or
dissolution or (3) the sale of 50% or more of our company’s assets.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Our independent directors are, and we expect they will continue to be, the only members
of our compensation committee. None of our directors or executive officers has a relationship
with us or any other company that the SEC defines as a compensation committee interlock or
insider participation that should be disclosed to shareholders.
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file periodic reports filed with the SEC which may be inspected without charge at the
public reference facilities maintained by the SEC in Room 1024, 450 Fifth Street, NW,
Washington; DC 20549, .and at the SEC's regional offices at 500 West Madison Street, Suite
1400, Chicago, illinois 60661 and Woolworth Building, 233 Broadway New York, New York.
Copies of all or any part of our filings may be obtained from the SEC upon payment of the
prescribed fee. Information regarding the operation of the public reference rooms may be
obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains a web site that contains
reports, proxy and information statements.and other information regarding registrants that file
electronically with the SEC. The address of the site is http://www.sec.gov.

Website Aécesé to our PeriOdic SEC Reports

The Internet address of our corporate website is www.quantaholdings.com. We make our
periodic SEC reports (on-Forms 10-K and 10-Q) and current reports {on.Form 8-K), as well as
the beneficial ownership reports. filed by our directors, officers and 10% shareholders {(on.
Forms 3, 4 and 5) available free of charge through our website as soon as reasonably -
practicable after they are filed electronically with the SEC. We may from time to time provide
important disclosures to investors by posting them in the investor relations section of our
webs:te, as allowed by SEC rules. The information on .our websnte is not a part of this annual
report ‘ ,
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Report of lndependent Audltors

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Quanta Capital Holdings Ltd.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income, of changes in shareholders’ equity and
of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Quanta Capital
Holdings Ltd. and its subsidiaries {the “Company”) as of December 31, 2003, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the period from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation)
to December 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated - -
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which-
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting.the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates 'made by management, and evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement
presentatlon We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our oplmon

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York, New York
March 31, 2004
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QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As of December 31, 2003

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share and per share amounts)

Assets
investments:

Fixed maturities at fair value {(amortized cost: $386 482) . ... . ... . .. ;_ e
Short-term investments at fair value (amortized cost: $79 07G)............ e e

Total investments .................. D, Ve, e PR
Cash and cash equivalents............. e R S R
Restricted cash and cash equivalents.......... T e
Accrued investmentincome .............ohiiiaann R R
Premiums receivable ...... B e e [
Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable ................o...o. i,
Other accounts receivable ...... R e

Deferred acquisition costs

Deferred reinsurance premiums. ....... T P
Prepaid eXpenses ..........oeuiiiiienniiiianannans P PR
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation .of $185, B
CGOOAWIIL. L e e e e
Intangible @SSets ........veeriit et PO U PR
Other assets ........... P F E T

Total assets

Liabilities

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses i ', e e e
Unearned premiums ..........oevirnernernenion.. e e f e e o
Environmental liabilities assumed..... e e S LT
Reinsurance balances payable ................... e e e e, .
Accounts payable ....... ... .. . il e PR e
Net payable for investments purchased ............. P e

Accrued expenses

Other liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
Shareholders’ equity
Preferred shares, $0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized;

none issued and outstanding . ....... ..o i i i e e et e

Common shares, $0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized;

56,798,218 issued and outstanding . ...ttt i i r e e e
Additional paid-in capital .. ... .. i i e i e e
Accumulated deficit ...... ..o i i i i e e
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOMEe . ... .. it iiii it e iiienenes
Total shareholders’ equity ...ttt i it it it eiaeenns

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equItY . ..........ovorirninenein e eareanennn,

.................................................................

Deferred inCome ...t it ittt i e B S I
Deferred income tax liability, net:........... feeerreieneen N P

...................................................................

$ 86,278

© $387,966
. . 79,070
467,036

36,694
10,557
2,995
10,961
3,263
8,957,
6,616
1,925
1,914
1,117
7,778
13,573
375

$57'3,76‘1

S 4,454

20,044
7,018
334
4,975
34,766
12634
1,359
102
592

568
524,235
(38,477)
1,157
$487,483
$573,761

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the period from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003

(Expressed in thousands of US dollars except for share and per share amounts)

Revenues
Net premiumsearned .................. e e e '$ 1,940
Consulting revenues.............. e e D R R 11,680
Net investment income........ S e AT e e 2,290
Net realized gains on investments. ......... ..ot iiiieennnnn. e 109
Other iNCOME ...t ettt e e e : 126

 Total revenues ........ T e el e - ... 16,145
Expenses
Net losses and loss expenses incurred 1,191
Acquusmon expenses....... e P R A S TS T 164
Direct consulting costs ................... ST e 8,83
General and administrative expenses {including non-cash stock compensa'uon e

expense ‘ : : s o

“0f $16,725)............ e e e e e veen 44,196
Depreciation and amortization of intangibles.. . ... ... RO AN 434

o Total expenses .................... e . P . 54,622

Loss before income taxes......... e e . (38,477)

Income tax benefit ............... e e e —
Net loss ....... PR T P . (38,477)
Other comprehensive income (loss) »
Unreahzed investment gains arising during the périod, net of income taxes ....... 1,280
Forelgn currency translation adjustments .......... ... . i il e o “(14)
Reclassification of net realized gains on investments included in net loss, net of

T aTete ] 4L I0 €= D= {109)
Other COMPreRenSIVEe INCOME ...t ittt it e ettt e eeens 1,157
Comprehensive loss.......... S [T ..... $  (37,320)
Weighted average common share and common share equivalents — basic........ . 31,369,001
Weighted average common share and common share equivalents — diluted ...... 31,369,001
Basic loss per share ... ..... e e e e e $ (1.23)
Diluted loss pershare .................ciiiiiiiinnnnn.. e e .. 8 {1.23)

The accompanying-notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the period from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars except for share and per share amounts)

Share capital — preferred shares of par value $0.01 each : $ —

Share capital — common shares of par value $0.01 each

Balance at beginning of period. ....... .o i i e e e . —
Issued dUring Period ... ...uui it it et i e e e - 573
Repurchased and retired. .. ......o.vu e aeeanns S DU {5)
Balance atend of period............... ... oL RN SN e 568

Additional paid-in capital

Balance at beginning of period.......... .. —
Common shares issued during period, net of offering costs of $40 200, 507,510
Non-cash stock compensation expense...............iveeieaui, e : 16,725
Balance atend of period..........coviviriiivinininn e 524,235

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Balance at beginning of period. ... i i e —
'- 1 Net change in unrealized gains on investments, net of income taxes .............. 1.171
Foreign currency translation adjustments ..............iiiininiiiriiniinennnn. (14)
§ Balance atendof period.......... . ..o 1,157

J Accumulated deficit -
: Balance at beginning of period......... ... .. ... ool e i L —
Bl Net 10ss for period ... ... ..o i e i i e (38,477)
Balance at end of period. .. ..o e e e e s (38,477)
Total shareholders’ equity . .............uiveuiiniii it iaiieiaann, $487,483

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

F5




QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ..

For the period from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003

{Expressed in thousands of US dollars except for share and per share amounts)

Cash flows from operating activities

N BT 0SS © ottt et ettt et e et e e e e $ (38,477)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities ‘
Depreciation of property and equipment........................ e .. 185
Amortization of intangibles ...... G S P 249
Amortization of diSCOUNTS ON INVESIMENTS . ...\ eeeeeiiii et ieeiaaeeeaaaanns, 669
Net realized gains on sale of investments........... ... ool o (109)
Net unrealized foreign currency gainsoninvestments............c..cceviviunn... (207)
Non-cash stock compensation expense. ...... ..ottt ittt - 16,725
Changes in assets and liabilities: _
Accrued investment income .............. e e P TR (2,779)
Premiums and other accounts receivable ....... ... i i i i i (9,984)
Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable ....................... .. e 209
Deferred acquisition costs .............. S (6,616)
Deferred reinsurance premiums. .... e e e . (270)
Prepaid eXPensSes ... i e e e ee e e PR (1,547)
10 1 oY=y G- Y= T=Y £ AU U e (271)
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses ..........ccviiiiiiiinnnnnin.. : 982
Unearned premilms ... ittt it i ettt ettt et et e raeaeainaanneinns 18,390
Environmental liabilities assumed ........... oo i e e 7,018
Reinsurance balances payable ....... ... i i i e e ‘ 334
Accounts payable . ... ... .. e e e 1,614
ACCTUB BXPENSES . . .ttt t ittt et e e e PR 11,308
Deferred income ......... e e e e e e e et i 1,196
Other liabilities........ ..o i PP 561
Net cash used in operating activities ......c..o ittt ittt i ieie e (820)
Cash flows used in investing activities
Proceeds from sale of fixed maturities and short-term investments................ 377,160
Purchases of fixed maturities and short-term investments ....................o.... {794,593)
Net cash paid in acquisition of subsidiaries ............coo.iiiiiiiinieenann.... (41,704)
Purchases of property and equipment . ... ...ttt it it ittt naernanans {870)
Net cash used in investihg ACtiVItIES . ..o e e e (460,007)
Cash flows provided by financing activities _
Proceeds from issuance of shares, net of offering costs of $40,200 ................ 508,078
Net cash provided by financing activities ........... ... it 508,078
Increase in cash and cash equivalents....... ..ot ittt iee e, 47,251
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period........ ... ... .. ... ..o oLl —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period.......... ... i il $ 47,251

Supplemental information
Cash INterest Paid ... oottt it ettt ettt e s iiar s annraeeans $ 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.
-NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Expressed in. thousands except for share and per share amounts; unless otherwise stated)
1. Organization .

Quanta Capltal Holdmgs Ltd. ("Quanta Holdlngs”) mcorporated on May 23, 2003 is a
holding company organized under the laws of Bermuda, Quanta Holdings and rts“s.ubsrdlanes
(collectively referred to as the “Company”) was formed to provide specialty insurance,
reinsurance, risk assessment and risk consulting services and products on'a global basis.
Quanta Holdmgs conducts its insurance and reinsurance operations pnnmpally through
subsidiaries domrcrled in Bermuda and the Umted States of Amerrca

In connectron wrth its formatlon Quanta Holdmgs rssued 1 200 000 shares at a $0.01 par
value. Of these shares, 1,000,000 shares:were: |ssued 10 MTR Capltal Holdings, LLC (“MTR")_
and 200,000 shares were issued to BEM Investments LLC (“BEMI"). On July 3, 2003,. Quanta
Holdings issued an additional 800,000 shares. Followmg this issuance, MTR and BEMI
(collectively, the “Founders”) held 1,260,000 and 750,000 shares,:respectively. MTR and BEMI
are beneficially owned and controlled by certam dlrectors and shareholders of Quanta
Holdmgs o R S R

On September 3, 2003 Quanta Holdlngs sold 55 000 000 common shares through a prlvate
placement (the “Prlvate Offerlng”) ina transact|on exempt from reglstratlon under the .
Securities Act of 1933. Friedman, Blllrngs Ramsey & Co (“FBR") was the initial purchaser of
the majonty of the shares and acted as the placement agent for the sale of shares'to .
accredited investors. Contemporaneous wrth the Private. foenng, Quanta Holdings _
.repurchased and retired 493,044 shares from the Founders such that they do not own, in the ‘
aggregate, more than the sum of 376,817 shares plus 2.00% of the outstandrng shares after
the Private Offering. Subsequent to the Private Offering, MTR was liquidated and'its shares in
Quanta Holdings were distributed among its members, rncludmg Russ Family, LLC, CPD &
Associates, LLC and BEM Specialty Investments, we.

On September 3, 2003, the Company acquired ali of the outstanding shares of |
Environmental Strategies Corporation {"ESC"); a Virginia. domiciled corporation. ESC provides
environmental engineering, remediation risk management and consulting services,
Immediately upon acquisition, ESC was converted mto a Vrrgmla domestic limited llabrlrty
company. ‘ SRR . : ~

Quanta Reinsurance Ltd. (Quanta Bermuda”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Quanta
Holdings, was mcorporated under the laws of Bermuda on August 15, 2003 and is licensed as
a Class 4 insurer under the Insurance Act 1978 of Bermuda Quanta Bermuda" underwrltes
msurance and reinsurance busuness in‘Bermuda’ There are’ four classrfrcatlons of i |nsurers
carrying on general business in’Bermuda. Each class is subject to varying degrees of
regulation with respect to reporting, capital, solvency, and llQUldlty requirements. Class 4
insurers are subject to the strictest regulation. - :

Quanta U.S. Holdings Inc. (“Quanta U.S. Holdings”), a wholly owned subsrdlary of Quanta
Bermuda, was mcorporated in Delaware on May 30, 2003 e

Quanta Reinsurance U.S. Ltd (”Quanta u.s. Re") a wholly owned subsrdlary of Quanta
U.sS. Holdmgs was mcorporated under the laws of Bermuda on June 6, 2003;,'and i is licensed
as a Class 3 reinsurer under the Insurance Act 1978 of Bermuda. Quanta U. S ‘Re underwrites
U.S. sourced insurance and reinsurance business in Bermuda. .

Quanta Insurance Ireland Ltd. ("Quanta lreland”) was mcorporated on September 16, 2003,
and’is a wholly owned subsndrary of Quanta Holdlngs Quanta Ireland will underwnte
European Union {“E.U.") sourced insurance and relnsurance busmess in lreland

On October 28, 2003 Quanta uU.s. Holdlngs acquired all of the outstanding common stock
of Chubb Financial Solutions Corporation (“CFSC”), an.Indiana demiciled insurance company,
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QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands except for share and per share amounts, unless otherwise stated)

from The Chubb Corporation (“Chubb”). CFSC was subsequently renamed Quanta Specialty
Lines Insurance Co. (“"Quanta Specialty Lines”). Quanta Specialty Lines underwrites U.S.
sourced specialty insurance on an excess and surplus hnes basis and U.S. remsurance on a
non-admitted basis.

On December 19, 2003, the Company acquured from Natlonal Farmers Umon Property
Casualty Insurance Company (“NFU") all of the outstanding common stock of National
Farmers Union Standard Insurance Company (“NFU Standard”), a Colorado domiciled,
multi-state licensed, property and casualty insurance company. NFU Standard underwrites
admitted insurance business in 41 states in the U.S. NFU Standard was subsequently renamed
Quanta‘lndemnity Company (”Quanta Indemnlty")

2, Slgmflcant accountlng pohcles

The accompanymg consolidated fmanmal statements as of December 31, 2003 and for the
period from May 23, 2003 (the date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003, have been.
prepared in accordance with accountmg prmmples generally accepted in the Umted States of
America (“GAAP”) which reqmre management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the' reported amounts of assets and liabilities and dlsclosure of contingent assets and’ Ilabllltles
at the date of the consolidated financial statemients and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reported period. The Companys prmmpal estlmates relate to the”
development or determmatlon of the followmg

+ investment valuatlons

. certain premiums written and premiums recei\)able;v
+ reserves for loss anvd |ossadj_ustment evxpenses;‘

+ - the valuation of goodwill and mtang:ble assets;

* assumed environmental liabilities;

- deferred income tax assets and liabilities; and

. relnsurance balances recoverable

Whlle management belleves that the amounts included in the consolldated financial
statements reflect managements best estlmates and assumptions, the actual results could
ultimately be materially dn‘ferent from the amounts currently provided for in the consolldated
financial statements.

a) Basis of presentatlon

These consohdated fmanmal statements. mclude the flnanCIal statements of the Company
and all of its majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant balances and transactions among
related companles have been eliminated on consolidation. The results of subsidiaries have
been mcluded from either thelr dates of acqunsltlon or their dates of’ |ncorporat|on

b) Premiums written, ceded and earned

Insurance and remsurance premlums written are earned over the terms of the assocnated
insurance policies and reinsurance contracts in proportion to the amount of insurance v
protection provided. Typically this results in the earning of premium on a pro rata over time
basis over the term of:the related insurance or reinsurance coverage, which is typically over a
12 month period. Premiums written on risks attaching reinsurance contracts are recorded in
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QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD. _
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

{Expressed in thousands except for share and per share amounts, unless otherwise stated)

the period in which the underlying. policies or risks are expected to incept and are earned on a
pro rata over time basis over the expected term of the underlying policies. As a result, =
premiums earned on risks attaching reinsurance contracts usually extend beyond the original
term of the reinsurance contract resuliting in recognition of premium earnings over an
extended period, typically up to 24 months. For the period from May 23, 2003 (date of
incorporation) to December 31, 2003, approximately-53% of the Company’s total gross written
premiums were written on-a I'ISkS attachmg basrs

Premiums written and ceded on certain types: of contracts include estimates based on.
information received from the ceding companies, brokers or insureds. Estimates: of written
premiums are re-evaluated over the term of the associated contracts as underwriting
information becomes available and as actual premiums are reported by the.ceding companies,
brokers or insureds. Subsequent changes to the premium estimates are recorded as
adjustments to premlums written in the penod in which they become, known. For the period
from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003, approxrmately 53% of the
Company'’s total gross written premiums were based on estlmated amounts.

Ad]ustments related to retrospectlve rating provisions that adjust estlmated premiums or
acquisition expenses are recognlzed over contract periods in-accordance with the underlying’
contract terms. Estimated premiums and acquisition expenses, including retrospectively rated
adjustments, are based on current experience under the contracts. Experience rated
adjustments that relate to the return of underwriting profit or premtum to the insured are -
recognized and accrued as experience refund liabilities in the period in which the underwriting
results are recorded based on the experience and terms of the contract. Reinstatement’
premiums are written at the time a loss event occurs where coverage limits are reinstated
under pre-defined contract terms and are earned over the remaining contract risk period.

In the normal course of business, the Company purchases relnsurance or retrocessmnal
coverage to increase its’ underwntmg capacity and to limit individual and aggregate exposures
to risks of losses arising from contracts of insurance or reinsurance that it underwrites,
Reinsurance premiums ceded to reinsurers are recorded and earned in a manner consistent
with that of the original contracts or policies written and the terms of reinsurance agreement.

Premiums written and ceded relating to the unexpired periods of coverage or policy terms
are recorded on‘the consolidated balance sheet as unearned premlums and deferred
relnsurance premiums, respectively.

¢) Acquisition expenses and ceding commission income

Acquisition expenses are policy issuance related costs that vary with and are directly
related to the acquisition of insurance and reinsurance business, and primarily consist of
commissions, third party brokerage and insurance premium taxes: Ceding commission income
consists of commissions the Company receives on business that it cedes to its reinsurers.
Acquisition expenses and commission income are recorded and deferred: at the time the
associated premium is written or ceded and are subsequently amortized in earnings as the
premiums to which they relate ‘are earned or expensed. Acquisition expenses are reflected in-
the consolidated statement of operations net of ceding commission income from reinsurers.
Acquisition costs relating to unearned premiums are deferred in the consolidated balance
sheet as an asset. Commission income relating to deferred rei_nsurance premiums ceded'is
carried in the consolidated balance sheet as a deferred income liability.
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QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands except for share and per share amounts, unless otherwise stated)

Deferred acquisition costs are carried ‘at their estimated realizable value and are limited to
the amount expected to-bé recovered from future €arned premiums;-anticipated:losses and
other costs and anticipated mvestment income. Any Ilmltatlon is referred to as a premium
defrcrency s . SN R

d) ‘Reserve for Iosses and Ioss adjustment expenses W el mr

The Company establishes reserves for losses and loss expenses for estlmates of future
amounts to.be paid in settiement of. its ultimate. I|ab|l|t|es for claims: arising under its contracts
of insurance and:reinsurance that.have occurred;at or before the consolidated balance sheet
date. The estimation. of ultimate: loss:and loss.expense liabilities is the most significant
Judgment made- by. management and is’ mherently subject:to significant uncertainties.

The Companys loss reserves faIl |nto ‘two categorles case reserves for reported losses
and’ Ioss‘expenses and reserves for. losses a'nd Ioss expenses incurred but not reported, or
IBNR reserves: Case reserves are based’mltlally on clarm reports recerved from insureds,
brokers or ceding companies, and may be: supplemented by the Company’s claims
professionals with estimates of additional ultimate settlement costs. IBNR reserves are
estimated by management usrng generally accepted statrstrcal and actuarial techniques and
are reviewed by mdependent actuaries. In’ applylng these techniques, the Company’s
management uses estimates as to ultlmate Ioss emergence severity, frequency, settlement
periods.and, settlement costs. In, makmg these estimates, the Company. relies on the most
recent. mformatlon avallable mcludrng pricing. mformatron, industry mformatron and on its
historical loss and loss expense experience.. . R e

Given the- COmpanys limited operatrng history and hrstoncal clalms experience, the:
reserving method it has adoptéd is-an expected loss ratio methodology whereby'it muitiplies
earned premiums by an expected loss ratio to derive ultimate losses and deducts any paid
losses and loss expenses to arrive at estlmated loss and loss expense reserves. This method is
commonly applied when there is msuffrcrent loss development experience available. The initial
expected loss ratios were derlved from prrcmg, loss and . exposure. information provided by
brokers,. cedlng companles and rnsureds and supplemented by avallable industry data. The .
Company believes that these assumptlons represent a realistic and’ approprlate basis for
currently,estimating its loss and loss expense reserves. As:the. Company develops its own loss
experience,the Company.-will.expand-its reserving analyses to mclude other cemmonly used
methods, for example the Bornhuetter-Ferguson method ;

Even though the: Company s reservmg techniques are actuanally sound and management
believes that the reserves for losses and:loss expenses. are sufficient to:cover claims from
losses occurring up to the consolidated balance sheet date, ultimate losses and loss expenses
may duffer matenally from the amounts recorded m the consolrdated financial statements

The Company contmually revrews ‘and. adjusts its reserve- estrmates and reservmg
methodologies taking into account all currently, known-information and updated. assumptions
related to unknown information. Loss.and loss.expense reserves established in prior-periods -
are adjusted.in current operations as. clalm experience develops.and new information becomes
available..Any -adjustments to previously. established reserves.may significantly. E|mpact current
period unden/vrltmg results and.net income:by reducrng net.income.. . i, -

e) Relnsurance recoverable

Reinsurance recoverable under the terms of ceded reinsurance contracts includes loss and
loss expense reserves recoverable and deferred reinsurance premiums. The Company is
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QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.
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subject to credit risk with respect to the reinsurance ceded because the ceding of risk does not
relieve the Company from its original obligations to its insureds. The Company must settle
these obligations without the benefit of reinsurance protection to the extent reinsurers default.
Failure of the Company’s reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in credit losses. If
the financial condition of any of the Company’s reinsurers deteriorates, resulting in their
inability to make payments to the Company, the Company establishes allowances for amounts
considered potentially uncollectible from such reinsurers. The Company evaluates the financial
condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar
geographic regions, activities, or economic characteristics of its reinsurers to minimize its
exposure to losses from reinsurer insolvencies. '

f) Envnronmental liabilities assumed and remediation revenue

The Company assumes enwronmental liabilities i in exchange for remediation fees and
contracts to perform the required remediation in accordance with the underlying remediation
agreements. The Company estimates its initial and ongoing ultimate liabilities for
environmental remediation obligations based upon actual experience, past experience W|th
similar remediation projects, technical engineering examinations of the contaminated sites and
state, local and federal guidelines. However, there can be no assurance that actual remediation
costs will not significantly differ from the estimated amounts.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had assumed one environmental remediation
project and recorded an estimated liability of $7.0 million. The assumed environmental
remediation obligations for the project are contractually deflned pursuant to a site specific
remediation plan.

The amount of consideration received for the assumption of remediation liabilities in
excess of the related environmental remediation liability is initially deferred and recorded in
deferred income on the consolidated balance sheet and recognized in earnings over the
remediation period using the cost recovery or percentage-of-completion method. These
methods are based on the ratio of remediation expenses actually incurred and paid to total
estimated remediation costs. As of December 31, 2003, the Company had deferred,
approximately $0.8 million of remediation revenues. Anticipated remediation losses, if any, are
recorded in the period in which' the Company becomes aware of such losses.

g) Consulting revenues

Consulting revenue is recognized when evidence of an arrangement for services exists,
services have been rendered, price is fixed or determinable, and coliectibility is reasonably
assured. Consultmg services are rendered under various short-term contractual arrangements,
primarily on a time and materials basis. From time to time, the Company retains
subcontractors to perform certain remediation services under the Company’s contracts with its
customers. Revenue is recognized on a gross bas;s when the Company is the primary obligor
in the arrangement. For the period from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31,
2003, approximately $5.5 million of direct costs, exclusnve of mark-up, related to these
subcontractor arrangements was recorded as dlrect consultmg costs in the consolidated
statement of operations and comprehensive income. .

Consulting revenue inciudes amounts related to services performed but not yet billed to
customers at the period end. Accounts receivable include consultlng revenues receivable that
are settled within the Company’s normal coIIectlon cycle.

Prepayments from customers are recorded as part of deferred income in the consolidated
balance sheet and recognized in the consolidated statement of operations as.consulting
revenue as the related services are performed.
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h) Direct consulting costs

~ Direct consulting costs consist of payroll costs associated with direct labor incurred on
consulting engagements, other direct costs such as travel and subsistence, subcontracting and
other contract expenses. The Company maintains a team of in-house technical consuitants that
assist in consulting engagements. The costs associated with the time spent by such technical
consultants on service engagements are included in direct consulting costs in the consolidated
statement of operations and comprehensive income.

i) General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses include all other expenses such as salaries and
benefits, sales and marketing, business development, costs for information systems, finance
and accountmg, human resources, administrative and all other infrastructure functuons related
to managing and developlng the Companys busmesses

j)  Cash and cash equuvalents

Cash equivalents include hlghly Ilqmd mstruments such as Ilqmdlty funds, money market
funds and other time deposits with commercial banks and financial institutions.

k) Investments and net mvestment income

The Company classmes publlcly traded and.non- publlcly traded fixed maturity and
short-term investments as "“available-for-sale” and, accordingly, they are recorded at estimated
fair value with the difference between cost or amortized cost and fair value, net of the effect of
lncome taxes included as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensnve
income.

Short-term investments include highly liquid debt instruments and commercial paper that
are generally due within one year of the date of issue and are held as part of the Company’s
investment portfolios that are managed by independent investment managers.

The fair value of publicly traded securities. is based upon quoted market prices. The
estimated fair value of non-publicly traded securities is based on lndependent third party
pricing sources.

The Company periodically reviews its investments to determine whether an impairment,
being a decline in fair value of a security below its amortized cost, is other than temporary. If
such a decline is classified as other than temporary, the Company writes down, to fair value,
the impaired security resulting in a new cost basis of the security and the amount of the
write-down is charged to income as a realized loss. Some of the factors that the Company
considers in determining whether an impairment is other than temporary include (i) the
amount of the impairment, (ii} the period of time for which the fair ‘value has been below the
amortized cost, (iii) specific reasons or market conditions which could affect the security,
including the financial condition of the issuer and relevant industry conditions or rating agency
actions, and (iv) the Company’s ability and intent to hold the securlty for sufficient time to
allow for pessible recovery. o

InVestments are recorded on a trade date basis: The Company’s net investment income is
recognized when earned and consists primarily of interest, the accrual of discount or
amortization of premium on fixed maturity securities, dividends, and is net of investment
management and custody expenses. Gains and Iosses realized on the sale of investments are
determined on the first-in, first-out basis.
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) Property and equipment

Property and equipment, which consist of furniture, equipment, and leasehold
improvements, are stated_at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
using the accelerated method over the estimated usefu! lives of the related assets, ranging -
from three to seven years. Depreciation of leasehold improvements is computed using the
straight-line method over the shorter: of the.estimated useful lives of the assets or the terms of
the leases. ST : :

Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. At the time of retirement or other
disposal of property or equipment, the cost.and related accumulated-depreciation are
deducted from their respective accounts -and any’ resultmg gain or loss is included in the -
consolidated statement operations. » 4 » »

" m) Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill and |dent|f|able mtanglble assets that arise from busmess combmatlons are
accounted for in accordance with the’ Flnanmal Accountnng Standards Board's ("FASB")
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS") No. 141 "’Busmess Combinations”
(“SFAS 141"}, and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other lntang|b|e Assets "

Identifiable intangible assets are amortized in accordance with thelr useful llves GOOdWI“
and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested annually for
|mpa|rment using a fair value approach or more often if |mpa|rment indicators arise. If the
carrying amounts of goodwili or intangible assets are greater than their fair values established
during impairment testing, the carrying value is immediately written-down to the fair value
with a corresponding impairment loss recognized in the consolidated statement of operations
and comprehensive income. '

n) Offering costs

Costs incurred in connection with, and that are directly attributable to, share offerings are
charged to additional paid-in capital. . o

o) Foreign currency translation

Generally, the U.S. dollar is the “functional currency” of the Company’s global operations.
For entities where the U.S. doilar is the functional currency, all foreign currency asset and
liability amounts are translated into U.S. dollars at end-of-period exchange rates, except for
prepaid expenses, property and equipment, and goodwill and intangible assets, which are
translated at historical rates. Foreign currency income and-expenses are translated at average
exchange rates in effect during the period, except for expenses related to balance sheet
amounts translated at historical exchange rates. Exchange gains and losses arising from the
translation of forelgn currency- denomlnated monetary assets, and liabilities are mcluded in the
consohdated statement .of operations and comprehensnve income.

For subsidiaries where the local currency is the functional Turrency, assets and liabilities
denominated in local currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at end of period exchange
rates, and the resultant translation adjustments are reported, net of their related tax effects, as
a component:of ‘accumulated other.comprehensive income (loss) in shareholders’ equity..
Assets and liabilities.denominated in other than the local currency are translated into the local
currency prior to translation.into.U.S. dollars, and the resultant exchange gains or losses are
included in income.in the period-in which they occur. Income and expenses are translated into
U.S. dollars at average exchange rates in effect during the period. .
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p)- Stock-based compensation

Employee stock awards under the Company’silong term incentive compensation plan are
accounted for in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued-to Employees” and related interpretations-(“APB 25”). Compensation expense for
stock ‘options and stock-based:awards granted to'employees is recognized using the intrinsic
value method to the extent that the fair value of the stock exceeds the:exercise price of the
option at the-measurement date. Any resulting compensation expense is recorded over the
shorter of the vesting or service period.

The Company provides the disclosure as set forth in’ SFAS No. 123, “Accountmg for
Stock-Based Compensation” {“SFAS 123"), which requires compensation expense for
employee stock options to be measured as the fair value of the options at their grant date and
recorded over the shorter of the vesting'or service period.

The followmg table summarlzes the Company’s stock- based compensatlon net income
and earnings per share had the Company elected to recogmze compensation cost based on
the fair value of the optlons granted-at the grant date as prescribed by SFAS 123 for the period
from May 23, 2003 (date of mcorporatlon) to December 31, 2003

Stock compensatlon expense

ASTEPOIEd ... ee et P S $ 16,725
Total stock based employee compensahon expense determmed )
urider fair value based 'method ...... R PR L 9,739
Pro forma........ e e tniaeeeemaeieaiie $26,464
Net loss ‘ .
Net loss — as reported ........ S S e s $(38,477)
- Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined .
under fair value based method ...... P R TP INM s (9,739)
Net loss — pro forma ...... P T, '$(48,216) .
Basic loss per share i - ‘
~Asreported ............ S E N NP T ) )
LProforma .. e e el e e eeeis (1‘.54)

‘Diluted loss per share o o - v
As reported ............ e . T & )|
.-Pro forma............... e e e . (1.54)

“In accordance with SFAS 123 the falr value of opt|ons granted is estimated on the date of
the grant using the Black-Scholes’ option-pricing model with the followmg weighted average
assumptions: a dividend vyield of 0%; expected volatility of 24.0%; a risk-free interest rate of
3. 75% and an expected life of. the optlons -of 7 years.
q) Income taxes ' v |

Jae »'_,

Income taxes have been recogmzed in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109
“Accountmg for Income Taxes”, on those operations that are subject to mcome taxes. Deferred
tax assets-and liabilities result from temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
existing assets-and liabilities recorded in the conselidated financial statements and their
respective tax bases. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a:.change in tax rates is
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recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance for
a portion or all of deferred tax assets is recorded as a reduction to deferred tax assets if it is
more likely than not that such portion or all of such deferred tax assets wrll not be realrzed

As of December 31 2003 the Company provnded a 100% allowance against net deferred
tax assets. As a start-up .company with limited operating: history, the realization of the deferred
tax asset is neither assured nor accurately determinable. If the Company stuibsequently
assesses that the valuation allowance; or any portion thereof, is no longer required. an income
tax benefit will be recorded in the consolidated statement of operatlons and comprehensrve '
income in the perlod in Wthh such assessment is made

r} Earnings per share B

Basic earnmgs per share is computed using the werghted average number of common -
shares outstanding during the period. All potentially dilutive securities rncludmg stock optrons
and warrants are excluded from the basic earnings. per share computatron ,

In calculatmg diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares .
outstanding for the period is increased to include .all potentially dilutive securities using the -
treasury stock method. Any common stock equivalent shares are excluded from the
camputation if thelr effect is antidilutive. :

Basic and diluted earnrngs per share are calculated by drvrdmg income avallable to
ordinary shareholders by the applrcable werghted average number of shares outstandmg
during the year.

s) Segment reporting

The Company reports segment results in accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Segment
Reporting” (“SFAS 131”). Under SFAS 131, reportable segments represent an aggregation of
operating segments that meet certain criteria for aggregation specified in SFAS 131.

The Company is comprised of and operates through three operating segments —
Insurance, Reinsurance and Consulting . In addition, the Company also has three geographlc
locations — Bermuda Europe and the U.S. : .

The Companys Insurance and Reinsurance (collectively referred to herein as -
“Underwriting”) segments represent the Company’s income from underwntmg risks it retains.
The Consulting segment represents the Company’s income less direct consulting costs and
operating expenses, directly attributable to consultmg, envrronmental and remedlatlon risk
management services it provides.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those used in the preparation of -
the consolidated financial statements. The Company measures and evaluates each operating
segment based on net underwriting or consulting income including other |tems of revenue '
and operating expense directly attributable to each segment

Because the Company does not manage its assets by segment net mvestment income
and total assets are not allocated to individual operating segments. The Company has not
developed a methodology to allocate other non-direct items of expense to its three operating
segments. Accordmgly, other non-direct general and administrative expenses deprecratron
and amortization are not evaluated at the segment level

ltems of revenue and-expense, and-identifiable assets presented by geographlc locatlon
are based on aggregations of amounts recorded, under GAAPF, by those entities domiciled
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within each geographic location. Revenues, expenses, investments in and amounts due from
affiliated entities across geographic locations are eliminated-on consolidation of the
geographic results of operations and identifiable assets.

t) Recent accountlng pronouncements

On December 31, 2002 the FASB issued SFAS No. 148 (“SFAS 148”), “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure.” SFAS 148 amends SFAS 123 to
provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, SFAS 148 amends
the existing disclosure to require more prominent disclosure in both annual and interim
financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based compensation and the
effect of the method used on reported results. The additional disclosure requirements, which
the Company has adopted, were effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. As
permitted by SFAS 123, the Company currently follows APB 25 and accounts for stock-based
compensation under the intrinsic value method.

In December 2003, the FASB issued. Interpretatlon No. 46 (revised December-2003) (“FIN
46R”), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” In general, a variable interest entity (“VIE")
is a corporation, partnership, trust, or any other legal structure used for business purposes
that either (a) does not have equity investors with voting rights or (b) has equity investors that
do not provide sufficient financial resources for the entity to support its activities. FIN 46R
requires certain VIEs to be consolidated by the primary beneficiary of the VIE if the equity
investors do not have the characteristics 6f a controlling financial interest or do not have
sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated
financial support from other parties. Application of FIN 46R is required for public entities that
have interests in VIE's or potential VIE’s, which are commonly referred to as special purpose
entities, for periods-ending after December 15, 2003. Application by public entities for all other
types of entities is required for periods ending after March 15, 2004. Although the Company
has adopted FIN-46R, it currently has not identified any material VIEs with which it is involved
and therefore the adoption has not had a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
results of operatlons or fmanc;al posmon

In Aprii 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149 (“SFAS 149"), “Amendment of Statement 133
on Derivative Instruments and Hedglng Activities.” SFAS 149 amends and clarifies accounting
for derivative instruments, including ‘cértain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts, and for hedging activities Under SFAS 133. SFAS!149 requires that contracts with
comparable characteristics be accounted for similarly and clarifies when a derivative contains
a financing component that warrants special reporting in the statement of cash flows. SFAS
149 is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, except in certain
circumstances, and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The adoption of
SFAS 149 did not have an_effect on the consolidated results of operations or financial position.

In December of 2003, the Company adopted FASB Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF")
Issue 03-01, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and lts Application to Certain
Investments” (“EITF 03-01"). EITF 03-01 provides new dISC|OSUI'e requirements for other-than-
temporary impairments on debt and equity investments. Investors are required to disclose
quantitative information about: (i) the aggregate amount of unrealized losses, and (ii} the
aggregate related fair.values of investments with unreahzed losses, segregated into time
periods during which the investment has been in an unrealized loss position of less than 12
months and greater than 12 months. In addition, investors are required to disclose the
qualitative information that supports their conclusion that the impairments noted in the
qualitative disclosure are not other-than temporary.
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3. Business acquisitions

The Company accounts for business acquisitions using the purchase method of
accounting in accordance with SFAS 141. For each business acquisition, the purchase price is
allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at
the acquisition date. Any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the
identifiable net assets acquired, including identifiable mtanglble assets, is recorded-as.
goodwill. A :

On September 3, 2003, the Company acquired all of the outstanding common stock of ESC
in exchange for cash consideration of $18.9 m|II|on mcludmg certain acqmsmon expenses.

The estimated fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired as of September 3, 2003
including goodwill, are summarized in thousands as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents _
Accounts receivable ........ R . il SN 9,934
Prepaid expenses .............. U S S SRR 367
Propertyandequ:pment net..‘.; ...... e R A " & ¥
Goodwill ... v, e T 7,556
Intangible @SSets .......iiiiiiii i i e 4,970
Other GSSES ...\ uu ettt e e et a et iaa e et g e e iaaeeannsans 104
Accounts payable ... ... i L (3,361)
Accrued expenses ...... i S el {1,326)
Deferred income ........... ... ... e e ieeeaed el (183)
Other liabilities ....... e SR P P P {27)
~ $18,898

The operaﬁng results of ESC are included in the Company’s consolidated results of
operations for the period from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003 from
the date of acquisition (September 3, 2003).

The $7.6 million of goodwill has been allocated to the Company's consulting segment and
is fully deductible for U.S. tax purposes. Intangible assets acquired include $4.4 million
attributable to customer relationships and licenses that are being amortized ratably over 8
years, and $0.6 million attributable to non-compete agreements that are being amortized
ratably over three years. Total amortization expense for the period from May 23, 2003 (date of
incorporation) to December 31, 2003.was approximately $0.3-million. Future expected
expenses related to the amortization of intangibles are as-follows:

Year ending December 31,

2004 . e e e e e e e b e e $ 740
200D L e e e e e et s 740
2006 .. e e e e e e e e 677
2007 .. . e PL e e e e - 'BB0
2008 ... S ee e R A 550
2009 and thereafter ........... I e e e 1,467

$4,724

On October 28, 2003, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Quanta
Specialty Lines. The Company paid a cash purchase price of $26.1 miilion that represented the
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fair value of licenses and cash assets acquired at the acquisition date. Of the $26.1 million,
$25.8 million was allocated to cash and cash equivalents acquired, with the remainder of $0.25
million being assigned to an indefinite lived non-amortizable intangible asset representing the
fair value of the insurance license acquired. Quanta Specialty Lmes had not, .engaged in
business prior to the acquisition date

On December 19, 2003, the Company acqutred all of the outstandmg capltal stock of
Quanta Indemnity (formerly NFU Standard) for a cash purchase price of $22.6 million. In
conjunction with the acquisition, and under the terms of a transfer and assumption agreement,
NFU agreed to assume from Quanta Indemnity all of its underwriting contracts and their
associated liabilities in effect at the time of acquisition, except those agreements for which
regulatory approval of the transfer and assumption has yet to be obtained. For those contracts
pending regulatory approval, NFU has reinsured Quanta Indemnity for 100% of their ‘
associated liabilities and will assume these reinsured contracts when it obtains regulatory
approval. The total purchase price paid was allocated to the fair value of (a)statutory deposits
acquired of approximately $13.8 million, (b) accrued investment income of $0.2 million, (c)
unearned premiums of $1.6 million and loss and loss expense reserves of $3.5 m!lhon
associated with retained underwriting contracts that were not assumed by NFU, (d) the
corresponding reinsurance assets relating to the reinsurance of retained underwriting
contracts provided by NFU, and (e) indefinite lived intangible assets that are not subject to
amortization of $8.6 million, representing the fair value of the insurance Ilcenses acqunred

The following unaudited pro forma information provides the combined results of .,
opérations of the Company, for the period from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to
December 31, 2003, as if the acquisitions of ESC and Quanta Indemnity had occurred as of
May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation), after giving effect to certain adjustments, including
amortization of intangible assets. The unaudited pro forma financial information does not
necessarily reflect the results of operations that would have occurred had the Company, ESC
and Quanta Indemnlty constltuted a smgle entity during the period:

Unaudited
Pro Forma
Total revenues .......... e ..... $25957.
Netloss ©........ T T SRS S PNPRPE . (38,079)
Basic loss per share ........ e R L0088 (121
Diluted loss per share ........ c.iciiiiiieiiiinn, S 2]

The purchase of Quanta Spemalty Lmes has been excluded from the pro. forma financial
information because it is not considered a business for purposes of presenting pro forma
financial information

4. Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses

The Company’s estimation of future ultimate loss liabilities is inherently subject to
significant uncertainties. These uncertainties are driven by many variables that are difficult to
quantify. These uncertainties include, for example, the period of time between the occurrence
of an insured loss and actual settlement, fluctuations in inflation, prevailing economic, social
and judicial-trends, legislative changes, internal and third party claims handling procedures,
and the lack of complete historical data on which to base loss expectations.

The estimation of unpaid loss liabilities will be affected by the type or structure of the
policies the Company has written. For direct insurance business, the Company often assumes
risks for which claims experience will tend to be frequency driven. As a result; historical loss
development data may be available and traditional actuarial methods of loss estimation may
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be used. Conversely, the. available ‘amount:of relevant loss experience used to quantify the
emergence; severity:and payout.characteristics.of loss liabilities is:limited for policies written
where the Company expects that potentral Iosses wrll be charactenzed by lower frequency but
higher seventy claims.

The estimation of unpald loss llabrlmes wrll also vary in subjectivity dependmg on the
lines or class of business involved. Short;tail business describes lines of business for which
losses become known and paid in a relat|ve|y short penod time after the loss actually occurs.
Typically, there will be less variability in the ultimate amount of losses from claims incurred in
the short-tail lines that the Company writes such as property, marine, and aviation. Long-tail
business pertains to lines of business for which actual losses may not bé known for some time
or for which the actual amount of loss may take a significantly longer period of time to
emerge .or develop. The Company wntes professional and environmental lines of busmess that
are generally considered longer 'tail in nature. Because loss emergence and settlement periods
can be many years in duration, these lines of ‘business W||I have’ more vanablllty in'the
estimates of their loss and loss expense reserves.: :

eyt ot v ST e e BSL  fe s
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The following table represents the activity in the reserve for losses and.loss adjustment
expenses for the period from May 23, 2003 (date of mcorporatlon) to December 31, 2003

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses at beginning of * o
7= 1 o Lo 1P $ —
Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable ............. el —

Net reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses at begmnmg of

PERIOd ... s i T AT =
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses ‘of Quanta ‘

Indemnity N L

at date of acquisition ...... S e e P T .7 4
Less Iosses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable e P 472)

Net reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses of Quanta e e
Indemnity at date of acquisition ..... N P

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred related to losses
occurring in:

0NN - o) Y 7Y T 1,191
PriOr Years .. i e e e e —
Total net incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses .............. 1,191

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses paid related to losses
occurring in:
LR T Y o) A 7Y T —
Prioryears ....... .. i e —

Total net paid losses and loss adjustment expenses ................. —

Net reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses at end of period

1,191
Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable ................... 3,263
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses at end of period ... $ 4,454

As of Decembe.r 31, 2003, both the reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses and the
loss expense recoverable asset included $3.2 million related to the acquisition of Quanta
Indemnity and the reinsurance provided by NFU (see Note 3).

For the period from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003, the
Company has not received any notification of reported losses. Given the lack of loss
development experience, the primary reserving method adopted by the Company for the
period was an expected loss ratio methodology whereby estimates of ultimate loss liabilities
have been established by calculating the product of earned premiums and expected loss
ratios. This method is commonly applied when there is insufficient loss development
experience available. Management believes that the assumptions used represent a realistic
and appropriate basis for currently estimating the reserve for losses and loss adjustment
expense. However, these assumptions are subject to change and while management believes
it has made a reasonable estimate of loss expenses, the ultimate costs of claims incurred
could exceed the Company’s reserves and have a materially adverse effect on its future restilts
of operations and financial condition.
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5. 'Reinsurance

The Company utilizes reinsurance and retrocessional agreements principally to increase
aggregate capacity and to limit net exposures to'losses arising on business assumed. The
Company's reinsurance agreements provide for the recovery of a portion of losses and loss
expenses from reinsurers. Reinsurance assets due from our reinsurers include losses and loss
adjustment expenses recoverable and deferred reinsurance premiums. The Company is
subject to credit risk with respect to reinsurance ceded because the ceding of risk does not
relieve the Company from its primary obligations to its policyholders. The Company did not

record any credit losses for the period from May 23, 2003 (date of mcorporatlon) to December
31, 2003.

The effect of reinsurance activity on premiums written, earned and Ios'ses{ and loss
expenses incurred from operations for the penod from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to
December 31, 2003 is shown below: »

Losses and
Adjustment

Period from May 23, 2003 {date of Premiums. Premiums Loss Expenses
incorporation) to December 31, 2003 Written Earned Incurred
Direct Insurance ...............c.....on. $ 7,469 $ 399 $ 219
Reinsurance Assumed ................ 12,996 1,601 1,008
Ceded ......oooiiinnat, e Ve (405) C . (60) ' {(36)
Net ....ovivvnnnnnn. iiiiieeeeieo.. $20,060 $1,940 0 $1,191

The Company recorded reinsurance recoveries on losses and loss adjustment expenses
incurred of approximately $36,000 relating to business ceded for the period from May 23, 2003
{date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003. Included in losses and loss adjustment expenses
recoverable at December 31, 2003 is $3.2 million of amounts recoverable from NFU under the
terms of the acquisition and reinsurance agreements related to the purchase of Quanta
indemnity from NFU (see Note 3).
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QUANTA CAPITAL:HOLDINGS LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL:STATEMENTS - (Continued)

{(Expressed-in‘thousands except for.share and.per share amounts,; ‘unless otherwise stated)

6. Investments

The amortrzed cost or.cost, fair value and related gross. unrealized. gains and losses of
fixed maturity and short term investments are as follows:

Amortized - Gross - Gross .-

‘ Cost or  Unrealized Unreahzed :

December 31 2003 o Cost Gains Losses - Fair-Value
Fixed matuntles L h :

u. S government and. . . AT o T )

’ government agencres..‘;....'...» $146,466 $ 143 $ (6) -~ $146,603

Forergn governments .......... 13,144 251 (28) - 13,367
-Tax-exempt mummpal .......... 5,716 152 — 5,868
“Corporate ..oVl e o e 124,160 0 694 - o (B3) --...124,701
- Asset-backed securities . 117, L. 8,092 30 - — 8122

Mortgage backed securities ... .. 88,904 419 - (18) 89,305
Total Laoivviiinit e $386,482 $1,689 = $(105). $387,966
Short term mvestments

-Us;S. government and o

‘government. agencres.,.,.‘.‘ ..... $ 6970 $ — $ — % 6970

Corporate e rreneaeenn el . 72000 0 — 0 = 72,100

Total .ovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie .. $79070 $ — $ —  $79,070

As of December 31, 2003, the Company held as part of rts self-managed avallable for—sale
fixed maturlty portfolio, $20. 0 million of par ‘valué principal at risk’i insurance linked securities
lssued by a single issuer. The mvestment in the insurance linked security is subject to loss of
prlncrpal in the event of the occurrence of certain predefined changes in mortality. As of
December 31, 2003, the fair value of the security was $20.0 million and represented
approximately 4% of the Company’s total cash and invested assets.

Those fixed maturity investments with unrealized losses as of December 31, 2003, and
their fair values are summarized as follows:

i Unrealized Losses

Total
Less than  Greater than Unrealized
December 31, 2003 Fair Value 12 months 12 months Losses
Fixed maturities:
U.S. government and
government agencies......... $13,910 $ (6) - $— $ (6)
Foreign governments........... 7,455 (28) — (28)
Corporate ..................... 21,715 (563) — (63)
Mortgage-backed securities .. ... 7,462 {18) = {18)
Total ...ovviiii $50,542 $(105) $— $(105)

For the period from May 23, 2003 (date incorporation) to December 31, 2003, the Company
did not identify any securities with declines in value that were considered to be
other-than-temporary.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands except for share and per share amounts, unless otherwise stated)
Contractual maturities of the Company’s fixed maturities as of December 31, 2003 are

shown below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may
have the nght to call or prepay obhgatnons with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized
December 31, 2003\ Cost or Cost  Fair Value
Fixed Matuntles o ' _ ‘

Due in one year or- €SS \evirvinnnn e .. $ 538 $ 5,383
Due after one year through five years .............: 244,808 245,317
Due after five yéars through 10years ............... - 37,843 38,322
Due after 10years ................... AR 1,449 1,517

» , 289,486 - 290,539

. Mortgage and asset-backed securities .............. 96,996 97,427
TOMAl e $386,482  $387,966

The components of net investment income for the period from May 23, 2003 (date of -
incorporation) to December 31, 2003 were derived from the following sources:

Period from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003

Fixed maturities .................oooiiiiiiaan. e e $1,739
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments ............... 780
Gross investment income ..........coiiiiiiiiiii i 2,519
INVeStMENt EXPeNSES .. . ittt it ieeietatnsn i i aaaana, 29
Net investment income ..................... e ceees e $2,290

Gross realized pre-tax investment gains and losses for the period from May 23, 2003 (date
of incorporation) to December 31, 2003, were approximately $0.7 million and $0.6 million,
respectively. All gains and losses were realized from the sale of fixed maturity investments.
Total gross proceeds realized from the sale of fixed maturities and short-term investments
were $323.9 million aqd_$5_3.2 million, respectively.
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7. Segment Information

The following table summarizes the segment results before tax for each operating
segment for the penod from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003:

Statement of operatlons by operating segment

Insurance Reinsurance Consulting

Ad;ustments
and

eilmlnatlons Consolldated

Gross premlums written ..o ..oenon.. ..
Premiums ceded .....................

Net premiums’ earned ................
Consuiting revenues "...............
Other income ........ e
Net losses and loss expense uncurred .

Direct consultmg costs ...... I
Acquisition costs ...... P SRR

General and admlmstratwe expenses

Net underwriting or consultlng lncome"
General and administrative expenses .

Depreciation and amortnzatlon of
intangibles ........... .0 00 0 oo
Net investment income ...............
Net realized gains on investments
Otherincome ........................
Non-cash stock compensation expense

Net loss before income taxes ......... .

$7,469 .
(405),

$12,996

s —

$ —

$ 20,465
(405)

7,064 .

12,996

20,060

339

183

247

1,601

1,008 .

140

12,261
100

8,637

2,657

(581)

1,940

11,680
100
1,191
8,637
164
2,657

$ 1,067

1,071

g 132

'$ 453

$(581)

24,814

434
2,290
109
26

16,725
" $(38,477)

Items of revenue and expense resulting from charges between operating segments are -
eliminated on consolidation of the segments. During the period from May 23, 2003 (date of
incorporation) to December 31, 2003, the consulting segment charged the underwriting
segments $0. 6 mllllon for consulting services rendered.
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Summarized financial information by geographic location for the period May 23, 2003
(date of incorporation) December 31, 2003 is as follows:

Adjustments

Statement of operations by geographic location - Bermuda Europe us. elim?nna(:ions Consolidated
Net premiums earned ..... e $ 1940 $ — § — $ = $ 1940
Consulting revenues .................. — — 11,680 —_ 11,680
Net investment income ............... 2,218 — 141 (69) 2,290
Net realized gains on investments ..... 109 — — — 109
Otherincome .........t . viiean... e 26 516 100 {516) 126

Total revenues ...... [, o 4,293 516 11,921 (585) 16,145
Net losses and loss expense incurred. .. 1,191 — — o — 1,191
Acquisitioncosts ........... ... ..., 164 — — — 164
Direct consulting costs ................ — — 8,637 - 8,637
General and administrative expenses. .. 19,887 885 7,284 (585) 27,471
Non-cash stock compensation expense . 16,725 — — — 16,725
Depreciation and amortization ......... 3 2 429 — 434

Total expenses ......... TR 37,970 _887 _ 16,350 (585) _ 54,622
Net loss before income taxes .......... $(33,677) $(371) $ (4,429) $- —  $(38,477)
Identifiable assets by geographic ‘

location .................cciiiinn. $629,245 $213 $150,905 $(206,602) $573,761

Revenues, expenses, investments in and amounts due from affiliated entities across
geographic locations are eliminated on the consolidation of the geographic results of
operations and geographic identifiable assets.

8. Commitments and contingencies
a) Concentrations of credit risk

As of December 31, 2003, substantially all of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents,
and investments were held by a single custodian that management considers being of high
credit quallty The Companys externally managed investment guidelines limit the amount of
credit exposure to any one issuér, other than the U.S. Treasury, to 5% of total portfolio market
value: As of December 31, 2003, the largest single non-U.S. Treasury issuer accounted for less
than 1% of the aggregate market value of the externally managed portfolios.

The Company maintains a substantial portion of its cash and cash equuvalents in two
fmancual mstltutlons that the Company consnders to be of high quality. .

Other accounts recelvable as of December 31, 2003, consist principally of amounts relating
to consulting engagements and include $6. 3 million in billed accounts receivable and $2.6
million in unbilled amounts for work in progress. The Company extends credit to its customers
in the normal course of business and monitors the balances of individual accounts to assess
any collectibility issues. The Company has not expenenced significant losses related to
receivables in the past S

b) Pledged assets

As of December 31, 2003,' investment securities with an estimated fair value of $14.0
million were on deposit with various U.S. state or other government insurance departments in
order to comply with relevant insurance regulations:.
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{(Expressed in-thousands except for share and per share amounts, unless otherwise stated)

As of December 31, 2003, $2.3 million of cash and cash equivalents were pledged as
collateral for a letter of credit issued by the Company’s bankers in favor of Quanta U.S.
Holdings' landlord relating to a lease agreement for office space.

As of December 31, 2003, $8.3 million of cash and cash equivalents were held in trust to
fund the Company’s obligations associated with the assumption of an environmental
remediation liability.

c¢) Letters of credit

- As of December 31, 2003, the Company had letters of credit outstanding in the amount of
$0.6 million that were issued in favor of various third parties in the normal course of
reinsurance operations.

d) Lease cornmitments

The Company leases office space and furniture and equipment under operating lease
agreements. Certain office space leases include an escalation clause that calls for annual
increases to the base rental payments. Rent. expenses are being recogmzed on a straight-line
basis over the respective lease terms.

Future annual minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December
31, 2003, are as follows:

Year ending December 31,

{1 $ 3,304
2005 . e e 3,806
/4 0101 T 3,821
2007 e e et 3,706
4 < T S P 2,770
2009 and thereafter ..o iini i i i i et e e 27,265

$44,672

Total rent expense under operatmg leases for the period from May. 23 2003 (date of
mcorporatlon) to December 31, 2003, was approximately $1.4 miliion.

e} Line of credrt _

As of December 31, 2003, ESC had a line of credit with a U.S. commercial bank in the
amount of $1,000,000. Any borrowings from the line of credit are secured by business assets -
of ESC, as defined under the credit agreement. The interest rate charged is subject to change
from time to time based on changes in an index, which is the base rate as set by the bank (4%
as of December 31 2003) The Company has not yet drawn on this line of credit.

f) Business acqunsmons

Under the terms of the ESC purchase agreement the former shareholders of ESC,
including certain officers and employers of the Company, have a right to receive an earn-out
payment that is contingent upon ESC achieving specified earnings targets as defined in the -
purchase agreement. Under the earn-out arrangements, if ESC’s néet income before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization {("EBITDA”) for the two-year period ending December 31,
2005, is $7.5 million or greater, the Company will be obligated -to pay an additional $5.0 million
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{Expressed in.thousands except for share and per share amounts, unless otherwise stated)

to ESC’s previous shareholders. If EBITDA is greater than $7.0 million and less-than $7.5-
million for the two-year period ending December 31, 2005 then the Company- will be requnred
to pay a pro rata portion of the $5.0 million. For the purposes. of the earn-out. computatlon
EBITDA excludes (i) the effect of the purchase. method of accounting adjustments relating to
the ESC acquisition, {ii) bonuses inconsistent with ESC's past practice paid to any of ESC’s
prior shareholders who remain employees of ESC, and (iii) charges or alloca_tlons from the
Company to ESC for any management or overhead where the Company provides no services
to ESC.

Additional earn-out distributions to the ESC previous shareholders, if any, will be recorded
as an adjustment to the purchase price of ESC at the time such payment becomes pald or
payable.

g) Taxation

Quanta Holdings is a Bermuda corporation and, except as described in Note:10 below,
neither it nor its non-U.S. subsidiaries have paid or provided for U.S. income taxes on'the
basis. that they are not engaged, in a U.S..trade or business or otherwise subject to taxation in
the U.S. However, because definitive identification of activities which constitute being engaged
in a trade or business in the U.S. is not.provided by the Internal Revenue -Code of 1986,
regulations or court decisions, there can be no.assurance that the Internal Revenue Service ‘
will not contend that the Company or its non-U.S. subsidiaries.are engaged-in a U.S. trade or.
business or -otherwise subject.to taxation: If the Company or its non-U.S. subsidiaries. were:
considered to be engaged in a trade or business in the U.S., the Company or such subsidiaries
could be subject to U.S. tax at regular corporate tax rates on its taxable income, if any, that is
effectively connected with such U.S. trade or business plus an additional 30% “branch profits”
tax on such income remaining, if any, after the regular corporate taxes, in which case there
could be a S|gn|f|cant adverse effect on the Companys results of operatlons and |ts financial
condition. - ‘ S : C

h) Employment agreements

The . Company has entered into employment agreements with certain, ofﬁcers that prowde
for severance payments and executlve beneflts under certam cnrcumstances

F-27




QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued).

{Expressed in thousands except for share and per share amounts, unless otherwise stated)

9. Earnings per share

"The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for
the perlod from May 23, 2003 (date of mcorporatlon) to December 31, 2003:

Basic earnings per share -
Net oSS .. it e e e eei e P e $ - (38,477)

Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic ........... 31,369,001
Basic 0SS Per Share. .. .oo.viii ittt $  (1.23)
Diluted earnings per share E : . _ o
Nt lOSS i ittt i e e e e - $  (38,477)
Weighted average common shares outstanding ................... 31,369,001
Weighted average common share equivalents L
WAITANTS ottt eteteee et e e iee e eerraenenns AU e —
0] T T R \' =
Weighted average common shares outstanding — diluted. .. Cee e _'31,369,001

Diluted loss per share ..... ke e $ (1.23)

Due to net losses for the period from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December
31, 2003, the assumed net exercise, under the treasury stock method, of options and warrants
has been excluded, as the effect would have been anti-dilutive. Weighted average common
share equivalents exclude 2,542,813 warrants and. 2,892,900 options, because their effect is
anti-dilutive. o

10. Taxation

Under current Bermuda law, the Company and certain of its Bermuda subsidiaries are not
required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on its income or realized capital gains. The Company
has received an undertaking from the Minister of Finance of Bermuda that, in the event of any
taxes being imposed, the Company will be exempt from taxation in Bermuda unt|I March
2016.

Quanta U.S. Holdlngs and its operatmg subS|d|ar|es are subject to mcome taxes imposed
by U.S. authorities. The Company’s ‘Operating units in the United Kingdom and Ireland are
subject to the relevant income taxes imposed by those jurisdictions.

Effective August 15, 2003, Quanta U.S. Re made an election under Section 953(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (“IRC"), as amended, to treat the company as a domestic
corporation for United States federal income tax purposes. As a result of the “domestic
election”, Quanta U.S. Re is subject to U.S taxation on its worldwide income as if it were a
U.S. corporation,

Quanta U.S. Holdings together with its operating subsidiaries, Quanta U.S. Re, and Quanta
Intermediary Services Inc., have elected to file a consolidated U.S. tax return. Under IRC
Section 953(d), net operating losses generated by Quanta U.S. Re may only be carried back
two years and forward twenty years and offset past or future U.S. federal taxable income that
is generated by Quanta U.S. Re.

The Company is not subject to taxation other than as stated above. There can be no
assurance that there will not be changes in applicable laws, regulations or treaties, which
might require the Company to become subject to taxation (see Note 8(g)).
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The consolidated income tax provisions for the period from May 23, 2003 {date of
incorporation) to December 31, 2003, are as follows and were allocated wholly to income from
continuing operations:

Current tax expense {benefit)
L T =T 1Y - s —
US. State ........ B L EEE RSP EE _ —

Non-US..........ccoiinn. [ e _ —

Total current expense (benefit)............ ... ..o il i, —
Deferred tax expense (benefit) ‘ ’

U.S. Federaland State .................. P (6,130)
US.State ..o e, R —
NON-UL S, L e e

Change in valuation allowance ......................... P 61

Total deferred expense (benefit) ...............civveevnnnn. PR
Total income tax expense (benefit) ....................... N $ —

w
=3

No current U.S. or foreign income taxes were paid or payable during the perlod from May
23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003.

Income tax benefit attributable to income from continuing operations for the period from
May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003 differed from amounts computed
by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% to income before taxation as a result of
the following:

Computed expected tax benefit............... ... .coo il - $(13,467)
Foreign loss not subject to U.S. tax ..... e e 7,270
Income subject to tax at forelgn rates ... e s 45
Other ....... e e e e i L 22
Effect of valuation allowance ............. e . 8,130
State income taxes...... SO e [ e —

Actual income tax-expense (benefit) .......... ... L8 —

F-29




QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued).

{(Expressed in thousands except for share and, per share amounts, unless otherwise:stated}

Deferred income taxes reflect the tax impact of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting ppurposes and those for -

as of December 31, 2003 are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

Bonus provisions ............. AT T D ceee. $2,394
Reserve forlosses and loss adjustment expenses. e R )
Unearned premiums . ......ovvvinnennnn. it . e ... . 865
Deferredincome..................ccoounnn Ve e el T B22
Net operating loss carry forwards...............0vo occvos 24,449
Total deferred tax assets .................. FEUT sl 8,342
Deferred tax liabilities: B
. Deferred acquisition costs ........oooiean i ol {1,863)
Net unrealized investment gains........ e e S e i e e 0 7(102)
Amortization of intangibles...... R Dl P SO {62)
Prepaid BXPENSES v v ittt i e e (98)
Depreciation ........ S A e Lo {171).
Other ..... e e e inie e e (18)
Total deferred tax llabvlmes .................................
 Valuation allowance. ... ... i e
Net deferred tax Ilabuhty ...........................................

As of December 31, 2003, the Company has net operating loss carry forwards for U.S.
federal income tax purposes of approximately $12.7 million, which are available to offset
future U.S. federal taxable income through 2023. Approximately $10.6 million of the net’
| operating loss carry forwards are dual consolidation losses generated by Quanta U.S. Re and
. . can only be used to offset future taxable i income earned by Quanta U.S. Re. e

As a new company with limited operating h|st0ry, the realization’ 'of defefred tax assets
from future taxable income and future reversals of existing taxable temporary diffeféfces is
currently neither-assured nor accurately determinable. Accordingly, the:Company has'made a
provision against . 100% of its net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2003.
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11. Shareholders’ equity

a) Authorized shares

The authorized ordinary share capital of the Company consists of 200,000,000 common
shares of par value $0.01 each and 25,000,000 preferred shares of a par value $0.01 each. The
following table is a summary of common shares issued and outstanding - for the perlod from
May 23, 2003 (the date of incorporation) to December 31 2003:

Issued and outstanding shares begmnmg of period . TR =

Shares issued .......ccovviieunniiinnnnnn. EEE TR .o.ie.... B7,291,262
Shares repurchased and retired. ..... e RIS e ... _(493,044)
Issued and outstanding shares, end of penod Cersrenaean . .1. - . 56, 798, 218

There were no issued and outstandmg preferred shares as of December 31 2003

On July 10 2003, the Company effected a one hundred for one stock split whereby each
of the Company’s common shares of the then par value of $1.00.were divided into one
hundred common shares of par value $0.01 each. All share and per share data.included in-
these consolidated financial statements have been presented to reflect the stock split for the
entire period. - » «

On December 22, 2003, the Company sold 291,262 common shares to one of its
Directors in a privately negotiated transaction for $10.30 per share. :

See Note 1 for a further discussion of shares lssued repurchased and retired durmg the
period. ‘ :

b) Founders warrants and options

In connectlon with the closing of-the Private Offermg, the Company |ssued (a). to entities
controlled by the Founders, warrants to purchase up to 4.5% of the aggregate number of
outstandmg common shares as of September 3,.2003, or 2,542,813 common shares and (b} to
certain of its officers, options to purchase up to 2. 15% of the aggregate number of outstandmg
common shares as of September 3, 2003, or 1,214, 900 common, shares

The warrants and options issued are exercisable at a price of $10.00 per share The
warrants were immediately and fully exercisable at the time of issuance and the options
become exercisable in four equal annual increments during a four year period commencing on
the first anniversary date of the grant and become fully exercisable on the fourth annlversary
of the grant date.

12. Employee benefit plans

a) Pension plans

The Company provides pension benefits to eligible employees through various defined
contribution plans, including 401(k) plans, sponsored by‘fhe Company."Under these plans,
employee contributions may be supplemented by the Company matching donations based on
the level of employee contribution up to certain maximum amounts. Expenses incurred
relating to these plans during the period from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to
December 31, 2003, totaled $87,400.
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b) Options and stock based compensation -

In July 2003, the shareholders of the Company approved the long-term incentive plan (the
“Incentive Plan”). The Incentive Plan provides for the grant to eligible employees, directors
and consultants of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted shares, restricted share
units, performance awards, dividend equivalents and other share-based awards. The Incentive
Plan is administered by the Company and the Compensation Committee. of the Board of
Directors. The Compensation Committee determines the dates, amounts, exercise prices,
vesting periods and other relevant terms of the awards. Recipients of awards may exercise at
any time after they vest and before they expire, except that no awards may be exercised after
ten years from the date of grant. :

As of December 31, 2003, the maximum number of shares available for award and
issuance under the Incentive Plan was 5,850,000.

During the period from May 23 2003 (date of incorporation) to December: 31 2003; the
Company awarded options, including those options described in Note 11, to purchase
2,892,900 common shares to its. employees, officers.and directors, at a weighted average
exercise price equal to $10.01 per share. The options granted-become exercisable in four equal
annual increments during a four year period commencing on the first-anniversary date of the
grant and become fully exercisable on the fourth anniversary of the grant date. As of
December 31, 2003, 2,892,900 options had been granted with vesting. dates between
September 3,-2004 and December 15, 2007.

No options granted were exercised, expired or forfelted during the penod from May 23,
2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003. .

The Company did not incur any compensation expense relating to the grant of option
awards in the period from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003 because
all options granted had an exercise price that approximated the fair market value of the
underlying common stock of the Company on the date of the grant

Included in the general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
operations and comprehensive income is $16.7 million of non-cash stock compensahon
expense relating to (a) common shares issued to the Founders in connection with the initial
capntahzatlon of the Company, resulting in a total expense of $15.0 million that represented the
aggregate difference between the Founders’ cost per share of $0.01 and the Private Offering
price per share of $10.00 and (b) common shares issued to certain directors’ and officers of the
Company, resulting in a total expense of $1.7 million that represented the difference between
a cost per share'to- those directors and officers of $9.30 and the Private Offenng price per
share of $10.00.: :

13. Related party transactions

The Company entered into an advisory agreement in June 2003 with FBR. Under this
agreement, FBR may from time to time provide financial advisory advice and assistance to the
Company in connection with certain mergers and acquisitions and capital raising transactions.
The agreement is effective until March 3, 2005. Under the terms of the agreement, FBR's
compensation for services provided shall be agreed between the Company and FBR on an
arms-length basis. In connection with the Private Offering, FBR received a placement fee equal
to 7.0% of the gross proceeds received by the Company from the sale of a portion of the
securities sold in the offering. This fee was approximately $33.8 million, and was recorded as
offering costs as a reduction to additional paid-in capital.

ESC has a contractual agreement with Industrial Recovery Capntal Holdmgs Company
("IRCC") to perform environmental remediation services for IRCC. IRCC is owned by certain
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shareholders and officers of the Company. As of December 31, 2003, receivables due to ESC .
from IRCC totaled $32,000. For the period ended December 31, 2003, revenues related to
services provided to JRCC totaled $291,000. In addition ESC performs mcrdental admmrstratlve
services on behalf of IRCC for no fee. :

The Company entered into a term loan agreement with BEMI. Under the Ioan agreement,
BEMI agreed to provide term loans to the Company of up to $10.0 million in the aggregate,
bearing interest at a rate of 9% per annum. Proceeds from the loans in the aggregate amount
of $2.0 million were used to fund certain start-up and other expenses associated with the
Private Offering. The loans were repard in full upon the closing of the Private Offenng The
Company recognized interest expense relating to these loans of $33 000 durmg the period
from May 23, 2003 (date of incorporation) to December 31, 2003.

In connection with the purchase of ESC, $5671,000 of the purchase price remains
outstanding and payable te ESC’s former shareholders-as of December 31, 2003 and is
recorded in other-liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. Of this amount, $398,000 is due
to certain former ECS shareholders who became employees and officers ‘of the Company
under the terms of the ESC acquisition agreement.

14, Litigation

During the period from May 23, 2003 {date of rncorporatron) to December 31 2003, CNA
Financial Corporation (“CNA”), filed actions against one of the Company’s executive officers,
who subsequently resigned, and an action against certain other employees of the Company,
all of whom had previously worked for CNA. CNA also indicated that it believed it had
grounds to bring an action against the Company. The Company advanced to the defendants
their costs and expenses associated with the defense of these actions. To avord the cost and
distraction of litigation with CNA, and while expressly denying any wrongdoing by the
Company or its employees, the Company agreed to settle CNA's asserted and threatened
claims. As part of the settlement, the Company paid CNA approximately $1.14 million. In
addition, the Company incurred approximately $698,000 in costs and expenses relating to the
actual and threatened litigation and the settlement thereof

15. Statutoryrfmanclal information and dividend restrictions

The Company is subject to a 30% withholding tax on certaln dividends. and interest
received from its U. S subsidiaries.

The Company’s insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries are subject to insurance laws and
regulations in the jurisdictions in which they operate. These regulations include restrictions
that limit the amount of dividends or other distributions available to shareholders without
prior approval of the insurance regulatory authorities. Typically, these restrictions relate to
minimum levels of 'solvency, capital and hquudlty as defined by the relevant insurance laws
and regulations.

The Bermuda. Insurance Act 1978 and Related Regulatlons (the “Act”) requires that the
Company's wholly owned subsidiaries, Quanta Bermuda and Quanta U.S. Re, meet a
minimum capital and surplus of $100.0 million and $1.0 million, respectively. The statutory .
capital and surplus of Quanta Bermuda and Quanta U.S. Re as of December 31, 2003, was
approximately $478.2 million and $37.7 million, respectively.

In addition, Quanta Bermuda and Quanta U.S. Re must maintain a minimum liquidity ratio
whereby relevant assets, as defined by the Act, must exceed 75% of relevant liabilities. As of
December. 31, 2003, the minimum liquidity ratio was met by both companies.
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QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.

'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. Unaudited quarterly financial lnformatlon

{Expressed in thousands except for share and per share amounts, uniess otherwise stated)

Followmg is'a summary of quarterly financial data for the period from May 23 2003 (date
of incorporation) to December 31, 2003:

Period from

Quarter Ended May 23, 2003 to -

December 31, September 30, -
o ! 2003 : 2003 -
Netpremlumearned ..... $ 1,940 $ —
Consultlng révenues ...... U 7,890 " ’ 3,790 o
Net investment income.............. S 1941 349
Net realized gains on investments. ........... Lo 09 o —
Otherincome...... ..o ivilivineivnennnsenives o0 126 i 0p oz
_Total revenues A T $12,006°  $4139
Net Ioss and loss expenses mcurred i 9 ,“’.191) 3 $ . — o
Acquisition costs....... e P SUUSSURER SENNE [:7) INNEIE - SR
Direct consulting costs ........icoviviinnnann. $ (6,136) $ (2,501)°
' General and admlnustratlve expenses. e $(1‘9,330)‘ ’ $(24;866),
Net 1085 . .............. TR e $15,148) . $(23,329)
' Basnc loss pef share....... SO $ ©2n % (1.75)
Diluted loss pershare ..........cooevvenveuenne. . $.10.27) . $ (1.75)
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Report of Independent Audltors

To the Board of Dlrectors and Shareholders of
Enwronmental Strategles Corporation - '

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related
consolidated statements-of operations, of changes in shareholders’ equity and of cash ﬂows
present fairly, in all material respects the financial _position of Environmental Strategnes
Corporation and its subsidiary (the ”Company") at December 31, 2001 and. 2002; and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. In addmon, in"our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the’
accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein
when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These -
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.'We conducted our

-audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted:in the
United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurarice about whether the financial statements are free of. material - ,
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and-disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used-and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our. audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ F:"r'iCewaterhouse'Coopers LLP

Mclean, Virginia
April 29, 2003
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

December 31, -

2001 2002
Assets ‘ ‘
Cash and cash equivalents .......... TR P $ 74072 $ . 72,636
Accounts recenvable net of allowance for doubtful accounts of o
$300,000 and $362,000, respectively ............................... 8712145 8,492,310
Accounts recelvable — related pames ......... e ceeee. 218,411 558,935 .
Prepaid expenses and Other assets .........ceeeviiiieniiinaiiinnn. 511,604 373,603
Total current assets..... e - 9,516,232 9,497,484
Property and equipment, net =.;........ L e e B 546,827 516,952
Security deposits ... oo o e i i s e e e e o - 96:495 0. 116,541
Total assets .............. 00000 ... et LLio..0.. $10,159,554 $10,130,977
Liabilities T _
Accounts payable IR P e $ 3 218 636 $ 2,760,105
Accrued:exXpenses, CUITENT ... .. ie i e ensseannensin e, 383,331 477,247
Notes payable, current.......... B R T 07,928 9,480
Capital lease oblrgatrons current ....... T PR ‘ — 5,098
Deferred revenue.............. T S S S = 97,000
Total current Habilities . .....ccviiri i e i eeean 3,609,895 3,348,930
Note payable, less current portion.........coiiiii ittt iiiiiieennn 9,480 —
Accrued expenses, less current portion .......... ..o, - 161,115 52,036
Deferred rent . ... i e et 222,088 258,110
Capital iease obligations, less current portion ............ ..ol ' — 21,594
Total Habilities ... .....ovud ettt 4,002,578 _ 3,680,670
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)
Shareholders’ equity
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 1,100,000 shares authorized;
1,093,250 issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2001 and
2002 . e e e et e 10,933 10,933
Capitalinexcessof parvalue .......... ... ... .o i, 779,193 779,193
Retained earnings .......c.oiiiiiiiir ittt etae e iaaiianaas 5,336,850 5,660,181
Total shareholders’ equity ....... ... it 6,156,976 6,450,307
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ........................ $10,159,554 $10,130,977

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CORPORATION .
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS -

Revenues 4
Revenue........cooveniiiiinnennnn. et
Revenue — related pames (Note 8) ..oovnvevnnnnn.

Total‘ revenues

Cost and expenses

Direct costs ....... PP
Selling, general and admmlstratwe expenses ....
Bonus expense ... ..., .. e

‘Total cost and expenses
Operating income ...........o..... e
Interest income .............. PR, e

NEL INCOME < o e et et et e eaiiieens

Weighted average common shares...............
Basic and diluted net income per common share .

Pro forma data (unaudited):
Net income as shown above.....................
Pro forma provision for income taxes ............

Net income adjusted for pro forma income taxes .

Pro forma basic and diluted net income per
commonshare............coiiiiniiinn..

For the year ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002

| $28,615,955 $27,755918  $27,238,471
601,740 692,333 1,389,832
29,217,695  28,448251 28,628,303
17,615,484 17,576,260 17,192,593
9,112,646 8,348,092 8,156,023
670,538 445,000 609,093
27,398,668 26,369,352 25,957,709
1,819,027 2,078,899 2,670,594
53,471 33,503 22,737

$ 1,872,498 $ 2,112,402 $ 2,693,331
1,093,250 1,093,250 1,093,250

$ 171§ 193 § 2.46
$ 1,872,498 $ 2,112,402 $ 2,693,331
728,402 821,724 1,047,706

$ 1,144,096 $ 1,290,678 $ 1,645,625
$ 105 $ 118§ 1.51

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN- SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the year ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

Common Stock Capital in N
Excess of Retained
Shares Amount Par Value earnings Total .
Balance as of December 31, 1999 . 1,093,250  $10,933 $779,193 $ 6,778,950 $ 7,569,076
Distributions to shareholders. ..... ' — = © T — - (2,997,000) * (2,997,000)
Netincome .................... s ==  — 1,872,498 -_ 1,872,498
Balance as of December 31, 2000.. 1,093,250 $10,933 $779,193 5,654,448 6,444,574
Distributions to shareholders......" = — - . —  (2,400,000) (2,400,000)
Netiincome. ..... e — = C— 2,112,802 _ 2,112,402
Balance as of December 31, 2001.. 1,093,250 $10,933 - $779,193 5,366,850 6,156,976
Distributions to shareholders..... =~ =~ — — — (2,400,000) (2,400,000)
Net income ..............ooonin. = = — 2,693,331 _ 2,693,331

Balance as of December 31,2002 . 1,093,250 $10,933 $779,193 $5,660,181 $ 6,450,307

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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_ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CORPORATION
- CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31,
2000 2001 2002
Cash flows from operatmg activities o ,
Netincome .......ivviviieeneeniinienninsen.. $1,872,498 $2,112,402  $ 2,693,331
Adjustments to reconclle net income to net cash . : .
provided by operating activities R o : .
Depreciation.............oooiiiiiin .. 293,240 o 254,709 257,518
Provisions forbad debts .............cccviuvnnt. 66,060 150,000 62,000
Changes in assets and liabilities: - N Y
Accounts receivable .......... .. 0 0u il 1,100,864 .. - . 26,096 - (182,689)
Prepaid expenses and other assets ............ 99,444 {169,785) 138,001
Security deposits .......... P 1LY 13,317 (20,0486)
Accounts payable ............... . .00 (817,162) . 134,492 (458,5631)
Accrued eXpenses ................ueinn. e 434,393 66,680 (15,163)
Deferredrent ......... ..ol e 80,792 53,116 36,022
Deferred revenue ..... e SO e e s — — 97,000
Net cash provided by operating activities -.... - _ 3,140,186 2,641,027 2,607,443
Cash flows from investin'g activities ; _ | - : - |
Purchases of property and equipment. .......... . {119,519) . - (262,189) {200,951)
Net cash used" m mvestmg activities - ‘f'" o “‘(11‘9,519) (262,189) {200,951)
Cash flows from fmancmg actwmes e X . | - ‘
Distributions to shareholders .. ... eeesndieaaee. 0 (2,997,000) (2,400 000) (2,400,000)
Proceeds from notes payable.. e — 24, 069 v —
Repayment of notes payable e = ‘ ' (6,661) (7,928)
Net cash used in fmancmg actlvmes e (2,997,000) _(2,382,592) (2,407,928)
Net increase (decrease) |n cash i sieaie o '23,667 (‘3’,75'4) (1,436)
Cash at beginning of year ... 0...........o. oo 54,159 - 77,828 74,072
Cashatendofyear ................ PP $ 71826 $ 74072 $ 72,636
Supplemental information : S - : .
Interest paid ..........cveiiniiinanen e 8 552 $ 1,884 § 1,360
The accompénying noteé are an integfel part of these cbnso}idetea financial statemen‘ts
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ENVIRONMENTAL:STRATEGIES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Orgamzatron

Envrronmental Strategies Corporatron {the “Company”) is a full-service environmental
engineering, remediation, risk management and consulting firm specializing in environmental
remediation, mcludmg the desrgn and implementation of remedial investigations and
feasibility studies, regulatory analyses, technical support for environmental claims, merger and
acquisition due diligence and*environmental audits and risk assessments.

‘2 Srgmfrcant accountlng pohcres

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly
. owneéd 'subsidiary, Event Analy5|s Corporatlon All mtercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated. s :

The Companys srgmfrcant accountmg pohcres are as follows
a). Revenue recogmtron

Revenue is recognized when evidence of an arrangement for services exists, services have
been rendered, price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. The
.Company renders services under various short-term contractual arrangements, primarily on a
time and materials basis. From time to time, the Company retains subcontractors to perform
certain remediation services under the Company’s contracts with ‘its customeérs. Revenue is-
recognized on a gross basis when the Company is the primary obligor.in the arrangement. In-
2000, 2001 and 2002, approximately $8.2 million, $7.3 million and $7.0 million of direct costs,
exclusive of mark-up, respectively, related to these subcontractor arrangements.

.Revenue rncludes amounts. related to services performed but not yet billed to customers at
perlod end. Accounts réceivable are Irqurdated within the Companys norimal collection cycle
Certain arrangements allow customers to retain a portion of the invoiced amount until the’
“completion of the related task or-achievement of certain specified milestongs. The Company
"records the retained amounts as revenue when services are provided related to contractually
defined tasks or milestones, and collection is reasonably assured. These retarnage
arrangements occur only when specrflcally requested by, and negotlated with, the customer.
The Company does -not offer warranty or provide any other post-contract performance '
oblrgatlons SR . : : :

Prepayments from customers are recorded as deferred revenue and reflected as revenue
.as the related servrces are performed

b) Cash and cash equrvalents o

Cash equivalents are highly liquid instruments with an original maturity of three months
or less and consist of time deposits and investments in money market funds with commercial
banks and financial institutions.

¢) Property and equipment

Property and equipment, which consist of furniture, equipment, and leasehold
improvements, are stated at cost: Depréciation is computed using the accelerated method over
the estimated useful lives of the related agsets, ranging from five to seven years. Depreciation
of leasehold improvements is computed usmg the straight-line method over the shorter of the
estimated useful lives of the assets or the terms of the leases.

Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. At the time of retirement or other
disposal of property or equipment, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
deducted from their respectlve accounts and any resultmg gam or loss is mcluded in
operations. e ‘
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)-

d) Costs and expenses

Direct costs consist of payroll costs associated wrth direct labor incurred on service
engagements, other direct costs such as travel and subsrstence subcontractmg and other
contract expenses. Selling, general and admmlstratlve expenses mclude expenses such as
sales and marketing, costs for information systems, finance and accountlng, human resources,
and other infrastructure functions related to managing and growmg our busmess The
Company maintains a team of in-house technical consultants that assist in consulting
engagements. The costs associated with the direct hours spent by such téchnical consultants
on service engagements are included in direct costs. Costs of technical consultants associated
with business development-and admrnrstratlve and other non-client service related activities
are recorded in selling, generat and admlnlstratlye expenses :

e) Income taxes (unaudited) ‘ _

The Company has elected to be taxed as an “S Corporatron under the provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code. All revenues and expensés pass directly through to the Company’s
shareholders and, as such, no tax liability is reflected in the financial statements of the
Company. The Company converted from an S corporation to a “C Corporation” sibsequent to

the acquisition-by Quanta Reinsurange U.S. Ltd. Accordingly, pro forma. provision for income
tax expense is. reflected for all perlods presented to reflect the. Company as a C-corporation.

-y

f) Use of estlmates - g " B L JERCPI

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and ‘liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported .amounts of revenue.and- expenses. during the
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions.

g) Concentration of credit risk

Finaneial instruments which poetentially expose the Company .to.concentration of credit risk
consist primarily of cash and accounts receivable. The Company maintains its cash in bank
accounts, which at times may exceed federally-insured llmlts .The Company has not
expenenced any losses on such accounts.

Accounts recelvable consrst prmcrpally of amounts due from- credlt—worthy compames The
Company, extends credlt to.its customers in the normal course of busmess and monitors the
balances of lndlvrdual accounts to assess any collectlbrhty |ssues The. Company has not
expenenced S|gn|f|cant losses related to recelvables in the past. A. summary of customers
accounting for srgmfncant revenue and, accounts recelvable balances follows:

R‘eve'riue S Acco‘unts Receivable
zo’oo 2001 - zooz 2001 2002
" Customer A 24% 22% 0% 6% . 18%
. Customer B. 1% 10% 13% 12% 16%
Customer C.

9% 12% 3% . 1% 2%';

h) Stock based compensatron '

Employee stock awards under the Companys compensatlon plan are accounted for in
accordance with-Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting.for Stock Issued to
Employees” (“APB 25"), and related interpretations.-The-Company provides the disclosure
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CORPORATION-
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123”). Stock-based awards to non- employees are.
accounted for under the provisions of SFAS No. 123 ‘The Company did not incur- any
compensation_ expense related to stock based awards during 2000 2001 and 2002. The pro
forma net lmpact of applymg the fair value recogmtlon provrs«ons of SFAS No 123 was less
than $1,000 during 2000 2001 and 2002 ’

i) lmpalrment of Iong Ilved assets .

“The Company ‘evaluates the: recoverablllty of its' long hved assets when ‘events or changes
in circumstances’indicate the cartying amount of 'an-asset may riot bé récoverable. This
evaluation consists of comparing the carrying value of the asset with'the asset’s expected
undiscounted future cash flows. If the expected undiscounted future cash flows exceed the
carrying value of the asset, no impairment is recognized. Impairment losses:are:measured as
the difference between the carrying value of long-lived assets and their. estlmated falr value,
based. on dlscounted future cash flows or other methods ' :

s :\, £y

i) Earnlngs per share

* Basic earnings per-share i is’ computed using the welghted average number of common
sharés outstanding during'the period, and éxcludes any dilutive effects’ of éptions or warrants;:
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and
common stock equivalent shares outstanding during the period; common stock-equivalent:
shares are excluded f\rom, the computation if their effect is antidilutive. .

oot
i

k) Comprehenswe income e

The Company has no- 1tems that are requrred to be reported m other comprehenswe
income.

1) Reclassification ‘
Certain prioryear amounts fiaVé' been reclassified to conform to cirrent year présentation.

m) Recent accounting pronouncements " *

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, ”Accountmg for the lmpalrment or
Disposal of Long Lived' Assets that is appllcable to financial’ statements lssued forfiscal years
beginning after Décember 15, 2007 The FASB's new rules on ‘asset’ lmpalrment supersede '
SFAS No. 127, ”Accountmg for the lmparrment of Lorg: -Lived Assets'and for' Long -Lived'Assets
to Be Disposed Of” and portlons of Accountmg Prmcnples Bulletin ‘Opinion 30, “Reportmg the -
Results of Operations.” ThlS standard provides a- smgle ‘accounting ‘model for long-lived assets
an asset as held for- sale.. Classmcatlon as held-for-sale is an important distinction since such
assets are not depremated and are stated at the lower of fair value and carrying amount. This
standard also requires’ expected future operatrng losses from discontinued’ operatuons to be
displayed in the penod(s) in which the losses are incurred, rather than as of the measurement
date as presently required. The provisions of this standard are not: expected to have a
significant effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operatrons, or cash flows.

In August 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accountmg for Costs Assocrated W|th Exit
or Disposal ‘Activities” (“SFAS No. 146"). It addresses financial’ accountmg and-reporting for
costs associated with:exit of disposal activities:and nullified Emerging Issues Task Force-
(“EITF”) Issue-No. 94-3, “Liability'Recognition for Certain'Employee Termination Benefits-and
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS No.
146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized
when the liability is incurred and establishes fair value as the objective for initial measurement
of the liability. Under EITF Issue No. 94-3, a liability for an exit cost is recognized at the date of
an entity’'s commitment to an exit plan. The new standard is effective for exit or disposal
activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002. The Company does not believe SFAS No.
146 will have a materlal effect on the Company'’s financial posmon results of operations, or
cash flows.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others’ (“FIN 45”). FIN 45 requires that, upon issuance of a guarantee, a guarantor must
recognize a liability for the fair value of an obligation assumed under a guarantee. FIN 45 also
requires additional disclosures by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements
about the obligations:associated with guarantees issued. The recognition provisions of FIN 45
are effective for any guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure
requirements are effective for financial statements of interim or annual periods ending -after
December 15, 2002. The adoption of FIN 45 is not expected to have a material effect on the
Companys financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. .

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure” {“SFAS No. 148"). SFAS No. 148-amends SFAS
No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123”) to provide alternative
methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for
stock-based employee compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure .
requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim
financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation
and the effect of the method used on reported results. SFAS No. 148 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2002. The interim disclosure provisions are effective for
financial reports containing financial statements for interim periods beginning after December
15, 2002. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 148 to have a material
effect on the Company'’s financial position, results of operations, or ¢ash flows:

3. Accounts receivable

 Accounts recelvable excluding accounts recewable from related parties, COHSISI of the
following:

December 31;

e 2001 2002
Billed accounts receivable ....................... $7,525,189  $5,884,527
Unbilled accounts receivable .............. Ceeaen 1,691,302 4,207,559

| - 9216491 9,408,163
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts:.... e -{300,000) ‘. (362,000)

$8,916,491  $9,046,163
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Property and equipment

'Property and equipment consists of:

December 31,

2001 2002
Furniture and equipment ........................ $ 2,808,904 § 3,201,917
Leasehold improvements................covviunn 181,778 196,409

2,990,682 3,218,326
Less: Accumulated depreciation ................. (2,443,855) (2,701,374)

$ 546,827 $ 516,952

The depreciation expensé was apbroximatefy $293,000, $255,000 and‘$258,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Certain equipment was financed
through a capital lease. The net book value of such equipment was approximately $25,000 at
December 31, 2002.

5. Earnings per share

The following represents the calculation for net income per share:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Net income...... QS $1,872,498 $2,112,402 $2,693,331
Weighted average shares outstanding ' ' }
Common stock. ............... .. e .o... 1093250 1,093,250 1,093,250

Stock options...... et i i — — —
Common stock and common share equivalents. 1,093,250 1,093,250 1,093,250

Basic and diluted earnings per share ‘
BasiC.. ..t $ 171 $ 193 $ 2.46

Diuted .. SRR $ . 171 $ 193 $. 246

‘For the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, options to purchase 5,250, 6,750
and 5,500 shares of common stock, respectively, were excluded from the computation of
diluted earnings per share, as their inclusion would have been antidilutive. .

6. Shareholdérs’ equity
a) Common stock

Pursuant to-a Common Stock Purchase Agreement and a related Shareholders Agreement,
certain shareholders have the right of first refusal to acquire shares from other shareholders
under certain conditions. In the event certain shareholders {the “Principals”) become disabled
or deceased, the Company may be obligated, at the option of the Principals or the Principals’
estates, to repurchase up to 750,000 shares held by the Principals or their respective estates at
a minimum of $13.33 per share. The Company is designated as the beneficiary on insurance
policies that cover the Principals. In the event a Principal becomes disabled or deceased, the
proceeds of the policies are expected to be approximately equal to the amount the Company
is required to pay the Principal or its estate for the repurchase of shares. All such insurance
policies effective during 2001 and 2002 were term-based.
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS (Continued)

b). Stock.options

In 1992, the Company adopted a Stock Option Plan (the "Plan”) which reserves 100,000
shares for issuance upon exercise of options granted under the Plan through 2003 and
provides for the issuance of non-qualified stock options. Options granted pursuant to the Plan
are subject to vesting as determined by the Board of Directors. Option grants typically vest
over five years and expire ten years from the date of grant. As of December 31, 2002, there
were no stock options available for issuance under the Plan.

A summary of certain Plan information related to stock options outstanding is as follows:

Number Weighted
of Average

Options ' Exercise Price
Balance, December 31, 1999 e 5,250 - $15.21
‘Granted ..., P ‘ — =
Balance, December 31,2000 ... ......c.vvurinnnn. 5,250 - $15.21
Granted ..o e e e 1,500 $13.72
- Balance, December 31, 2001............... e 6,750 $13.72
Granted ..o e e L —
Expired. ... ... e 1,250 8.50
Balance, December 31,2002 ............ccvvnntt. 5,500 $14.90°

At December 31, 2002, the weighted average remaining contractual life for the options
outstanding was 3.49 years. All options outstanding at December 31, 2002 were fully vested.

The Company elected to follow the disclosure-only presentatlon of SFAS No. 123 and,
consequently, makes no charge against operations in its financial statements with respect to
the fair value of the options granted. To measure stock-based compensation in accordance
with SFAS No. 123, the fair vaiue of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The weighted-average fair value per unit of
options granted in 2001 was approximately $0.46. There were no option grants during 2000
and 2002. The Company used the following assumptions in estimating the fair value of options
granted during 2001: risk-free rate of 2.84%, expected life of two years, volatility of zero and
expected dividend of 25%.

The pro forma net impact of applying the fair value recognmon provnsnons of SFAS No
123 was less than $1,000 during 2000, 2001, and 2002.

7. Profit sharing and 401(k) plan

The Company’s-profit sharing and 401(k) plan (the "401(k) Plan”) isa trustee plan AII
employees are eligible to participate in the 401(k} Plan. Contributions by the Company are 33%
vested after three years of service and vesting increases 33% each year thereafter, until the
fifth year of service, when the employees are 100% vested. The annual 401(k} contribution is
determined based upon contributions made by participating employees and rates established -
annually by the Board of Directors. In 2001 and 2002, the Company contributed an amount
equal to 50% of an employee’s contribution up to 2.5% of the employee’s salary.-The Board
may also approve a discretionary profit sharing contribution. The Company contributed
approximately $166,000, $188,000 and $185,000 in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively, to match
employee 401(k) contributions to the 401(k) Plan. The Company made no discretionary profit
sharing contributions to the 401(k) Plan in 2000, 2001, and 2002.

8. Related-party transactions

The Company has a contractual agreement with Industrial Recovery Capltal Holdings
Company (IRCC) to perform environmental remediation services for IRCC. IRCC is owned by
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certain stockholdérs of the Comipany. At December 31, 2001 and 2002, receivables due to the
Company from IRCC totaled $5,916 and $1,205, respectively, all of which were subsequently
collected. For the years December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, revenues related to services
provided to IRCC totaled $598,317, $204,142 and $188,000, respectively.

Several shareholders of the Company are also shareholders of Tinicum Inc. (“Tmcum”) At
December 31, 2001 and 2002, receivablés due from Tinicum totaled $8,149 and $3,877,
respectlvely, ‘all of which were subsequently collected ‘For the years ended December 31, 2000,
2001 and 2002, revenues related to servnces provnded to Tinicum totaled $3, 423, $14 038 and
$102,239, respectlvely .

A shareholder and member of the Board of Dlrectors of the Company was employed by
Chubb Financial Solutions, Inc. (“Chubb”) from January 2001 until June 2003. The Company
provides consulting services-to Chubb. For the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and
2002, revenues related to services provided to Chubb totaled $0, $474,153.and $1,099,593,
respectively. At, December 31, 2001 and 2002 receivables due from Chubb totaled $204,346
and $553,853, respectlvely

Revenue and accounts receivable from IRCC, Tmcum and Chubb are reported separately
as transactions from related parties on the financial statements.

9. Line ofjcredit

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had a line of credit with. a United States
commercial bank in the.amount of $1,000,000. Any borrowings from the line of credit are
secured by Business Assets of the Company, as defined under the applicable credit agreement.
The interest rate charged is subject to change from time to time baséd on changes in an
index, which is the base rate ‘as set by the bank (4.75% at December 31, 2002). In 2001 and
2002, the Company dld not draw against the line of credlt

10. Commitments and contihg'enéies
a) Leases -

The Company leases office space and furniture and equipment under operating lease
agreements. Certain leases include an escalation clause that calls for annual increases to the

base rental payments. Rent expense is’ bemg recogmzed on a stralght -line basrs over the
respective lease term. :

Future minimum payments under operatmg and capltal lease obligations are as follows:

~ Year endmg December 31 L ) o N Operatlng’ . Capltal ‘
2003 .......... e i eeeeeesana s $1,463,895 $ 7,459
2004 L. cveeieime.. 1,285,424 -7,489;
2005 ........ i e 1,184,275 7,459
2006 ........... e e A e e . 1,192,674 . 7,459
2007 i\t et viaeigeaesies o 1,087,945 3,108
Thereafter ................. P e i . 164,163 . —
C Y L ' $6,368,376 32,944
Interest ........... e el L (6,252)
Capital lease obligations, current ................ I : {5,098)"

Capital lease obligations;.non-current ....:....... ¢ $21,594
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Rent expense under operating Ieases was approximately $1, 558 000, $1,622,000 and
$1,693,000 in 2000, 2001 and 2002 respectively.

b) Litigation

At December 31 2002, the Company was a party to a Imgatlon that arose out of a daspute'
with a third party related to a letter of intent to fease certain premises. Such litigation is .
currently in the discovery stage. The Company believes that existing reserves recorded of
$60,000 are adequate to cover any costs incurred as a result of the litigation given
management’s assessment of the potential exposure. However, the final outcome of the
litigation may differ from the Company’s estimate.

The Company is involved in other legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business.

Management beheves that such litigation and claims generally are w:thout ment and that
the outcome will not have a material effect on the Company’s financial posmon or results of
operations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CORPORATION
Schedule'll
- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Additions

Balance at  Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and End of
of Period Expenses Deductions Period
Allowance for doubtful accounts: ‘ -
Year Ended December 31,2000 ............. $148,500° 66,050 ~ .(13,550)  $201,000
Year Ended December 31,2001 ............. $201,000 = 150,000  (61,000)  $300,000
Year Ended December 31,2002 ..... e $300,000 . 62,000 - $362,000
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Shareholder of Environmental Strategies Consulting, LLC
{formerly, “Environmental Strategies Corporation”)

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related

consolidated statements of operations, of changes in shareholders’ equity and of cash flows * -

present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Environmental Strategies
Consulting, LLC and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) at September 3, 2003 and December 31,
2002 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the period from January 1,
2003 to September 3, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

. United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in
the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responslblllty of the
Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our
audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtam _
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free. of material.
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, ev1dence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, assessing the accounting prmmples ,
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall consolidatéed
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits prowde a reasonable baS|s for our
-opinion,

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York, New York , » L
December 5, 2003 _ m
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CONSULTING LLC
(formerly, Environmental Strategies Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, September 3,

2002 2003
Assets ‘
Cash and.cash equivalents ...... et et teee i i e $ 72,636 $ 412,847
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of oo -

B362,000 ;i ittt e e e e r e .. 8,492,310 9,601,906
Accounts receivable — related partres e e i © 558,935 331,868
Prepaid expenses and other-assets ...................... e 373,603 366,793

Total current assets . ... i e e 9,497,484 10,713,414
Property and equipment, net .' L R SO . 516,952 . ~ 431,369
Security deposrts ............ S e [, 116,541 104,671

TOtAl @SSEES .t v et e siee et eiean s weveee.... $10,130,977 $11,249,454
Liabilities e S :
Accounts payable T e AT U $ 2,760,105 $ 3,272,562
Accrued expenses, current ............ e e e . 477,247 1,380,174
Notes payable, current Tl ﬁ".’ T S SO 9,480 3,757
Capltal leasé obhgatlons, current P 5,098 5,437
Deferred income ... .....cocoioiiieiiiniiin.n, PP DU 97,000 _ 191,816

 Total current habrlmes e POV 3,348,930 4,853,746
Accrued expenses, less current pomon ............................ 52,036 34,702,
[ L=Y =1 =Y I =Y o 258,110 292,487
Capital lease obligations, less current portion .......... e 21,594 17,934

Total liabilities .. ...ccoviiiii it i e 3,680,670 5,198,869
Commitments and contingencies (Note 3)

Shareholders’ equity
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 1,100,000 shares authorized;

1,093,250 issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2002 and

September 3, 2003 ... ...t e 10,933 10,933
Capitalinexcess of parvalue ............ooiiiiiii i, 779,193 779,193
Retained €arnings ........cuiiiitiieiine it ieeaniiareienins 5,660,181 5,260,459

Total shareholders’ equity ..........ciiiiiiin ittt 6,450,307 6,050,585

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ....................... $10,130,977 $11,249,454

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CONS“‘ULTlNG LLC
(formerly, Environmental Strategies Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the period

For the period

January 1 to January 1 to
September 30, September 3,
2002 2003
{unaudited) ’

Revenues o
Consulting revenue ....... e e © $19,815,877 © $19,397,505
Consulting revenue — related parties R EET R e . 1,041,020 - - 952,358
Total revenues ............ S S 20,856,897 ° 20,349,863

Expenses N o o

Direct consulting COSES . vvvrr i ia e e aieaennnnas 12,423,597 12,992,356
Selling, gener‘abl and administrative expenses ................. 6,049,262 5,771,203
Bonus expense ... ... . e 432,406 199,812
Total EXPENSES. v ittt e 18,905,265 18,963,371
OPerating INCOME . ..ttt it iie e ieeieaenenns 1,951,632 1,386,492
Interest and other‘income ................................... 15,244+ 13,786
Nt INCOME .+ e ettt sttt ettt et v ee e e A $ 1,966,876 $ 1,400,278
Weighted average common Shares. . ...........o.eeeuvvn.. .. 1,093,250 1,093,250
Basic and diluted net income per common share ............. 8 180  $ 1.28

Pro forma data (unaudited): o : :
Netincome asshown above...............ccoiieiienin.., $ 1,966,876 $ 1,400,278
Pro forma provision for income taxes ............. i e 765,116 544,708
Net income adjusted for pro forma income taxes ............. $ 1,201,761 $ 855,570
Pro forma basic and diluted net income per common share ... $ 1.10, $ 0.78

‘The accompanying notes are an integral-part of these consolidated.finaricial statements
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CONSULTING LLC
{formerly, Ehvironmental Strategies Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance as of December 31, 2002..
Distributions to shareholders
Netincome .....covvinirinennnnn.

Balfance as of Septe'mbér 3, 2003 ..

Common Stock Additional )
paid-in Retained
Shares Amount capital earnings Total

1,003,250 $10,933 $779,193 $ 5,660,181 $ 6,450,307
— — — (1,800,000 (1,800,000)
— — 1,400,278 1,400,278

1,093,250 $10,933 $779,193 $ 5,260,459 $ 6,050,585

The accompanying notes are-an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CONSULTING LLC

(formerly, Environmental Strategies Corporation)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities
Netincome................. e

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities

Depreciation...........cooiiii it et

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable................
Prepaid expenses and other assets..
Security deposits......... e
Accounts payable ..................
Accrued eXpenses. . ................
Deferredrent ......................
Deferred revenue ..................

.......................

Net cash provided by operating activities...................

Cash flows used in investing activities .-

Purchases of property and equipment..

........................

Net cash used in investing activities. ...

Cash flows used in financing activities
Distributions to shareholders .. .......
Repayment of notes payable.......... ‘
Repayment of capital lease obligations

Net cash used in financing activities. ..

Net increaseincash..................
Cash at beginning of period ..........
Cash atend of period ............. e

Supplemental Information
Cash interest paid....................

.......................

........................

.......................

For the period

For the period

January 1 to January 1 to
September 30, September 3,
2002 . 2003

(unaudited)

$.1,966,876

$ 1,400,278

165,043 151,225
1,774,365 (882,529)
283,636 6,810

(26,513) 11,870

(1,385,011) 512,457
657,244 885,593
44,787 34,377
= 94,816
3,480,427 2,214,897

(171,224) {65,642)

(171,224) (65,642)

{2,000,000) (1,800,000)
(5,868) (5,723)

— (3,321)
{2,005,868) (1,809,044)
1,303,335 340,211

. 74,072 72,636
1$:1,377,407 $ 412,847
$ 1,106 $ 3,831

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CONSULTING LLC
{formerly, Environmental Strategdies Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Data for the nine month period ended September 30, 2002 is unaudited}

1. Organization -

Environmental Strategies Corporation (the “Company”’} is a full-service environmental
engineering, remediation, risk management and consulting firm specializing in environmental
remediation, including the design and implementation of remedial investigations and
feasibility studies, regulatory analyses, technical support for environmental claims, merger and
acquisition due diligence and environmental audits and risk assessments.

On September 3, 2003, the Company was acqu’ired by Quanta Reinsurancé U.S. Ltd.
(“Quanta U.S. Re"”) (see Note 16). Concurrent with the acquisition, the Company was renamed
to Environmental Strategies Consulting LLC.

2. Significant accountlng policies

The consolldated financial statements include the accounts of Envnronmental Strategles
Corporatlon and its wholly owned subsidiary Events Analysis Corporation. AII intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated.

a) Consulting revenues

Consulting revenue is recognized when evidence of arrangement exnsts services have
been rendered, price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. The |
Company renders services under various short term contractual arrangements, primarily on a
time and materials basis. From time to time, thé Company retains subcontractors to perform
certain remediation services under the Company’s contracts with its customers. Revenue is
recognized on a gross basis when the Company is the primary obligor in the arrangement. For
the nine months ended September 30, 2002 and the period from January 1 through
September 3, 2003 and for, approximately $4.6 million and $6.9 million of direct costs,
exclusive of mark-up, respectively, related to these subcontractor arrangements.

Consdlting revenue includes amounts related to services performed but not yet billed to
customers at period end. Accounts receivable are settled within the Company’s normal
collection cycle.-Certain arrangements allow customers to retain a portion of the invoiced
amount until'the .completion of the related task or-achievement of certain specified milestones.
The Company records the retained amounts as revenue when services are provided related to
contractually defined tasks .or milestones, and collection is reasonably assured. These
retainage arrangements occur only when specifically requested by, and negotiated with, the
customer. The Company does not offer warranty or provide any other post-contract
performance obligations.

Prepayments from customers are recorded as deferred income in the consolidated balance
sheets and recognized in the consolidated statement of operations as consulting revenue as
the related services are performed.

b} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are highly liquid instruments with an original maturity of three months
or less and consist of time deposits and investments in money market and similar funds with
commercial banks and financial institutions.

¢) Property and equipment’

Property and equipment, which consist of furniture, equipment, and leasehold
improvements, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{Data for the nine month period-énded September 30, 2002 is unaudited)

using the accelerated method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, ranging
from five to seven years. Depreciation of leasehold improvements is computed using the
straight-line method over the shorter of the estlmated useful lives of the assets or the terms of .
the leases. : ‘ v

Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. At the time of retirement or other
disposal of property or equipment, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed
from their respective accounts and any resultmg gain or loss is included in the consolidated
statement of operat|ons Co

d) Costs and Expenses

Direct consultmg costs consist of payroll costs associated with dlrect labor mcurred on
consulting engagements_ other direct costs such as travel and subsistence, subcontracting and
other contract expenses. The Company maintains a team of in-house technical consultants that
assist in consulting engagements. The costs associated with the time spent by such technical
consultants on servnce engagements are mcluded in dlrect consultlng costs.

Selling, general and adm|n|strat|ve expenses include all other expenses such as sales and
marketing, costs for information systems, finance and accounting, human resources, and other:
infrastructure functions related to managing and growing the Company’s business. Costs of
technical consultants associated with:business development and administrative and other
non-client service related activities are recorded in selling, general and administrative
expenses. ' ’

e) Income taxes (unaudited)

The Company has elected to be taxed as an S Corporation. All revenues and expenses
pass directly.through to the shareholders and, as such, no tax liability is reflected in the
financial statements of the Company. The Company-converted. from an. S corporation to a “C
Corporation”: subsequent toithe acquisition by Quanta Reinsurance U.S: Ltd. Accordingly, pro
forma provision for-income tax expense is reflected for all penods presented to:reflect the
Company asa C corporatlon : : : ~ S ‘ :

f) Use of estlmates

The preparation of fmancnal statements in conformlty with generally accepted accounting
principles reqiires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosufes of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions. -

3. Concentration of credit risk

Financial instruments'which potentially expose the Company to concentration of credit risk
consist primarily of cash and accounts receivable. The Company maintains its cash in bank
accounts, which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not
experienced any Iosses on such accounts

F-55
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: {Continued)
(Data for-the nine month period ended September 30, 2002 is unaudited)

Accounts receivable consist principally of amounts due from large; credit worthy
companies. The Company extends credit to its customers in the.normal .course-of business
and monitors the balances of individual accounts to assess any collectibility issues. The
Company has not experienced significant iosses related to receivables in the past. A summary
of customers accounting for significant consulting revenue for the periods ended September
30, 2002 and September 3, 2003 and accounts recervable balances as of December 31, 2002
and September 3, 2003 is as follows

Consulting revenue Accounts receivable

Period ended As of
September 30, September 3, December 31, September 3,
2002 2003 2002.c - .- 2003
~ Customer A ...... e 20% - 23% C18% . 15%
Customer B............... e 9% 10% 6% . 4%

Customer C...ovovveveees 8% 9% 1% o 2%
4. Stock-based compensatlon h S

Employee stock awards under the Companys compensatron p|an are accounted for in
accordance with: Accounting Principles Board Opinion:No. 25, “Accounting: for Stock Issued to
Employees” (“APB 25"), and related. interpretations. The Company provides the.disclosure -
required by Statement of Financial. Accounting Standards No. 123, ‘*Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS No: 123"). The Company did not.incur-any compensatlon
expense related to employee stock awards:during the nine months:ended September 30, 2002
and the period ended September 3, 2003. The pro forma net impact of applying the fair.value
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 was less than $1,000 for the periods ended September
30, 2002 and September 3, 2003.

5. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings.per share'is. computed using the we|ghted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period;.and excludes any dilutive effects of options or warrants.:
Diluted earnings per share is computed: using_the weighted average number:of:common and
common stock equivalent shares:outstanding.during the period; common stock equuvalent
shares are excluded from the computation if their effect is antidilutive,"

6. Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long- -lived assets when events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an _asset may not be recoverable. This
evaluation consists of comparison of the carrying value -of the:-asset, with the asset’s expected
undiscounted future cash flows. If the expected undiscounted future. cash flows exceed the
carrying value of the asset, no impairment is recognized. !mpalrment losses. are measured as
the difference between the carrying value of long-lived assets and their fair value, based on
discounted future cash flows or other methods. :

7. Comprehensive income

The Company has no items that are required to be: reported in.other comprehensive - -
income. :

8. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, ”Accounting for the |mpairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” that is applicable to financial statements issued for fiscal years
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{formerly, Environmental.Strategies Corporation])
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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beginning after December 15, 2001. The FASB’s new rules on asset impairment supersede
SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets
to Be Disposed Of” and portions of Accounting Principles Bulletin Opinion 30, “Reporting the
Results of Operations.” This Standard provides a single accounting model for long-lived assets
to be disposed of and significantly changes the criteria that would have to be met to classify
an asset as held-for-sale. Classification as held-for-sale is an important distinction since such
assets are not depreciated and are stated at the lower of fair value and carrying amount. This
Standard also requires expected future operating losses from discontinued operations to be
displayed _in the period(s) in which the losses are incurred, rather than as of the measurement
date as presently required. The adoption of this Standard did not have a significant effect on
the Company’s financial position, results of operations, or cash flows."

In August 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit
or Disposal Activities” ("SFAS 146"). It addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs
associated with exit or disposal activities and nullified Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue
No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to
Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS 146 requires that a
liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity.be recognized when the liability is
incurred and establishes that fair value is the objective for initial measurement. of the fiability.
Under EITF lssue No. 94-3, a liability for an exit cost is recognized at the date of an entity’s
commitment to an exit plan. The Company does not believe SFAS 146 will have a material
effect on the Company'’s fmancual posmon results of operations, or cash flows.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 “Guarantors Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others” (“FIN 45”). FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, a guarantor must
recognize a liability for the fair value of an obligation assumed under a guarantee. FIN 45 also
requires additional disclosures by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements
about the obligations associated with guarantees issued. The recognition provisions of FIN 45
are effective for any guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure
requirements are effective for financial statements of interim or annual peri()ds ended after
December 15; 2002. The adoption of FIN 45-did not have a materlal effect: on ‘the Companys
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

in December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for St(_)ck—._Based A
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure” (“SFAS 148”). SFAS 148 amends SFAS No. 123
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” ("SFAS 123”) to provide alternative methods of
transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based
employee, compensation. In addition, SFAS 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS
123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the
method of accounting for stock- based employee compensatlon and the effect of the method
used on reported results. SFAS 148 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2002. The interim disclosure provisions are effective for financial reports containing financial
statements for interim periods beginning after December 15, 2002. The adoption of SFAS 148
did not have a material effect on the Company's financial position, results of operations, or
cash flows. '

F57
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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9. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable, excludmg accounts receivable from related pames consist of the
following:

December 31, September 3,
: T 2002 2003 -
Billed accounts receivable ....................... ~$7,661,237 '$.5,884,527
Unbilled accounts receivablé .................... 1,746,926 4,207,559
- ' o P 9,408,163 10,092,086
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ........... (362,000) __ (362,000)

$9,046,163  $ 9,730,086

10. Property and Equ1pment _
Property and equnpment consists of

Decerﬁber 31, YSeptember 3,

- 2002 2003
Furniture and equipment ..... e eeraaia .. AU 3,021:,:917 $'3,087,559
Leasehold improvéments ....... S e __196,409.. . 196,409

| ' I vt 3318326 3,283,968
Less:Accumulated depreciation PR e \(2,701,374) {2,852,599)

$ 516952 § 431,369

The depreciation expense was approxima'telyv‘$165,000 and $151,-,;Q00 for-the nine months

ended September 30, 2002 and for the period ended September: 3, 2003, respectively. The .
Company-financed $29 446 of equipment through-a: capltal Iease The. related accumulated’
depreciation totaled $7,700 as of September 3, 2003

1. Employeé_ benrevfit_ plans r

a) - Optlons and stock based compensatlon

In 1992, the Company adopted a Stock Opt|on Plan (the "Plan”) whlch reserves 100 000
shares for granting of options through 2003 and provrdes for the issuance of non-qualified
stock optlons Options granted pursuant to the. Plan are subject to vestmg as determined by

the Board of Directors that is typically over five years and expire ten years from the date of .

grant. As of September 3, 2003, there were no options available for future grant.
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{Data for the nine month period ended September 30, 2002 is unaudited)

A summary of certain Plan information related to stock options outstanding-is as follows:

. - - . Weighted
Number of Average
Options Exercise Price
Balance, December 31, 2001 .............. e .. 6750 $13.72
Granted during period ............... Veldealia.. ==
Expired during period .....v.. ool e o 1,250 . 850
Balance, December 31,2002 .................... 5,500 $14.90
Expired and exercised during period ............. (5,500) 8.50
Balance, September 3,2003 ..................... — $ — »

All options outstanding as of September 3, 2003 were fully vested and exercnsed on the
acquisition of the Company by Quanta.U.S. Re.

The Company: elected the disclosure-only presentatlon of SFAS123 and consequently,
makes no charge against operations.in the financial statements with respect to the fair value
of the options granted. To measure stock-based compensation in accordance with SFAS 123,
the fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model.

The pro forma net impect of applying the fair value recognitien brovisions of SFAS No.
123 was less than $1,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2002 and the perlod ended
September 3, 2003.

b} Profit Sharing and 401(k) Plan

The Company’s profit sharing and 401(k) plan (the Plan} is a trustee plan. Ali employees
are eligible to participate in the Plan lmmedlately Contnbutlons by the Company are 33%
vested after three years of service and vesting increases 33% each year thereafter, until the
fifth-year of service, when the employees are 100%.vested. The annual 401(k) contnbutlon is
determined based upon contributions made by participating employees and rates established
annually by the Board:of Directors. For the periods ended September 30, 2002 and September
3, 2003, the Company contributed 50% of an employee’s contribution up to 2.5% percent of the
employee’s salary. The Board may also approve a discretionary profit shanng contribution. The
Company contributed approximately $125 000 and $118,000 during the periods ended
September 30, 2002 and September 3, 2003, respectively; to match employee 401k)
contributions to the Plan. The Company made no dlscretlonary pI’Oflt sharmg contnbutlons to
the Plan in 2002 and 2003

12. Related-Party Transactlons

The Company has a contractual agreement with Industna| Recovery Capital Holdmgs
‘Company (IRCC) to perform environmental remediation services for IRCC. The shareholders of
the Company are 60% shareholders in IRCC. As of December 31, 2002 and September 3, 2003,
receivables due to the Company from IRCC totaled $1,205 and $154,653, respectively. For the
nine months ended September 30, 2002 and the period ended September 3, 2003, revenues
related to services provided to IRCC totaied $160,284 and $257,276, respectively.

Several shareholders of the Company are also shareholders of Tinicum Inc. (Tinicum). As
of December 31, 2002 and September 3, 2003, receivables die from-Tinicum totaled $3,877
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and $49,035, respectively, which were subsequently collected. For the periods ended
September 30, 2002 and September 3, 2003, revenues related to services provided to Tinicum
totaled $102,174 and $45,1567, respectively.

A shareholder and member of the Board of Directors of the Company was employed by
Chubb Financial Solutions, Inc. (“Chubb”) from January 2001 until June 2003. The Company
provides consulting services to Chubb. As of December 31, 2002 and September 3, 2003,
receivables due from Chubb totaled $553,853 and $128,180, respectively. For the nine months
ended September 30, 2002 and the period ended September 3, 2003, revenues related to
services provided to Chubb totaled $778,5662 and $649,925, respectively.

Revenue and accounts receivable from IRCC, Tinicum and Chubb are reported separately
as transactions from related parties in the consolidated financial statements:

13. Line of Credit | | .

As of September 3, 2003, the Company had a line of credit with-a United States
commercial bank in the amount of $1,000,000. Any borrowings from the line of credit are
secured by Business Assets of the . Company, as defined in the applicable credit arrangement.
The interest rate charged is subject to.change from time to time based on.changes in an

index, which is the base rate (4.756% as of December 31, 2002 and 4% as of September 3, 2003)
~ as set by the bank. The Company did-not draw against the line of credit during 2002 or 2003.

14. Commitments and Contingencies.

a) Leases

The Company leases office space and furniture and equipment under operating lease
agreements. The Company'’s lease agreement for its headquarters expires in March 2008. The
lease includes an escalation clause that calls for annual increases to the base rental payments.
Rent expense is being recognized on a straight-line basis over the respective lease term.

- Future minimum payments under operating and capital lease obligations are as follows:

- Year-ending December 31, ; ‘, : Operating Capital
2003 .. 0o R $ 491,627 $ 2,486
2004 ..... T S, .. 1,436,739’ 7,459
2005 ................ . 11,296,342 7,459
2006 ...... T A 1,304,740 7,459
2007 oo, SO 1,192,522 3,108
2008 and thereafter ........... ... i, 182,303 —

$5,904,273 27,971

Interest ..........0L. ..., e, . SO (4,600)

L L ' ‘ 23,371
Capital lease obligations, current ............. ... (5,437)

Capital lease obligations, non-current ............ C $17,934

Rent expense under operating leases was approximately $1,345,000 and $1,047,000 in for
the periods ended September 30, 2002 and September 3, 2003, respectively.
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b} Litigation

As of September 3, 2003, the Company was a party to a litigation that arose out of a
dispute with a third party related to a Letter of Intent to lease certain premises. In October
2003, the Company settled the dispute for $49,000.

15. Subsequent Event -

On July 17, 2003, the Company's shareholders entered into a purchase agreement with
Quanta U.S. Re to sell all of the Company’s outstanding stock for a cash purchase price of
$16.5 million, subject to adjustment based on the Company’s working capital as of the closing
date (September 3, 2003). The adjustment resulted in an additional payment to the Company’s
shareholders of $0.7 million. Under the purchase agreement, the Company’s shareholders also
have a right to receive an earn-out payment of up to $5.0 million if the Company achieves
specified financial results for the two-year period ending December 31, 2005,
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ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES CONSULTING LLC
: Schedule.{l : o
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Additions
Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and : End of
"~ of Period Expenses Deductions Period
Allowance for doubtful accounts: o |
Year Ended December 31, 2001 ............. $201,000 150,000  (51,000)  $300,000
Year Ended December 31,2002 ............. . $300,000 - 62,000 = $362,000
Pgriod:jfré‘rﬁ‘\_fainuary 1,"2'00_3‘?(6, [ o .
’Septe_mb,er,_Sl 2003, ... i emreeeees . $362,000 = = $362,000
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of
National Farmers Union Standard insurance Company:

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the related statements of income and
comprehensive income, of stockholder’s equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of National Farmers Union Standard Insurance Company (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of National Farmers Union Property and Casualty Company) at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in-the United States of
America, which require that we plan and perform the audit.to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and sugmflcant estlmates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentatlon We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
November 12, 2003
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NATIONAL FARMERS UNION STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY
- BALANCE SHEETS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share and per share amounts)

Assets

Fixed maturity investments, at fair value (cost $49,119 and
$43,082) ...... et e e et

Short-term mvestments at amortlzed cost (Wthh approxmates
fair value)......... [ [ e e

Other iNvestments, at COSt . ... ... ..u.oiiennnnnnnnn. S

Total investments............. O
Cash and cash equivalents........... e e e e

lnsurance premiums-receivable ......... ... o ee e SAFITR
Reinsurance recoverable on pald and-unpaid losses . ....... oL
Defetred acquusmon COSES. .. vt
Investment i mcome accrued ....... L. : T O SRR L

Deferred federal income tax asset............. e, el

Receivable from- affiliate .................... F N

Other assets ... FEETRTP e et e e e e

Liabilities

Loss and loss adjustment EXPENSE reServes. ....................
Unearned insurance premilms. ....covveviiiiiinevrenneennnnn.
Current federal income tax payable............... ... ... ......
Accounts payable and other liabilities ..........................
Payable to affiliates. ... e

Total liabilities. ...t e e

Stockholder’s equity

Common Stock at $1 par value per share — authorized 5,000,000
shares;

Issued and outstanding 4,200,000 shares..............coovou.. ..

Paid-incapital..........ooii i e

Retained earnings ... ..o i

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), after tax ......

Total common stockholder'sequity ........................
Total liabilities and stockholder'sequity ........................

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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December 31,

2002 2001
$51,359 ©  '$43.,027
3,909 6,835

179 204

55,447 50,066

. 54 1
4,474 3,715

3,164 3,575
1770 1,574

836 753

491 o

- 264 740

_ 49
42 44
$66,542 $60,527
$22,953 $18,218

9,156 8,015

— 1,883
660 1,602
845 —

33,614 29,718

4,200 4,200

2,200 2,200
25,072 24,445

1,456 (36)
32,928, 30,809
$66,542 $60,527




NATIONAL FARMERS UNION STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{Expressed in thousands of U.S. doliars except for share and per share amounts)

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Revenues: v
Earned insurance premiums........ [P v.... $23537 $22,374 $18,719
Net investment income ...............c..o0e. e e 2,524 2,545 2,522
Net realized gains (JOSSES). . .. ..vvviirein i, " 1,346 709 (470)
OtherrevenUe . .. ..ottt it i s ettt iaananns 26 ‘ 5 .=
TOtAl FEVEMUEBS. « o v v e vt et e et e e 27,433 25,633 20,771
Expenses: _ : o
Loss and loss adjustment expenses............. fe e 17,209 14,017 13,499
Insurance acquisition expenses................. e 3614 3,188 2,458
General and administrative expenses .................... 4,181 . 3,660 . 3,861
TOtal EXPEMSES © vttt treeeere e rrer e, 25,004 20,865 19,818
Pretax income 2,428 4,768 -. .~ 953
Federal income tax expense...........ocevviiiieennnnns. (802) _(1,576) - __ (129)
=y QT YT 1 T T 1,627 3,192 824
Net change in unrealized gains, netoftax................ 1,492 964 78
Comprehensive netincome ..................0ivieinieeen $ 3,119 $ 4,156 .$ 902
Dividends declared and paid to the common stockho_lder ... $100 $ - $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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NATIONAL FARMERS UNION STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY
'~ STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY -

{Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share and per share amounts)

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
. mcome
Stockholder's  Common Paid-in Retained (loss)
equity stock capital -‘earnings net of tax
Balances at January 1, 2000....... $25,751 $3,000 $2,200 $21,629 $(1,078)
Netincome..........coovveevnnnn.. 824 — R 824 ‘ —
Net change in unrealized gains, ' o
netoftax ....... e 78 — —_ —_— 78
Common stock dividend .......... — 1,200 — {1,200) . —
Balances at December 31, 2000.... $26,653 $4,200 ° ° $2,200 : $21,25‘3‘ $(1,000)
Net income. ... ......ooeeeeeen... 3,192 — = 3192 —
Net change in unrealized gains, o et T
netoftax ............. e 964 — — o= 964
Balances at December 31, 2001....  $30,809 $4,200- $2,200 ' $24,445 % (36)
Netincome. ..o v, 1,627 —_ = 1,627 —
Net.change in unrealized gains, : e .
netoftax ........... e - 1,492 e Tl 1,492,
Dividends declared ....... P (1,0000 — — 777.(1,000) -

Balances at December 31, 2002.... $32,928 $4,200 $2,200 $25,072 $ 1,456

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesé fifiancial statéements
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NATIONAL FARMERS UNION STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH.FLOWS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share and per share amounts)

Year ended December 31,
2002 ‘ 2001 2000

Cash flows from operations: v
Net INCOME. . oe e e e 821,627 3,192 824
Charges {(credits} to reconcile net income to’ cash ﬂows e

from operations:

Deferred federal income tax benefit.......... TP < 7.1 -) B (282) (125)
Net change in current federal income taxes receivable . . .o . . . _
and payable........ et e 1 (2,374) 1,736 (278)

Net realized (gains) losses.................. e e -(1,346) (709) 470
Net change in: .

Reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses ...... SR & | B © (680) {1,024)

Loss and loss adjustment « EXPENSE T8SeIVeS .o vmerrnvse . 4735 1,682 3,662

Insurance premiums receivable............... cosnibyaaea 04, {7B8) +1,822) - - {740)

- Unearned iNnSUrance premiums . .. ... avi, s, b s St v et 1,141 . 2,029 - .- 633

Deferred acquisition costs. ...t v i inen e v e o (196) . {186). (81)

Other,net ..., R R L AR TRV (36) __ 579 .18
Net cash flows provided. by operatlons ..... remriesrese.eo .- 2877 5540 3,259
Cash flows from investing activities: . -~ "o o0 : :

Net decrease (increase) in short-term mvestments G 2,926 (3 272) . {1,087)

Sales of fixed maturity investments:. ... L e 49,395 .35,832 - 545

Redemiptions, calls and maturities of flxed matunty ’ e ST

investments ......... A S Ll 727 34 3725

Sales of common stocks and other investments .......... 36 1094 34

Purchases of fixed maturity investments . ............ we-. o (54,917) (39,490)  (6,505)

Purchases of cOMMON StOCKS. .. .. ovverernirerannnn.nn, S = (500  —

Net cash flows used for investing actlvmes ............... (1,834) 1(5,5‘:45) (3,288)
Cash flows from financing activities: [,

Cash dividends paid to the common stockholder ........." " (1,000) — =
Net cash flows used for financing actlwtnes ................ {1,000) — —
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash eq‘ lvalents T - ' ‘

during period. ................. L e e 743 {(5) ' (29)
Cash and cash equwalent balances at beginning of perlod L 1 16 45
Cash and cash equivalent balances at end of penod ........ $ B4 1 . . 16

Supplemental cash flows information: . . , ‘
Net income taxes paid............. R R RERTRRPS (3,502) (122) ‘(432)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements'
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NATIONAL FARMERS UNION STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

{Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share and per share amounts unless
otherwise stated)

NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS

National Farmers Union Standard Insurance Company (“NFU Standard”) was incorporated
in 1968 and is principally engaged in property and casualty insurance operations. NFU
Standard is domiciled in Colorado and was licensed in 41 states at December 31, 2002.

NFU Standard is a wholly owned subsidiary of National Farmers Union Property and
Casualty Company (“NFU"”), a wholly owned subsidiary of OneBeacon Insurance Group
("OneBeacon”). On June 1, 2001, White Mountains Insurance Group, Ltd (“Wh|te Mountalns ),
the ultimate parent company, acquired OneBeacon.

NOTE 2— SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On September 29, 2003, NFU entered into an agreement to sell all of the outstandlng
capital stock of NFU Standard for a purchase price equal to the aggregate of $8:6 million plus
an amount equal to the book value of specified securities held by NFU Standard on the closmg
date. This acquisition is conditioned on the receipt of regulatory approval.. <

NFU agreed that it will assume from NFU Standard all of its underwriting contracts and all
of its liabilities.and asset$ as of the closing date provided, however, that not less than $13.0 -
million in policyholders’ surplus shall remain in NFU Standard: if:NFU is-unable to assume;.as.
a compete Transfer and Assumption, any of the-historicaliinsurance-business of NFU. Standard
at the effective date and time because NFU shall not have-received regulatory approval
pending rate and form filings or any other regulatory reason, NFU shall 100% reinsure NFU
Standard for any and all premium, losses and expenses relating to such business as renewed
until such approval is received. :

NOTE 3 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basus of Presentation

The accompanying fmanmal statements of NFU Standard have been prepared in
conformity with accountlng pnnmples generally accepted in the Umted States of Amenca
("GAAP”).

The preparatnon of fmancual statements in conformlty w1th GAAP requ1res management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the réported amounts of assets and IIabIIltIeS and’
disclosure of contlngent assets and ||ab||mes at the date, of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses durlng the reportmg penod Actual results could
differ from those estimates. S

Investments

Cash and cash eqﬁi\/ale'nts include highly liquid debt instruments pefchased with
remaining maturities of three months or less. Short-term investments consist of investments
that have a maturity of one year or less at the date of purchase.

Fixed maturity investments are designated as available-for-sale. Available-for-sale
securities are reported at estimated fair value, with changes in fair value reflected in other
comprehensive income net of applicable federal income taxes. Estimated fair values are based
on quoted values. Investment securities are regularly reviewed for impairment based on
criteria that include the extent to which cost exceeds market value, the duration of the market
decline, and the financial health of and specific prospects for the issuer. Investment losses that
are other than temporary are recognized in earnings.
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{Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share and per share amounts unless
otherwise stated)

Other investments, principally mortgage loans made by NFU Standard to unrelated
parties, are reported at cost, which approximated fair value as of the balance sheet dates
presented.

Investment incdme is recorded when éarned. Realized investment gains and losses are
recognized using the specific identification method.

Earned and Unearned Insurance Premiums

Premiums are recognized as revenue over the coverage period of policies written on a
daily pro rata basis. Unearned insurance premiums represent the portion of premiums written
relating to the remaining term of each policy. NFU Standard’s down payment requirements
and conservative credit terms serve to significantly reduce its exposure to uncollectible earned
premiums. Cancellations by NFU Standard due to non-payment by its policyholders typically
result in coverage effective through a calculated “paid-to” date with no additional cash due. As
a result, NFU Standard’s exposure to uncollectible earnéd premiums is general|y limited to
receivables generated from endorsement or audit activity, which may réquire a policyholder to
pay additional earned premiums even after the cancellation date.

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, NFU Standard had no established allowance for
uncollectible earned premiums. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, NFU
Standard incurred $34, $31 and $46 in write-offs relating to uncollectible earned premiums.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Commissions and other costs of acquiring new business that vary with and are primarily
related to the production of new business are generally deferred. Deferred policy acquisition
costs are amortized over the coverage period of the related insurance policies. Balances of
deferred pohcy acquisition costs are regularly evaluated for recoverability and amounts not
expected to be recoverab|e are expensed.

Loss and Loss Adj‘ustme‘n‘t Expenses

Liabilities for loss and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”) are comprised of case basis
estimates for claims and claim expenses reported prior to year-end and estimates of incurred
but not reported losses and Ioss expenses, net of estimated salvage and subrogation
recoverable. These estimates are recorded gross of reinsurance, are not discounted and are
continually reviewed and updated with any resulting adjustments reflected in current
operating resuits.

Case reserves are estimated based on the experience and knowledge of claims staff
regarding the nature and potential cost of each claim and are adjusted as additional
information becomes known or payments are made. IBNR reserves are regarded as the most
uncertain reserve segment and are derived by subtracting paid loss and LAE and case reserves
from estimates of ultimate loss and LAE. Actuaries estimate ultimate Joss and LAE using
various generally accepted actuarial methods applied to known losses.and other relevant .
information. Like case reserves, IBNR reserves are adjusted as additional information becomes
known or payments are made. '

Ultimate loss and LAE are generally determined by extrapolfation of claim emergence and
settlement patterns observed in the past that can reasonably be expected to persist into the
future. In forecasting ultimate loss and LAE with respect to any line of business, past
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(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share and per share amounts unless
otherwise stated)

experience with respect to that line of business is the primary resource, but cannot be relied
upon in isolation. NFU Standard’s own experience, particularly claims development
experience, such as trends in case reserves, payments on and closings of claims, as well as
changes in business mix and coverage limits, is the most important information for estimating
its reserves. External data, available from organizations such as statistical bureaus, consulting
firms and reinsurance companies, is sometimes used to supplement or corroborate NFU
Standard’s own experience, and can be especially useful for estimating costs of new business.

Reinsurance

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estlmated in a manner consistent with the clalm
liability associated with the reinsured pollmes The’ collectibility of reinsurance recoverables is
subject to the solvency of the reinsurers. NFU Standard is selective in regard to its reinsurers,
principally placing reinsurance with those reinsurers with a strong financial condition, mdustry
ratings and underwntmg ab|l|ty NFU Standard monitors the financial condmon and ratings of
its reinsurers on an ongomg basis.

Reinsurance premiums, commlssmns expense reimbursements and reserves related to
reinsured business are accounted for on a basis consistent with those used in accounting for
the original policies issued and the terms. of the reinsurance contracts. Premiums ceded to
other companies are reported as a reduction of premiums written. Expense allowances
received in connection with reinsurance ceded have been accounted for as a reduction of the
related policy acquisition costs and are deferred and amortized accordingly.

Federal Income Taxes

NFU Standard is included in the consolidated U.S. tax return of OneBeacon Insurance
Group. Under a written tax sharing arrangement with OneBeacon, for periods subsequent to
May 31, 2001, the National Farmer’s Union Group (as defined in the agreement as being NFU
Standard and NFU) is allocated tax based upon the liability of the group if it had filed its
return on a stand-alone basis. Current federal income taxes are charged or credited to
operations based upon amounts estimated to be payable or recoverable as a result of taxable
operations for the current year.

NFU Standard was formeérly included in the consolidated life/non-life U.S: tax return of
OneBeacon Insurance Group (known at that time as CGU Corporation). Under a ‘written tax
sharing arrangement with CGU Corporation, for periods prior to-June 1, 2001, the National
Farmer’s Union Group (as defined in the agreement as being NFU Standard and NFU) was
allocated tax based upon the liability of the group as if it had filed its return on a stand-alone
basis. Under the former agreement, in the event that one of the members of the National
Farmers Union Group had taxable income and the other member had a taxable loss, the
member with the taxable income would reimburse the loss member for the use of those
losses.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on temporary differences
between financial statement carrying amounts and income tax bases of assets and |Iabl|ltIeS
using enacted income tax rates and laws.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There are no recent accountlng pronouncements that are expected to have a material
effect on NFU Standard.
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{Expressed in thousands of U.5. dollars except for share and per share amounts unless
otherwise stated)

NOTE 4 — INVESTMENTS

The cost or amortlzed cost and estlmated fair values of fixed maturmes at December-31
were as follows:' ‘

R . Gross. - -~ - Gross
Cost or Unreahzed Unrealized Estimated Fair

2002 - " Amortized Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. government and agency obligations . $25,745 $ 782 $ — $26,527
Obligations of states and political B R S -
subdivisions ... . i e, 3,148 290 — 3,438
Corporate obligations ................... 19,422 1,259 — 20,681
Preferred stocks .....................c.... 804 - (91) 713
Total fixed maturities ...... P $49,119 ' $2,331 $ (91)..  $51,359
. 2001 ‘ : o
U.S. government and agency obligations . % $‘1’3 142~ '$7285: - § (62) $13,365
Obligations of states and polmcal : [
Subdivisions ... vvn e 3 8 . . 129 . — 3,437
Corporate obllgatrons ................... 25,077 34 (352) 24,759
Preferred stocks R R EE LR RPER PR 1,655 21 (110) 1,466
Total fixed maturities ..................  $43,082 '$ 469 $(524) $43,027

The cost or-amortized cost and estimated fair values of fixed maturities by contractual
maturity at December 31, 2002 are shown below. Expected maturities may differ from-
contractual maturities because- borrowers may have the right to call or prepay. obligations with
or without call or ‘prepayment ‘penalties. :

PP

Costor. = - 7 -
Amortized Estimated Fair
. R ... S —Value
Due in one year or Iess._, e e ‘ ~ $ 1,989
Due. after -ong, year, through. frve years et 20,4880 21,710
Due after five years through ten years e e, 23,863 . .24,763
Due after ten:iyears ...iiiiiean e S 2,005 0 2,184
Preferred stocks: .....vv o eninn i iinu, co 804 L 713
Total ... v o e iR $49’,119"5-’ Lot 851, 359

See e Lagies

leed maturities with carrying values of $12 593 and $8, 763 wereé-on deposn with ..
insurance regulatory authormes as. requnred by Iaw at December 31 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Temporary losses on mvestment securmes are recorded as unreahzed losses. Temporary
losses do not impact net incomie but do reduce comprehensrve net income and shareholder’s
equity. Unrealized Iosses subsequently rdentrfred as bther—than temporary rmparrments are '
recorded as realized Iosses

Durmg the year ended December 31, 2001 ‘N‘FU‘Standard recorded $83 in pretax
other-than-temporary impairment charges on its.portfolio of fixed maturity investments. Of
this charge, $57 related to: NFU Standard’s investments in Preferred Stock of Southern
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California Edison Company and $26 related to NFU Standard’s investment in Preferred Stock of
Pacific. Gas and Electric. NFU Standard recorded impairment on these investments during 2001
since: (i) its unrealized loss position on these securities was greater than 20% of NFU
Standard’s initial cost for a period of more than six months, and (ii) since NFU Standard did
not expect that the value of-these investment would recover in the near term. NFU Standard
did not record any other- than—temporary impairment charges for the years ended December
31,2002 and 2000.

Information relatrng to NFU Standard s investments for the years ended December 31 is
shown below: : :

. 2002 2001 2000
" Proceeds from sales redemptrons caIIs and '
maturities .. .. ... e e e e e $50,122 $37,011 $4,270
Gross realized gains ... 1567 1,332 5
Gross realized [0SS€S . ... ii i e e (221) {623) (475)
. Write-downs resulting from:other than temporary _ e .
impairments included in net realized gains ....... $ - $ 83 & —

* The components of net lnvestment lncome for the years ended December 31 were as
foHows

2002 12001 2000

Fixed maturities ...... . ........ A, $2,395 $2,200 $2,191
Short-term investments—.o.:v..... O N Y P 96 - 172 115
Other investment income ... ... o0 il vt D0 vve 167 221 302
* Gross investment ifcome ......... o i e 2,668 - 2,693 2,608
Less: investment expenses ......... PO . 134~ 48 ' 86
Net investment income ........... i $2,524 $2,545 $2,522

NFU Standard partrmp tes_in a securities Iendrng program whereby it loans investment
secuntles to ‘other rnstrtuﬁons for short periods of time. NFU Standard receives a fee from the .
borrower i in return for the use of its assets. The program initially: reqmres collateral equal to-
102% of the fair value of the loaned securities, which is held by a third party. The fair value of
the collateral is evaluated dally and, in the event:it falls below 100% of the fair value of the
loaned securities, NFU Standard has the right to demand that it be lmmedrately increased to
an amount equal to 102% of the fair value of the loaned securities. All securities loaned can be
redeemed on short notice. The total market value of NFU Standard’s securities on loan at
December 31, 2002 was $9 770 with correspondmg collateral of $9,882.-

NOTE 5— UNPAID LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES |

.Loss and LAE reserves are estimates of amounts needed to pay claims and related
expenses in the future for msured events that have already occurred NFU Standard
establishes estimates of amounts recoverable from its reinsurers |n a manner consistent with
the claim liability covered by the reinsurance contracts net of an allowance for uncollectible
amounts. Net loss and LAE reserves represent gross loss and LAE reserves reduced by
reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses. NFU Standard’s Loss and LAE reserves represent
management’s best estimate of reserves based on a composite of the results of the various
actuarial methods, as well as consideration of known facts and trends. NFU Standard believes
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that its reserves are reasonably stated; however, since the process of estimating Loss and LAE
reserves involves a considerable degree of judgment by management, ultimate loss and LAE
for past accident years may dev:ate, perhaps materially, from the amounts currently reflected.

Changes in the liability for unpaid losses and LAE for the years ended December 31 were
as follows:

2002 2001 " - 2000
Beginning of year: - " ‘
GroSS «iniiivieiiiaennnnn TR - $18,218 + $16,535 .-.$12,974
Less reinsurance recoverables .............. (3,575) (2,670) (1,637)
T S S 14,643 13,865 11,337
Incurred loSseS and [AE relating‘;j;to: ‘
Currentyear .............. 15,508 14,314 11,993
Prioryears ........c.cc.oo.n. e 1,701 (297 1,506
Total incurred lossesand LAE ............ : 17,209 14,017 13,499
Paid losses and LAE related to: C
Currentyear ............. . (6,331) {6,379) {6,033)
Prior years ........ PR e {5,732) {6,860) {4,938)
Total paid lossesand LAE ................ {12,063) {13,239) {10,971)
End of year:
Net...ooooiiiiiiiiiinss e 19,789 14,643 13,865
Plus reinsurance recoverables .............. 3,164 3,575 2,670

Gross ........... T $ 22,953 $ 18,218 $ 16,635

“ The Company:recorded $1.7 million-and $1.5 million of-net unfavorable loss.reserve
development on prior accident year loss.and LAE reserves for:the years ending 2002 and 2000,
respectively, and $.3-million of favorable: development on pnor accndent year loss:and LAE:
reserves for the year-ending 2001 : - i :

The net unfavorable development in 12002 was pnmanly related to hlgher than antucapated
settlement costs Wl'(hln the Company’s Other Llablllty and Auto Liability lines. Other Llablllty
was largely driven by seven claims’ occurrlng in 2000 which did not emerge until 2002. Auto
Liability had shown favorable development on prior years during 2000 and 2001 but, in 2002,
there was an increase in prior year reserves resultmg from higher than expected settlement
costs. ‘

The net unfavorable developmeént in. 2000 was primarily retated to higher than anticipated
settlement costs within the Companys ‘Worker Compensation. line: In 2000, Workers
Compensation claims handling for the Company’s Telephone Insurance business changed from
regional offices in Salt Lake City, Utah and Minneapolis, Minnesota to a consolidated. claims
handling office in Colorado. New claims adjusters and managers were assigned claims
handling duties. As a result, the Company- performed a review:of its Workers Compensation
case reserves. This review led to case reservé mcreases in response to antncnpated increases in
medical costs and increased life expectancies.
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NOTE- 6 — REINSURANCE

v In the normal course of busmess NFU Standard enters lnto reinsurance agreements to
limit losses from large exposures and recover a portion of the direct losses. This ceding of
insurance does riot discharge 'the original issuer from primary liability to its policyholders, and
to the extent that a reinsurer would be unable to meet its obligations, NFU Standard would be
liable. Management of NFU Standard believes its reinsurers are flnancrally sound and will
continue to meet their obllgatlons

The effects of reinsurance for the years ended. December 31 were as follows:

| 20022000 2000
~ Premiums written: S . .
Direct .:...vveveiiniennn.. e $28,468  $25,214 - $21,073
I (3;804) _ (732) - _(1,711)

Ceded: .:

$24,664 $24,482 $19 362

Premiums earned: A -
Direct ..o e $27,327  $23,328  $20,439

| Ceded ............ O € 1) (954)  _(1,720)
Net ...ivuoonnn. Ciiieeieiiioioo.... $23537  $22,374  $18,719

Losses and loss adjustment expenses:

Direct ....ovuen... e e - $16,940  $15,105  $16,363
Ceded ..ooovvvnennin. e 269 (1,088) (2,864)
Net ..ol el e $17,209:: $14,017 . $13,499

~ During 2002, NFU and NFU Standard entered into a reinsurance agreement with Towers
Perrin Reinsurance that providesNFU: and NFU Standard-with $9,000.in reinsurance protection
for property‘losses‘in excess of$1,000. The cost to'NFU Standard for the Towers. Perrin for this
layer of coverage was $381. In addition; during 2002 any:property losses’in’excess of $10,000
were covered up to $40,500 by OneBeacon'’s reinsurance program:covering its-subsidiaries;
mcludmg NFU Standard The cost to NFU. Standard for the OneBeacon layer of .coverage was

.....

e

durmg 2001 any property losses |n excess of $3, 000 were covered up to $122 000 by
OneBeacon s reinsurance program covering |ts subsndlarles mcludmg NFU Standard at a total
cost to NFU Standard of $28.

During. 2002, NFU and NFU Standard entered /into a reinsurance agreement with Towers
Perrin Reinsurance that- provndes NFU and NFU Standard W|th $4 000 in reinsurance protection
for casualty losses in excess of $1,000. The cost to NFU Standard for the Towers Perrin layer -
of coverage was $871. In addmon,rdurlng 2002 any casualty losses in- excess of $5 000 would

including . NFU Standard The cost to NFU Standard for the OneBeacon Iayer of coverage was
$300. During 2001, OneBeacon. provnded NFU Standard with $1,500 in reinsurance protection
for casualty losses in excess of $1,000 at a total cost to NFU Standard of $208. In addition,
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during 2001, any casualty losses in excess of $2,500 were covered up to $37,500 by

OneBeacon'’s reinsurance program covering its subsidiaries, including NFU Standard at a total
cost to NFU Standard of $11.

During 2002, 2001 and 2000, NFU Standard ceded premiums to OneBeacon and its
subsidiaries of $459, $284 and $53, respectively, under its reinsurance programs with
OneBeacon. At December 31, 2002 and 2001 NFU Standard had $149 and $1,120 of
reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpaid losses, respectively, from OneBeacon and its
subsidiaries. ‘

Effective June 1, 2001, OneBeacon, through Potomac Insurance Company entered into a
reinsurance agreement with General Reinsurance Corporation {(*GRC Cover”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway, Inc {“Berkshire”), which provides OneBeacon and its
subsidiaries, including NFU Standard, with significant reinsurance protections against
unanticipated increases in recorded reserves for insurance losses and loss adjustment
expenses. The GRC Cover provides up to $570 million in excess of loss reinsurance protection
against adverse development on accident year 2000 and prior losses. At the date of inception,
in connection with the GRC Cover, NFU Standard ceded premiums of $170. Berkshire, through
their ownership of currently exercisable warrants to acquire common shares of White
Mountains, owned approximately 16.1% of White Mountains’ total outstanding common
shares on a fully-converted basis at December 31, 2002.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, NFU Standard had $1,848 and $2,101 in reinsurance
recoverable on paid and unpaid losses, respectively, from General Reinsurance Corporation.
NOTE 7 — FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

The components of federal income taxes and a reconciliation of the expected and actual
federal income taxes for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

2002 © 2001 .- - 2000
Current ..ot “$1,128 $1,858 - - $254
Deferred ...........co i il : (326) (282) -~ _(125)
INCOME tax EXPENSe .. ....vvvnerneeunnne. % 802 $1,576 - $ 129
Expected federal income taxes at 35% .... $ 850 $1,669 - $ 334
Tax exemptinterest ..................... {55) (70) - (208)
Other,net ........ P AR TR S 7 23 3
Income tax expense .............. P $ 802 $1,576  $129

|
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Components of the net deferred income tax asset at December 31 were as follows:

2002 2001

Deferred income tax asset:

Losses and loss adjustment expense reserves ...... ' $ 846 $ 549

Unearned insurance premiums ............ PR 721 601

Other oo 1M 148
Total deferred incometaxasset .............cccvvnnn.. $1,678 $1,298
Deferred income tax liability:

Net unrealized gains on investments ...... PP $ 784 $ (19)

Deferred acquisition costs ...... v e e 620. 551

Other-......cocovvvvivon.tn PP e 10 26
Total deferred income tax liability .................... $1,414 $ 558
Net deferred income taxasset .................. ..., $ 264 $ 740 .

NOTE 8 — OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Components of other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31 were as
follows:

2002 2001 2000
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments . $ 3,641 ‘$2,192 $(350)
Adjustment for unrealized gains {losses) ‘
realized ... ... (1,346) {709) 470
Less related federal income taxes ........ (803) (5619} (42)

Total i\oneeeeeennnnss ST $1492 $ 964 $ 78

Components'of accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31 were as
follows: :

‘ 2002 2001
Accumulated other comprehensive income:

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments ............ $2,240 ($55)
Less related federal income taxes ................... (784) 19

TOtal et e $1,456 {$36)

NOTE 9 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, NFU Standard had receivables of $0 and $49,
respectively, from NFU and OneBeacon for miscellaneous items including insurance premiums
receivable. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, NFU Standard had payables of $845 and $0,
respectively, to NFU and OneBeacon for miscellaneous items including general and.
administrative expenses.

F-76



NATIONAL FARMERS UNION STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

{Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share and per share amounts unless
otherwise stated)

NFU Standard pays use of name and state service fees, based on a percentage of
premiums, to the National Farmers Union and state organizations. During 2002, 2001 and
2000, fees incurred by NFU Standard for these services. approxnmated $354, $307 and $261,
respectively.

As there are no employees of NFU Standard, NFU provides administrative services and
allocates a portion of its overhead to NFU Standard. The amounts charged to NFU Standard
for such services are based on actual amounts incurred by NFU and are allocated to NFU
Standard based on employee records of time spent on NFU Standard matters versus time
spent on NFU matters. Additionally, NFU Standard has a service contract with OneBeacon
Asset Management, Inc. ("OBAM"), a wholly owned subsidiary of OneBeacon. Under this
agreement, OBAM provides investment research and advice, including the execution of orders
for the purchase and sale of securities. The amounts charged to NFU Standard by OBAM for
such services are based on a fixed fee applied to the month-end market values of the
investments being managed. During 2002, 2001 and 2000, NFU Standard incurred a total of
$4,373, $3,273 and $4,240 of fees and expenses, respectively, with NFU and OBAM for services
provided. NFU Standard believes that the fees and expenses being charged by NFU and
OBAM, including the allocation techniques being used to allocate such fees and expenses, are
reasonable and that such amounts do not differ materially from the amounts that NFU
Standard would expect to pay to an unaffiliated entity for such services.

NFU Standard participated in a reinsurance agreement with OneBeacon during 2002 and
2001. As part of this agreement, NFU Standard ceded approximately $459, $284 and $53
million of premiums to OneBeacon during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. NFU Standard
participates in a reinsurance program with OneBeacon that provides coverage for Casualty
Excess of Loss Covers, Property Excess of Loss Per Risk and Umbrella Excess of Loss Per Risk.

During 2000, NFU Standard issued an additional 1,200,000 shares of its common stock to
NFU in the form of a common stock dividend. This transaction was made by NFU Standard to
comply with certain licensing requirements for admission to the State of New Jersey.

NOTE 10 — CONTINGENCIES

Under existing guaranty fund faws in all states, insurers licensed to do business in those
states can be assessed for certain obligations of insolvent insurance companies to
policyholders and claimants. In accordance with Statement of Position 97-3, “Accounting by
Insurance and Other enterprises for Insurance-Related Assessments’ (“SOP 97-3"), NFU
Standard records guaranty fund assessments when the loss is probable and the assessment
amount can be reasonably estimated. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, NFU Standard required
no reserve for such assessments.

NFU Standard is involved in litigation incurred in the normal settlement of claims

liabilities. In the opinion of management, provision has been made in the financial statements
for estimated losses that may result.

NOTE 11 — STATUTORY INFORMATION

The Division of Insurance of the State of Colorado (the “Division”) requires NFU Standard
to maintain minimum statutory capital and surplus of $2,000. Other states in which Standard is
licensed to do business have their own requirements as to minimum statutory capital and
surplus.
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Dividends are payable from earned statutory surplus and may require the approval of
state regulatory authorities, based on limitations relating to statutory surplus and net income.
At December 31, 2002, 10%:of surplus-or approximately $2.9 million was available for -
dividends to NFU in 2002 without the prior approval of the Division. Extraordinary dividends
may be paid only with the approval of the Division. NFU Standard paid a cash dividend of
$1,000 to NFU during 2002. No cash dividends were paid by NFU Standard during 2001.

Statutory basis infor'matjon‘at'énd for the years ended December 31, were as follows:

o . . 2002 2001 . 2000
Capital and surplls"........... oo $29,4077 0 $28,982  $20,018

Net ihcomé".;.\.;_.‘.,v'._...._............;...f w‘ff$v1,275 $3037 $1,032
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Assets

Fixed maturity investments, at fair value (cost: $43 752 and
B49,110) . e e s e

Short-term mvestments at amortized cost (whlch approxnmates fair
value) ....... e e P S e

Other investments, at COSt ................co... e e

Total investments ......... e e e e
‘Cash and cash equtvalents .......................................

Accounts recelvable on unsettled mvestment sales .................

Insurance premiums receivable ... ................. L .....

Reinsurance recoverable on paid and unpald Iosses e e
Deferred acquisition costs ............ ..ol oveiiinss e L

Current federal income tax recoverable ..................... el
Receivable from affiliates ........................ ...l R

Total @SSES i vttt e e e TR S s

Liabilities

Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves ........ e S

Unearned insurance premiums .. o.o.v et ininnnnnereennnaens

Accounts payable on unsettled investment-purchases ............. .

Accounts payable and other liabilities .............. ... ... ... ...
Payable to affiliates ..........cccciiiiiiiiii it ei e ianaen

Total llabilities . ... i i e e e e

Stockhoider’s equity
Common Stock at $1 par value per share — authorized 5,000,000

shares; Issued and outstanding 4,200,000 shares ................ '

Paid-incapital .......ccoiiii e e
Retained earnings ........c.cviiiiiiiiii i it i e e
Accumulated other comprehensive income, aftertax ..............

Total common stockholder's equity ...........c.coo i,
Total liabilities and stockholder'sequity ..........................

September 30,
2003

December 31,

2002

(unaudited)
" $46, 499  $51,359
11,079 13,909
126 ‘179
57,704 55,447
1,683 54
11,999 -
6,632 4,474
4,043 3,164
2,662 1,770
548 491
523 T
421 836
122 264
i w42
$86,359 $66,542
$26,631 $22,953 -
13,657 9,156
12,808 A
678 660
—_ 845
53,774 33,614
4,200 4,200
2,200 2,200
24,399 25,072
1,786 1,456
32,585 32,928
$86,359 $66,542

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Nine months ended September 30,

2003 2002
Revenues _ )
Earned insurance premiums .........c.c.ceiiinnenenennnnns S $20,315 $17,815
Net investment income ........... P e e 1,585 1,950
Net realized gains ....................... e 121 1,222
Other revenue ............. i, e 11 -2
Total revenues ..........c.ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaa, e el 22,032 21,014
Expenses ‘ : g
Loss and loss adjustment expenses ...............ciiiiinn. or 14,304 10,874
Insurance acquisition expenses ............ [, P 3,058 2,579
General and administrative expenses .............ciiiiiiiiian, 4,219 3,059
Total eXPeNnSes . ...ovviiriiii e PR e 21,581 16,51‘2’:
Pretax income .......... e 451 4,502
Federal income tax expense .................... e (124) (1,632)
Net income ......... et e e 327 2,970
Net change in unrealized gains and losses for investments held . 409 2,294
Recognition of unrealized gains and losses for investments sold . (79) (794)
Comprehensive netincome ............................ e $ 657 $ 4,470
Dividends declared and paid to the common stockholder ......... $ 1,000 $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Accumulated
other

Stockholder’'s Common Paid-in  Retained comprehensive

Equity Stock capital .earnings, income after tax
Balances at January 1,2003 ........... $32,928 . $4,200 $2,200 $25,072 $1,456
Netincome .................. LT 327 . CLells 327 L —
Other comprehensive income, after tax 330 — — — 330
‘Dividends declared ................... ‘ (1,000) - —- - — (1,000) —
Balances at September 30, 2003 ....... '$32,585  $4,200 $2,200 $24,399 $1,786
Balances at Janua4ry 1,2002 ........... $30,809 $4,200 $2,200 $24,445 $ (36)
Net income ................ cimeeerene o 2,970 — — 2,970 —
Other comprehensive income, aftertax 1500 =~ _  — _ — — 1,600
Balances at September 30, 2002 ....... $35279 . $4,200 $2,200 $27,415  $1,464

The-accompanying notes are an. integral part of these financial statements
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Nine months ended September 30,

e 2003 2002
Cash flows from operatlons S
Netincome ..... T U A e e "$ 327 $ 2,970
Charges (credits) to reconcnle net mcome to: cash flows from : o
operations: v e
Deferred federal income tax benefit ....... e et N (38) . ..(84)
Net change in current federal income taxes. recelvable and .
(01107 o] - SR B (Y I (1,302)
Net realized gains .............. et (121) (1,222)
Other operating items: ' o
Net change in reinsurance recoverable on pa|d and unpaud |osses‘ (880) - "~ (51)
Net change in loss and loss adjustment expense reserves .... L 3678 2,628
Net change in insurance premlums receivable ............. ceee. o E0(25188) 0 - (15540)
Net change in unearned insurance Premiums ....oovvevrnnennnnn 4501 3,281
Net change in deferred acquisition costs ................. S {892) {633)
Other, Net o o e e e e e s (834) 1,186
Net cash flows provided by operations ........................... 3,528 5,233
Cash flows from investing activities |
Net increase in short-term investments ......................... (7,170) (20,765)
Net change in unsettled investment purchases and sales ........ 809 8,648
Sales, maturities, calls and redemptions of fixed maturity
NVESIMEBNTS ...t ittt i iittn et iearinenriasnrarnaeannnnas 135,088 . 29,247
Sales of common stocks and other investments ................. 53 22
Purchases of fixed maturity investments .............c..ovvvenn. (129,679) {22,365)
Net cash flows used for investing activities .......... DR PR (899) (5,213)
Cash flows from financing activities
‘Cash dividends paid to the common stockholder ................ {1,000) —
Net cash used for financing activities ..... ettt e e {1,000)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during period .......... 1,629 ' 20
Cash and cash equivalent balances at beginning of period ......... 54 11
Cash and cash equivalent balances at end of period .............. $ 1,683 $ 31
Supplemental cash flows information
Net income taxes recovered (paid) .............ccoiiiiiiiiinen. $ 278 $ (2,979)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements -
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NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS

National Farmers Unlon Standard lnsurance Company ("NFU Standard”) was rncorporated
in 1968 and is prrncrpally engaged in property and casualty insurance operations. NFU
Standard is domiciled in Colorado and was, llcensed in 41 states at September 30, 2003

NFU Standard is a wholly owned subsrdlary of National Farmers Union Property and "
Casualty Company (“NFU"), a wholly. owned subsidiary of OneBeacon Insurance Group
(“OneBeacon”). On June 1, 2001, White Mountains Insurance Group, Ltd. ("Whrte Mountams ",
the ultrmate parent company, acqurred OneBeacon : :

NOTE 2 — PENDING TRANSACTION

- On September 29, 2003, NFU entered into an agreement to:sell all of the 0utstand|ng
capital stock of NFU Standard for a purchase prrce equal to the aggregate of $8 6 million, plus
an amount ‘equal to the book value of specrfred secuntres held by NFU Standard on the closrng
date This acqursmon is condltloned on the recerpt of regulatory approval '

L

..NFU agreed: that it will assume from NFU: Standard all of its: underwrrtmg contracts and all~
of its liabilities -and assets as of the:closing date provrded sthowever, that not less-than. $13.0 -
million' in. policyholders’ surplus shall remiain-in NFU, Standard. If NFU is ‘unable; to assume, as
a compete Transfer and Assumption; any. of the historical insurance-business of NFU Standard.
at the effective date and time-because NFU shall.not have received.regulatory approval .
pending rate and.form filing or.any other regulatory reason, NFU shall 100% reinsure. NFU
Standard for any-and all premrum losses and expenses, relatmg to such busmess as renewed
until such approval is recelved ’

!

NOTE 3— SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentatron. , ' : R

~The accompanylng frnancral statements of NFU Standard have been prepared in ..
e United States of America.

(“GAAP”)

The- preparatlon of financial statements in' conformlty with:GAAP: requrres management)to ’
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported “amotints ‘of assets and liabilities“and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the-financial statements and the .
reported amounts of revenues and expenses durlng the reportmg penod Actual results could
drffer from those estimates. v .

The rnterrm frnancral data as of September 30, 2003 and for the mne months ended ,
September 30, 2003 and September 30, 2002 is unaudited; however in the opinion of NFU
Standard, the interim data includes all adjustments consrstmg only of normal recurring
adjustments, necessary for a farr statement of the results for the mterrm perrods

Investments = o S P R

) Cash and cash equrvalents mclude hlghly Irqurd debt mstruments purchased wrth
remaining maturities of three months or less. Short-term. mvestments consrst of rnvestments
that have a maturity of one year, or Iess at the date of purchase

Fixed maturity investments are: designated as available-for-sale. Available- for—sale
securities are reported at estimated-fair value, with changes in. fair value reflected in other
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comprehensive income net of applicable federal income taxes. Estimated fair values are based-.
on guoted values. Investment securities are regularly revrewed for lmparrment based on
critéria’ that mclude the extent to Wthh cost exceeds market value, the duratlon of the market
decline, and the flnan0|al health of and specmc prospects for the |ssuer lnvestment Iosses that
are othef'than temporary are recogmzed in earnings.”

Other mvestments, prmcrpally mortgage loans made by NFU Standard to unrelated~ :
parties, are reported at cost Wthh approx1mated falr value as of the balance sheet dates“ "
presented v

Investment income is recorded when earned Reallzed mvestment galns and losses are
recognized using the specific identification method. te T o -

Premlums and Unearned Insurance Premlums ¢

Premlu“'s are recognlzed ‘as, revenue over the coverage perlod of pollcres wrltten on a,
da|ly pro rata basis. Unearned lnsuran_‘e"premlums represent t_ _.‘portlon of premlums wntten
relating to the remaining term of each policy. NFU Standard’ s down payment requirements . ..
and'tonservative credit termsiserve.to significantly reduce its .exposure to uncollectible earned.
premiuims..Cancellations:by .NFt-8tandard: due to:non-payment by-its policyholders typically;
resultiin coverage effective through-a calculated “paid-to” date with no additional.cash due.:As:
a result, NFU Standard’s exposure to tncollectible earned: premiums is generally'*l'imited to
receivables generated-from eéndorsement-or audit activity, which may requrre a pollcyholder to
pay addmonal earned premlums even after the cancellatlon date et e v

As of September 30, 2003 and December 31 2002 NFU Standard had no establlshed

allowance for uncollectlble earned premiums. For the mne months ended September 30 2003

premlums

Deferred Pollcy Acqmsrtlon Costs

Comimissions and other costs of acqumng new busmess that vary- wrth and are pnmanly
related’to'the production 6f new business are’ generally deferred. Deferredpolicy’ acqursmon
costs are amortlzed over the coverage perlod of the related msurance pollcres Balances of -

Llabrlrtles for loss and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”l are compnsed of case basrs '
estimates for reported claims and claim expenses and estimates of incurred but not reported
losses, ahd loss expenses, net of estlmated salvage and subrogatlon recoverable, are gross of
reinsturance and are not dlscounted These estlmates are contmually revrewed and updated .
and any: resultlng adjustments are reflected |n current operatlng results ' ’

Case reserves are estlmated based on the experience and knowledge of clalms staff
regarding the nature and potential cost of each claim and are adjusted as additional. o
information becomes known or payments are made. IBNR reserves are regarded as the most
uncertain reserve segment ar\d are derlved by subtractlng pald loss and LAE and case reserves
from estimates of ultimhate loss’ and LAE. Actuaries estimate ultimate loss and LAE using
various generally accepted actuarial methods applied to known lossés and other relevant
information..Like case reserves, IBNR reserves are adjusted as-additional information becomes
known or. payments are made. Gp. : - : : ~
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Ultimate loss and LAE are generally determined by extrapolation of claim emergence and
settlement patterns observed in the past that can reasonably be expected to persist: mto the
future. In forecasting ultimate loss and LAE with respect to any line of business, past -
experience with respect to that line of business is the primary resource, but cannot be relied
upon in isolation. NFU Standard’s own experience, particularly claims development
expenence such as trends in case reserves, payments on and closings:of claims, as well as
changes in business mix and coverage limits, is the most important mformatuon for estimating
its reserves. External data, available from organizations such as statistical bureaus consulting
firms and reinsurance companies, is sometimes used to supplement or corroborate NFU
Standard’s own experience, and can be especrally useful for estimating costs of new busmess

Reinsurance

‘In the normal course of business, NFU Standard enters into reinsurance agreements to
limit losses from large exposures and recover a portion of the direct losses. This ceding of
insurance does not discharge the original issuer from primary liability to its policyholders, and
to the extent that a reinsurer would be unable to meet its obligations, NFU Standard would be
liable. Management of NFU Standard believes its remsurers are financially sound and. will
continue to meet thelr obhgatnons

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estlmated ina manner consnstent wrth the clalm
Ilablllty associated wnth the reinsured policies. The collectibility of reinsurance recoverables is
subject to the solvency of the reinsurers. NFU. Standard is selective in regard to its reinsiirers,
principally placing reinsurance with those reinsurers with a strong financia!l condition, industry
ratings and underwriting ability. NFU Standard momtors the financial condition and ratings of
its reinsurers on an ongoing basis.

Remsurance premlums commissions, expense reimbursements and reserves related to
reinsured business are accounted for on a basis consistent with those used in accounting for
the original policies issued and the terms of the reinsurance contracts. Premlums ceded to
other companies are reported as a reduction of premiums written. Expense allowances
received in connection with reinsurance ceded have been accounted for as a reduction of the
related policy acquisition costs and are deferred and amortized accordingly.

Federal Income Taxes

“*NFU Standard is mcluded in the consolidated U.S. tax return of OneBeacon Insurance
Group Under a written tax $haring arrangement, the National Farmeér's'Union Group (as

‘defined in the agreement as being NFU Standard and NFU) is allocated tax based upon the

liability of the group if it had filed its return on a stand-alone basis. Clirrent federal income
taxes are charged.or credited to operations based upon amounts estimated to be payable or.
recoverable as a result of taxable operatlons for the current year. Deferred income tax assets
and ||ab|l|t|es are. recogmzed based on temporary dlfferences between flnanmal statement
carrying amounts and income tax bases of assets and hablhtles using enacted income tax
rates and laws. '

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There are no recent accounting pronouncements that are expected to have a material
effect on NFU Standard.
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NOTE 4 — INVESTMENTS

The cost or amortlzed cost and estrmated falr values of frxed matuntres for the respectrve
balance sheet dates were as follows

.... Gross : . Gross

S o Cé‘fst"e‘r' © Unrealized’ ‘Unrealized  Estimated Fair
As of Segt’e'mb'er 30 2003 ’ - Amortized Cost -:v Galns - - Losses . Value
U.S. government and agency o SR ST o
obhgatrons IR S R SN e . $24,868° $1,182 - $(11) $26,039
Obligations of states and polrtrcal T L
 subdivisions .... .. L Lo 3004 0 296 0 = 3,390
Corporate........coovveinnennnanenns 15,258 1,307 — 16,565
Preferred stocks ............. e L 532 . 7 (34) 505
Total frxed maturrtles cebeienen o, 543,752 00 $2,792 - $(45) $46,499
" As of December 31,2002 ;. .
U.S. government-and:agency:’ N S e P
obligations ... .. [ s $25,745 $.782 - $— . $26,527:
Obligations of states and polrtrcal ‘ ’ ,
subdrvrsrons e el p 073,148 290 . — 3,438
COTpOrate, .. oot vurenenane v 19,422~ 1,259 0 — 20,681
Preferred stocks ................oc.o 804 — 7 _(91) 713
Total fixed maturrtres e e o 549,119 $2,331: .. - 3(91) $51,359.

|nformat|on relatrng to NFU Standards mvestments for the mne months ended September
30is shown below R

2003 , 2002

Proceeds from sales redemptrons caIIs and maturrtres $135 14],, $29 269 ,
Gross realized gains. .. .o..iivoeensceaenns At wewwe oo B2T0 1,384 1 s
Gross realized losses ........... e e e e {406) {162)

Temporary losses on investment securities are recorded as unrealized losses. Temporary
losses do not |mpact net income but do. reduce comprehensrve net mcome and shareholders »
equity. Unrealrzed Iosses subsequently |dentrf|ed as other- than temporary |mparrments are e
recorded as realized losses. L

NFU Standard's methodo[ogy of assessmg other-than-temporary rmparrment charges on :
its mvestments is based on security’ specrfrc facts, crrcumstances and intentions as of the o
balance sheet date. NFU Standard did not record any other-than- temporary |mparrment
charges for the nine months endéd September 30, 2003 and 2002."
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Thé components of net investment income for the nine months ended September 30 were
as follows:

2003 2002
Fixed maturities. ... $1,626  $1,878
Short-term INVESHMENTS & .\ e e e e e 82 118
Other investment iNCOMe ......oouevenrenana... Cillian 26 .40
‘Gross investment income ................ e 1,734 2,036
Less: investment exXpenses. .........vveiiennnnvnn, {149) (86)

Net investmentincome .......... ..ol i, $1,685°  $1,950

NFU- Standard -participates in a securities lending program whereby it loans investment
securities to other institutions for short periods of time. NFU Standard receives. a fee from the
borrower in return for the use of its assets. The program initially requires collateral equal to
102% of the fair value of the loaned securities, which is held by a third party. The fair value of
the collateral is evaluated daily and, in the event it falls below 100% of the fair value of the
loaned securities, NFU Standard has the right to demand that it be immediately increased to
an amount-equal to 102% of the fair value of the loaned securities. All securities loaned can be
redeemed on short notice. The total market value of Standard’s securities on loan at
September 30, 2003 was $16,392 with corresponding collateral of $16,682.

As of September 30, 2003, NFU Standard reported $12,808 in accounts payable on
unsettled investment purchases and $11,999 in accounts receivable on unsettled investment
sales, substantrally‘all of which are related to agreements to purchase or sell “TBA”
mortgage-backed securities. A TBA trade represents a commitment to purchase or sell a pool
of mortgage-backed securities in the future. TBA trades are settled in the future, since at the
time of the trade, the-specific ldentlflcatlon of the mortgage loans. underlying the
mortgage:- -backed security is not final.. Mortgage pools (including fixed rate or. variable rate .
mortgages) guaraiiteed by Ginnie. Mae Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac are subsequently allocated
to.the TBA transactions. The. perlod between the TBA trade date and the ultimate cash
settlement date can be as long as 180 days, though it typically runs between 45 and 60 days
At the time of a TBA purchase trade, NFU Standard intends to take delrvery of the
mortgage-backed security on the cash settlement ‘date.

NOTE 5 — UNPAID LOSS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

Loss and LAE reserves are estimates of amounts.needed to pay claims and related;
expenses in.the future for insured events that have already occurred. NFU-Standard - -
establishes estimates of amounts_recoverable from'its reinsurers.in a manner consistent with
the claim liability covered by the reinsurance-contracts, net of an allowance for uncellectrble
amounts. Net loss and LAE reserves represent gross loss and LAE reserves.reduced:by -
reinsurance recoverable on unpald losses. NFU Standard’s Loss and LAE reserves represent
managements best estimate of reserves based on a composite of the results of the various
actuarial methods as weII as con3|derat|on of known facts and trends. NFU Standard belleves
that its reserves are reasonably stated; however, since the process of estimating Loss and LAE
reserves involves a considerable degree of judgment by management, ultimate loss and LAE
for past accident years may deviate, perhaps materially, from the amounts currently reflected.
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Changes in the liability for unpaid:-losses and LAE for the nine months ended September
30 were as follows:

SN L _ 2003 . _ 2002

Segin‘ning of period: o ,
LG 1o 11 TN P T $ 22,953 $18,218
Less reinsurance recoverables. e R © (3,164) (3,575)
SNEE L 19,789 14,643
|ncurred losses and LAE relatmg to: o oo
“Current period-............ e T 13,778 10,671
Prioryears .........ccoiiiiiiiiiiniiinan, A - 526 203
i »:To'tal :incurred losses and LAE. .0t itrinseeens . 14,304 - . 10,874 =
' “'Paid losses" and LAE related to S e : N
~ Current period ... e (4,968) (3,929)
 Prior years.'.". L P (6,538)  (4,289)
" Total paid losses and. LAE ....... s .. ._{11,506) _(8,218)
Endofperlod ST R
Nt 22587 17,299
. 'Plus’reinsurarice recoverables ..........;...uie e 4,044 3647

Gross. et ettt $.26,631  $20,846

"Prior accident year Iosses and LAE mcreased by. $526 and $203 durmg the nine months
ended September 30,:2003 and 2002, respectively, relatmg prlmarlly to'NFU.Standard’s .
longer- ‘tailed coverages, such as workers compensation ‘and ‘other general lrabllrty, within its -
commercual package pollmes known as the Telecommunlcatlon Insurance Plan. The adverse
loss development reported during these' periods for these coverages resulted from hlgher than'
anticipated settlement costs of certam pnor year clalms o

No addltlonal premlums or return premrums have been accrued as a result of these
prior-year effects.

NOTE 6 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As of September 30, 2003 and 2002, NFU Standard had receivables of $523 and $38,
respectively, from NFU and OneBeacon for miscellaneous items including insurance premiums
receivable."As of September30, 2003 and 2002, NFU Standard had payables of $0 and $1,764;-
respectively, to NFU and OneBeacon for m|scel|aneous |tems mcludmg general and-
administrative expenses :

NFU Standard pays use of name and state serv:ce fees based on a percentage of
premiums, to NFU and state orgamzatrons, respectrvely Fees mcurred by NFU Standard o
approx1mated $357 and $293 for the nlne months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectrvely '

As there are no employees of NFU. Standard NFU provrdes admmrstratlve services and
allocates a portion of its overhead to NFU Standard. The amounts charged to NFU Standard
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for such services are based on actual amounts incurred by NFU and are allocated to NFU
Standard based on employee records of time spent on NFU Standard matters versus time
spent on NFU matters. Additionally, NFU Standard has a service contract with OneBeacon
Asset Management, Inc. ("OBAM”), a wholly owned subsidiary of OneBeacon. Under this
agreement, OBAM provides investment research and advice, including the execution of orders
for the purchase and sale of securities. The amounts charged to NFU Standard by OBAM for
such services are based on a fixed fee applied to the month-end market values of the
investments being managed. During the nine months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002,
NFU Standard incurred a total of $3,739 and $2,877 of fees and expenses, respectively, with
NFU and OBAM for services provided. NFU Standard believes that the fees and expenses
being charged by NFU and OBAM, including the allocation technigues being used to allocate
such fees-and expense, are reasonable and that such amounts do not differ materially from
the amounts that NFU Standard would expect to pay to an unaffiliated entity for such services.

NFU Standard participated in a reinsurance agreement with OneBeacon during the nine
months ended September 30, 2003 and 2002. As part of this agreement, NFU Standard ceded
approximately $2,770 and $344 of premiums to OneBeacon during the 2003 and 2002 periods,
respectlvely NFU Standard participates in a reinsurance program with OneBeacon that
provides coverage for Casualty Excess of Loss Covers, Property Excess of Loss Per Risk and -
Umbrella Excess of Loss Per Risk.

NOTE 7 — CONTINGENCIES

Under existing guaranty fund Iaws in all states insurers Ilcensed to do busmess in those
states can be assessed for certain obligations of insolvent insurance companies to
policyholders and claimants. In accordance with Statement of Position 97-3, “Accounting by
Insurance and Other enterprises for Insurance-Related Assessments” (“SOP 97-3"), NFU
Standard records guaranty fund assessments when the loss is probable and the assessment
amount can be reasonably estimated. At September 30, 2003, NFU Standard requured no
reserve for such assessments. -

'NFU Standard |s involved in litigation incurred in the normal settlement of claims
habllltles In the opinion of management provision has been made m the fmancral statements
for estimated losses that may result. :

NOTE 8 — STATUTORY INFORMATION

The Drvrsron of Insurance of the State of Colorado (the ”Dwrsron") requrres NFU Standard
to maintain minimum statutory capital and surplus of $2,000. Other states in which NFU
Standard is licensed to do business have their own requirements as to’minimum statutory
capital and surplus

D|V|dends are payable from earned statutory surplus and may requrre the approval of
state regulatory authorities, based on limitations relating to statutory surplus and net income.
At September 30, 2003, 10% of surplus or approximately $2,811 million was available for .
dividends to NFU in 2003 without the prior approval of the Division. Extraordinary‘dividends'
may be paxd only with the approval of the Division. NFU Standard paid a cash dividend of $1.0
million to NFU Standard dunng 2003 No cash leldends were pald by NFU Standard dunng
2002.

As of September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, NFU Standard's Statutory basis capital
and surplus totaled $28,114 and $29,407, respectively. For the nine months ended September
30, 2003 and 2002, NFU Standards Statutory basis net (Ioss) lncome totaled $(621) and $2,397,
respectively. '
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. GLOSSARY OF SELECTED REINSURANCE, |NSURANCE AND INVESTMENT TERMS

Acqulsmon costs:
Attachment point:

Broker: .

Capacity:

Case reserves:

Casualty insurance and
reinsurance:

Catastrophe; Catastrophic:

Catastrophe loss:

‘Catastrophie reinsurance:

1

Cede; Cedent; Ceding companyf

- The aggregate of policy acquisition costs, including

commissions and the portion of administrative, general and
other expenses attributable to underwriting operations.

The amount of loss (per occurrence or in the aggregate, as
the case may be) above which excess of loss insurance or
reinsurance becomes operative.

One who negotiates.contracts of insurance or reinsurance,

: receiving a commission for placement and other service

rendered, between (1) a policyholder and a primary insurer,
on behalf of the insured party, (2) a primary insurer and
reinsurer, on behaif of the primary insurer, or (3) a reinsurer
and a retrocessionaire; on behalf of the reinsurer.

‘The peréentage of surplus, or the dollar amount of

exposure, that an insurer or reinsurer is willing or able to
place at risk. Capacity may apply to a single risk, a
program, a line of business or an entire book of business.

»l‘ Capacity may be constrained by legal restrictions, corporate
’ restnctlons or mdlrect restrictions.

Loss reserves, estabhshed with respect to specific,
individual.reported claims.

Insurance or reinsurance that is primarily concerned with

o the losses caused by i injuries to third persons {(in other
‘words, persons other than the policyholder) and the

resulting legal liability imposed on the underlying insured

- or reinsured resuiting therefrom.

A severe loss or disaster, typically involving multiple

.claimants. Common perils include earthquakes, hurricanes,

hailstorms, severe winter weather, floods, fires, tornadoes,
explosions_.and other natural or man-made disasters.
Catastrophe losses may also arise from acts of war, acts of
terrorism -and political.instability.

Loss and directly’ identified loss adjustment expenses from
catastrophes. cen g

A form of excess of loss reinsurance which, subject to a
specified relnsurance limit, indemnifies the ceding
company for the amount of loss in excess of a specified
retention with respect to an accumutlation of losses
resulting from a catastrophic event. These reinsurance

- contracts are typically designed to cover property insurance
-losses but can be written to cover other types of insurance

losses such as losses from workers’ compensation policies.

When a party reinsures its liability with another, it transfers
or “cedes” business (premiums or losses) and is referred to
as the “cedent” or “ceding company.”
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Ceding commission:

Claim:

Claims-made:

Clash coverage: .

.Combined retiai : o

Correlation:

Ded;ctible: _

Directors’ and officers’

liability:

Employment practu:es

I|ab|I|ty

A fee based upon the ceding company’s.cost of acquiring
the business being reinsured (including commissions, '
premium taxes, assessments and miscellaneous
administrative expense) which also may inciude a proflt

:-factor.

Request by an insured or reinsured for indemnification by
an insurance . company or a reinsurance company for loss

-incurred-from an insured peril or event.

Insurance.or-reinsurance coverage with respect to claims::
reported. during the-policy period. The date of the claim
report. isideemed tobe the date of the loss event. Usually
coverage is also restricted to claims occurring and being
reported+{or-made) during the policy period, unless

- coverage:is provided to also include occurrences prior to

the pohcy effectlve date (a retroactive date).

: 'Coverage for losses incurred under two or more coverages

or policies from the same event.

The comblned ratlo |s the sum of the loss and loss expense
. ratio, the acqunsmon cost ratio and the general and

admlmstratlve expense ratio, determined in accordance

~with:either SAP or U.S. GAAP. A combined ratio below .+

100%*generally indicates profitable underwriting prior to

_the consideration of investment income. A combined ratlo
_over 100% generally mdlcates unprofitable underwntlng
prlor to the conSIderatlon of investment income.

“The degreevtotwhlch‘events or financial results tend to

correspond-to each other.

- The amount of loss that an insured retains, although the

insurer may be legally responsible for losses within the
deductibleand looks to the insured for reimbursement for
such losses. Contrast this with a self-insured retention

* (SIR), where the insurer is only responsible for claims in
‘excess of the SIR, regardless of the financial status of the
insured,

lnsurance or reinsurance which covers liability for corporate
directors and officers for wrongful acts, subjectto
apphcable exclus:ons ‘terms and conditions of the policy.

Insurance.or reinsurance that covers liability for an

:employer and its'directors, officers and employees for

claims resulting from-wrongful termination, discrimination,
sexual harassment, wrongful discipline and failure to

- employ or promote.
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Errors and omissions
liability:

Excess and surplus lines:

Excess of aggregate
coverage:

Excess of loss:

Exclusions:
Exposure:

Facultative Reinsurance:

Freque_ncy: ‘

General and admlmstratlve‘

expense ratio:

Coverage for liability resulting from errors or omissions in

the performance of professional duties. Applicable as a
general rule to professional business activities including but
not limited to banklng, accounting, law, insurance and real
estate.

Insurers who are not I|censed and accept risks on a
non-admitted or unregulated basis in accordance with state
laws regarding excess and surplus lines insurance. Excess
and ‘'suirplus lines prowsnons of state law allow excess and
surplus lines insurers to provide insurance only for risks for
which there is no market readily -available through licensed
insurers in such state.

The insurer or reinsurer indemnifies an insured. or

,.reinsured for an-aggregate or cumulative amount of losses

in.excess of a self-insured retention (if insurance) or a

.specified retained; aggregate amount of losses incurred by

the reinsured over a specified period of time up to a limit of
a specified aggregate .amount (if reinsurance).

-A generic term describing insurance- or reinsurance that

- indemnifies the insured or the reinsured against all or a

. specified portion of losses on underlying insurance policies
.in-excess of a specified amount, which is called a

“retention.” Also known as non- proportional insurance or
reinsurance. Excess of loss insurance or reinsurance is
written in layers. Ah-insurer or reinsurer or group of
insurers or reinsurers accepts a band of coverage up to a
specified amount. The total coverage purchased by the
cedent is referred to as a “program” and will typically be
placed with predetermined insurers or reinsurers in
pre-negotiated layers. Any liability exceeding the outer limit

“of the program reverts to the ceding company, which also
"bears the credit risk of an insurer’s or reinsurer's

insolvency.

:‘Provisions in an'insurance or reinsurance poliéy excluding
‘cértain risks or otherwise limiting the scope of coverage.

The bossibility of loss. A unit of measure of the amount of
risk a company assumes.

The reinsurance of all‘or a portion of the insurance
provided by a single-policy. Each policy reinsured is
separately negotiated.’

The number of claims occurring during a given coverage

- period. This is sometimes quoted as number of claims per
unit of exposure:

The' ratio of general and administrative expenses to net
premiums-earned. =
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Gross premiums written:

Incurred but not reported
(”IBNR")

Layer:
Loss'and’loss expense ratio:

Loss reserves:

Losses and loss expensé:

Losses incurred:

Net premiums earned: -

Net ‘premiumswrittenr

Mol Lo

Occurrence basis: b
o= - «:;event-during the term .of the policy that resuits in an

Premiums:

Probable maximum:

Total premiums for insurance written and assumed-
reinsutrance during a given period.

Reserves for estimated losses and loss expenses that have
been mcurred by insureds and reinsureds but not yet
reported to the insurer or reinsurer, including unknown
future developments on losses WhICh are known to the
‘insurer or reinsurer.

The mterval between the retention or attachment point and

N the maxnmum fimit of indemnity for which an insurer or

remsurer is responS|ble

The ratio‘of losses and loss expenses to net premiums
earnéd, determined iri accordance with either SAP or U.S.
GAAP.

St

‘Liabilities established by insurers and reinsurers to reflect
~“the‘estimated cost of claims payments and the related
‘expensesthat the insurer or reinsurer will ultimately be

‘ rediiired to pay in respect of insurance or reinsurance it has

“ywritten. Reserves are established for losses and for loss.
gxpenses.

The"expense of settling claims, including legal and other
fees and'theportion‘of general expense allocated to claim
“ settlement costs (also known as claim adjustment
expenses) plus Iosses mcurred with respect to claims.

The total Iosses sustamed by an insurer or reinsurer under

a pollcy or policies, whether paid or unpaid. Incurred losses

._,,ﬁpncl_ude,a‘,prowsnon for IBNR.

Thfe portion of net premiums written during or prior to a
- ‘given period that was actually recognized as income during
such penod :

Gross premlums written for a given period less premiums
: ceded to- reinsurers and retrocessionaires during such
period.

Insurance or reinsurance that provides coverage for an:

insured loss. This is distinguishable from claims-made

" insurance or reinsurance because the claim may be made '
" ‘after-the policy period expires. The limits of these policies

_-provide a maximum amount recoverable under the policy
-@s.a result of any one.event, regardless of the number of
clalms '

. The amount charged during the term on policies and
contracts 1ssued renewed or reinsured by an insurance
company or reinsurance company.

The largest probable loss on any given insurance policy or

.. coverage, as determined by loss: past experience and

information. . ..
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Quota share reinsurance: - . Reinsurance under which the insurer cedes an agreed-upon
fixed percentage of liabilities, premiums and losses for
each policy covered on a pro rata basis.

Rates: o " Amounts charged per unit of insurance and reinsurance
. ‘ (also sometimes shown per unit of exposure).

Reinsurance: ‘ An arrangement in which an insurance company, the
o reinsurer, agrees to mdemnrfy another insurance or
relnsurance company, the ceding company, against all or a
portlon of the insurance or reinsurance risks underwritten
by ‘the cedlng company under one or more policies.
Remsurance can provrde a ceding company with several
'benefrts, mcludmg a reduction in net liability on individual
“risks and catastrophe protectlon from large or multiple
losses. Remsurance also provides a ceding company with
) addltlonal underwrltmg capacity by permitting it to accept
" Iarger I’ISkS ‘and write more business than would be
possible without a concomitant increase in capital and
- surplus, and-facilitates the maintenance of acceptable -
.- .. .. financial ratios by the ceding company. Reinsurance does
"« .notlegally.discharge the primary insurer from its liability
‘with respect to its obhgatrons to the insured.

Reinsurance agreement: A tontract specrfylng the terms of a reinsurance transactlon
o .. - .. .{also known as a reinsurance certificate particularly with.
.7 . respect to.facultative reinsurance).

Reported losses: Claims or potential claims that have been identified to-a
Doy o i ool reinsurerby a cedmg company or to an insurer-by an.. - .
s L insured.
Reserves: ' B Llabuhtles establlshed by insurers and reinsurers to reflect

the estimated costs of claim payments and the related
expenses that the insurer or reinsurer will ultimately be .
.- .required:to pay-in respect of insurance or reinsurance‘it has
.- ‘written. Reserves are. established for losses, forloss
- _expenses.and for.unearned premiums. Loss reserves
..+ -consist.of “case reserves,” or reserves established with
o o - respect-to individual reported claims, and “IBNR reserves.”
For reinsurers; loss.expenses reserves are generally not
_significant beca_pse substantially all of the loss expenses
‘assocrated wrth ‘particular claims are incurred by the™
ure and reported to reinsurers as losses.
* Unearned premlum reserves constitute the portion of
’premrum pald in“advance for insurance or reinsurance that
‘has not yet been provided. See also “Loss Reserves.”

Ead

Retention: , The amount or portlon of a risk or group of risks that an
insurer retains for its own account, not covered by any
reinsurance purchased by the insurer. Losses from risks
that are reinsured are still obligations of the insurer, but
reimbursable by the reinsurer. In proportional agreements,
the retention may be a percentage of the original policy’s
limit. In excess of loss business, the retention is a dollar
amount of loss, a loss ratio or a percentage.
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Retrocessional protection;
Retrocessionaire:

Risk-based ’capital:

Self-insure:

Specialty lines::

Statutory accounting principles

("SAP"):

SUrpIds:.'i '

Retention may also mean that portion of the loss retained

by the insured or policyholder. Most insureds do not

purchase insurance to cover their entire exposure. Rather,
they elect to take a deductible or self-insured retention, a
portion of the risk that they will cover themselves.

A transactlon in wh|ch a reinsurer cedes to another
reinsurer, the retrocessuonalre all or part of the reinsurance
that the first reinsurer has assumed. Retrocessional
protectlon does not |egally discharge the ceding reinsurer
from its liability with respect to its obligations to the
emsured Remsurance companies cede risks to
retrocessnonalres for reasons similar to those that cause

'pnmary lnsurers to purchase reinsurance: to reduce net
liability on individual risks, to protect against catastrophic
“losses, to stabilize financial ratios and to obtain additional
‘ underwrmng capacnty

A measure adopted by the NAIC and enacted by states for
- determining the minimum statutory capltal and surplus

requirements of insurers with required regulatory and

- .company actions that apply when an insurer’s capital and
‘ surplus |s below these minimums.

’

The retentlon .of a portion of the risk by a person or entlty

for its own-account. See “Deductible” above for a

companson

oy
0

: Lmes of insurance and reinsurance that prowde coverage

for risks that are often unusual or difficult to place and do
not fit the underwriting criteria of standard commerc1a| o
products carrlers ' o

_.Recording transactions and preparing financial statements
«~in accordance with the rules and procedures prescribed or

permitted by United States state insurance regulatory
authorities including-the NAIC, which in general reflect a

‘Ilqundatlng, rather than going concern, concept of
: accounti‘ng :

-As determlned under SAP, the amount remaining after all
, vllablhtles mcIudmg loss reserves, are subtracted from all
admltted assets. Admitted assets are assets of an insurer
‘ ‘prescnbed or, permltted by a state to be recognized on the

statutory. balance sheet. Surplus is often referred to as
“surplus as regards pollcyholders" for statutory accountlng
purposes ‘ i e
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Treaty reinsurance; Reinsurance
treaties: :

Underwriter:

Underwriting:

U.S. GAAP:

Workers’ compensation:

N AP A AR AT N 8 " N g R

The reinsurance of a specified type or category of risks
defined in a reinsurance agreement between a primary
insurer or other reinsured and a reinsurer. Typically, in
treaty reinsurance, the primary insurer or reinsured is
obligated to offer, and the reinsurer is obligated to accept, a
specified portion of all of that type or category of risks
originally written by the primary insurer or reinsured.

An employee of an insurance or reinsurance company who
examines, accepts or rejects risks and classifies accepted
risks in order to charge an appropriate premium for each
accepted risk. .

The insurer's or reinsurer’s process of reviewing

applications for insurance coverage, and the decision
whether to accept all or part of the coverage and
determination of the applicable premiums; also refers to
the acceptance of that coverage.

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as defined by
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants or
statements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board.
U.S. GAAP is the method of accounting to be used by
Quanta Holidings for reportmg to shareholders.

A system (established under state and federal Iaws) under

~which employees provade insurance for benefit payments to

their employees for work-related injuries, deaths and

dlseases, regardless of fault..
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